
NOTICE OF OPEN MEETING & VOTE TO 

CLOSE PART OF THE MEETING 

A G E N D A  

COUNCIL MEETING 

City of Moberly 

City Council Room – Moberly City Hall 

101 West Reed Street 

October 18, 2021 

6:00 PM 
AMENDED AGENDA 

 

Posted:   

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Approval of Minutes 
1. Approval Of Minutes. 

Recognition of Visitors 

Communications, Requests, Informational Items   
2. Request From The YMCA To Hold The 2021 Turkey Trot 5K November 25, 2021. 

Public Hearing and Receipt of Bids 
3. Receipt Of Bids For Demolition Of Accessory Building. 

4. Receipt of Bids for lease-purchase financing for new 2022 Rosenbauer pumper and used 2006 

Sutphen aerial (ladder) fire trucks.   

Ordinances & Resolutions 
5. An Ordinance Adopting The Recommendation Of The Planning And Zoning Commission To 

Approve The Re-Zoning Application Of Redhead Properties Family Trust For Property Located At 

317 Patton Street. 

6. A Resolution Accepting The Bid And Authorizing Contracting With Wiedeman Dozing, LLC For 

Demolition Of Four Accessory Structures. 

7. A Resolution Authorizing A Lease Termination Agreement And Two Hangar Leases With Graves 

And Zandra Sandford And Nancy Rivera. 

8. A Resolution Accepting The Proposal Of Rosenbauer South Dakota, LLC For Rental Of A Fire 

Pumper Truck And Ratifying The Execution Of A Lease Agreement. 

9. A Resolution Accepting The Bid Of Moberly Motors For A Fire Command Supervisor Vehicle In 

The Amount Of $38,655.00. 

10. A Resolution Authorizing The Purchase Of A New Engine Pumper For The Moberly Fire 

Department. 

11. A Resolution Authorizing The Purchase Of A 2006 Sutphen Aerial Truck For The Moberly Fire 

Department. 

12. A Resolution Authorizing The Submission Of A Proposed Ordinance For Pretreatment 

Modifications To The Missouri Department Of Natural Resources. 

13. A Resolution Approving A Lease Agreement With Marine Toys For Tots Foundation For Property 

Located At 218 W Reed Street And Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Lease. 

14. A Resolution Authorizing Execution Of An Addendum To The Fuel Card Services Agreement 

Between Wex Bank And Sourcewell For The State Of Missouri. 

1



15. A Resolution Appropriating Money Out Of The Treasury Of The City Of Moberly, Missouri. 

Official Reports 
16. Department Head Monthly Reports. 

Anything Else to Come Before the Council 
17. Consideration Of A Motion To Adjourn To A Work Session Followed By A Closed Session To 

Discuss The Status Of Pending Negotiated Contracts. (Closed Statute 610.021) (12) 

Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We invite you to attend virtually by viewing it live on the City of Moberly You Tube Live 

Channel, Facebook page.  A link to the City’s Channel can be found on our website’s main page at 

www.cityofmoberly.com. The public is invited to attend the Council meeting.  Representatives of 

the news media may obtain copies of this notice by contacting the City Clerk.  If a special 

accommodation is needed as addressed by the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact the 

City Clerk twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the meeting. 

2

http://www.cityofmoberly.com/


 

September 15, 2021, 1:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 1 of 1 

September 15, 2021 

City of Moberly, Missouri Council Minutes 

 

Council met in a special session at 1:00 p.m. at the Sugar Creek Lake Ranger 

Station, 2507 County Road 1310, Moberly, Missouri, with Mayor Jeffrey 

presiding. 

 

Council Members answering the roll call were: Jerry Jeffrey, Tim Brubaker, 

John Kimmons, Cole Davis, and Austin Kyser. 

 

Also present were City Manager, Brian Crane; City Attorney, Randall Thompson; 

and City Clerk, Shannon Hance. 

 

A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Kimmons to adjourn to a work 

session.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis, and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

A work session of the City Council was held.  Goals and objectives were 

discussed. 

3

#1.



 

September 20, 2021, 5:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 1 of 1 

September 20, 2021 

City of Moberly, Missouri Council Minutes 

 

Council met in a special session at 5:00 p.m. at the Moberly Municipal 

Building, 204 North Clark Street, Moberly, Missouri, with Mayor Jeffrey 

presiding. 

 

Council Members answering the roll call were: Jerry Jeffrey, Tim Brubaker, 

John Kimmons, and Cole Davis.  Absent: Austin Kyser. 

 

Also present were City Manager, Brian Crane; Finance Director, Greg Hodge; 

Personnel Director, Marva Viley; Community Development/Public Works Director, 

Tom Sanders; Police Chief, Troy Link; Utilities Director, Dana Ulmer, Parks 

and Recreation Director, Troy Bock; Fire Chief, Don Ryan; Executive 

Assistant, Shirley Olney; City Attorney, Randall Thompson; and City Clerk, 

Shannon Hance.  Tim Warren and Jenny McKinzie of Enterprise Fleet Management 

were in attendance to give a presentation. 

 

City Manager, Crane, and Finance Director, Hodge, introduced Tim Warren and 

Jenny McKinzie of Enterprise Feet Management.  Warren and McKinzie gave a 

presentation of Enterprise Fleet Management. 

 

A motion was made by Brubaker and seconded by Davis to adjourn.  Ayes: 

Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, and Davis.  Nays; None.  Absent: Kyser. 

4

#1.



 

September 20, 2021, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 1 of 5 

September 20, 2021 

City of Moberly, Missouri Council Minutes 

 

Council met in regular session at 6:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers 

with Mayor Jeffrey presiding. 

 

All stood and recited the pledge of allegiance led by Mayor Jeffrey. 

 

Council Members answering the roll call were: Jerry Jeffrey, Tim Brubaker, John 

Kimmons, Cole Davis, and Austin Kyser. 

 

A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Davis to approve the agenda.  Ayes: 

Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Brubaker to approve the minutes of 

the September 2, and September 7, 2021, Council meeting as presented.  Ayes: 

Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

A request approving to extend the road closure of the 100 block of 4th Street 

on September 25, 2021, from 3:00 p.m. until Sunday, September 26, 2021, at 10:00 

a.m., and lift Ordinance 6-5 was received from the Moberly High School Classes 

of 1980 and 1981 for a class reunion.  They also request permission to erect a 

20’ x 40’ tent on the street directly in front of the 4th Street Theatre.  The 

reunion committees also request the lifting of Ordinance 6-5, public consumption 

of alcohol, from 6:00 p.m. September 25, to 12:00 a.m. September 26, for 

consumption of alcoholic beverages in the tent area and the sidewalk directly 

between 4th Street Theatre and the tent.  The serving of alcohol will be within 

the 4th Street Theatre only.  The lifting of Ordinance 6-5 is only applicable 

to the sidewalk directly in front of the 4th Street Theatre and the tent area.  

The Moberly Chamber of Commerce already has approval to close the 100 block of 

4th Street for Junk Junction and the JROTC car show on September 25, 2021, until 

7:00 p.m.  As the street is already closed until 7:00 p.m., this agenda request 

will be extending the closure of the 100 block of 4th Street until 10:00 a.m. 

Sunday, September 26, 2021.  Megan Schmitt, Executive Director of the Moberly 

Area Chamber of Commerce, granted permission for the classes of 1980 and 1981 

to use the 100 block of N 4th at the conclusion of the JROTC car show.  A motion 

was made by Kimmons and seconded by Davis to approve the request to extend the 

road closure for 4th Street on September 25, 2021, and lift Ordinance 6-5.  Ayes: 

Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

A request was received from Jeremy Kitchen to hold the annual Cowboys for 

Christmas Parade on November 6, 2021, beginning at 12:00 p.m. at the Lodge in 

Rothwell Park.  This annual event benefits Randolph County area children.  The 

parade route is as follows: travel from the Lodge south on Rothwell Park Road, 

across the dam to Holman Road, left on Holman Road, north to Concannon Street, 

right onto Concannon, east to Johnson Street, south to West Rollins Street, 

right onto West Rollins Street, west to College Avenue, left on College Avenue, 

south to Fisk Avenue, turn right and travel west on Fisk Avenue to Rothwell 

Park Road at the maintenance building, turn right and then return to the Lodge 

on Rothwell Park Road.  Approximately 50 units are expected to participate.  

Those participants will be on horseback or riding in horse drawn conveyances.  

5

#1.



 

September 20, 2021, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 2 of 5 

Six persons are expected to be available to help with the parade along the 

route.  A motion was made by Brubaker and seconded by Kyser to approve the 

request to hold the annual Cowboys for Christmas Parade on November 6, 2021.  

Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

The following bids were received for the Police Department Parking Pad 

Replacement: Spilman Concrete LLC, $8.50 per square yard for a total of 

$6,715.00.  Local concrete contractors DMC Concrete and Bohm Construction were 

contacted and asked to bid; however, neither bid the project.  A motion was 

made by Davis and seconded by Kimmons to accept the bids.  Ayes: Jeffrey, 

Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none 

 

The following bids were received for the replacement of the Police Department 

Security Cameras: Tiger Security - $15,080.00; Road Runner Low Voltage (Scott 

Dunwoody) - $11,396.00; and The Tech Shop - $13,469.00 and $9,453.00(16 

cameras).  A motion was made by Brubaker and seconded by Kyser to accept the 

bids.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none 

 

Kyser introduced “A RESOLUTION GRANTING A DRIVEWAY EASEMENT TO THE BOBBY N. 

BLADES TRUST” and made a motion for it to be read.  Kyser seconded the motion.  

Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none.  The Resolution 

bill having previously been made available for public inspection was read by 

title one time.  A motion was made by Brubaker and seconded by Kimmons to adopt 

the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Brubaker introduced “A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF SPILLMAN CONCRETE LLC 

FOR CONCRETE PARKING PAD REPLACEMENT AT THE MOBERLY POLICE DEPARTMENT” and made 

a motion for it to be read.  Kimmons seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, 

Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having 

previously been made available for public inspection was read by title one time.  

A motion was made by Kimmons and seconded by Davis to adopt the Resolution.  

Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Kimmons introduced “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING STREET CLOSURE AND PUBLIC 

CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOL FOR MOBERLY HIGH SCHOOL CLASSES OF 1980 AND 1981 REUNION” 

and made a motion for it to be read.  Davis seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, 

Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having 

previously been made available for public inspection was read by title one time.  

Diane Panjada, 1422 E McKinsey Street, Moberly, MO, was present and addressed 

the Council on behalf of the JROTC Car Show.  She requested that the Council 

allow more time for the owners of cars to move their vehicles since the car 

show ended at 2:00 p.m.  The Council stated the resolution directs closure of 

the street at 5:00 p.m. and three hours was a reasonable time frame allowing 

people to move their cars before the street closure.  A motion was made by 

Brubaker and seconded by Kyser to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, 

Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Davis introduced “AN RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLANNING AND 

ZONING COMMISSION TO APPROVE THE GRANTING OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO KYLE 

AND MEGAN EAGAN FOR SHORT TERM HOUSING RENTAL AT 1120 GLENWOOD AVENUE” and made 

a motion for it to be read.  Kimmons seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, 

6

#1.



 

September 20, 2021, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 3 of 5 

Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having 

previously been made available for public inspection was read by title one time.  

Present to speak against the recommendation were Crystal Slusing Hess of 1127 

Glenwood Avenue, George Benner of 1110 Fisk Avenue, Blake Beaston of 1126 

Glenwood Avenue.  Present to speak for the recommendation was Kyle Eagen.  The 

Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the Resolution.  No motion was made.  The 

bill died for lack of motion and was not enacted into a Resolution. 

 

Kyser introduced “A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A QUIT CLAIM DEED FROM TIMMY L. AND 

CONNIE L. MORGAN” and made a motion for it to be read.  Brubaker seconded the 

motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none.  The 

Resolution bill having previously been made available for public inspection was 

read by title one time.  A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Kimmons to 

adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: 

none. 

 

Brubaker introduced “A RESOLUTION RECORDING THE DESTRUCTION OF CERTAIN LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT RECORDS” and made a motion for it to be read.  Davis seconded the 

motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none.  The 

Resolution bill having previously been made available for public inspection was 

read by title one time.  A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Brubaker to 

adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: 

none. 

 

Kimmons introduced “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A SCOPE 

OF SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BARR ENGINEERING COMPANY FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES” 

and made a motion for it to be read.  Davis seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, 

Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having 

previously been made available for public inspection was read by title one time.  

A motion was made by Davis and seconded by Brubaker to adopt the Resolution.  

Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Davis introduced “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, ACCEPTING A 

MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES GRANT FOR A HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN 

AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT” 

and made a motion for it to be read.  Brubaker seconded the motion.  Ayes: 

Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill 

having previously been made available for public inspection was read by title 

one time.  A motion was made by Brubaker and seconded by Kimmons to adopt the 

Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Kyser introduced “A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING PERMANENT SEWER EASEMENTS FROM THE 

JUNIOR COLLEGE DISTRICT OF MOBERLY AND ROBERT AND BARBARA RILEY” and made a 

motion for it to be read.  Davis seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, 

Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having previously 

been made available for public inspection was read by title one time.  A motion 

was made by Kyser and seconded by Kimmons to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: 

Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Brubaker introduced “A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A 2021 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

PERFORMANCE GRANT AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

7

#1.



 

September 20, 2021, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 4 of 5 

OF SAID GRANT AND THE GRANT CONTRACT” and made a motion for it to be read.  

Davis seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  

Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having previously been made available for 

public inspection was read by title one time.  A motion was made by Kimmons and 

seconded by Kyser to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, 

Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Kimmons introduced “A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A QUIT CLAIM DEED FROM DAVID AND 

DARLENE KORB” and made a motion for it to be read.  Brubaker seconded the 

motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none.  The 

Resolution bill having previously been made available for public inspection was 

read by title one time.  A motion was made by Kimmons and seconded by Davis to 

adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: 

none. 

 

Davis introduced “A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PAVING EXTENSION AGREEMENT WITH 

SPARTAN SELF STORAGE, LLC” and made a motion for it to be read.  Kimmons seconded 

the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none.  

The Resolution bill having previously been made available for public inspection 

was read by title one time.  A motion was made by Kimmons and seconded by Davis 

to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  

Nays: none. 

 

Kyser introduced “A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING MONEY OUT OF THE TREASURY OF THE 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI IN THE AMOUNT OF $549,209.66” and made a motion for 

it to be read.  Kimmons seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, 

Davis (via Zoom), and Kyser.  Nays: None.  The Resolution bill having previously 

been made available for public inspection was read by title one time.  A motion 

was made by Kyser and seconded by Davis to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, 

Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Monthly reports were received from various departments. 

 

Kyser mentioned that 53 percent of our fire department calls are in support of 

the Randolph County Ambulance District. 

 

Nancy Copenhaver, 1512 Ridgeline Drive, Moberly, Missouri said that she owns 

812 Monroe Street and that she requested a trash container in June.  She has 

yet to receive the trash container from Waste Management.  Director of Community 

Development/Public Works, Tom Sanders, said that staff will follow up with Waste 

Management. 

 

A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Brubaker to adjourn to a work session 

followed by a closed session to discuss the status of pending legal actions and 

negotiated contract.  (Closed Statute 610.021) (1,12).  Roll call vote: Ayes: 

Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Mayor Jeffrey reopened the meeting. 

 

A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Brubaker to adjourn. Ayes: Jeffrey, 

Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

8

#1.



 

September 20, 2021, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 5 of 5 

 

Work Session 

 

The following was discussed at the Work Session: 

 

Discussion Of A Contract With Randolph County For Radio Communication Analysis 

Contract. 

 

Change Order #1 For An Increase At The Omar N. Bradley Regional Airport, Project 

#19-034A-1. 

 

A Resolution Accepting The Bid Of (Blue Valley Public Safety, Inc.) Federal 

Signal Corporation And Authorizing Contracting For Installation Of An Emergency 

Warning Siren. 

 

Discussion Of An Agreement Between MoDOT And The City Of Moberly To Allow The 

Pedestrian Flashers In The Right-of-Way. 

 

A Resolution Approving A Mowing And Hold Harmless Agreement Between The City Of 

Moberly, Missouri And Harold Muehe For Mowing The City Airport Property.  

 

A Resolution Approving a Mowing and Hold Harmless Agreement Between the City of 

Moberly, Missouri, and Gary Seidel for Mowing the City Lake Property. 

 

Review Of A New Service Agreement With Fusion Technology. 

 

Annual Fire Extinguisher Inspection And Maintenance Service. 

9

#1.



 

October 4, 2021, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 1 of 3 

October 4, 2021 

City of Moberly, Missouri Council Minutes 

 

Council met in regular session at 6:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers 

with Mayor Jeffrey presiding. 

 

All stood and recited the pledge of allegiance led by Mayor Jeffrey. 

 

Council Members answering the roll call were: Jerry Jeffrey, Tim Brubaker, John 

Kimmons, Cole Davis, and Austin Kyser. 

 

A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Brubaker to approve the agenda.  

Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Jeff Arp with MIRMA was present and he presented a safety grant award to the 

Moberly Police Department for a dash camera grant.   

 

Kyser introduced a bill for an ordinance entitled: “AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING 

CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 IN THE AMOUNT OF $440,531.75 TO THE OMAR N. BRADLEY REGIONAL 

AIRPORT RUNWAY RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT” and moved that the bill be read two times 

by title for passage.  Kimmons seconded the motion, and upon said motion the 

vote was as follows: Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: 

none.  The bill having previously been made available for public inspection was 

read by title two times.  Kimmons moved that the bill be enacted into an 

ordinance.  Davis seconded the motion.  The presiding officer having called for 

a vote on the motion, the vote was as follows: Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, 

Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Brubaker introduced a bill for an ordinance entitled: “AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

A MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORATION COMMISSION INSTALLATION OF ROADSIDE 

FLASHERS FOR SCHOOL OPERATION AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY” and moved that the bill 

be read two times by title for passage.  Kimmons seconded the motion, and upon 

said motion the vote was as follows: Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis 

and Kyser. Nays: none.  The bill having previously been made available for 

public inspection was read by title two times.  Brubaker moved that the bill be 

enacted into an ordinance.  Kyser seconded the motion.  The presiding officer 

having called for a vote on the motion, the vote was as follows: Ayes: Jeffrey, 

Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Kimmons introduced a bill for an ordinance entitled: “AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH RANDOLPH COUNTY FOR SCG CONSULTING SERVICES” and 

moved that the bill be read two times by title for passage.  Davis seconded the 

motion, and upon said motion the vote was as follows: Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, 

Kimmons, Davis and Kyser. Nays: none.  The bill having previously been made 

available for public inspection was read by title two times.  Brubaker moved 

that the bill be enacted into an ordinance.  Kyser seconded the motion.  The 

presiding officer having called for a vote on the motion, the vote was as 

follows: Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

10

#1.



 

October 4, 2021, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 2 of 3 

Davis introduced “A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MOWING AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI AND HAROLD MUEHE FOR MOWING THE CITY 

AIRPORT PROPERTY” and made a motion for it to be read.  Kimmons seconded the 

motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none.  The 

Resolution bill having previously been made available for public inspection was 

read by title one time.  A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Kimmons to 

adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: 

none. 

 

Kyser introduced “A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE QUOTATION OF FEDERAL SIGNAL 

CORPORATION FOR AN EMERGENCY WARNING SIREN AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

EXECUTE THE SALES AGREEMENT” and made a motion for it to be read.  Kimmons 

seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: 

none.  The Resolution bill having previously been made available for public 

inspection was read by title one time.  A motion was made by Davis and seconded 

by Kyser to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and 

Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Brubaker introduced “A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MOWING AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI AND GARY SEIDEL FOR MOWING THE CITY LAKE 

PROPERTY” and made a motion for it to be read.  Kimmons seconded the motion.  

Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none.  The Resolution 

bill having previously been made available for public inspection was read by 

title one time.  A motion was made by Kimmons and seconded by Kyser to adopt 

the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Kimmons introduced “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 

AGREEMENTS WITH ENTERPRISE FLEET MANAGEMENT INC. FOR LEASING AND MAINTAINING 

CITY VEHICLES” and made a motion for it to be read.  Davis seconded the motion.  

Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none.  The Resolution 

bill having previously been made available for public inspection was read by 

title one time.  A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Brubaker to adopt 

the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Davis introduced “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH FUSION TECHNOLOGY, LLC TO PROVIDE INFORMATION 

TECHNOLOGY ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES” and made a motion for it to be read.  Kyser 

seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: 

none.  The Resolution bill having previously been made available for public 

inspection was read by title one time.  A motion was made by Kimmons and seconded 

by Kyser to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and 

Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Kyser introduced “A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING MONEY OUT OF THE TREASURY OF THE 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI IN THE AMOUNT OF $526,425.15” and made a motion for 

it to be read.  Brubaker seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, 

Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having previously been made 

available for public inspection was read by title one time.  A motion was made 

by Kimmons and seconded by Davis to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, 

Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

11

#1.



 

October 4, 2021, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 3 of 3 

A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Kimmons to adjourn to a work session 

followed by a closed session to discuss the status of pending negotiated 

contract.  (Closed Statute 610.021) (12).  Roll call vote: Ayes: Jeffrey, 

Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

Mayor Jeffrey reopened the meeting. 

 

A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Kimmons to adjourn.  Ayes: Jeffrey, 

Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis and Kyser.  Nays: none. 

 

 

Work Session 

 

The following was discussed at the Work Session: 

 

Review Of An Agreement With State Of Missouri Fuel Card Program.  

 

A Request From YMCA To Hold Their Annual 2021 Turkey Trot 5K November 25, 2021.  

 

Receipt of Bids For A Supervisor Vehicle For The Moberly Fire Department.  

 

An application submitted by Redhead Properties Family Trust requesting a zoning 

change from a R1 (Single-Family Residential District) to an R-3 (Multifamily 

Dwelling District) for the property located at 317 Patton Street.  

 

A Resolution Approving A Lease Agreement With Marine Toys For Tots Foundation 

For Property Located At 218 W Reed Street And Authorizing The City Manager To 

Execute The Lease.  

 

Review Of A Lease Agreement With Rosenbauer South Dakota, LLC For Rental Of A 

Fire Pumper Truck For The Moberly Fire Department.  

 

Review Of A Financing Proposal For A Rosenbauer Pumper For The Moberly Fire 

Department.  

 

Review A Purchase Option For A Used Aerial Truck from Shawn Locklear For The 

Moberly Fire Department.  

 

Discussion of Graves Sandford Airport Leases. 

12

#1.



 

October 7, 2021, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 1 of 1 

October 7, 2021 

City of Moberly, Missouri Council Minutes 

 

Council met in a special session at 6:00 p.m. at the Moberly Municipal 

Building, 204 North Clark Street, Moberly, Missouri, with Mayor Jeffrey 

presiding. 

 

Council Members answering the roll call were: Jerry Jeffrey, Tim Brubaker, 

John Kimmons, Cole Davis, and Austin Kyser. 

 

A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Brubaker to adjourn to a work 

session.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Davis, and Kyser.  Nays:  none. 

 

A joint work session of the City Council and Moberly Area Economic 

Development Corporation was held.  The following was discussed: Local 

Snapshot; Retail Strategies; Project Green Thumb; Moberly Natural Crush, 

Project Medical; Project North; Downtown Reinvestment; and Miscellaneous 

MAEDC Information. 

13

#1.



Direct City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Police  

Date: October 18, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: Request from YMCA to hold the 2021 Turkey Trot 5K November 25, 2021 

  

Summary: Request to hold the 2021 Turkey Trot 5K on November 25, 2021. This is a 

fundraiser for the Randolph County YMCA. Race will begin in the 200 block 

of N 5th. Runners will travel south on 5th St to Fisk Ave. Turn west onto Fisk 

Ave, travel to Rothwell Park Rd and Fisk Ave, turn north into Rothwell Park 

travel to the James Youth Cabin. Turn right at the James Youth Cabin, and 

travel east across the dam to Holman Rd at the war memorials. Turn south on 

Holman Rd, to W Reed St. Turn east on W Reed to Hagood St, cross Hagood 

onto Adams Street and continue east to Johnson St, cross Johnson St and 

continue east on W Reed St to 5th St, turn north on 5th street to the finish line 

in front of 214 N 5th Street. Contact person is Jamie Shirk, 660-263-3600. 

Expect 150 to 200 participants; expect 15-20 people to assist with the 5K. 

Registration begins at 7am race begins at 8am.  

  

Recommended Action Approve this request. 

  

Fund Name:  

  

Account Number:  

  

Available Budget $:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
  x  Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

14

#2.



15

#2.



16

#2.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Comm. Dev. 

Date: October 18, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: Receipt of bids for demolition of accessory building. 

  

Summary: We advertised for bids on 7 accessory building within the City of Moberly, 3 

of those have been repaired or removed.  We received 3 bids from Wiedeman 

Dozing LLC, Wide Open Excavator and Shafer Excavating.  Staff 

recommends accepting Wiedeman Dozing LLC with the low bid. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Accept these bids 

  

Fund Name: Structure Demolition & Debris 

  

Account Number: 100.005.5418 

  

Available Budget $: 146,421.79 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
  x    Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

17

#3.



Advertisement of Bids 

 

The City of Moberly will receive sealed bids for the demolition of seven (7) residential accessory 

structures within the City of Moberly.  The bids are due by 10:00 AM on October 6, 2021.  

Please return sealed bids marked “Accessory Demolition” to City Clerk’s Office at 101 W Reed 

St.  Requirements and a list of properties for these bids may be obtained at the Community 

Development Office at City Hall, 101 West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270.  The City of 

Moberly reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids.  For more information call 

(660)269-7642. 

 

 

SUBMITTED BY THOMAS E. SANDERS 

CITY OF MOBERLY 

Director of Community Development 

18

#3.



19

#3.



20

#3.



21

#3.



22

#3.



23

#3.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Finance 

Date: October 18, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: Receipt of Bids for lease-purchase financing for new 2022 Rosenbauer 

pumper and used 2006 Sutphen aerial (ladder) fire trucks.   

  

 

Summary: 

 

Bids for $815,000 for both 7-year and 10-year financing terms were solicited 

on October 1st, 2021, for the lease-purchase of a new 2022 pumper truck and 

used 2006 aerial (ladder) truck. Replies were received from five banks: 

Central Bank, Commerce Bank, County Bank, First State Community Bank 

and Regional Missouri Bank. A tabulation of which is included here. County 

Bank submitted the low bid of 1.63% for seven years. Staff recommends 

accepting this bid. Annual payments will be made in arrears from the General 

Fund. 

 

After discussions with the City’s audit firm and the City attorney, staff 

proposes to purchase the 2006 aerial (ladder) truck with funds received 

through the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA).  County bank has agreed to 

offer the same interest rate for a lease-purchase amount of $588,000 to finance 

the 2022 Rosenbauer pumper. 

  

 

Recommended 

Action: Accept the bids. 

  

Fund Name: General Fund 

  

Account Number: 100.008.5502, Capital Improvement Plan 

  

Available Budget $: Will be added to the 2021-2022 operating budget 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report   _   Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence    _  Proposed Resolution   
   X   Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

24

#4.



Bidder Bid
Annual 

Payment
Other 

Exepnses Comments

County Bank 1.63% 124,147.00$ -$            

Commerce Bank/Clayton Holdings 1.74% 124,671.75$ -$            Bid good through 11/11/2021

Regional Missouri Bank 1.75% 124,758.19$ 250.00$      

First State Community Bank 2.28% 127,465.58$ -$            Bid good through 11/25/2021

Central Bank of Moberly 2.29% 127,496.21$ 500.00$      Bid good through 12/3/2021

First Bankers/Heiman Fire 3.28% 95,423.00$   -$            Only Financing $587,518 for the 2022 Rosenbauer Pumper

Bidder Bid
Annual 

Payment
Other 

Exepnses Comments

County Bank 1.82% 89,883.87$   -$            

Commerce Bank/Clayton Holdings 1.95% 90,493.93$   -$            Bid good through 11/11/2021

Regional Missouri Bank 2.15% 91,472.70$   250.00$      

First State Community Bank 2.45% 93,064.86$   -$            Bid good through 11/25/2021

Central Bank of Moberly 2.47% 93,148.80$   500.00$      Bid good through 12/3/2021

First Bankers/Heiman Fire 3.41% 70,485.00$   -$            Only Financing $587,518 for the 2022 Rosenbauer Pumper

City of Moberly

2022 Rosenbauer Pumper & 2006 Sutphen Aerial (Ladder)                                                                        
Lease-Purchase Financing Bids

7-Year Term ($815,000 Financed)

10-Year Term ($815,000 Financed)

25

#4.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Comm. Dev. 

Date: October 18, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Adopting The Recommendation Of The Planning And Zoning 

Commission To Approve The Re-Zoning Application Of Redhead Properties 

Family Trust For Property Located At 317 Patton Street. 

  

Summary: The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval for the request of 

the re-zoning of 317 Patton St.  Attached is a copy of the staff report, 

application and a map of the property. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this ordinance. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report   x    Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

26

#5.



 

 

BILL NO.        ORDINANCE NO.     

 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLANNING AND 

ZONING COMMISSION TO APPROVE THE RE-ZONING APPLICATION OF 

REDHEAD PROPERTIES FAMILY TRUST FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 317 

PATTON STREET. 

WHEREAS, Redhead Properties Family Trust submitted its Rezoning Application to the 

Zoning Administrator on August 21, 2021, to rezone property located at 317 Patton Street from R-

1 Single-Family Residential District to R-3 Multi-Family Dwelling District; and 

WHEREAS, after proper Notice a hearing was held before the City of Moberly Planning 

and Zoning Commission on September 27, 2021, at which time the Commission recommended 

approval of the rezoning request after having considered all standards listed in the zoning 

regulations, and all other conditions listed for that use in other sections of the regulations.  The 

Commission found that the proposed use did provide safeguards to assure its compatibility with 

the surrounding area. 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the rezoning application and the findings, 

conclusions and conditions of the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED the Moberly, Missouri, City Council hereby 

adopts the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission and approves the rezoning 

application described herein for property located at 317 Patton Street. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of October 2021, by the Council of the City of 

Moberly, Missouri. 

       _____________________________ 

ATTEST:      Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

    

City Clerk  
27

#5.



28

#5.



29

#5.



30

#5.



31

#5.



32

#5.



33

#5.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Comm. Dev. 

Date: October 18, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Accepting The Bid And Authorizing Contracting With 

Wiedeman Dozing, LLC For Demolition Of Four Accessory Structures. 

  

Summary: We advertised for bids on 7 accessory building within the City of Moberly, 3 

of those have been repaired or removed.  We received 3 bids from Wiedeman 

Dozing LLC, Wide Open Excavator and Shafer Excavating.  Staff 

recommends accepting Wiedeman Dozing LLC with the low bid. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution. 

  

Fund Name: Structure Demolition & Debris 

  

Account Number: 100.005.5418 

  

Available Budget $: 146,421.79 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence    x    Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

34

#6.



BILL NO.____________    RESOLUTION NO.___________ 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID AND AUTHORIZING CONTRACTING 

WITH WIEDEMAN DOZING, LLC FOR DEMOLITION OF FOUR ACCESSORY 

STRUCTURES. 

WHEREAS, an advertisement for bids was published for the demolition of four (4) 

accessory structures; and 

WHEREAS, the bid opening took place on October 6, 2021 with three bids being 

received; and 

WHEREAS, the bid of Wiedeman Dozing, LLC (“Wiedeman”) in the amount of Six 

Thousand One Hundred Dollars ($6,100.00) was the lowest responsible bid and staff 

recommends acceptance of the bid. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council accepts the bid of 

Wiedeman and authorizes the City Manager to contract with Wiedeman for demolition of the 4 

accessory structures identified in the bid upon the terms and conditions of the bid advertisement. 

RESOLVED this 18th day of October, 2021, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

       ___________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

 

35

#6.



36

#6.



37

#6.



38

#6.



39

#6.



40

#6.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:   

Department: Public Works 

Date:  October 18, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item:  A Resolution Authorizing A Lease Termination Agreement And Two Hangar 

Leases With Graves And Zandra Sandford And Nancy Rivera. 

  

Summary: This agreement provides for the termination of the existing hangar lease and 

surrender of the privately owned hangars to the City of Moberly.  In exchange 

for that the City will provide the occupant with 5 years of exclusive use of the 

hangars at $0.  The City will also perform the necessary maintenance to the 

hangars to bring them up to our requirements.   At the end of the 5 year 

proposed lease, the occupant may enter into an annual lease with the City at 

the current market rate for the hangars 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution. 

  

Fund Name:   

  

Account Number:   

  

Available Budget $:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence    x    Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report          Other        Passed Failed 

 

41

#7.



BILL NO.____________    RESOLUTION NO.___________ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A LEASE TERMINATION AGREEMENT AND 

TWO HANGAR LEASES WITH GRAVES AND ZANDRA SANDFORD AND NANCY 

RIVERA. 

 

WHEREAS, heretofore the City leased two locations at the Omar N. Bradley Regional 

Airport to Graves and Zandra Sandford and Nancy Rivera (hereinafter “Graves”) upon which the 

Graves constructed two airport hangars; and 

WHEREAS, the Graves now wish to terminate the two leases, convey ownership of the 

hangars thereon to the city and enter into two new hangar leases for a term of five (5) years each 

upon the terms and conditions contained in the attached Lease Termination Agreement and two 

hangar lease agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the city agrees to make repairs to the hangar buildings being leased to 

Graves during the term of the five year leases; and 

WHEREAS, city staff requests that the Council approve the three agreements attached 

hereto and further authorize the City Manager to execute said Agreements and to take such other 

and further action to accomplish the purposes of this Resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Moberly hereby approves the 

attached Lease Termination Agreement and Hangar Leases and further authorizes the City 

Manager to execute the Agreements on behalf of the City and to take such other and further 

action to accomplish the purposes of this Resolution. 

RESOLVED this 18th day of October, 2021, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

       ___________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

 

42

#7.



LEASE TERMINATION AGREEMENT 

 COMES NOW the City of Moberly, Missouri (hereinafter “City”) a municipal corporation and 

Graves M. Sandford and Zandra A. Sandford, husband and wife and Nancy A. Rivera, (hereinafter 

“Lessee” and together with City, the “Parties”) and for their LEASE TERMINATION AGREEMENT state as 

follows: 

RECITALS 

A. On or about October 1, 2011, the Parties entered into two Lease agreements (hereinafter the 

“Leases”), a copies of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibits “1” and “2”. 

B. The Leases provided for the rental of real property for purposes of maintaining a Hangar 

building to house an airplane(s) and related equipment and property for a period of fifteen (15) years 

from and after the first day of October, 2011. 

C. During the course of time following the creation of the Leases the Lessee erected the hangar 

building containing approximately 3,900 square feet and acquired the hangar with 4,000 square feet. 

D. The Parties now wish to terminate said Leases upon the following described terms and 

conditions. 

AGREEMENT 

1. The above state Recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein and made a part of 

this Agreement. 

2. The Parties agree to execute new lease agreements, attached hereto as Exhibit “3” and “4”, 

contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement which provide for two five (5) year hangar 

leases at the same locations as the real estate described in Exhibits “1” and “2”. 

3. In consideration of the execution of the attached Exhibits “3” and “4” and this Agreement the 

Lessees hereby sell, assign, transfer and release unto the City all of their right, title and interest to the 

hangars and other structures affixed to the real estate described in Exhibits “1” and “2”. 

4. In consideration of the execution of Exhibits “3” and “4” and other good and valuable 

consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Lessees and the City hereby agree to 

terminate and end the current leases attached as Exhibits “1” and “2” and all obligations, 

responsibilities, rights or liabilities associated therewith.  Lessees hereby waive any further interest in 

the leases, or the hangars located thereon and the leases are mutually terminated as of the execution 

date of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have set their hands this ___ day of ______________, 2021. 

       CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
 
       _________________________________ 
       By:  Brian Crane, City Manager 
 
 
 

43

#7.



Attest: 
 
______________________________ 
Shannon Hance, City Clerk 
       LESSEES 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Graves M. Sandford 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Zandra A. Sandford 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Nancy A. Rivera 

44

#7.



HANGAR LEASE 
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

OMAR N. BRADLEY REGIONAL AIRPORT 
 

  
 THIS LEASE is made this ___ day of ___________, 2021, between the City of Moberly, Missouri, 
(hereinafter “City”) a municipal corporation and Graves M. Sandford and Zandra A. Sandford, husband 
and wife, the Lessees (hereinafter “Lessee”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. City is a Third-Class statutory city duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the 
State of Missouri with the power to conduct municipal business pursuant to Missouri law 
and the Ordinances duly enacted by the Moberly City Council. 

B. City is the owner and proprietor of the Omar N. Bradley Regional Airport located in Moberly, 
Missouri, and is the owner of certain hangar buildings located thereon. 

C. City intends to offer space within its hangar buildings to owners of private airplanes for the 
storage of permitted aircraft. 

D. Lessee is the owner of private aircraft and desires to hangar such aircraft pursuant to the 
terms and conditions of this lease agreement. 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
SECTION 1. RECITALS 
 
 The above stated Recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein and made a part of 
this Hangar Lease agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”). 
 
SECTION 2. PREMISES 
 
 City hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from City the following described 
property and the hangar located thereon:   
 
Beginning at a point that is 114 feet west of, and 561 feet north of the southeast corner of the 
northwest One-Quarter of Section 24, Township 54 North, Range 14 West; thence North 45 degrees east 
135 feet; thence north 45 degrees west 97.5 feet; thence south 45 degrees West 135 feet; thence South 
45 degrees East 97.5 feet, to the point of beginning, being a rectangular tract of land 135 feet by 97.5 
feet and containing .302 acres more of less and more commonly known as 3590 East Outer Road, 
Moberly, Missouri. 
 
Said property is located at the Omar N. Bradley Regional Airport (hereinafter “Premises”) and is leased 
on the terms and conditions stated herein.  Lessee accepts the Premises “As Is,” subject to all applicable 
municipal, state and federal laws, ordinances, regulations and policies governing and regulating the use 
of the Premises, and any covenants or restrictions of record.  Lessee acknowledges that City has made 
no representations or warranties as to the physical state of the Premises, or any suitability of the 
Premises. 
 
SECTION 3. TERM 

45

#7.



 
 3.1 Five Year Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of five (5) years  
commencing on the first day of November 2021 and ending on November 1, 2026. 
 
 3.2 Renewal.   This lease is not eligible for renewal.  If the lessee desires to continue leasing 
the premises after November 1, 2026 then a new lease will be drafted on an annual renewal basis using 
then current market rates in effect at Omar N. Bradley Regional Airport. 
 
 
SECTION 4. RENTAL AMOUNT 
 
 4.1 In-Kind.  Lessee owned a 3,900 square foot hangar located on the premises prior to 
terminating its last lease with the city.  In exchange for the Lessee transferring ownership of the hangar 
structure to the City as part of a Lease Termination Agreement, the Lessee shall receive use of the 
premises for a term of five years.  The parties agree that the value of the hangar and the value of five 
years of rent are equivalent. 
 
 
SECTION 5. LESSEE’S PERMITTED USE AND ACTIVITY 
 
 5.1 Ownership and Identification of Aircraft.  Lessee is the Registered Owner of the 
following described permitted aircraft which will be housed pursuant to this Agreement: 
Make:     Cessna          
Model:   172A          
Year:     
Registration No. N9802T        
Serial No.   47602         
Address of Owner: Graves Sandford PO Box 885, Moberly, MO 65270 
 
Make:     Cessna          
Model:   150lL          
Year:     
Registration No. N1262Q        
Serial No.   15072562        
Address of Owner: Graves M. Sandford & Zandra A. Sandford, PO Box 885, Moberly, MO 65270 
 
 Make:     Cessna         
Model:   182A          
Year:     
Registration No. N5170D        
Serial No.   51270         
Address of Owner: Graves Sandford PO Box 885,  Moberly, MO 65270 
 
Lessee agrees to notify City of any changes to the above described permitted aircraft information.  
Failure to notify the City of any changes shall constitute an Event of Default. 
 
 5.2 Access and Key.  Lessee shall be issued a key to the hangar building and permitted free 
access for ingress and egress of the permitted aircraft.  Lessee shall be charged $20 to replace a hangar 

46

#7.



key.  The hangar door shall not be left open or unlocked unless the Lessee or pilot of the permitted 
aircraft is in the immediate vicinity of the hangar building. 
 
 5.3 Use of Premises.  Lessee agrees to use the Premises for the storage and housing of the 
permitted aircraft, for flight training and airplane repairs and all other purposes permitted under his City 
of Moberly business license but shall not permit any of the following uses: 
 a. Use the premises in such a manner as to void or increase the rate of insurance thereon; 
 b. Make any alterations, additions, or improvements to the leased Premises without the 
prior written consent of the City. 
 c. Start the aircraft engine inside the Premises. 
 
 5.4 Access to Public Areas.  Lessee shall have the right to use all public areas of the airport, 
including runways, taxi-ways, and other airport facilities customarily used by aircraft owners. 
 
SECTION 5. CITY’S OBLIGATIONS 
 
 6.1 City Inspection.  City shall, at all reasonable times, have the full and unrestricted right to 
enter the Premises for the purpose of inspecting the leased area, for maintenance and to determine 
compliance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 
 6.2 Maintenance.  City agrees to maintain the leased Premises in the same condition as 
when leased, ordinary wear and tear excepted, during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 6.3 Trash Disposal.  City agrees to provide a location for disposal of trash associated with 
lessee’s use of the hangar building.  Lessee is responsible for disposal of all hazardous materials 
associated with the operation of the permitted aircraft in designated recycling areas. 
 
 6.4 Hangar Repair.  City shall begin immediate repair of the hangar structure to meet 
building code standards and airport building standards.  Lessee agrees to cooperate with City in 
providing access to the hangar for purposes of repair. 
 
SECTION 6. ASSIGNMENT 
 
 6.1 Lessee shall not assign, hypothecate, or in any manner transfer any interest in this 
Agreement to any person or entity directly or indirectly, by operation of law or otherwise, without first 
securing City’s express written approval of such transfer. 
 
SECTION 7. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
 7.1 Lessee hereby agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City, its City Council, 
boards and commissioners, officers, agents, employees, volunteers and contractors from any and all 
loss, damage, cost, expense, liability, claims, demands, suits, attorneys’ fees and judgments arising 
directly or indirectly from or in any manner related to Lessee’s possession, occupancy or use of the 
Premises, regardless of any active or passive negligence by the City, except as may otherwise be stated 
herein. 
 
SECTION 8. INSURANCE 
 

47

#7.



 8.1 Coverage.  Prior to the commencement of the term of this Agreement, Lessee shall 
procure and maintain at Lessee’s own cost and expense, for the duration of this Agreement, the 
following insurance against claims for injuries or death to persons or damages to property that may 
arise from or in connection with the possession, occupancy, operations and use of the Premises by the 
Lessee, its agents, representatives, contractors, guests, and invitees. 
 
 8.2 Minimum Limits/Scope of Insurance.  Lessee shall obtain and maintain General Liability 
Insurance against liability for financial loss resulting from bodily injury, including death or personal 
injury, and damage to property caused by the ownership, operations and storage arising from or related 
to this lease Agreement.  The policy shall provide limits of no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and 
include coverage for fire damage legal liability at the full $100,000 policy limit. 
 
 8.3 Endorsements.  The Aircraft or General Liability Insurance policy shall contain the 
following provisions: 
 

a. City of Moberly, Missouri, its City Council, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers 
are to be covered as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of the use of the 
premises leased to Lessee.  

b. For any claims related to this Agreement, Lessee’s insurance coverage shall be primary as 
respects City of Moberly, Missouri its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers.  Any 
insurance maintained by the City of Moberly, Missouri shall be excess of Lessee’s insurance 
and shall not contribute with it. 

 
8.4 Verification of Coverage.  Lessee shall furnish the City with original certificates or 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language providing the insurance coverage 
required herein.  All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the City 
before this Agreement is executed.  However, failure to obtain required documents prior to 
execution of the Agreement shall not waive Lessee’s obligation to provide them.  The City 
reserves the right to require complete certified copies of all required insurance policies, 
including the endorsements required herein, at any time. 
 

SECTION 9. DEFAULTS 
 
 The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a material default 
and breach of this lease Agreement by Lessee: 
 

A. The failure by Lessee to make any payment of Rent; or any other payment required to be 
made by Lessee hereunder, as and when due, where such failure shall continue for a period 
of ten (10) calendar days after written notice from City to Lessee. 

B. The failure by Lessee to comply with Section 5.3 of this Agreement. 
C. An unapproved or unauthorized transfer of any interest acquired under this Agreement. 
D. The failure to comply with any of the insurance requirements stated in this Agreement. 
E. The occurrence of any other event described as constituting an “Event of Default” 

elsewhere in this Agreement. 
F. The discovery by City that any material information provided by Lessee related to this 

Agreement is materially false. 
 
 

48

#7.



 
SECTION 10. REMEDIES 
 
 In the event of any material default or breach by Lessee, City may at any time thereafter, with or 
without notice or demand and without limiting City in the exercise of any right or remedy which City 
may have by reason of such default or breach, avail itself of the following remedies, which are 
cumulative and not exclusive: 
 

A. City may recover possession of the leased Premises by any lawful means available to it, 
including self-entry, in which case this lease Agreement shall terminate immediately and 
Lessee shall immediately remove all personal property, including the aircraft, from the 
Premises.  If Lessee shall fail to remove personal property, including the aircraft, City may 
remove such property to another location with Lessee assuming any risk of loss or damage 
to such property.   

B. City shall be entitled to recover from Lessee all damages incurred by City by reason of 
Lessee’s default, including, but not limited to, the cost of recovering possession of the 
Premises, amount of delinquent rent, interest at the maximum amounts allowed by law on 
delinquent rent, and reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

 
SECTION 11. TERMINATION 
 
 This lease Agreement is terminable by the Lessee upon giving the City thirty (30) days-notice of 
intent.  In the event Lessee should abandon the premises and no longer use the premises for airplane 
storage then this Lease is terminable by the City upon giving Lessee thirty (30) days-notice of intent to 
do so.  In the event the hangar is destroyed by fire or natural disaster then the city shall replace the 
structure in commercially reasonable time. 
 
SECTION 12. NOTICES 
 
 All notices, demands, requests or approvals to be given under this lease Agreement shall be 
given in writing and shall be by hand delivery, overnight mail service, registered or certified mail, or 
regular first-class mail.  All notices, demands, requests or approvals from Lessee to City shall be 
addressed to: 
  Tom Sanders 
  Airport Manager 
   
 
 
 With a copy to: 
  Randall D. Thompson  
  Moberly City Attorney 
  3610 Buttonwood Drive 
  Columbia, MO  65201 
 All notices, demands, requests or approvals from City to Lessee shall be addressed to: 
 
 
 
 

49

#7.



SECTION 13. MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY 
 
 City may only act through its City Council to approve this Agreement therefore execution of this 
Agreement is contingent upon approval by the Moberly City Council. 
 
SECTION 14. GOVERNING LAW 
 
 This lease Agreement has been made and shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Missouri.  Venue shall be appropriate in the Randolph County Circuit Court. 
 
SECTION 15. COUNTERPARTS 
 
 This lease Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which is an original, and 
all of which together constitute but one and the same document. 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this lease Agreement on the date set forth 
above. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
 
 
___________________________      By: _______________________________ 
Randall D. Thompson     Brian Crane 
City Attorney      City Administrator 
 
 
ATTEST:       LESSEE: 
 
 
___________________________   ________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
       _________________________________ 
   

 
 

 

50

#7.



HANGAR LEASE 
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

OMAR N. BRADLEY REGIONAL AIRPORT 
 

  
 THIS LEASE is made this ___ day of ___________, 2021, between the City of Moberly, Missouri, 
(hereinafter “City”) a municipal corporation and Graves M. Sandford and Zandra A. Sandford, husband 
and wife, the Lessees (hereinafter “Lessee”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. City is a Third-Class statutory city duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the 
State of Missouri with the power to conduct municipal business pursuant to Missouri law 
and the Ordinances duly enacted by the Moberly City Council. 

B. City is the owner and proprietor of the Omar N. Bradley Regional Airport located in Moberly, 
Missouri, and is the owner of certain hangar buildings located thereon. 

C. City intends to offer space within its hangar buildings to owners of private airplanes for the 
storage of permitted aircraft. 

D. Lessee is the owner of private aircraft and desires to hangar such aircraft pursuant to the 
terms and conditions of this lease agreement. 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
SECTION 1. RECITALS 
 
 The above stated Recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein and made a part of 
this Hangar Lease agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”). 
 
SECTION 2. PREMISES 
 
 City hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from City the following described 
property and the hangar located thereon:   
 
Beginning at a point that is 114 feet west of, and 561 feet north of the southeast corner of the 
Northwest Quarter of Section 24, Township 54 North, Range 14 West; thence North 45 degrees west 
135 feet; thence South 45 degrees west 135 feet; thence south 45 degrees East 135 feet; thence North 
45 degrees East 135 feet, to the point of beginning, being a square tract of land 135 feet by 135 feet and 
containing .4 acres more of less and more commonly known as 3580 East Outer Road, Moberly, 
Missouri. 
 
Said property is located at the Omar N. Bradley Regional Airport (hereinafter “Premises”) and is leased 
on the terms and conditions stated herein.  Lessee accepts the Premises “As Is,” subject to all applicable 
municipal, state and federal laws, ordinances, regulations and policies governing and regulating the use 
of the Premises, and any covenants or restrictions of record.  Lessee acknowledges that City has made 
no representations or warranties as to the physical state of the Premises, or any suitability of the 
Premises. 
 
SECTION 3. TERM 

51

#7.



 
 3.1 Five Year Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of five (5) years 
commencing on the first day of November 2021 and ending on November 1, 2026. 
 
 3.2 Renewal.   This lease is not eligible for renewal.  If the lessee desires to continue leasing 
the premises after November 1, 2026, then a new lease will be drafted on an annual renewal basis using 
then current market rates in effect at Omar N. Bradley Regional Airport. 
 
 
SECTION 4. RENTAL AMOUNT 
 
 4.1 In-Kind.  Lessee owned a 4,000 square foot hangar located on the premises prior to 
terminating its last lease with the city.  In exchange for the Lessee transferring ownership of the hangar 
structure to the City as part of a Lease Termination Agreement, the Lessee shall receive use of the 
premises for a term of five years.  The parties agree that the value of the hangar and the value of five 
years of rent are equivalent. 
 
 
SECTION 5. LESSEE’S PERMITTED USE AND ACTIVITY 
 
 5.1 Ownership and Identification of Aircraft.  Lessee is the Registered Owner of the 
following described permitted aircraft which will be housed pursuant to this Agreement: 
Make:     Cessna          
Model:   172A          
Year:     
Registration No. N9802T        
Serial No.   47602         
Address of Owner: Graves Sandford PO Box 885, Moberly, MO 65270 
 
Make:     Cessna          
Model:   150lL          
Year:     
Registration No. N1262Q        
Serial No.   15072562        
Address of Owner: Graves M. Sandford & Zandra A. Sandford, PO Box 885, Moberly, MO 65270 
 
 Make:     Cessna         
Model:   182A          
Year:     
Registration No. N5170D        
Serial No.   51270         
Address of Owner: Graves Sandford PO Box 885, Moberly, MO 65270 
 
Lessee agrees to notify City of any changes to the above described permitted aircraft information.  
Failure to notify the City of any changes shall constitute an Event of Default. 
 
 5.2 Access and Key.  Lessee shall be issued a key to the hangar building and permitted free 
access for ingress and egress of the permitted aircraft.  Lessee shall be charged $20 to replace a hangar 

52

#7.



key.  The hangar door shall not be left open or unlocked unless the Lessee or pilot of the permitted 
aircraft is in the immediate vicinity of the hangar building. 
 
 5.3 Use of Premises.  Lessee agrees to use the Premises for the storage and housing of the 
permitted aircraft, for flight training and airplane repairs and all other purposes permitted under his City 
of Moberly business license but shall not permit any of the following uses: 
 a. Use the premises in such a manner as to void or increase the rate of insurance thereon; 
 b. Make any alterations, additions, or improvements to the leased Premises without the 
prior written consent of the City. 
 c. Start the aircraft engine inside the Premises. 
 
 5.4 Access to Public Areas.  Lessee shall have the right to use all public areas of the airport, 
including runways, taxi-ways, and other airport facilities customarily used by aircraft owners. 
 
SECTION 5. CITY’S OBLIGATIONS 
 
 6.1 City Inspection.  City shall, at all reasonable times, have the full and unrestricted right to 
enter the Premises for the purpose of inspecting the leased area, for maintenance and to determine 
compliance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 
 6.2 Maintenance.  City agrees to maintain the leased Premises in the same condition as 
when leased, ordinary wear and tear excepted, during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 6.3 Trash Disposal.  City agrees to provide a location for disposal of trash associated with 
lessee’s use of the hangar building.  Lessee is responsible for disposal of all hazardous materials 
associated with the operation of the permitted aircraft in designated recycling areas. 
 
 6.4 Hangar Repair.  City shall begin immediate repair of the hangar structure to meet 
building code standards and airport building standards.  Lessee agrees to cooperate with City in 
providing access to the hangar for purposes of repair. 
 
SECTION 6. ASSIGNMENT 
 
 6.1 Lessee shall not assign, hypothecate, or in any manner transfer any interest in this 
Agreement to any person or entity directly or indirectly, by operation of law or otherwise, without first 
securing City’s express written approval of such transfer. 
 
SECTION 7. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
 7.1 Lessee hereby agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City, its City Council, 
boards and commissioners, officers, agents, employees, volunteers and contractors from any and all 
loss, damage, cost, expense, liability, claims, demands, suits, attorneys’ fees and judgments arising 
directly or indirectly from or in any manner related to Lessee’s possession, occupancy or use of the 
Premises, regardless of any active or passive negligence by the City, except as may otherwise be stated 
herein. 
 
 
 

53

#7.



SECTION 8. INSURANCE 
 
 8.1 Coverage.  Prior to the commencement of the term of this Agreement, Lessee shall 
procure and maintain at Lessee’s own cost and expense, for the duration of this Agreement, the 
following insurance against claims for injuries or death to persons or damages to property that may 
arise from or in connection with the possession, occupancy, operations and use of the Premises by the 
Lessee, its agents, representatives, contractors, guests, and invitees. 
 
 8.2 Minimum Limits/Scope of Insurance.  Lessee shall obtain and maintain General Liability 
Insurance against liability for financial loss resulting from bodily injury, including death or personal 
injury, and damage to property caused by the ownership, operations and storage, arising from or related 
to this lease Agreement.  The policy shall provide limits of no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and 
include coverage for fire damage legal liability at the full $100,000 policy limit. 
 
 8.3 Endorsements.  The General Liability Insurance policy shall contain the following 
provisions: 
 

a. City of Moberly, Missouri, its City Council, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers 
are to be covered as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of the use of the 
premises leased to Lessee.  

b. For any claims related to this Agreement, Lessee’s insurance coverage shall be primary as 
respects City of Moberly, Missouri its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers.  Any 
insurance maintained by the City of Moberly, Missouri shall be excess of Lessee’s insurance 
and shall not contribute with it. 

 
8.4 Verification of Coverage.  Lessee shall furnish the City with original certificates or 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language providing the insurance coverage 
required herein.  All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the City 
before this Agreement is executed.  However, failure to obtain required documents prior to 
execution of the Agreement shall not waive Lessee’s obligation to provide them.  The City 
reserves the right to require complete certified copies of all required insurance policies, 
including the endorsements required herein, at any time. 
 

SECTION 9. DEFAULTS 
 
 The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a material default 
and breach of this lease Agreement by Lessee: 
 

A. The failure by Lessee to make any payment of Rent; or any other payment required to be 
made by Lessee hereunder, as and when due, where such failure shall continue for a period 
of ten (10) calendar days after written notice from City to Lessee. 

B. The failure by Lessee to comply with Section 5.3 of this Agreement. 
C. An unapproved or unauthorized transfer of any interest acquired under this Agreement. 
D. The failure to comply with any of the insurance requirements stated in this Agreement. 
E. The occurrence of any other event described as constituting an “Event of Default” 

elsewhere in this Agreement. 
F. The discovery by City that any material information provided by Lessee related to this 

Agreement is materially false. 

54

#7.



 
 
 
SECTION 10. REMEDIES 
 
 In the event of any material default or breach by Lessee, City may at any time thereafter, with or 
without notice or demand and without limiting City in the exercise of any right or remedy which City 
may have by reason of such default or breach, avail itself of the following remedies, which are 
cumulative and not exclusive: 
 

A. City may recover possession of the leased Premises by any lawful means available to it, 
including self-entry, in which case this lease Agreement shall terminate immediately and 
Lessee shall immediately remove all personal property, including the aircraft, from the 
Premises.  If Lessee shall fail to remove personal property, including the aircraft, City may 
remove such property to another location with Lessee assuming any risk of loss or damage 
to such property.   

B. City shall be entitled to recover from Lessee all damages incurred by City by reason of 
Lessee’s default, including, but not limited to, the cost of recovering possession of the 
Premises, amount of delinquent rent, interest at the maximum amounts allowed by law on 
delinquent rent, and reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

 
SECTION 11. TERMINATION 
 
 This lease Agreement is terminable by the Lessee upon giving the City thirty (30) days-notice of 
intent.  In the event Lessee should abandon the premises and no longer use the premises for airplane 
storage then this Lease is terminable by the City upon giving Lessee thirty (30) days-notice of intent to 
do so.  In the event the hangar is destroyed by fire or natural disaster then the city shall replace the 
structure in commercially reasonable time. 
 
SECTION 12. NOTICES 
 
 All notices, demands, requests or approvals to be given under this lease Agreement shall be 
given in writing and shall be by hand delivery, overnight mail service, registered or certified mail, or 
regular first-class mail.  All notices, demands, requests or approvals from Lessee to City shall be 
addressed to: 
  Tom Sanders 
  Airport Manager 
   
 
 
 With a copy to: 
  Randall D. Thompson  
  Moberly City Attorney 
  3610 Buttonwood Drive 
  Columbia, MO  65201 
 All notices, demands, requests or approvals from City to Lessee shall be addressed to: 
 
 

55

#7.



 
 
SECTION 13. MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY 
 
 City may only act through its City Council to approve this Agreement therefore execution of this 
Agreement is contingent upon approval by the Moberly City Council. 
 
SECTION 14. GOVERNING LAW 
 
 This lease Agreement has been made and shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Missouri.  Venue shall be appropriate in the Randolph County Circuit Court. 
 
SECTION 15. COUNTERPARTS 
 
 This lease Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which is an original, and 
all of which together constitute but one and the same document. 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this lease Agreement on the date set forth 
above. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
 
 
___________________________      By: _______________________________ 
Randall D. Thompson     Brian Crane 
City Attorney      City Administrator 
 
 
ATTEST:       LESSEE: 
 
 
___________________________   ________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
       ________________________________ 
 
        
        
   

 
 

 

56

#7.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Fire Dept 

Date: October 18, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Accepting The Proposal Of Rosenbauer South Dakota, LLC For 

Rental Of A Fire Pumper Truck And Ratifying The Execution Of A Lease 

Agreement. 

  

Summary: The Moberly Fire Department has had mechanical issues in multiple pumper 

trucks in the fleet those being Engine 305 and Engine 302.  Staff has reviewed 

the situation and determined the best solution to provide public safety is a rental 

pumper truck.   Rosenbauer South Dakota LLC has provided the attached lease 

for the rental of $1,000 per month, (max amount of $12,000) until staff has a 

more permanent remedy.    

  

Recommended Action   Approve This Resolution 

  

Fund Name:  General Fund 

  

Account Number: 100.008.5503 

  

Available Budget $: 0.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
      Correspondence   X    Proposed Resolution   
         Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

57

#8.



BILL NO.__________    RESOLUTION NO._________ 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF ROSENBAUER SOUTH 

DAKOTA, LLC FOR RENTAL OF A FIRE PUMPER TRUCK AND RATIFYING THE 

EXECUTION OF A LEASE AGREEMENT. 

 

WHEREAS, the Moberly Fire Chief sought proposals for the rental of a fire pumper 

until such time as a new replacement pumper can be purchased; and 

WHEREAS, Rosenbauer South Dakota, LLC (hereinafter “Rosenbauer”) offered a fire 

pumper at a cost of $1,000.00 a month for a term of at least twelve months; and   

WHEREAS, the existing fire pumper became inoperable resulting in the emergency 

leasing of the Rosenbauer fire pumper by the city manager; and 

WHEREAS, city staff recommends acceptance of the attached lease agreement and 

ratification of the city manager’s execution of the agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council hereby accepts the lease 

terms of Rosenbauer for a fire pumper and ratifies the execution of the attached lease agreement 

of the city manager and further authorizes such other and further actions as may be necessary to 

carry out the intent of this Resolution. 

RESOLVED this 18th day of October, 2021, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

 

58

#8.



59

#8.



60

#8.



61

#8.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Fire 

Date: October 18, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Accepting The Bid Of Moberly Motors For A Fire Command 

Supervisor Vehicle In The Amount Of $38,655.00. 

  

Summary: This fiscal year, the City had budgeted $37,000.00 for the replacement of a 

supervisor vehicle in the Fire Department.  The Department proceeded to 

request quotes/bids from multiple dealerships, based on government pricing with 

specified options.  The Department received bids from Moberly Motors, Joe 

Machens, Jim Butler, Don Brown and Bob McCosh.  Thomas Motors was asked 

to supply a bid and we never received one.  The Department recommends going 

with Moberly Motors for this purchase, with a bid of $38,655.00.   

This is a budgeted expense.  

  

Recommended Action: Approve This Resolution 

  

Fund Name: Capital Improvement Plan 

  

Account Number: 100.008.5502 

  

Available Budget $: 37,000.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence   X    Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

62

#9.



BILL NO.___________     RESOLUTION NO.__________ 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF MOBERLY MOTORS FOR A FIRE 

COMMAND SUPERVISOR VEHICLE IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $38,655.00. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Moberly Fire Department requested bids for a new 4x4 Crew 

Cab ¾ ton pickup with equipment for use as a command supervisor vehicle; and 

WHEREAS, five responsive bids were received with the bid of Moberly Motors for a 

2022 Ford F250 Crew-Cab 4x4 pickup in the amount of $38,655.00 being the lowest responsible 

bid; and 

WHEREAS, the Moberly Fire Department recommends acceptance of the Moberly 

Motors bid and authority to immediately purchase the described vehicle. 

THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council accepts the bid of Moberly Motors 

and authorizes the City Manager or his designee to purchase the fire command supervisor vehicle 

described herein for the total price of $38,655.00 and granting further authority for all actions as 

may be necessary to carry out the intent of this Resolution. 

RESOLVED this 18th day of October, 2021, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

 

63

#9.



64

#9.



65

#9.



66

#9.



67

#9.



68

#9.



69

#9.



70

#9.



71

#9.



72

#9.



73

#9.



74

#9.



75

#9.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Fire Dept 

Date: October 18, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Authorizing The Purchase Of A New Engine Pumper For The 

Moberly Fire Department. 

  

Summary: The Moberly Fire Department has been looking to purchase a new fire truck; in 

conjunction with the recent mechanical issues of the current fleet, the attached 

proposal for a Rosenbauer Pumper complete with a Rosenbauer Commander 

chassis in the amount of $587,054.00 is being presented.  This will be leased 

purchased starting in the next budget year.  

  

Recommended Action   Approve This Resolution  

  

Fund Name: General Fund 

  

Account Number:  

  

Available Budget $: 0.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence    X   Proposed Resolution   
         Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

76

#10.



BILL NO._________      RESOLUTION NO.________ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A NEW ENGINE PUMPER 

FOR THE MOBERLY FIRE DEPARTMENT. 

 

WHEREAS, the Moberly Fire Department staff has determined that a new engine 

pumper must be purchased as soon as possible to provide fire protection to the community; and 

WHEREAS, staff has considered available options for a new pumper and believe the 

Rosenbauer model would best serve the city; and 

WHEREAS, Rosenbauer South Dakota, LLC has priced a new Engine Pumper complete 

with a Rosenbauer Commander Chassis for Five Hundred and Eighty-Seven Thousand and Fifty-

Four Dollars ($587,054.00). 

WHEREAS, staff recommends purchase of this engine pumper. 

THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council accepts the offer of Rosenbauer 

South Dakota, LLC and authorizes the City Manager or his designee to purchase the engine 

pumper described herein for the total price of $587,054.00 and granting further authority for all 

actions as may be necessary to carry out the intent of this Resolution. 

RESOLVED this 18th day of October, 2021, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

 

77

#10.



78

#10.



79

#10.



 
 

 
 

 

 

Learn what you are missing 

Are you asking all the right questions? Fire Truck financing has more options than a car or house. 
Get a free, no obligation IDEA Report today based on your unique situation. It’s just for you. 

You will get:  
§ Money saving ideas that typically lowers total borrowing cost by 22% 
§ Methods to avoid common fire truck financing mistakes 
§ Ideas to financially prepare for your next truck 

 
 

Fire Truck Financing Proposal 

Prepared for: Moberly 

Requested by:  Grant Aasen, Heiman Fire 

Date:   September 29, 2021 

Prepared by:   John Hill, First Bankers  

Initial Financing Proposal: You requested the following financial terms. 

Term (years):  5   7   10  

Annual Payment:  $128,914  $95,423  $70,485    

Interest Rate:  3.15 %  3.28 %  3.41 %    

Total Borrowing Cost: $57,518  $80,908  $117,803    

First Payment Date:  January 2023 

Other Costs and Fees: None 

This proposal is not an offer to finance and is subject to credit review and acceptance. 
This proposal is for fire departments who meet IRS rules as qualified tax-exempt borrowers. 

Read the story how one department avoided a 
major mistake with their IDEA Report : 

“Why bad financing happens  
to good fire departments” 
Request by email to:  story@firstbankers.net 

Call toll-free today: 877-323-1776 
3905 Vincennes Road, Suite 303  |  Indianapolis, IN 46268 
jrhill@firstbankers.net  |  FirstBankers.net 

Equipment:  Rosenbauer Pumper 

Cost of Equipment:  $ 587,054 

Down Payment:  $ 0 

Amount Financed:  $ 587,054 

 

80

#10.



81

#10.



82

#10.



83

#10.



84

#10.



85

#10.



86

#10.



87

#10.



88

#10.



89

#10.



90

#10.



91

#10.



92

#10.



93

#10.



94

#10.



95

#10.



96

#10.



97

#10.



98

#10.



99

#10.



100

#10.



101

#10.



102

#10.



103

#10.



104

#10.



105

#10.



106

#10.



107

#10.



108

#10.



109

#10.



110

#10.



111

#10.



112

#10.



113

#10.



114

#10.



115

#10.



116

#10.



117

#10.



118

#10.



119

#10.



120

#10.



121

#10.



122

#10.



123

#10.



124

#10.



125

#10.



126

#10.



127

#10.



128

#10.



129

#10.



130

#10.



131

#10.



132

#10.



133

#10.



134

#10.



135

#10.



136

#10.



137

#10.



138

#10.



139

#10.



140

#10.



141

#10.



142

#10.



143

#10.



144

#10.



145

#10.



146

#10.



147

#10.



148

#10.



149

#10.



150

#10.



151

#10.



152

#10.



153

#10.



154

#10.



155

#10.



156

#10.



157

#10.



158

#10.



159

#10.



160

#10.



161

#10.



162

#10.



163

#10.



164

#10.



165

#10.



166

#10.



167

#10.



168

#10.



169

#10.



170

#10.



171

#10.



172

#10.



173

#10.



174

#10.



175

#10.



176

#10.



177

#10.



178

#10.



179

#10.



180

#10.



181

#10.



182

#10.



183

#10.



184

#10.



185

#10.



186

#10.



187

#10.



188

#10.



189

#10.



190

#10.



191

#10.



192

#10.



193

#10.



194

#10.



195

#10.



196

#10.



197

#10.



198

#10.



199

#10.



200

#10.



201

#10.



202

#10.



203

#10.



204

#10.



205

#10.



206

#10.



207

#10.



208

#10.



209

#10.



210

#10.



211

#10.



212

#10.



213

#10.



214

#10.



215

#10.



216

#10.



217

#10.



218

#10.



219

#10.



220

#10.



221

#10.



222

#10.



223

#10.



224

#10.



225

#10.



226

#10.



227

#10.



228

#10.



229

#10.



230

#10.



231

#10.



232

#10.



233

#10.



234

#10.



235

#10.



236

#10.



237

#10.



238

#10.



239

#10.



240

#10.



241

#10.



242

#10.



243

#10.



244

#10.



245

#10.



246

#10.



247

#10.



248

#10.



249

#10.



250

#10.



251

#10.



252

#10.



253

#10.



254

#10.



255

#10.



256

#10.



257

#10.



258

#10.



259

#10.



260

#10.



261

#10.



262

#10.



263

#10.



264

#10.



265

#10.



266

#10.



267

#10.



268

#10.



269

#10.



270

#10.



271

#10.



272

#10.



273

#10.



274

#10.



275

#10.



276

#10.



277

#10.



278

#10.



279

#10.



280

#10.



281

#10.



282

#10.



283

#10.



284

#10.



285

#10.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Fire Dept 

Date: October 18, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Authorizing The Purchase Of A 2006 Sutphen Aerial Truck For 

The Moberly Fire Department 

  

Summary: See Attached Memorandum For Clarification 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve This Resolution 

  

Fund Name: General Fund  

  

Account Number: 100.008.5502 

  

Available Budget $: Funds Transferred from ARPA Grant received  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence    X   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

286

#11.



 

310 N. CLARK STREET, MOBERLY, MO 65270 
T (660).269.8705  

Moberly Fire Department 
 

Memorandum 

To: City Council & City Manager Brian Crane 

From: Fire Chief Ryan 

Date: September 30, 2021 

This Memo Is A Formal Request For Council To Review A Purchase Option 

For A Used Aerial Truck   Between Shawn Locklear And The City Of Moberly 

Fire Department.  The Moberly Fire Department Has Been Looking To Purchase 

A Used Aerial Truck.  The Process Was Prompted By The Reality That The 

Current Aerial Truck Is At The Point Of “End Of Life”. The Aerial Has Not 

Been Able To Pass The NFPA Standards Over The Last Several Years Due To 

Multiple Category 1 Deficiencies And Is Currently Unable To Be Repaired At A 

Reasonable Price To Meet NFPA Standards.  

The Department Researched Used Aerial Trucks On Multiple Websites Of 

Vendors That Specialize In The Sales Of Used Fire Trucks.  The Aerial Selected 

Was Based On Several Factors: Familiarity Of The Truck To Current Aerial; 

Ability Of The Seller To Provide Documentation Of Truck Soundness And 

Condition; and Cost.  This Process Resulted In The Narrowing Of The Possible 

Trucks To Three And Chose The 2006 Sutphen 100’ Tower Offered For Sale By 

Shawn Locklear. 

Through Negotiations With Mr. Locklear, The Option For Purchase Is As 

Follows:  The City Agrees To Purchase The Vehicle For $225,000.00.  The Sale 

Will Be Contingent Upon Our Staff Operating The Vehicle To Make Sure It 

Will Meet The Standards We Desire.  To Establish A “Hold” On The Truck, 

The City Would Remit A $22,500.00 Payment (10% Of Final Cost).  The Seller 

Will Retain An Earnest Amount Of $2,500.00 If We Decide Not To Purchase 

After Operating The Vehicle.  If We Agree To Purchase, Final Payment Of 

$202,500.00 Will Be Paid To The Seller And The Aerial Will Be Property Of 

The City Of Moberly.    

287

#11.



BILL NO.___        RESOLUTION NO.___ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A 2006 SUTPHEN AERIAL 

TRUCK FOR THE MOBERLY FIRE DEPARTMENT. 

 

WHEREAS, the Moberly Fire Department staff has determined that the existing aerial 

ladder truck is in need of replacement; and 

WHEREAS, staff has considered available options for replacement and have determined 

that a used aerial truck would be the best alternative; and 

WHEREAS, Shawn Locklear has offered a 2006 Sutphen 100’ aerial truck for purchase 

by the city in the amount of Two Hundred and Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($225,000.00). 

WHEREAS, staff recommends purchase of this used aerial truck. 

THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council accepts the offer of Shawn 

Locklear and authorizes the City Manager or his designee to purchase the aerial truck described 

herein for the total price of $225,000.00 and granting further authority for all actions as may be 

necessary to carry out the intent of this Resolution. 

RESOLVED this 18th day of October, 2021, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 
 

ATTEST: 

 
_________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

 

288

#11.



2006 Sutphen 100’ Tower 

 

 

289

#11.



 

290

#11.



 

291

#11.



 City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:   

Department:  Public Utilities 

Date:  October 18, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item:  A Resolution Authorizing The Submission Of A Proposed Ordinance For 

Pretreatment Modifications To The Missouri Department Of Natural 

Resources. 

  

Summary:  The City of Moberly Industrial Pretreatment Program is in the process of  

 finalizing the update of Moberly City Code to meet EPA requirements.  

 Additionally, staff requested that the consultant update the program’s  

 Enforcement Response Plan to align it with the current program. 

 

To implement any of the changes made under the Streamlining Rule, Control 

Authorities (City of Moberly) must submit a program modification to their 

Approval Authority (Missouri DNR) in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 403.18. 

  

Recommended 

Action: 

  

 Approve Resolution 

  

Fund Name:  N/A 

  

Account Number:  N/A 

  

Available Budget $:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
     X   Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    

    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
      Correspondence    x   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report          Other        Passed Failed 

 

292

#12.



BILL NO.____________     RESOLUTION NO._________ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE 

FOR PRETREATMENT MODIFICATIONS TO THE MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF 

NATURAL RESOURCES. 

 

WHEREAS, city staff along with KIMHEC has prepared an amendment to Chapter 42, 

Article IV, attached hereto, of the city code related to compliance with requirements for the city 

pretreatment program; and 

WHEREAS, the Missouri Department of Natural Resources (“MDNR”) requires that 

this proposed ordinance be submitted to it prior to passage by the city; and 

WHEREAS, the city will issue a Public Notice of the proposed modifications including 

the incorporation of any comments from MDNR to the Pretreatment Program; and 

WHEREAS, the city will ensure compliance with Pretreatment Standards and 

Requirements and will follow its Enforcement Response Plan in the event of non-compliance by 

Industrial Users; and 

WHEREAS, the city will provide continued support, supervision and funding of the 

Pretreatment Program pursuant to Section 403.9(b)(2) RSMo.; and 

WHEREAS, the Pretreatment Program modifications do not affect the city’s authority or 

ability to adequately carry out the program requirements described in Section 403.8 RSMo. and 

this statement is made as required by Section 403.9(b)(1). 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council hereby authorizes the Public 

Utilities Director to submit the proposed ordinance for pretreatment modifications to the 

Missouri Department of Natural Resources and for city staff to take such other and necessary 

action to satisfy any requirements or modifications required by MDNR and further authorizing 

the Mayor of the City of Moberly to sign any documentation necessary for submission of the 

pretreatment plan. 

RESOLVED this 18th day of October, 2021, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

 293

#12.



 

 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI  
MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

Enforcement Response Plan 
Industrial Users of the Sewer System 

 

 

 

Prepared For 

Owner: 

City of Moberly, Missouri 
101 W. Reed Street 

Moberly, Missouri 65270 

 

 

Missouri State Operating Permit: MO-0117960 

 

 

Prepared by: 

 

 
 

October 2021 
Printed Date:  10/5/2021 9:22 PM

294

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page ii  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

Table of Contents 

1. Introduction ........................................................................................ 1 

1.1 Administration and Jurisdiction ......................................................................................................... 1 

1.2 Abbreviations ..................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.3 Definitions ............................................................................................................................................ 2 

2. Personnel Responsibilities .................................................................. 6 

2.1 Control Authority Personnel .............................................................................................................. 6 

3. Implementation ................................................................................. 7 

3.1 Industrial User Inventory...................................................................................................................... 7 

3.2 Monitoring and Inspection Plan ....................................................................................................... 8 

3.3 Compliance Screening ...................................................................................................................... 8 

3.4 Removal Credits ................................................................................................................................. 8 

3.5 Dental Dischargers ............................................................................................................................. 9 

4. Description of Enforcement Actions ............................................. 10 

4.1 Informal Actions ............................................................................................................................... 10 

4.2 Formal Actions .................................................................................................................................. 11 

295

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page iii  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

4.3 Show Cause Hearing (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-663) ......................................... 13 

4.4 Emergency Suspension (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-667) ...................................... 15 

4.5 Termination of Discharge (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-668) ................................... 16 

4.6 Administrative Fines (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-666) ........................................... 16 

4.7 Judicial Enforcement Remedies ..................................................................................................... 17 

4.8 Referral to EPA or the Approval Authority ..................................................................................... 17 

4.9 Remedies Non-Exclusive .................................................................................................................. 17 

5. Response to Pretreatment Requirement Violations .................... 18 

5.1 Significant Noncompliance ............................................................................................................ 19 

6. Time Frames for Response by Control Authority and Follow Up 21 

7. Schedule ........................................................................................... 23 

8. Payment of Fines ............................................................................. 24 

9. Enforcement Table .......................................................................... 25 

9.1 Definitions .......................................................................................................................................... 25 

9.2 Significant Noncompliance Quick Reference .............................................................................. 27 

9.3 Action Levels .................................................................................................................................... 28 

9.4 Categories of Noncompliance ...................................................................................................... 29 

 

  

296

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page iv  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

Appendix and Form Contents 

Notice of Violation 

Consent Order 
Compliance Order 

Show Cause Order 

Cease and Desist Order 
Authorization of Signatory Authority for Duly Authorized Employee of 
POTW 

Public Notice of Significant Noncompliance 

Self-Monitoring Report Checklist 

Certification Requirements 

Request for TTO Waiver 

Sample Plant Closure Plan 

Dental Discharger: Letter, Packet and Form 

297

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 1  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

1. Introduction 
This manual provides guidance to the City of Moberly, Missouri (Control Authority) personnel 
in the remedy of violations of the local pretreatment program established by the Chapter 42 
- Utilities; Article 4, Sewer (Ordinance).  Definitions for terms stated herein can be found in the 
ordinance.  This Enforcement Response Plan (ERP) provides procedures to be followed by 
Control Authority staff to identify, document, and respond to pretreatment violations.  

The ERP: 

• Describes how the Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW) will investigate instances of 
noncompliance; 

• Describes the types of escalating enforcement responses the POTW will take in response 
to all anticipated types of industrial user violations and the time periods within which 
responses will take place; 

• Identifies the official(s) by title who are responsible for each type of response; 

• Adequately reflects the POTWs primary responsibility to enforce all applicable 
pretreatment requirements and standards, as detailed in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(1) and (f)(2). 

1.1 Administration and Jurisdiction 
All entities discharging nondomestic waste to the POTW are subject to the provisions of the 
ERP. The Control Authority consistently administers and implements all elements of the ERP. 
The ERP does not preclude the Control Authority from taking any, all, or any combination of 
actions against a noncompliant industrial user. 

1.2 Abbreviations 
The following abbreviations, when used in this Enforcement Response Plan (ERP), shall 
have the designated meanings: 

 
AO- Administrative Order 
ARU- Authorized Representative of User 
BOD – Biochemical Oxygen Demand 
BMP – Best Management Practice 
CA- Control Authority 
CFR – Code of Federal Regulations 
CIU – Categorical Industrial User 
DD-Dental Discharger 
EPA- Environmental Protection Agency 

298

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 2  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

PC- Industrial Pretreatment Coordinator 
IU – Industrial User 
IRM- Informal Review Meeting 
NOV- Notice of Violation 
NPDES – National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
POTW – Publicly Owned Treatment Works 
SIU – Significant Industrial User 
SCH- Show Cause Hearing 
SNC – Significant Noncompliance 
TRC- Technical Review Criteria 
TSS – Total Suspended Solids 
MDNR-Missouri Department of Natural Resources 
 

1.3 Definitions 
Refer to the Pretreatment Ordinance for definitions not included below.  

Approval Authority means the Missouri Department of Natural Resources 

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (5 Day) (BOD5) means an indirect measure of the 
concentration of the biologically degradable material present in organic wastes. It 
reflects the amount of oxygen consumed in 5 days by biological processes breaking 
down organic waste. 

Best Management Practices or BMPs.  Schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, 
maintenance procedures, and other management practices to implement the 
prohibitions listed in 42-416, [40 CFR 403.5(a)(1) and (b)]. BMPs include treatment 
requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control plant site runoff, spillage 
or leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw materials storage.  BMPs also 
include alternative means (i.e., management plans) of complying with, or in place of 
certain established categorical Pretreatment Standards and effluent limits. 

Categorical Industrial User.  An Industrial User subject to a categorical Pretreatment 
Standard or categorical Standard. 

Chemical Oxygen Demand or COD.  A measure of the oxygen required to oxidize all 
compounds, both organic and inorganic, in water, using the procedures in 40 CFR 136 
and usually expressed as a concentration (e.g., mg/L). 

Control Authority.  The City of Moberly, Missouri.  

Dental Discharger. A facility where the practice of dentistry is performed, including, but 
not limited to, institutions, permanent or temporary offices, clinics, home offices, and 
facilities owned and operated by Federal, state or local governments, that discharges 
wastewater to a POTW.  Dental dischargers for the purposes of this ERP are considered 
industrial users.  They are not Categorical Industrial Users or Significant Industrial Users. 

 

299

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 3  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

Industrial User.  A source of indirect discharge pursuant to 40 CFR 403.3(j). 
Instantaneous Limit.  The maximum concentration of a pollutant allowed to be 
discharged at any time, determined from the analysis of any grab sample collected, 
independent of the industrial flow rate and the duration of the sampling event. 

Interference.  A discharge that, alone or in conjunction with a discharge or discharges 
from other sources, inhibits or disrupts the POTW, its treatment processes or operations or 
its sludge processes, use or disposal; and therefore, is a cause of a violation of the City 
NPDES permit or of the prevention of sewage sludge use or disposal in compliance with 
any of the following statutory/regulatory provisions or permits issued thereunder, or any 
more stringent State or local regulations:  Section 405 of the Act; the Solid Waste Disposal 
Act, including Title II commonly referred to as the Resource Conservation and Recovery 
Act (RCRA); any State regulations contained in any State sludge management plan 
prepared pursuant to Subtitle D of the Solid Waste Disposal Act; the Clean Air Act; the 
Toxic Substances Control Act; and the Marine Protection, Research, and Sanctuaries Act. 

Local Limit.  Specific discharge limits developed and enforced by the City of Moberly, 
Missouri upon industrial or commercial facilities to implement the general and specific 
discharge prohibitions listed in 40 CFR 403.5(a)(1) and (b).   

New Source. 
1. Any building, structure, facility, or installation from which there is (or may be) a 
discharge of pollutants, the construction of which commenced after the publication of 
proposed Pretreatment Standards under section 307(c) of the Act that will be applicable 
to such source if such Standards are thereafter promulgated in accordance with that 
section, provided that: 

a. The building, structure, facility, or installation is constructed at a site at which 
no other source is located; or 

b. The building, structure, facility, or installation totally replaces the process or 
production equipment that causes the discharge of pollutants at an Existing 
Source; or 

c. The production or wastewater generating processes of the building, 
structure, facility, or installation are substantially independent of an Existing Source 
at the same site.  In determining whether these are substantially independent, 
factors such as the extent to which the new facility is integrated with the existing 
plant, and the extent to which the new facility is engaged in the same general 
type of activity as the Existing Source, should be considered. 

2. Construction on a site at which an Existing Source is located results in a 
modification rather than a New Source if the construction does not create a new 
building, structure, facility, or installation meeting the criteria of Section (1)(a) or (b) 
above but otherwise alters, replaces, or adds to existing process or production 
equipment. 

300

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 4  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

3. Construction of a New Source as defined under this paragraph has commenced 
if the owner or operator has: 

a. Begun, or caused to begin, as part of a continuous onsite construction 
program: 

i. any placement, assembly, or installation of facilities or equipment; or 

ii. significant site preparation work including clearing, excavation, or 
removal of existing buildings, structures, or facilities which is necessary for 
the placement, assembly, or installation of new source facilities or 
equipment; or 

b. Entered into a binding contractual obligation for the purchase of facilities 
or equipment which are intended to be used in its operation within a reasonable 
time.  Options to purchase or contracts which can be terminated or modified 
without substantial loss, and contracts for feasibility, engineering, and design 
studies do not constitute a contractual obligation under this paragraph. 

Pass Through.  A discharge which exits the POTW into waters of the United States in 
quantities or concentrations which, alone or in conjunction with a discharge or 
discharges from other sources, is a cause of a violation of any requirement of the POTW’s 
NPDES permit, including an increase in the magnitude or duration of a violation. 

pH.  The logarithm of the reciprocal of hydrogen ion concentration in gram atoms per 
liter, used to express the acidity or alkalinity of a solution on a scale of 0 - 14, where less 
than 7 represents acidity, 7 neutrality, and more than 7 alkalinity. 

Pollutant.  Dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, filter backwash, sewage, 
garbage, sewage sludge, munitions, Medical Wastes, chemical wastes, biological 
materials, radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand, 
cellar dirt, municipal, agricultural and industrial wastes, and certain characteristics of 
wastewater (e.g., pH, temperature, TSS, turbidity, color, BOD, COD, Toxicity, or odor). 

Pretreatment.  The reduction of the amount of pollutants, the elimination of pollutants, or 
the alteration of the nature of pollutant properties in wastewater prior to, or in lieu of, 
introducing such pollutants into the POTW. This reduction or alteration can be obtained 
by physical, chemical, or biological processes; by process changes; or by other means, 
except by diluting the concentration of the pollutants unless allowed by an applicable 
Pretreatment Standard. 40 CFR 403.3(s). 

Pretreatment Standards or Standards.  Pretreatment Standards shall mean prohibited 
discharge standards, categorical Pretreatment Standards, and Local Limits. 

Prohibited Discharge Standards or Prohibited Discharges.  Absolute prohibitions against 
the discharge of certain substances as stated in the local ordinance. 

Publicly Owned Treatment Works or POTW.  A treatment works, as defined by Section 212 
of the Act (33 U.S.C. section 1292), which is owned by the City of Moberly and operated 
by the City of Moberly, Missouri. This definition includes any devices or systems used in the, 
storage, treatment, recycling, and reclamation of municipal sewage or industrial wastes 

301

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 5  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

of a liquid nature. It also includes sewers, pipes, or other conveyances only if they convey 
wastewater to a POTW treatment plant. The term also means the municipality [as defined 
in CWA Section 502(4)] that has jurisdiction over the indirect discharges to and the 
discharges from such a treatment works. 

Significant Industrial User (SIU) 
1. All IUs subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards under 40 CFR 403.6 and 40 
CFR chapter I, subchapter N; and 

a. Any other IU that: discharges an average of 25,000 gpd or more of process 
wastewater to the POTW (excluding sanitary, noncontact cooling and boiler 
blowdown wastewater); contributes a process wastestream which makes up 5 
percent or more of the average dry weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the 
POTW Treatment plant; or is designated as such by the Control Authority on the 
basis that the IU has a reasonable potential for adversely affecting the POTW's 
operation or for violating any Pretreatment Standard or requirement (in 
accordance with 40 CFR 403.8(f)(6)). 

Slug Load or Slug Discharge.   Any discharge at a flow rate or concentration, which could 
cause a violation of the prohibited discharge standards in the local ordinance.  A slug 
discharge is any discharge of a non-routine, episodic nature, including but not limited to 
an accidental spill or a non-customary batch discharge, which has a reasonable 
potential to cause Interference or Pass Through, or in any other way violate the POTW’s 
regulations, Local Limits or Permit conditions. 

Total Suspended Solids or Suspended Solids.  The total suspended matter that floats on 
the surface of, or is suspended in, water, wastewater, or other liquid, and that is 
removable by laboratory filtering.  Results are expressed in mg/L. 

Wastewater.  Liquid and water carried industrial wastes and sewage from residential 
dwellings, commercial buildings, industrial and manufacturing facilities, and institutions, 
whether treated or untreated, which are contributed to the POTW.

302

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 6  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

2. Personnel Responsibilities 

2.1 Control Authority Personnel 
The Control Authority clearly establishes staff responsibilities for taking enforcement actions.  
As it matches personnel with enforcement responsibilities, the Control Authority should 
remember the time necessary to take enforcement action decreases as the authority to 
initiate the action is delegated. For example, by allowing field personnel to initiate certain 
types of administrative actions (such as issuing NOV’s), the Control Authority ensures that 
these actions are taken soon after the noncompliance is discovered.  Further, written 
delegation of specific responsibilities of staff helps the Control Authority respond consistently 
and in a routine manner to the industrial users, the public and the Approval Authority 
(Missouri Department of Natural Resources).  However, some decisions (whether to pursue 
civil litigation or to terminate the service) must involve the Control Authority management 
and should not be delegated.  The following subsections provide recommendations on 
assigning pretreatment responsibilities to the Control Authority personnel: 

 Pretreatment Coordinator  

 The Pretreatment Coordinator (PC) is thoroughly familiar with program requirements and 
responsible for ensuring implementation of the Control Authority’s pretreatment program 
requirements. Industrial users perceive that the program requirements originate in this 
person and look to him/her for guidance and assistance. As the Public Utilities Director' 
designated representative, the PC is authorized to initiate specific enforcement 
proceedings as needed to protect the POTW, the environment, and the health and welfare 
of the public.  

Under the supervision and direction of the Public Utilities Director, the PC is responsible for: 

• informal notices (verbal and written) 

• notices of violation 

• informal meetings 

• publishing the annual list of significant violators  

• referrals to the Approval Authority 

Additional personnel are available at the POTW to assist the Industrial Pretreatment 
Coordinator PC as needed. Duties of these personnel include maintaining industrial user 
inventory, sampling, equipment inspection and maintenance, and laboratory analysis. 

303

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 7  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

Treatment plant personnel are also available to assist in emergency situations as conditions 
may require. 

 Public Utilities Director  

The Public Utilities Director is responsible for compliance with the terms and conditions of the 
POTW’s NPDES permit and for the overall operation and maintenance of the POTW, 
including employee safety, protection of the collection system and the treatment plant 
quality, and sludge use and disposal.  He/She has the responsibility to monitor the PC’s 
actions and to initiate the following enforcement actions: 

• show cause hearings 

• administrative orders 

• consent agreements 

• referrals to the Control Authority Attorney for judicial enforcement 

• referrals to the Approval Authority or EPA  

The Public Utilities Director as the Duly Authorized Representative of the POTW is responsible 
for signing any documentation requiring the signature of such. 

 Control Authority Attorney  

The Control Authority Attorney will provide legal consultation as requested by the Public 
Utilities Director on consent agreements and administrative orders and will take the lead on 
all referrals for civil litigation and POTW initiated criminal investigations.  

3. Implementation 

3.1 Industrial User Inventory  
An essential step for identifying noncompliance is knowing who is discharging nondomestic 
waste to the POTW, where they are located, and the nature of the nondomestic waste 
being discharged. The PC maintains a current inventory of all nondomestic sources of 
waste to the POTW and will provide this list annually to the Approval Authority, including an 
indication whether these industries are regulated by categorical standards, local limits or 
both.  

The Industrial User Inventory will be updated based on on-going or specific industrial user 
surveys and will be reflected in the annual pretreatment report to the state. 

304

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 8  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

3.2 Monitoring and Inspection Plan  
The PC may prepare a monitoring and inspection plan (typically corresponding to the 
permit cycle for the POTW).  The Control Authority monitors the wastewater from each 
Significant Industrial User (SIU) at least once per year and typically includes monitoring of 
influent, effluent, and biosolids of the POTW system. The Control Authority requires all 
wastewater sampling and analysis to be performed in accordance with 40 CFR 136. 

The Control Authority may implement standard operating procedures for field inspections, 
sampling events, and investigations including a procedure for screening data received via 
Control Authority sampling efforts or those submitted by the Industrial Users. A specific 
protocol for the review of industry monitoring reports will also be implemented. 

Information gathered during Control Authority industrial user monitoring and inspections is 
used to verify industrial user compliance status and to determine if enforcement response 
must be initiated or continued. The Control Authority is also relying on the Industrial User to 
self-identify instances of noncompliance and report to the Control Authority.  

3.3 Compliance Screening  
All reports from Industrial Users and reports generated by the Control Authority are carefully 
reviewed, on an as-received basis for timeliness, completeness and accuracy. The 
screening process includes an evaluation of compliance with report due dates, numerical 
standards, sample handling and analysis requirements, signatory/certification 
requirements, monitoring frequency etc. 

Any discrepancy will be considered a violation. To the extent possible, the User will be 
required to correct and respond to such discrepancies upon discovery by the PC. 

All violations will be clearly documented (even if no action is taken). The PC will document 
all violations for the Public Utilities Director and each will be addressed in accordance with 
the Enforcement Table (see below, “Section 9.1 Enforcement Table”). 

3.4 Removal Credits 
The Control Authority may, subject to the conditions of 40 CFR §403.7, grant removal credits 
to an Industrial User to which a categorical Pretreatment Standard(s) applies.  The removal 
credits will reflect removal by the Control Authority of pollutants specified in the categorical 
Pretreatment Standard(s). The City of Moberly, Missouri may grant a removal credit equal 
to or, at its discretion, less than its consistent removal rate.  

The following conditions MUST be met for the City of Moberly, Missouri to grant an IU  removal 
credit(s): 

305

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 9  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

1. City of Moberly, Missouri must apply for, and receive, authorization from the Missouri DNR 
to give a removal credit in accordance with the requirements and procedures stated 
in 40 CFR §403.7(e). 

2. City of Moberly, Missouri demonstrates and continues to achieve consistent removal of 
the pollutant in accordance with 40 CFR §403.7(b). 

3. City of Moberly, Missouri has a program which is considered an approved pretreatment 
program in accordance with and to the extent required by 40 CFR §403. 

4. The granting of removal credits will not cause the City of Moberly, Missouri to violate the 
local, State and Federal Sludge Requirements which apply to the sludge management 
method chosen by the POTW. Alternatively, City of Moberly, Missouri can demonstrate 
to the Missouri Department of Natural Resources that even though it is not presently in 
compliance with applicable Sludge Requirements, it will be in compliance when the 
Industrial User(s) to whom the removal credit would apply is required to meet its 
categorical Pretreatment Standard(s) as modified by the removal credit. If granting 
removal credits forces City of Moberly, Missouri to incur greater sludge management 
costs than would be incurred in the absence of granting removal credits, the additional 
sludge management costs will not be eligible for EPA grant assistance.  

3.5 Dental Dischargers 

City of Moberly, Missouri will seek out all dental facilities that discharge to the POTW and 
develop a list of Dental Dischargers as a sub-category of the Industrial User Inventory 
by mailing a letter and dental rule explanation packet to Dental Discharges. (40 CFR 
441, see appendix).   

The One-Time Compliance Report (“OCTR”) will be sent to all dental facilities.  Dental 
Dischargers will be expected to return the completed report to the City of Moberly, 
Missouri by the date indicated.  It will be reviewed and returned if incomplete.  City of 
Moberly, Missouri will retain the OCTR in accordance with Municipal Ordinance 42-552. 

Dental Dischargers are not subject to the full list of Significant Noncompliance criteria 
listed in Section 5.1. Instead, only (3), (4), and (8) of that section apply. The attached 
enforcement response table will apply if such violations occur.  Late reporting is not 
considered SNC for DDs. 

306

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 10  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

4. Description of Enforcement Actions 

4.1 Informal Actions 

 Informal Notice 

Informal notice consists of personal contact, telephone calls, e-mails, letters of warning, or 
reminder letters to an appropriate official of an industrial user. The PC may use such a call, 
e-mail or letter to notify industrial users of a minor violation and to seek an explanation, 
suggest the user exercise more care or notify the violator that subsequent violations of the 
same type may be dealt with more severely.  All informal notices will be documented in 
writing by the PC or Public Utilities Director and placed in the user’s file.  

 Informal Review Meeting  

An informal review meeting is used to gather information concerning noncompliance, 
discuss steps to alleviate noncompliance, and determine the commitment level of the 
industrial user.  Informal review meetings provide a voluntary means to prevent future 
violations. 

The user shall be notified informally by the PC of the meeting and the violations to be 
discussed. Depending on the nature and severity of the violation, the meeting may be 
in person or over the phone. 

The PC will lead the meeting and a Control Authority employee shall summarize the 
conclusions of the meeting.  The Industrial User (IU) is required to respond to each 
violation identified with an explanation, and as appropriate, a plan to correct the 
violation within a specified period. 

Neither the Informal Notice nor Notice of Violation is a precondition for calling an 
informal review meeting.  In addition, no informal procedure is a prerequisite for 
instituting formal enforcement procedures. 

 Notice of Violation (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-661)  

A Notice of Violation (NOV) is a written notice to the noncompliant industrial user that 
a pretreatment violation has occurred. A NOV includes a statement detailing the legal 
authority under which the Control Authority issued the NOV, a description of the 
violation(s), and the date(s) the violation(s) occurred. The NOV requires a response from 
the industrial user that details the causes of the violation(s), and the corrective actions 
taken to correct the violation and prevent similar violations from occurring.  

In general, NOVs are more stringent enforcement responses than informal notices 
(informal meetings, letters, phone calls or e-mails). NOVs provide IUs with an opportunity 
to correct noncompliance on their own initiative rather than through an administrative 

307

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 11  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

order. NOV’s shall be sent via certified mail.  Within or up to a maximum of 30 days as 
required by the Public Utilities Director of the receipt of such notice, an explanation of the 
violation and a plan for the satisfactory correction and prevention thereof, to include 
specific required actions, shall be submitted by the User to the Public Utilities Director.  

4.2 Formal Actions 

 Standards Meeting 

In cases where, following a NOV, continued violations occur or where violations of 
themselves are either of significant magnitude or duration, an IU may be required to attend 
Standards Meeting. The request for a Standards Meeting should be issued by the DPU at the 
recommendation of the PC to the SIU after or with the NOV.  Notice of such a meeting shall 
be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, and another source such as email, 
regular mail or a site visit. Attendance is mandatory by the   IU and failure to comply with 
such a notice may result in an order for Show Cause or suite   for fines or penalties or such 
other remedies as are provided by the Code of Ordinances. The Standards Meeting will 
establish procedures, investigations and studies as the PC deems necessary and desirable 
to determine the cause of violations and methods to correct them. 

At the conclusion of the Standards Meeting, the IU may be issued a compliance   directive 
specifying actions to be undertaken including studies to identify and solve the   problem. 
Timetables may also be established to complete any such studies as are required and 
variances, may be issued as required. Failure to comply with terms of the   compliance 
directive or to implement the results of studies to alleviate the cause for   violations may 
result in an order for Show Cause or suite for fines or penalties or such other remedies as are 
provided by the Code of Ordinances. 

 Administrative Orders (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-662)  

Administrative Orders (AOs) are enforcement documents that direct Industrial Users to 
undertake and/or to cease specified activities by specified deadlines. The Public 
Utilities Director has the authority to issue AOs.  The terms of an AO may or may not be 
negotiated with Industrial Users. AOs may incorporate compliance schedules, 
administrative penalties, and/or termination of service.  Cease and Desist and Show 
Cause Hearing orders issued by the Control Authority are considered AOs.  

The specific circumstances of an individual Industrial User’s non-compliance will dictate 
the type of AO that is appropriate.  More than one AO may be issued to respond to a 
particular instance of non-compliance. AOs are judicially enforceable, and the minimum 
level of enforcement used to address Significant Noncompliance (see, Section 5.1 for 
definition). 

308

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 12  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

 Consent Order (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-662)  

Consent Orders combine the force of an AO with the flexibility of a negotiated 
settlement. The Public Utilities Director has the authority to enter into consent orders. 
Such orders are an agreement between the Control Authority and the Industrial User 
and contain the following elements: (1) compliance schedules, (2) stipulated fines 
and/or remedial actions, and (3) signatures of the duly authorized representatives of 
Control Authority and the Industrial User. Consent Orders shall have the same force and 
effect as  AOs and shall be judicially enforceable.  

The PC under the direction of the Public Utilities Director will typically request an informal 
review meeting to meet with the industrial user prior to the issuance of a consent 
order/agreement for the purpose of the development of compliance schedule 
milestone(s) and action(s) to be included within the Consent Order and to insure consent 
on these items by all parties. 

 Compliance Order (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-664)  

When the Public Utilities Director finds that an IU has violated, or continues to violate, 
any provision of the ordinance, local rules and regulations, a wastewater discharge 
permit, a discharge authorization, or order or directive issued hereunder, or any other 
pretreatment standard or requirement, the Public Utilities Director may issue a 
Compliance Order to the IU responsible for the discharge directing that the IU come 
into compliance within a specified time. The Public Utilities Director is authorized to do 
this unilaterally and the terms of the compliance order need not be discussed with the 
IU in advance.  

 If the IU fails to come into compliance within the time provided, sanitary sewer service may 
be discontinued or other taken action per the Enforcement Table unless adequate 
treatment facilities, devices, or other related appurtenances are installed and properly 
operated. Compliance Orders also may contain other items or requirements to address the 
noncompliance, including penalties, additional self-monitoring, and management 
practices designed to minimize the amount of pollutants discharged to the POTW. 

A Compliance Order may not extend the deadline for compliance established for a 
pretreatment standard or requirement, nor does a Compliance Order relieve the IU of 
liability for any violation, including any continuing violation. Issuance of a Compliance Order 
shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, taking any other action against the IU. 

 Cease and Desist Orders (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-665)  

A Cease and Desist Order directs a noncompliant IU to cease illegal or unauthorized 
discharges immediately or to terminate its discharge altogether. 

309

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 13  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

When the Public Utilities Director finds that an IU violates, or continues to violate, any 
provision of the ordinance, an individual wastewater discharge permit, or order issued 
hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, or that the IU’s past 
violations are likely to recur, the Public Utilities Director may issue an order to the IU 
directing it to cease and desist all prohibited discharges and directing the IU to: 

A. Immediately comply with all requirements; and 

B. Make such appropriate remedial or preventive action as may be needed to 
properly address a continuing or threatened violation, including, but not limited to 
halting operations and/or terminating the discharge.  Issuance of a Cease and 
Desist Order shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, taking any other action 
against the IU. 

4.3 Show Cause Hearing (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-
663)  

The Public Utilities Director may order an IU which has violated, or continues to violate, 
any provision of the ordinance, an individual wastewater discharge permit, or order 
issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, to appear 
before the Public Utilities Director and show cause why the proposed enforcement 
action should not be taken. The initiation of a Show Cause Hearing is dependent on the 
nature and severity of the violation.  Section 9.1 “Enforcement Response Table” 
provides guidance. 

Written notice of the date, time, and location of the hearing shall be served personally or 
via certified mail to the parties of the Administrative Order no less than 14 days prior to the 
date thereof. No other person, other than the Hearing Officer and parties to the 
Administrative Order (including counsel), shall be permitted to participate in the hearing 
unless expressly permitted by the City. 

If a person fails to appear at a hearing, or fails to comply with an order of the City or hearing 
officer, the City or Hearing Officer may:  

(1) find that the allegations of the Administrative Order or the issues set out in the 
Administrative Order or requirement to show cause are true and deemed to be proved 
without further proof: 

(2) affirm the action of the Public Utilities Director; 

(3) exclude evidence not already before the City or Hearing Officer; 

(4) issue a Compliance Order; or 

310

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 14  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

(5) refer the matter to civil litigation or criminal prosecution.  

Each party shall secure the attendance of any permitted witnesses and for the production 
of such evidence at the hearing as the party desires to tender. No discovery shall be 
allowed as a matter of course, provided that any party may file a written request with the 
City or Hearing Officer seeking the issuance of an order requiring the other party to admit 
to the truth of one or more matters.  

A party shall have all evidence to be presented, both oral and written, available on the 
date of the hearing. The party shall be responsible for presenting credible evidence of such 
quality and scope as is sufficient to persuade the City or the hearing officer that the party is 
entitled to the relief which is sought. If a person fails to present such evidence, then the City 
or hearing officer shall affirm the action of the Public Utilities Director.  

In considering the admissibility of evidence, the City or Hearing Officer is not bound to follow 
the standards required of judicial bodies nor of administrative law judges under the 
Administrative Procedures Act. The City or Hearing Officer may admit such evidence that 
has probative value. Irrelevant, incompetent and immaterial or unduly repetitious evidence 
may be excluded.  

All evidence to be considered in the hearing, including all records and documents or a true 
and accurate photocopy, shall be offered and made a part of the record of the hearing.  

Requests for a continuance of a hearing may be granted by the City or Hearing Officer 
upon showing of good cause. A request for a continuance of a hearing shall be made in 
writing to the City or Hearing Officer. In determining whether good cause exists, due regard 
shall be given to the ability of the party requesting a continuance to proceed effectively 
without a continuance. 

During a hearing, if it appears in the interest of justice that further testimony should be 
received, and sufficient time does not remain to conclude the testimony the City or Hearing 
Officer may continue the hearing to a future date for which oral notice on the record is 
sufficient. A continuance shall not be granted when to do so would prevent the hearing 
from being concluded and a decision issued within ninety calendar days after the date on 
which the  Show Cause Hearing commences, unless both parties consent to the 
continuance.  

A party need not be represented by an attorney. If a party has notified the other party of 
that party’s representation by an attorney, all communications to that party shall be 
directed to that attorney. 

311

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 15  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

Prior to issuing an order or decision, the hearing officer may ask any party to submit a 
proposed order or decision which may include proposed findings of fact and conclusions 
of law. 

Upon conclusion of the hearing, the City or Hearing Officer shall declare the record of 
the hearing closed. No further documents, affidavits, nor testimony shall be considered, 
provided that the City or Hearing Officer may, at its sole discretion, permit any party to 
file additional written arguments. The City or hearing officer shall issue a written decision 
as soon as practicable after the close of the record, but no later than ninety (90) calendar 
days after the date on which the adjudicatory hearing commences, unless all parties 
consent to a reasonable extension of such time. The written decision of the City shall be 
a trial decision appealable to the 14th Circuit Court of Randolph and Howard Counties. 

4.4 Emergency Suspension (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-
667) 

The Public Utilities Director may immediately suspend an IU’s discharge, after informal 
notice to the IU, whenever such suspension is necessary to stop an actual or threatened 
discharge, which reasonably appears to present, or cause an imminent or substantial 
endangerment to the health or welfare of persons.  The Public Utilities Director may also 
immediately suspend an IU’s discharge, after notice and opportunity to respond, that 
threatens to interfere with the operation of the POTW, or which presents, or may present, 
an endangerment to the environment. 

• Any IU notified of a suspension of its discharge shall immediately stop or eliminate 
its contribution.  In the event of an IU’s failure to immediately comply voluntarily 
with the Suspension Order, the Public Utilities Director may take such steps as 
deemed necessary, including immediate severance of the sewer connection, 
to prevent or minimize damage to the POTW, its receiving stream, or 
endangerment to any individuals. The Public Utilities Director may allow the IU  to 
recommence its discharge when the IU  has demonstrated to the satisfaction of 
the Public Utilities Director that the period of endangerment has passed, unless 
the termination proceedings in 42-668 of the city ordinance are initiated against 
the User. 

 
• An IU that is responsible, in whole or in part, for any discharge presenting 

imminent endangerment shall submit a detailed written statement, describing 
the causes of the harmful contribution and the measures taken to prevent any 
future occurrence, to the Public Utilities Director prior to the date of any Show 
Cause Hearing under 42-663 or 42-668 of this ordinance. 

Nothing in this Section shall be interpreted as requiring a hearing prior to any Emergency 
Suspension under this Section. 

312

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 16  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

4.5 Termination of Discharge (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-
668)  

Termination of discharge is the revocation of an IU’s privilege to discharge nondomestic 
wastewater into the sewer system. Termination of Discharge is used when the discharge 
from an IU presents imminent endangerment to the health or welfare of persons, or the 
environment, or threatens to interfere with the POTW’s operations, or as an escalating 
enforcement action when a noncompliant IU fails to respond adequately to previous 
enforcement actions.  

In addition to the provisions in 42-510 of the ordinance, any IU who violates the following 
conditions is subject to discharge termination: 

• Violation of individual wastewater discharge permit conditions; 
• Failure to accurately report the wastewater constituents and characteristics of its 

discharge; 
• Failure to report significant changes in operations or wastewater volume, 

constituents, and characteristics prior to discharge; 
• Refusal of reasonable access to the User’s premises for the purpose of inspection, 

monitoring, or sampling; or 
• Violation of the Pretreatment Standards in 42-398 to 42-756 of the ordinance. 

Termination of service may be accomplished by physical severance of the IU connection 
to the POTW, requesting the IU to immediately terminate its discharge, revocation of the IUs 
discharge permit, or a court ruling. 

Such IU will be notified of the proposed termination of its discharge and be offered an 
opportunity to show cause under 42-663 of the ordinance why the proposed action should 
not be taken.  Exercise of this option by the Public Utilities Director shall not be a bar to, or a 
prerequisite for, taking any other action against the User.  

4.6 Administrative Fines (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-666)  
An administrative fine is a punitive monetary charge assessed by the Control Authority 
rather than a court. The purpose of the fine is to recover the economic benefit of 
noncompliance and to deter future violations. When assessing an administrative fine, the 
following factors are considered: 

• Magnitude of the violation;  
• Duration of the violation;  
• Effect of the violation on the POTW’s receiving stream; 
• Effect of the violation on POTW processes and equipment; 
• Effect on the Authority’s or its representatives’ equipment; 

313

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 17  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

• Compliance history of the IU ; 
• Good faith of the IU industrial user; or 
• Pollutants of importance to the POTW.  

Fines will be issued by the Public Utilities Director and charged pursuant to the Control 
Authority’s Fine Schedule (see, Section 7). 

4.7 Judicial Enforcement Remedies 
 Civil Penalties (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-696)  

Civil litigation is the formal process whereby the Control Authority files a lawsuit against 
the IU to secure court ordered action to correct violations and to secure penalties for 
the violations including recovery of costs to the POTW for the noncompliance. Civil 
Litigation also includes enforcement measures which require involvement or approval 
of the court, such as injunctive relief. 

 Criminal Penalties (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-697)  

Criminal prosecution is the formal process of charging individuals and/or organizations 
with violations of ordinance provisions that are punishable, upon conviction, by fines 
and/or imprisonment. The Control Authority authorizes criminal prosecution for 
ordinance violations when they are willful or negligent and may be appropriate in 
cases of repeated violations or when less formal efforts to restore compliance have 
failed. Criminal prosecution may be brought prior to, concurrently with, or subsequent 
to civil litigation. The Public Utilities Director shall initiate criminal prosecution through 
legal counsel. 

4.8 Referral to EPA or the Approval Authority 
On a case-by-case basis, there are times when a POTW could benefit from additional 
support from the Approval Authority or the regional EPA office. The level of involvement can 
vary from situations such as handing the case over to EPA or the Approval Authority, relying 
on these agencies for additional support, to attend meetings, and provide review of 
enforcement actions.  

4.9 Remedies Non-Exclusive 
The remedies provided for herein are not exclusive.  The Control Authority may take any, all, 
or any combination of these actions and actions outlined in the Ordinance (Subdivision XII 
Supplemental Enforcement Action) against a noncompliant IU.  Enforcement of 
pretreatment violations will generally be in accordance with this Enforcement Response 
Plan.  However, the Public Utilities Director may take other action against any IU when the 
circumstances warrant.  Further, the Public Utilities Director is empowered to take more than 
one enforcement action against any noncompliant IU. 

314

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 18  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

5. Response to Pretreatment Requirement Violations 
The identification of a violation of pretreatment requirements, regardless of the severity, will 
initiate the enforcement process. Discovery of a violation may occur because of any number 
of activities. The list below represents the most common sources of identifying violations: 

 • Review of surveillance sampling results; 
 • Review of IU self-monitoring results; 
 • Spill/accidental discharge reports from IU  
 • Site visits/inspections by Approval Authority personnel and/or representatives of 

Control Authority; 
 • Information provided by IU employees; 
 • Observations by field personnel; 
 • Information provided by the public or private citizens; 
 • Review of compliance schedule requirements; 
 • Review of compliance agreement or agreed judgment requirements; and  
• Information provided by other agencies (EPA, County Public Health Department, etc.).  

Once a violation is identified, it is the responsibility of the Control Authority to implement the 
appropriate enforcement response as outlined in the Enforcement Table. When determining 
an appropriate response, particularly one which includes the imposition of penalties, the 
procedures outlined in the Enforcement Table must be followed. In applying the Enforcement 
Table, the following criteria shall also be used in determining the appropriate response:  

• Magnitude of the violation;  
• Duration of the violation;  
• Effect of the violation on the POTW’s receiving stream; 

 • Effect of the violation on POTW processes and equipment; 
 • Effect on the Authority’s or its representatives’ equipment; 
 • Compliance history of the IU; 
 • Good faith of the IU; or 
 • Pollutants of importance to the POTW.  

The Enforcement Table designates enforcement options for many possible types or patterns 
of noncompliance, identifies the personnel who should take these responses, identifies 
documents to be completed, and discusses the time frames for taking such actions. The 
Enforcement Table is not exhaustive of all possible types or patterns of noncompliance.  If a 
violation arises that does not have an enforcement response specified in the Enforcement 
Table, the PC and/or Public Utilities Director will apply an appropriate response based on the 
consideration of factors stated above and consistent with the penalties outlined for other 
similar types or patterns of noncompliance in the Enforcement Table. 

315

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 19  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

The Control Authority will periodically reassess the effectiveness of the Enforcement Table in 
accomplishing the pretreatment program’s goals. 

5.1 Significant Noncompliance 
The Enforcement Table incorporates when a determination of Significant Noncompliance 
(as defined in 40 CFR 403.8 (f)(2)(viii)) needs to be made.  

Instances of Significant Noncompliance (SNC) are Industrial User violations which meet one 
or more of the following criteria: 

1. Chronic violations of wastewater discharge limits, defined here as those in which 
sixty-six percent (66%) or more of all the measurements taken for the same 
pollutant parameter during a six-month period exceed (by any magnitude) a 
numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, including instantaneous limits, as 
defined by 40 CFR 403.3(l); 

2. Technical Review Criteria (TRC) violations, defined here as those in which thirty-
three percent (33%) or more of all the measurements taken for the same pollutant 
parameter during a six- month period equal or exceed the product of the numeric 
Pretreatment Standard or Requirement including instantaneous limits, multiplied 
by the applicable TRC (TRC = 1.4 for BOD, TSS, fats, oils and grease, and 1.2 for all 
other pollutants except pH); 

3. Any other violation of a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement that the Public 
Utilities Director determines has caused, alone or in combination with other 
discharges, Interference or Pass Through (including endangering the health of 
POTW personnel or the general public); 

4. Any discharge of a pollutant that has caused imminent endangerment to human 
health, welfare, or to the environment, or has resulted in the POTW's exercise of its 
emergency authority to halt or prevent such a discharge; 

5. Failure to meet, within ninety (90) days after the schedule date, a compliance 
schedule milestone contained in a local control mechanism (e.g., an IU permit, 
compliance agreement) or enforcement order for starting construction, 
completing construction, or attaining final compliance; 

6. Failure to provide, within forty-five (45) days after the due date, required reports, 
such as baseline monitoring reports, ninety-day compliance reports, periodic self-
monitoring reports, and reports on compliance with compliance schedules  

7. Failure to accurately report noncompliance; or 

8. Any other violation or group of violations, which may include a violation of Best 
Management Practices as required in a local control mechanism, which the 
Public Utilities Director determines will adversely affect the operation or 
implementation of the local Pretreatment program. 

316

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 20  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

Note: A determination of Significant Noncompliance will be based on a six-month time 
period. The six-month time period will be based on data provided in January and July 
for the preceding six-months. Minimum Enforcement Response for Significant 
Noncompliance is an Administrative Order and Public Notification per 42-634 of the 
Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer.  Public notification will minimally occur annually 
or more frequently at the Public Utilities Director's discretion. 

* For Compliance reports: The User shall submit a progress report to the Public Utilities 
Director no later than fourteen (14) days following each milestone date in the schedule 
and the final date of compliance.  The forty-five (45) day deadline cited here starts on 
the fifteenth (15th) day and concludes after forty-five(45) calendar days.  The report 
must be postmarked by the forty fifth (45th) day.

317

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 21  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

6. Time Frames for Response by Control Authority and Follow 
Up 

For an enforcement action to be effective, it must be timely.  For an action to be timely, 
the violation must be detected and responded to promptly after its occurrence.  

The Control Authority should follow the following guidelines for response and follow up 
with IUs.  For the purposes of the ERP, days are calendar days. 

Action Time Frame 

Review of compliance reports (General 
Guideline) 

The Control Authority staff should review 
industrial user reports within 15 days of 
receipt. Violations observed by the Control 
Authority field personnel should receive 
even swifter attention. 

Monitoring data collected by POTW.  The POTW will notify IU within 24 hours of 
becoming aware of a violation.   

Initiation of any Enforcement Response 
(General Guideline) 

No more than 30 days be allowed to elapse 
between the detection of the violation(s) 
and the initiation of any enforcement 
response. Violations with the potential to 
harm the POTW, people or the environment 
warrant and immediate enforcement 
response. 

Informal Notice or Informal Review 
Meeting 

Notice or the Meeting should be sent or held 
within 5 days of detection of the violation. 

Notice of Violation NOV should be sent to the noncompliant 
user within 30 business days of the violation’s 
identification. Should be hand delivered* or 
sent certified mail to the IU. 

Administrative Orders (includes: Consent 
Order, Compliance Order, Termination of 
Service, and Cease and Desist) 

Order shall be issued within 30 days 
between the identification of the 
violation(s) and issuing order(s). Should be 
hand delivered or sent certified mail to IU. 

318

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 22  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

Compliance Schedule Monitoring after a 
Violation 

Follow-up compliance activities should 
begin no later than 30 to 45 days after the 
initial enforcement response is taken. 

Determination of completion of a 
compliance schedule milestone or 
verification of a submitted report should be 
made on or about the milestone date in the 
compliance schedule. 

Escalation of Enforcement Response 
(violations persist or satisfactory progress 
is not being made) 

Follow-up enforcement actions should be 
taken within 60 to 90 days of the initial 
enforcement action. 

*Control Authorities should use policies and procedures for hand delivery of documents as stated in the CA’s 
Municipal Code.  If no local ordinance exists, the CA will provide one copy to the IU with the original signature of 
the person delivering the document on behalf of the CA and signature of the person receiving it on behalf of IU 
along with the date and time of delivery.  A second copy with the same original signature, date, and time will be 
retained by the CA.  

319

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 23  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

7. Fine Schedule 
The Fine Schedule provides guidance on fine amounts and the time frames for issuing 
fines. Any violation after a six-month period of compliance shall be considered a first 
offense unless otherwise determined by the Public Utilities Director. The Control Authority 
has the legal authority to escalate fines after the first offense based the factors outlined 
in Section 5 of this Guide.  

The maximum fine allowed for Pretreatment Code violations is $1000 per violation per 
day. In general, the response to a first offense will be an informal telephone call/e-mail 
or meeting with no fine, unless specified below.  Fines will then increase at the Control 
Authority’s discretion based on the fine schedule and factors set out in Section 5 of this 
Plan. 

If the violation meets the definition of Significant Noncompliance, the minimum fine shall 
correspond to the 2nd offense (per violation per day) and escalate thereafter unless fines 
are waived as part of the corrective action being required.  

The following Fine Schedule is not exhaustive of all situations where an administrative fine 
is needed.  The Public Utilities Director should make fine determinations not specified 
here, based on the factors mentioned in Section 5 of this Plan. 

Fine Schedule (all amounts are per violation per day, unless otherwise specified) 

 – First Offense 

• $0-$250. 

 – Second Offense (except as noted below): 

• $250-$500 
• Failure to implement or document BMP  
• Failure to properly operate and maintain pretreatment system 

 – Third Offense and Reoccurring Offenses 

• $500-$1000 

Late Reports (Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 42-724) 
• No Fine 0-5 calendar days after the report is due. 
• $25/day fine at five (5) calendar days after the report is due. Increased fine amount 

and/or progression of fine should be specified in the Notice of Violation including 
escalation to Significant Noncompliance as applicable. 
 

  

320

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 24  October 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

8. Payment of Fines 
The amount of the administrative fine plus the amount of the damages shall be 
determined and shall be added to the IU’s next sewer service bill.  The fine and the 
damages shall be paid in accordance with utility billing policies. Non-payment of the 
administrative fines and damages shall have the same remedies as non-payment of a 
utility bill. 

Public Utilities Director in consultation with the City may consider applying fines paid 
towards the user’s remedial action on a case-by-case basis.  The City is under no legal 
obligation to consider applying fines to the user’s remedial action(s) and the percentage 
of the fine is at the discretion of the Public Utilities Director.   

 

321

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 25  September 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

9. Enforcement Table 

The Enforcement Table includes a series of “Levels” of actions which are 
appropriately escalating in the level of the response and the personnel involved 
both from the Control Authority and from the Industrial User. Below are Definitions 
and Abbreviations used consistently throughout the document. 

9.1    Definitions 
HARM means the noncompliance caused interference, pass through, or 
endanger the health of City POTW personnel or general public, or the 
noncompliance caused the City POTW a violation of NPDES permit or impact 
biosolids disposal. Harm also includes increased cost of treatment or actual 
destruction of equipment. Response to the noncompliance should determine the 
seriousness of the harm and the cost to the City. 
NOT SIGNIFICANT means the numerical result of the reported value is less than the 
permit limit times the technical review criteria multiplier*. 
SIGNIFICANT means the numerical result of the reported value is more than the 
permit limit times the technical review criteria multiplier*). 
*Refer to the Section 5.1, Significant Noncompliance for the technical review criteria reference or 
the quick reference on the following page. 
ISOLATED means two or less violations (per pollutant) for the 6-month compliance 
period. 
RECURRING means more than two violations for the 6-month compliance period. 
ONGOING means the noncompliant event is ongoing after notice of the event 
and after notice of the recurring event and requires further escalation to correct 
the noncompliance. 
 

  Abbreviations 
AO Administrative Order (CA option to issue either a Consent Order (negotiated) or a 

Compliance Order (directed) 
ARU Authorized Representative of User 
BMP Best Management Practice 
CA Control Authority (City of Moberly) 
CA City Administrator 
FC Facility Contact (under the direction of the ARU) 
IC Informal Communication 
IU Industrial User 
IRM Informal Review Meeting 
NOV Notice of Violation 
NOW Notice of Warning 
PC Pretreatment Coordinator (under the direction of the DPU) 
POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works (Collection system and/or the wastewater 

treatment plant) 

322

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 26  September 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

DPU Public Utilities Director 
SIU Significant Industrial User 
SCH Show Cause Hearing 
SNC Significant Noncompliance 
SM Standards Meeting 

  

323

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 27  September 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

9.2 Significant Noncompliance Quick Reference 
Refer to Section 5.1 for the full definition of Significant Noncompliance; a quick 
reference is provided here: 

SNC Item 
Reference Brief Description Details 

#1 Chronic Criteria 66% or more of sample results for an individual pollutant 
exceed the permit limit 

#2 Technical Review 
Criteria 

33% or more of the sample results equal or exceed the 
“TRC”. The “TRC” is the permit limit times a multiplier. 
• pH: TRC criteria does not apply (only evaluate 

instances of noncompliance for chronic criteria) 
• For BOD, TSS, Ammonia and Oil & Grease: 1.4 

multiplier 
• For all other pollutants (metals, organics, etc): 1.2 

multiplier 
#3 Causes Interference 

or Pass-through 
Any other violation of a Pretreatment Standard or 
Requirement that causes Interference or Pass Through 
(including endangering the health of POTW personnel or 
the general public) 

#4 Imminent 
Endangerment 

Discharge caused imminent endangerment to human 
health, welfare, or to the environment. Requires CA to 
halt the discharge from the IU. 

#5 Missed Compliance 
Milestone Event by 
90 days 

If a Compliance Milestone Event is missed by more than 
90 days then the IU is considered in SNC. Reports on 
Compliance Milestones are not included in this definition 
of SNC. 

#6 Late Reports by 
more than 45 days 

Reports such as: baseline monitoring reports/permit 
applications (new facilities or permit renewals), ninety-
day compliance reports, periodic self-monitoring reports, 
reports on compliance with compliance schedules, 
submittal of slug discharge control plans 

#7 Failure to Accurately 
Report 
Noncompliance 

Failure to accurately report noncompliance. 

#8 Other Violations Violation of a BMP or other permit requirement which 
impacts the CA’s ability to properly implement the 
Pretreatment Program. 

Considerations when evaluating SNC: 

• SNC is Evaluated for six-month periods – this is relevant to Items #1 and #2 above; 
for the other instances of noncompliance an SNC determination should be made 
at the time of the event. 

• If there is a permit limit violation it should trigger a Significant Noncompliance 
Evaluation by the Control Authority and communication should be maintained 
with the Industrial User as additional monitoring is collected over the remaining six-
month period. 

324

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 28  September 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

•  The six-month period is generally considered the first half of the year (January 1 – 
June 30) and the second half of the year (July 1 – December 31). 

9.3 Action Levels 
Nature of the Violation 
General Criteria 
Description 

1. 
Enforcement 
Action  Control Authority Action 

& Timeframe IU Action & Timeframe 2. Personnel 
Level 1 Action: 1st 
offense, user unaware, 
unintentional 
noncompliance, no 
HARM. Not yet SNC 
definition 

1. IC or NOW, 
IRM if needed. 

 PC contacts IU regarding the 
noncompliance within 5 days 

 PC to evaluate for SNC. 
 PC to prepare written IC or 

NOW; PC to issue IC or NOW; 
PC to schedule IRM if needed. 

 User/FC contacts the PC to 
inform of the 
noncompliance (see 
notifications category) 

 Confirm understanding of 
the IC or NOW/confirm 
corrective action. 

2. PC, FC 

Level 2 Action: ISOLATED, 
no HARM. 
Not yet SNC definition 

1. NOW or NOV  
with IRM 

 PC to prepare NOW or 
NOV to issue within 14 days. 

 PC to schedule IRM. 
 PC to evaluate for SNC. 

 User/FC contacts the PC to 
inform of the 
noncompliance, 

 Prepare Corrective Action 
Plan or other response 

 Respond within time frame 
required 

2. PC, FC 

Level 3 Action: 
Recurring, previous 
noncompliance, no 
HARM. Not yet SNC 
definition 

1. NOV with IRM  PC to brief DPU 
 Under direction of DPU: 
 PC to prepare NOV and to 

issue within 14 days 
 PC to require an IRM with the 

FC. 
 PC to evaluate for SNC. 

 Notify PC of violation  
 Participate in IRM as 

required 
 Prepare Corrective Action 

Plan or other response 
2. PC, FC 

Level 4 Action: SNC 
criteria is met but no 
HARM 

1. AO and/or SM, 
SNC 
Notification, 
PN, Fine 

 PC to inform DPU of violation 
 DPU to issue AO and/or 

schedule SM with consensus 
from City Attorney, City 
Admin within 28 days 

 DPU may issue Admin. Fine 
 Under direction of PWD: 
 PC to prepare AO 
 PC to coordinate SM if 

required. 
 PC to evaluate for SNC. 

 Notify PC of the violation 
per Notification 
Category.  

 Participate in SM as 
required 

 Assist in development 
and comply with order(s) 
within time specified 
therein. 

 Pay fines as applicable 
 Modify permit in 

cooperation with POTW, if 
needed. 

2. DPU, PC, City 
Attorney, City 
Admin, ARU 

Level 5 Action: SNC 
Criteria met and HARM 

1. AO and SM; 
SCH if 
needed. SNC 
Notification, 
PN, Fine 

 PC to inform DPU of violation 
 DPU to schedule SM 
 AO issued after SM by DPU 

with consensus from City 

 Notify PC per Notification 
Category 

 Participate in SM as 
required 

325

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 29  September 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

 
9.4 Categories of Noncompliance 

 Permit Limit Violations 

Violations in this Category 

Numerical Permit Limit Violations, Failure to follow 
Best Management Practices (BMPs), failure to 
properly operate the facility’s Pretreatment 
System 
SNC Criteria 

Event Description Corresponding Action (Refer to table above) 
Isolated, not significant violation Level 1 Action 
Isolated, significant violation, no HARM Level 2 Action 
Recurring (significant or nonsignificant violation), no 
HARM Level 3 Action 

Recurring, Technical or Chronic Review Criteria is met 
for compliance period, no HARM Level 4 Action (SNC #1 and/or #2) 

HARM Level 5 Action (SNC #1 or #2, and/or #3) 
Imminent endangerment to public or to the 
environment or has otherwise resulted in emergency 
action by CA to protect POTW, POTW personnel, or 
general public 

Level 6 Action (SNC #1 or #2, and/or #4) 

  

2. DPU, PC, City 
Attorney, City 
Admin, ARU 

Attorney, City Admin within 
28 days 

 DPU may issue Admin. Fine. 
 Under direction of DPU: 
 PC to prepare AO 
 PC to coordinate SM 
 PC to prepare PN 

 Immediately cease 
discharge, comply with 
order(s) within the time 
specified. 

 Comply with judicial 
enforcement remedies 

 Pay Administrative Fines 
as required. 

Level 6 Action: 
Imminent 
endangerment, 
intentional 
noncompliance; SNC 
criteria met 

1. Cease and 
Desist, 
Terminate 
discharge, 
SCH, Admin. 
Fine, PN, SNC 
Notification; 
judicial 
enforcement 
remedies 

 PC to notify IU and DPU 
immediately and DPU 

 DPU to order immediate 
termination of discharge 
and schedule SCH 

 DPU may issue Admin. Fine 
 All in consultation with the 

City Attorney, City Admin.  
 PC to complete the PN. 
 PC to prepare SNC 

notification for DPU 
issuance. 

 Notify PC immediately 
upon becoming aware of 
the violation. 

 Immediately cease 
discharge,  comply with 
order(s) within the time 
specified. 

 Attend SCH. 
 Comply with judicial 

enforcement remedies 
 Pay Administrative Fines 

as required. 2. DPU, PC, City 
Attorney, City 
Admin, ARU 

326

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 30  September 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

 Reporting Violations 
Violations in this Category Late Reports, failure to notify (changes, hazardous 

waste discharge, slug event, bypass, etc), 
certification issues, and failure to report all results 

LATE REPORTS Reports include: Permit applications/baseline 
monitoring reports, compliance schedule milestone 
reports, 90-day compliance reports, periodic 
compliance reports, repeat sampling reports, reports 
for Best Management Practices 

Event Description Corresponding Action (Refer to table above) 
< 5  days late Level 1 Action 
5-15 days late and IU was notified as part of Level 
1 Action; if not notified then refer to Level 1 
Action 

Level 2 Action with fines for late reports 

15-45 days late and IU was notified with a Level 1 
or Level 2 Action prior to Level 3 Action 

Level 3 Action with fines for late reports 

 > 45 days late Level 4 Action (SNC #6) 
NOTIFICATIONS Potential Problems/Slug Events (Immediately), 

Changes in Discharges (30 days), Noncompliance 
(e.g., permit limit violations within 24 hours of 
becoming aware); also includes failure to report all 
results 

Event Description Corresponding Action (Refer to table above) 
Failure to notify or report all results: unintentional, 
no HARM 

Level 1 Action 

Failure to notify or report all results: after 
notice/recurring, no HARM 

Level 2 Action 

Failure to notify or report all results: Ongoing 
and/or HARM 

Level 5 Action (SNC #3) 

Failure to notify or report all results: Ongoing 
and/or Imminent Endangerment 

Level 6 Action (SNC #4) 

CERTIFICATIONS Issues with Report Certifications 
Event Description Corresponding Action (Refer to table above) 
Certification omitted or report not properly 
certified (not certified or certified by a person 
which is not authorized or duly authorized): Initial 
notification by the CA, unintentional 

Level 1 Action 

Certification omitted or report not properly 
certified (not certified or certified by a person 
which is not authorized or duly authorized): 
Recurring 

Level 2 Action 

Certification omitted or report not properly 
certified (not certified or certified by a person 
which is not authorized or duly authorized): 
Intentional, not corrected 

Level 4 (SNC #8) 

  

327

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 31  September 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

 Sampling Violations 

Violations in this Category Failure to monitor for all pollutants, improper 
monitoring location, improper sample 
type/collection method, analysis out of hold 
times, lab transport issues (broken bottles), 
other lab qualifications on sample results, 
chain of custody documentations, pH hold 
time issues, failure to follow BMPs, failure to 
maintain sampling equipment, failure to 
properly calibrate equipment or failure to 
properly document items in this Category. 

Event Description Corresponding Action (Refer to Table Above) 
Unintentional, initial notice Level 1 Action 
Intentional, initial notice Level 2 Action including development of a 

Sampling Plan and Schedule to correct 
deficiencies 

Recurring notification to correct Level 3 Action 
Ongoing and/or HARM Level 4 Action (SNC #3 or #8) 
Ongoing and/or Imminent Endangerment Level 4 Action (SNC #4 or #8) 

 Discharges Not Authorized and Improper Operation of a Pretreatment System 

Violations in this Category SIUs without a permit, Collection system 
unauthorized discharges (to the collection 
system via a manhole, car wash facility, septic 
receiving station, etc), Pollutants/characteristics 
of a discharge for a permitted IU; Improper 
Operation of the facility Pretreatment System 
Discharges of hazardous waste are not 
authorized in the City of Moberly. 

Description Corresponding Action (Refer to Table Above) 
Unintentional, initial notice, no harm Level 1 Action 
Intentional, initial notice, no harm Level 2 Action 
Recurring notification to correct Level 3 Action 
Ongoing and/or HARM Level 4 Action (SNC #3 or #8) 
Ongoing and/or Imminent Endangerment Level 4 Action (SNC #4 or #8) 

  

328

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 32  September 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

 Compliance Schedule Milestones 
Violations in this Category Delays in Compliance Milestone Events; this 

category does not apply to late reports 
associated with compliance milestones; refer 
to the Reporting Category for Compliance 
Milestone Reports. 

Description Corresponding Action (Refer to Table Above) 
Missed milestone by less than 15 days, or will 
not affect final milestone 

Level 1 Action 

Missed milestone by 15-45 days, or will affect 
final milestone (good cause for delay) 

Level 2 Action 

Missed milestone by more than 45 days, or 
will affect final milestone (no good cause for 
delay) 

Level 3 Action 

Missed milestone by more than 90 days. Level 4 Action (SNC #6) 
Missed milestone by more than 90 days, 
inadequate efforts to correct/meet 
compliance milestone intentions 

Level 5 Action (SNC #6 and/or #8) 

Missed Milestone, HARM or Imminent 
Endangerment 

Level 6 Action (SNC #3, #4, and/or #8) 

 
  Violations Detected During Site Visits 

Violations in this Category Entry Denial, Falsification of Records 
Description Corresponding Action (Refer to Table Above) 
Initial notification, entry denied and/or 
falsification of records identified 

Level 2 Action 

Repeated Attempt for Site Entry Level 4 Action (SNC #8) 
Repeated Attempt for Site Entry Level 6 Action or Search Warrant1 (SNC #8) 

1 Obtain Search Warrant in cooperation with the City Attorney. 

329

#12.



 
ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN  
OCTOBER 2021 DNR SUBMITTAL 

    

Page 33  September 2021 
  Printed: 10/5/2021 9:22 PM 

 

Appendix (Forms and Checklists) 
 

330

#12.



 

 

[Insert Industry Name] 
[Permit Number] 
[Insert Industry Address] 
[Insert Date] 

Notice of Violation 
City of Moberly, Missouri 

Industrial Pretreatment Program 
LEGAL AUTHORITY 

The following findings are issued and notice provided pursuant to the authority vested in the City of Moberly, Missouri 
Industrial Pretreatment Coordinator, under Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer.  This order is based on findings of violation 
of the conditions of the wastewater discharge permit issued pursuant to Sec. 42-506. - Wastewater Discharge Permit 
Contents of the City’s Sewers and Sewer Disposal Ordinance. 

FINDINGS 
1. The City of Moberly, Missouri is charged with the construction, maintenance, and control of the sewer system and 

treatment works. 
2. To protect the sewer system and treatment works, the City of Moberly, Missouri administers a pretreatment program. 
3. Under this pretreatment program, [Name of the Industrial User] was issued a discharge permit. 
4. The discharge permit issued to [Name of Industrial User] contained numerical limits on the quality of pollutants, which 

[Name of Industrial User] could discharge and identified self-monitoring requirements. 
5. On [Date] pollutant analysis revealed that the quantity of [pollutant] exceeded the permit limitation. [NOTE: Several 

violations can be listed under this section.  Each violation will be unique but must specify how the Industrial User is in 
violation of the permit] 

NOTICE AND REQUIRED ACTIONS 

THEREFORE, BASED ON THE ABOVE FINDINGS, [NAME OF THE INDUSTRIAL USER] IS HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT:  

It is in violation of its discharge permit and the Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer of Moberly, Missouri. 

[penalty if applicable; refer to ERP table] 

Within 15 days of the receipt of this notice, an explanation of the violation and a plan for the satisfactory correction and 
prevention thereof, to include specific required actions, shall be submitted by the Industrial User to the Industrial Pretreatment 
Coordinator. 

Signature 
 

  
Industrial Pretreatment Coordinator 
City of Moberly, Missouri 

Date  

  

 

331

#12.



 

 

[Insert Industry Name] 
[Permit Number] 
[Insert Industry Address] 
[Insert Date] 

Consent Order 
City of Moberly, Missouri 

Industrial Pretreatment Program 
LEGAL AUTHORITY 

WHEREAS, the City of Moberly, Missouri pursuant to the powers, duties, and responsibilities vested in and 
imposed on the Public Utilities Director by the City of Moberly’s Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer has 
conducted an ongoing investigation of [Industrial User] and has determined the following: 

FINDINGS 
The City of Moberly owns and operates a wastewater treatment plant administered by the City of Moberly, 
Missouri which is adversely impacted by discharges from the industrial users, including [Industrial User], and 
has implemented a pretreatment program to control such discharges. 
[Industrial User] has consistently violated the pollutant limits in its wastewater discharge permit as set forth in 
Exhibit 1 [attach copy of the permit], as attached hereto. 

COMPLIANCE SCHEDULE 

Therefore, to ensure that [Industrial User] is brought into compliance with its permit limits at the earliest possible 
date, IT IS HEREBY AGREED AND ORDERED, BETWEEN [INDUSTRIAL USER] AND THE Public Utilities Director OF THE 
City of Moberly, Missouri, THAT [INDUSTRIAL USER] SHALL: 
1. By [INSERT DATE], obtain the services of a licensed professional engineer specializing in wastewater 

treatment for the purpose of designing a pretreatment system which will bring [Industrial User] into 
compliance with its’ wastewater discharge permit. [Example- not required] 

2. By [INSERT DATE] submit plans and specifications for the proposed pretreatment system to the City of 
Moberly, Missouri. [Example-not required] 

3. By [INSERT DATE] install the pretreatment system in accordance with the plans and specifications 
submitted in #2 above. [Example- not required] 

4. By [INSERT DATE] achieve compliance with the pollutant limits set forth in Exhibit 1. 
5. [Industrial User] shall pay [Insert Fine Amount] per day for each and every day it fails to comply with the 

schedule set out above.  The [Insert Fine Amount] per day penalty shall be paid to [Insert who payment 
should be made to] within [Insert number of days] of being demanded by the City of Moberly, Missouri. 

6. In the event [Industrial User] fails to comply with any of the deadlines set forth, [Industrial User] shall, within 
one (1) working day after the expiration of the deadline, notify the City of Moberly, Missouri in writing.  
This notice shall describe the reasons for the [Industrial User]’s failure to comply, the additional amount 
of time needed to complete the remaining work, and the steps to be taken to avoid future delays.  This 
notification in no way excuses [Industrial User] from its responsibility to meet any later milestones required 
by the Consent Order. 

7. Compliance with the terms and conditions of this Consent Order shall not be construed to relieve 
[Industrial User] of its obligation to comply with its wastewater discharge term permit which remains in full 
force and effect.  The City of Moberly, Missouri reserves the right to seek any and all remedies available 
to it under Subdivision X, XI, XII, and XIII of the City’s Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer for any violation 
cited by this order. 

8. Violation of this Consent Order shall constitute a further violation of Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer 
and subjects [Industrial User] to all penalties described therein. 

9. Nothing in this Consent Order shall be construed to limit any authority of the City of Moberly, Missouri to 
issue any other orders or take any other action which it deems necessary to protect the wastewater 
treatment plant, the environment or the public health and safety. 

SIGNATURES 

  
Public Utilities Director, City of Moberly, Missouri 

 

Date  

Duly Authorized Rep. Industrial User Date  

332

#12.



 

 

[Insert Industry Name] 
[Permit Number] 
[Insert Industry Address] 
[Insert Date] 

Compliance Order  
City of Moberly, Missouri 

Industrial Pretreatment Program 
LEGAL AUTHORITY 

The following findings are issued and ordered pursuant to the authority vested in the Public Utilities Director of the City of 
Moberly, Missouri, under Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer.  This order is based on findings of violation of the conditions 
of the wastewater discharge permit issued pursuant to  Sec. 42-506. - Wastewater Discharge Permit Contents of the City’s 
Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer.  

FINDINGS 
1. [Industrial User] discharges nondomestic wastewater containing pollutants into the sanitary system of the City of 

Moberly, Missouri(the “City”). 
2. [Industrial User] is a “Significant Industrial User” as defined by 42-292 of Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer. 
3. [Industrial User] was issued a wastewater discharge permit on [Insert Permit Issuance Date] which contains 

prohibitions, restrictions, and other limitations on the quality of the wastewater it discharges to the sanitary 
sewer. 

4. Pursuant to the ordinance and the above-referenced permit, data is routinely collected or submitted on the 
compliance status of [Industrial User]. 

5. This data shows that [Industrial User] has violated its wastewater discharge permit in the following manner: [The 
following is an example.  This section will be different depending on the violation.] 

a. [Industrial User] has violated its permit limits for [Insert Specific Category/Description of Discharge] in 
each sample collected between [Insert Month and Year] and [Insert Month and Year] for a total of 
[Insert Number] separate violations of the permit. 

b. [Industrial User] has failed to submit all periodic compliance reports due since [Insert Date]. 
c. All of these violations satisfy the City’s definition of Significant Noncompliance as defined in the City’s 

Sewers and Sewer Disposal Ordinance. 

ORDER 
THEREFORE, BASED ON THE ABOVE FINDINGS, [INDUSTRIAL USER] IS HEREBY ODERED TO: [The following is an example.  This 
section will be different depending on the violation.] 

1. Within [Insert Number] days, install pretreatment technology which will adequately treat Industrial User’s] 
wastewater to a level which will comply with its wastewater discharge permit. 

2. Within [Insert Number] days, submit all periodic compliance reports due since [Insert Date]. 
3. Within [Insert Number] pay to [Insert the entity payment should be made to] a fine of [Insert Amount] for the 

above-described violations in accordance with 42-666 of Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer. 
4. Report on a monthly basis, the wastewater quality and the corresponding flow and production information as 

described in the wastewater discharge permit for a period of one year from the effective date of this order. 
5. All reports and notices required by this order shall be sent, in writing, to the following address: 

City of Moberly, Missouri 
ATTN: Public Utilities Director 

Moberly, Missouri 65270 
6. This order does not constitute a waiver of the wastewater discharge permit with remains in full force and 

effect.  The City of Moberly, Missouri reserves the right to seek any and all remedies available to it under 
Subdivision X, XI, XII, and XIII of the Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer for any violation cited in this order. 

7. Failure to comply with the requirements of this order shall constitute a further violation of Chapter 42 - Utilities; 
Article 4, Sewer and may subject [Industrial User] to civil or criminal penalties  

 

SIGNATORY AUTHORIZATION 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Utilities Director Date of Authorization 

333

#12.



 

 

[Insert Industry Name] 
[Permit Number] 
[Insert Industry Address] 
[Insert Date] 

Show Cause Order 
City of Moberly, Missouri 

Industrial Pretreatment Program 
LEGAL AUTHORITY 

The following findings are issued and ordered pursuant to the authority vested in the Public Utilities Director 
of the City of Moberly, Missouri, under Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer.  This order is based on findings 
of violation of the conditions of the wastewater discharge permit issued pursuant to Sec. 42-506. - 
Wastewater Discharge Permit Contents of Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer. 

FINDINGS 
1. [Industrial User] discharges nondomestic wastewater containing pollutants into the sanitary sewer 

system of the City of Moberly, Missouri  (City). 
2. [Industrial User] is a “Significant Industrial User” as defined by 42-292of Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, 

Sewer. 
3. [Industrial User] was issued a wastewater discharge permit on [Insert Date Permit Issued] which contains 

prohibitions, restrictions, and other limitations on the quality of the wastewater it discharges to the 
sanitary sewer. 

4. Pursuant to the ordinance and the above-referenced permit, data is routinely collected or submitted 
on the compliance status of [Industrial User]. 

5. The data shows that [Industrial User] has violated its wastewater discharge permit in the following 
manner: 
a. [Industrial User] has violated its permit limits for [Insert Specific Category/Description of Discharge] 

in each sample collected between [Insert Month and Year] and [Insert Month and Year] for a total 
of [Insert Number] separate violations of the permit. 

b. [Industrial User] has failed to submit all periodic compliance reports due since [Insert Date]. 
c. All of these violations satisfy the City’s definition of Significant Noncompliance as defined in 42-

634of Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer.  

ORDER 
THEREFORE, BASED ON THE ABOVE FINDINGS, [INDUSTRIAL USER] IS HEREBY ORDERED TO: 

1. Appear at a meeting with the Public Utilities Director of the City to be held on [Insert Date] and 
[Insert Time] [Insert Location]. 

2. At this meeting, [Industrial User] must demonstrate why the City should not pursue a judicial 
enforcement action against [Industrial User] at this time. 

3. This meeting will be closed to the public. 
4. Representatives of [Industrial User] may be accompanied by legal counsel, if they so choose. 
5. Failure to comply with this order shall also constitute a further violation of Chapter 42 - Utilities; 

Article 4, Sewer and may subject [Industrial User] to civil or criminal penalties or such other 
appropriate enforcement response as may be appropriate. 

6. This order, entered this [Insert Date] day of [Insert Date] shall be effective upon receipt by 
[Industrial User]. 

 

SIGNED: 
 

  
Public Utilities Director Date  

 
 

334

#12.



 

 

[Insert Industry Name] 
[Permit Number] 
[Insert Industry Address] 
[Insert Date] 

Cease and Desist Order 
City of Moberly, Missouri 

Industrial Pretreatment Program 
LEGAL AUTHORITY 

The following findings are issued and ordered pursuant to the authority vested in the Public Utilities Director 
of the City of Moberly, Missouri, under Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer. This order is based on findings of 
violation of the conditions of the wastewater discharge permit issued pursuant to Sec. 42-506. - Wastewater 
Discharge Permit Contents of Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer. 

FINDINGS 
1. [Industrial User] discharges nondomestic wastewater containing pollutants into the sanitary sewer 

system of the City of Moberly. 
2. [Industrial User] is a “Significant Industrial User” as defined by 42-292 of Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, 

Sewer. 
3. [Industrial User] was issued a wastewater discharge permit on [Insert Date] which contains prohibitions, 

restrictions, and other limitations on the quality of the wastewater it discharges to the sanitary sewer. 
4. Pursuant to the ordinance and the above-referenced permit, data is routinely collected or submitted 

on the compliance status of [Industrial User]. 
5. This data shows that [Industrial User] has violated Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer in the following 

manner: 
a. [Industrial User] has continuously violated its permit limits for [Insert Specific Category/Description of 

Discharge] in each sample collected between [Insert Month and Year] and [Insert Month and 
Year]. 

b. [Industrial User] has also failed to comply with an administrative compliance order requiring the 
installation of the pretreatment system and the achievement of compliance with its permit limits by 
[Insert Date]. 

c. [Industrial User] has failed to appear as a show cause hearing pursuant to an order requiring said 
attendance. 

 

ORDER 

THEREFORE, BASED ON THE ABOVE FINDINGS, [INDUSTRIAL USER] IS HEREBY ORDERED TO: 
1. Within 24 hours of receiving this order, cease all nondomestic discharges into the City’s sanitary sewer.  

Such discharges shall not recommence until such time as [Industrial User] is able to demonstrate that it 
will comply with its current permit limits. 

2. Failure to comply with this order may subject [Industrial User] to having its connection to the sanitary 
sewer sealed by the City and assessed the costs therefor. 

3. Failure to comply with this order shall also constitute a further violation of Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, 
Sewer and may subject [Industrial User] to civil or criminal penalties or such other enforcement 
response as may be appropriate. 

4. This order entered this [Insert Date] of [Insert Date], shall be effective upon receipt by [Industrial User]. 
 

 

SIGNED 
 

  
Public Utilities Director Date 

335

#12.



 

 
 

 

Authorization of Signatory Authority for Duly 
Authorized Employee of POTW 

City of Moberly, Missouri 
Industrial Pretreatment Program 

LEGAL AUTHORITY 
Federal law (40 CFR 403.12(m)) and  42-553(a) of Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, Sewer require that reports 
submitted to the Approval Authority by the POTW in accordance with 40 CFR 403.12(a) must be signed by 
a principal executive officer, ranking elected official or other duly authorized employee. The duly 
authorized employee must be an individual or position having responsibility for the overall operation of the 
facility or the Pretreatment Program. This authorization must be made in writing by the principal executive 
officer or ranking elected official and be submitted to the Approval Authority prior to or together with the 
report being submitted.” 

POTW OWNER INFORMATION 
POTW Owner Name: City of Moberly, Missouri  Ranking Elected Official:  
State Operating Permit 
No.: MO-0117960 

 
Title: Mayor 

City/State/Zip: Moberly/Missouri/65270    

DULY AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEE(S) 

Duly Authorized 
Employee:   Title:    
E-mail/Phone Number: 
 
Duly Authorized 
Employee: 
E-mail/Phone Number:   

Title:   
  

 

 

SIGNATORY AUTHORIZATION 
 

By signing this authorization, the Duly Authorized Employee named above is hereby authorized in 
accordance 42-553(a) to submit POTW reports as well as all other administrative requirements associated 
with the Pretreatment Program to the Control Authority. This individual has responsibility for the 
Pretreatment Program through the City of Moberly, Missouri. 

  
Ranking Elected Official Date 
 

336

#12.



 

 
 

Public Notice of Significant Noncompliance 
Simplified version: 
In accordance with 40 CFR 403.8(f) (2) (vii), following is a list of all industrial users in Significant 
Noncompliance (SNC) with pretreatment standards and other requirements during the 2018 
calendar year: 

EPA recommended version: 
THE UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY REGULATION along with the 
Missouri Department of Natural Resources, under authority of 40 C.F.R. 403.8(f) (2) (vii), 
require all approved pretreatment programs to publish annually the names of all 
industrial users in Significant Noncompliance (SNC) with pretreatment standards and 
other requirements during the preceding year (see, Chapter 42 - Utilities; Article 4, 
Sewer,42-634). Companies deemed to be in Significant Noncompliance (SNC) are 
industries who have violated a Federal, State, or Local limit/ordinance during the time 
period of January _______ to December ________.  

Listed in the index below is the name of the industry in Significant Noncompliance, a brief 
description of the violation, and the current status of the violation. When a company is 
found to be in Significant Noncompliance (SNC), the City of Moberly, Missouri offers free 
technical assistance to help the company return to compliance or begin to comply with 
local, state, and federal limits. As part of this assistance preset time limits are used so that 
compliance is achieved in the shortest possible time.  

At the time of this report, it is possible that a company listed for SNC may have made 
significant progress toward correcting the violation and may now be in compliance.  

20__ Pretreatment Significant Noncompliance List 

Company Name Violations Cited Present Status 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

337

#12.



 

 
 

Self-Monitoring Report Checklist  
City of Moberly, Missouri 

Industrial Pretreatment Program 
 

 Report Submitted by Required Due Date  

 Hard Copy/Original Report with Signature On-File 

 Certification Statement: All reports must have a signed certification statement by the 
Authorized Representative (refer to permit application). 

 Were all pollutants monitored (and at the required frequency) which are required in the 
permit? 

 Does the monitoring location match the required location on the permit? 

 Are there any discharge limit violations? If so, do they meet the definition of chronic or 
technical review criteria? (evaluated on a 6-month basis). 

 Are reporting limits adequate to show compliance with the permit limits? 

 Are samples being collected per the permit requirements (e.g., Grab vs. Composite)? 

 Is TTO monitoring performed as-required and/or TOMP plan on-file and TTO waiver 
certification statement provided as part of the report? 

 Are flows reported- max day and average day flows? 

 Are original chain of custody and laboratory results attached?  

Not required but at confirm during an inspection. If semi-annual reporting, recommend 
requesting with each monitoring report.    

 Did the POTW provide written notification if IU is discharging hazardous wastes? 40 CFR 
403.12(p) 

 Were any non-compliance results reported within 24 hours of the industry becoming 
aware of the violation? If resampling occurred was it resubmitted within 30 days? 
      

338

#12.



 

 
 

Certification Requirements 
Certification of Permit Applications 

User Reports 
Initial Monitoring Waiver 

 
 
The following certification statement is required to be signed and submitted by 
Users submitting permit applications; Users submitting baseline monitoring 
reports; Users submitting reports on compliance with the categorical 
Pretreatment Standard deadlines; Users submitting periodic compliance reports, 
and Users submitting an initial request to forego sampling of a pollutant. The 
following certification statement must be signed by an Authorized 
Representative of the POTW: 
 
CERTIFICATION STATEMENT #1 

Initial Request for Monitoring Waiver – Certification Requirement 

“I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared 
under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that 
qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted.  Based on 
my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly 
responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my 
knowledge and true, accurate, and complete.  I am aware that there are significant 
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and 
imprisonment for knowing violations.” 

 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT #2 

Certification for each monitoring report for any monitoring waiver which is part of an 
Industrial User’s permit: 

Users that have an approved monitoring waiver must certify on each report with the 
following statement that there has been no increase in the pollutant in its wastestream 
due to activities of the User.  

“Based on my inquiry of the person or persons directly responsible for managing 
compliance with the Pretreatment Standard for 40 CFR _______ [specify applicable 
National Pretreatment Standard part(s)], I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and 
belief, there has been no increase in the level of ______ [list pollutant(s)] in the 
wastewaters due to the activities at the facility since filing of the last periodic report.” 

339

#12.



 

Request for TTO Waiver  1 of 2 

 

Solvent Management Plan and 
TTO Waiver Request 

 

CONFIDENTIALITY DISCLOSURE: Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations Part 403 Section 403.14 requires 
information provided in this questionnaire identifying the nature and frequency of discharge to be available to the 
public without restriction. Requests for confidential treatment of other information shall be governed by procedures 
specified in 40 CFR part 2 and applicable State Law. 

1. FACILITY CONTACT INFORMATION 

   

Company Name  Facility Telephone Number 

   

Physical Address  Facility Contact/Phone/Title 

     433.17 

City State Zip  IU Permit No. Categorical Regulation 

2. TTO ANALYSIS ON FILE WHICH DOCUMENTS COMPLIANCE WITH THE CATEGORICAL LIMIT 

☐ Laboratory results are attached to this request which document compliance with the categorical standard. 

OR 

☐         The POTW has monitored this facility’s discharge and provided copies of the results which document 
compliance with the categorical standard. 

3. TTO WAIVER REQUEST FOR FACILITIES USING/STORING TTOs 

☐ TTO WAIVER REQUEST: This is a request for approval of certification in lieu of monitoring for TTO by the above 
named facility. 40 § CFR 403.12 (l) understands that approval will allow the facility to certify with each periodic 
self-monitoring report that there are no TTOs being used or stored at this facility, or a TOMP is implemented for 
those TTOs used or stored at the above named facility rather than monitor for toxic organics. 

“I certify that this facility is implementing the attached Toxic Organic Management Plan. Based on my inquiry of 
the person or persons directly responsible for managing compliance with the standards for total toxic organics 
(TTO), I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no dumping of concentrated toxic organics into the 
wastestream has occurred since the TOMP has been implemented. I further certify that this facility will continue to 
monitor for toxic organics until the City of Moberly, MO Pretreatment Office has approved the attached TOMP.” 

   

Signature of Authorized Representative*  Date 

   

Name/Title  Telephone No. 

340

#12.



 

Request for TTO Waiver  2 of 2 

 

4. TOXIC ORGANICS USED IN FACILITY 

 

5. METHOD OF DISPOSAL OF TOXIC ORGANICS 

Please indicate the method of disposal instead of discharging in the sewer system – such as 
reclamation, contract hauling, or incineration. 

 

6. PROCEDURES FOR ENSURING TOXIC ORGANICS DO NOT ROUTINELY SPILL OR LEAK INTO THE 
WASTEWATER 

The following components detail procedures which should be included as part of a TOMP/Solvent 
Management Plan. Please provide details and information related to the manufacturing processes of 
your facility. 

 

Please return to City of Moberly, Missouri for review and approval. 

City of Moberly, Missouri 
c/o Pretreatment Coordinator 

101 W. Reed Street 
Moberly, Missouri  65270 

In the event of an accidental discharge of toxic organics, please contact the City 
immediately at the following number: (660) 269-9437 

Changes which impact the likelihood of a slug discharge event or the discharge of 
toxic organics also require notification to the City of Moberly, Missouri. 

* Pretreatment Reports/Plans must be signed as follows: Corporations, by a principal executive officer of at least the level of vice 
president; partnership, by a general partner; sole proprietorship, by the proprietor, or a duly authorized representative (ref: 40 
CFR part 403.12(l)) 

341

#12.



 

 

Sample Plant Closure Plan 
Date 

To. 

From. 

 

Re: Plant Closure Plan 

Dear Authorized or Duly Authorized Rep. of User: 

The City of  City is aware that Industry Name will be ceasing operation at the Insert facility name..  
In  compliance with Industry Name’s  permit Permit number  and Title of Municipal Pretreatment 
Ord.which require compliance with federal, state and local discharge standards and notice to the 
City if there is a changed condition, the City is requiring  Industry provide a Plant Closure Plan 
within Number business days.  The plan should include a timeline identifying target dates for each 
of the components of the shutdown process and describe: 

1)  Equipment shutdown and removal including location where equipment after removal if 
within the legal jurisdiction of the City of City 

2) List of chemical supplies 
a. If shipped- manifest of where shipped and when 
b. If recycled- documentation of where and when 
c. If disposed- documentation of how and when 

3) Chemical wastes shipment 
a. If shipped- manifest of where shipped and when 
b. If recycled- documentation of where and when 
c. If disposed- documentation of how and when 

 
During the shutdown process, the  City will conduct one or more on-site inspections and collect 
wastewater samples. At the end of the plant closure, the  City will conduct a final inspection to  
confirm the proper removal of equipment, chemical supplies and chemical waste. 
 
Thank you for your concern and cooperation with the Name of City’s WWTP program in the past. 
Sincerely, 
Name 
Title 
CC: State DNR   
 

  

342

#12.



 

 

Dental Discharger: Reminder Letter 
Insert Date 
Insert Dental Discharger Name 
Insert Address 
 
 Re: Dental One-Time Compliance Form for the City of Moberly, Missouri 

Dear Insert Dental Discharger Name: 

Please find enclosed a Dental One Time Compliance form which is required to be completed and 
returned to the City of Farmington. This certification form was initially due on Insert Date and is 
now past due. The City is required by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to collect these 
forms as part of their approved wastewater Pretreatment Program. Also included with the form is 
a packet explaining the EPA’s final amalgam rule “Dental Office Point Source Category, 40 CFR 
Part 441.” 

All dental facilities which place or remove amalgam fillings and discharge to a publicly owned 
treatment works must have certified dental amalgam devices installed and properly maintained. 
If your facility does not conduct these operations, that information must still be documented on 
the form and returned with the appropriate certification. 

We appreciate your responsiveness to this matter. If you returned the form previously, then you 
are receiving this letter because it was not received by the City of Farmington. Please re-send a 
copy or complete a new form if you do not have a copy available. The form should to be mailed 
to the City at the address listed below. 

City of Moberly, Missouri 
Attn: Emily Lute, Industrial Pretreatment Coordinator 

101 W. Reed Street 
Moberly, Missouri 65270 

 
Questions regarding this survey should be directed to Emily Lute. Thank you in advance for 
your cooperation. 
 

Sincerely, 

 
 
Emily Lute 
Industrial Pretreatment Coordinator 
City of Moberly, Missouri

343

#12.



 

 

EPA DENTAL RULE 
This packet was prepared by KimHEC Environmental Consultants for the City of Moberly, 
Missouri to help dental offices understand the Dental Rule published by the Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) on June 14, 2017. The City of Moberly, Missouri owns and operates 
a Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) and is therefore the dental discharger’s Control 
Authority. 

The Dental Rule is in effect July 14, 2017. This packet provides a summary of the Rule. This 
packet is meant to provide guidance and be a short checklist for a dental dischargers. This 
packet also demonstrates the American Dental Association’s (ADA) support of removal and 
recycling of dental amalgam that contains mercury from the wastewater discharged to 
Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTWs). The final rule contains two best management 
practices (BMPs) recommended by the ADA. 

For more information on the Dental Rule, please visit the following website: 

https://www.epa.gov/eg/dental-effluent-guidelines 

 
 

Dana XXX 
Public Utilities Director 
 
  

  

Dental Offices 
  

 
 
 

344

#12.

https://www.epa.gov/eg/dental-effluent-guidelines


 

 

SUMMARY OF DENTAL RULE 

What is the Dental 
Rule?1 

• Requires dental offices that discharge wastewater that contains dental amalgam to 
Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTWs) to install, inspect, and maintain a dental 
amalgam separator. 

• Requires the implementation of two best management practices (BMPs). 
• Published in Federal Register by EPA on June 14, 2017. 
• EPA estimates annual cost incurred by dental office: avg. of $800 annually.  

Why are standards 
needed?1 

• Mercury from waste amalgam can end up in the environment from the POTW 
through incineration, landfilling, or land application. 

• Mercury – potent neurotoxin that causes wide range of health issues. 
 

Who is affected by the 
Dental Rule?1 

Applies to: 
• Dental offices 
• Dental schools 
• Dental clinics 
• Government operated 

dental facilities 

Does NOT apply to: 
• Mobile units 
• Practices consisting ONLY of these 

specialties: oral pathology, oral & 
maxillofacial radiology/surgery, 
orthodontics, periodontics, or 
prosthodontics. 

What kind of amalgam 
separator is required?2 

• An amalgam separator compliant with ISO 11143 (2008). 
• ISO Standard is incorporated into the current American National Standards 

Institute’s (ANSI)/American Dental Association’s (ADA) Standard 108 for Amalgam 
Separators. 

• Amalgam separator must achieve 95% removal efficiency. 
• To determine whether your amalgam separators is compliant with ISO 11143 

ANSI/ADA Standard No. 108, check the model at this website: 
http://info.nsf.org/Certified/Wastewater/ 

When will this rule 
affect dental offices?2 

The Effective Date of this rule is July 14, 2017. 

NEW dental offices: 
• MUST return One-Time Compliance Report within 90 days following the 

introduction of wastewater to the sanitary sewer. 

TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP: 
• MUST return One-Time Compliance Report within 90 days after a transfer of 

ownership. 

 

What steps are needed 
to be taken to come 
into compliance? 

 Install new amalgam separator in offices that do not currently have one. 
 Inspect existing models to make sure they are up to standard. 
 Establish internal documentation tracking procedures related to the inspection and 

maintenance of your amalgam separator. 
 Follow the ADA’s Best Management Practices for handling dental amalgam. 
 Complete the One-Time Compliance Report for Dental Discharges. MUST be 

returned to the Control Authority. Retain a copy of this report on site for the 
duration of your practice/ownership. 

ONE-TIME COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION MUST BE MAILED TO THE CITY WITHIN 30 
DAYS FOLLOWING THE INTRODUCTION OF WASTEWATER INTO THE SANITARY 

SEWER OR 90 DAYS AFTER A TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP. 

  

345

#12.

http://info.nsf.org/Certified/Wastewater/


 

 

American Dental Association 
Amalgam Waste Best Management Practices3 

These Best Management Practices for Amalgam Waste encourages the dental community to follow the BMP 
for proper waste handling and disposal. The BMP by the American Dental Association calls for the use of ISO 
11143-compliant amalgam separator as a recommendation. The ADA’s BMP on Amalgam Waste follows the 
procedures outlined in the EPA’s final rule on amalgam separators. 

Do: 
• Use pre-capsulated alloys & stock 

capsule size variety 
• Recycle used disposable amalgam 

capsules 
• Salvage, store, & recycle non-contact 

amalgam 
• Salvage contact amalgam pieces from 

restorations after removal & recycle 
contents 

• Recycle teeth containing dental 
amalgam restorations & verify whether 
or not teeth need disinfection 

• Manage amalgam waste through 
recycling as much as possible 

• Use line cleaners that minimize 
dissolution of amalgam 

Don’t: 
• Use bulk mercury 
• Put used disposable amalgam capsules in 

biohazard containers 
• Put non-contact amalgam waste in 

biohazard containers, infectious waste 
containers, or regular garbage 

• Rinse devices containing amalgam over 
drains or sinks 

• Dispose of extracted teeth that contain 
amalgam restorations in biohazard 
containers. Infectious waste containers, 
sharps containers, or regular garbage 

• Flush amalgam down the drain/toilet 
• Use bleach or chlorine-containing cleaners 

to flush wastewater lines 

 

Resources 
1. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Fact Sheet: Effluent Limitations Guidelines and Standards for 

Dental Offices.  
2. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Effluent Limitations Guidelines and Standards for the Dental 

Category.  
3. American Dental Association. Amalgam Separators and Waste Best Management. 

 

346

#12.

https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2016-12/documents/dental-elg_final_fact-sheet_12-2016.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2016-12/documents/dental-elg_final_fact-sheet_12-2016.pdf
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2017/06/14/2017-12338/effluent-limitations-guidelines-and-standards-for-the-dental-category
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2017/06/14/2017-12338/effluent-limitations-guidelines-and-standards-for-the-dental-category
http://www.ada.org/en/member-center/oral-health-topics/amalgam-separators


 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 1 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

Chapter 42 - UTILITIES 

 

ARTICLE IV. - SEWER  

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY  

Subdivision I. - In General  

Sec. 42-398. - Purpose and policy.  

(a)  This division sets forth uniform requirements for Users of the wastewater collection and publicly 
owned treatment works (POTW) for the City and enables the City to comply with all state and 
federal laws including the Clean Water Act (33 USC 1251 et seq.), and the General Pretreatment 
Regulations (40 CFR 403). The objectives of this division are:  

(1)  To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the POTW that will interfere with the operation 
of the POTW;  

(2)  To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the POTW which will pass through the POTW, 
inadequately treated, into receiving waters of otherwise be incompatible with the POTW;  

(3)  To ensure that the quality of the wastewater treatment plant sludge is maintained at a level 
which allows its use and disposal in compliance with applicable statutes and regulations;  

(4)  To protect POTW personnel who may be affected by wastewater and sludge in the course of 
their employment and to protect the general public;  

(5)  To improve the opportunity to recycle and reclaim wastewater and sludge from the POTW;  

(6)  To provide for fees for the equitable distribution of the cost of operation, maintenance and 
improvement of the POTW; and  

(7)  To enable the City to comply with its NPDES permit conditions, sludge use and disposal 
requirements and any other federal or state laws to which the POTW is subject.  

(b)   This division shall apply to all Users of the POTW. This division authorizes the issuance of 
wastewater discharge permits; authorizes monitoring, compliance and enforcement activities; 
establishes administrative review procedures; requires industrial User reporting; and provides for the 
setting of fees for the equitable distribution of costs resulting from the program established herein.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 1.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-290. - Administration.  

Except as otherwise provided herein, the Public Utilities Director shall administer, implement and 
enforce the provisions of this division. Any powers granted to or duties imposed upon the Public Utilities 
Director may be delegated by the Public Utilities Director to other City personnel.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 1.2, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-291. - Abbreviations.  

347

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 2 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(a)   The following abbreviations shall have the designated meanings:  

BOD: Biochemical oxygen demand.  

CFR: Code of Federal Regulations.  

COD: Chemical oxygen demand.  

EPA: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.  

GPD: Gallons per day.  

L: Liter.  

MDNR: Missouri Department of Natural Resources.  

mg: Milligrams.  

mg/l: Milligrams per liter.  

NPDES: National pollutant discharge elimination system.  

NSCIU: Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User 

O&M: Operation and maintenance.  

PW: Publicly owned treatment works.  

RCRA: Resource Conservation and Recovery Act.  

SIC: Standard industrial classifications.  

SWDA: Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 USC 6901, et. seq.).  

TSS: Total suspended solids.  

USC: United States Code.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 1.3, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-292. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this division, shall have the meanings ascribed to 
them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Act or the Act means the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also known as the Clean Water Act, as 
amended, 33 USC 1251 et seq.  

Approval authority means the Missouri Department of Natural Resources (MDNR).  

Authorized representative of the industrial User means:  

(1)  If the industrial User is a corporation, the term "authorized representative" shall mean:  

a. The president, secretary, treasurer, or a vice-president of the corporation in charge of a 
principal business function, or any other person who performs similar policy or decision 
making functions for the corporation;  

b. The manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operation facilities employing 
more than 250 persons or having gross annual sales or expenditures exceeding 

348

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 3 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

$25,000,000.00 (in second-quarter 1980 dollars), if authority to sign documents has been 
assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate procedures;  

(2)  If the industrial User is a partnership, or sole proprietorship, an authorized representative shall 
mean a general partner or proprietor, respectively;  

(3)    If the industrial User is a federal, state or local governmental facility, an authorized 
representative shall mean a director or highest official appointed or designated to oversee the 
operation and performance of the activities of the government facility, or his designee;  

(4)  Persons responsible for the overall operation of a facility that generates discharges regulated 
under this chapter may designate another authorized representative if the authorization is in 
writing, the authorization specifies the individual or position responsible for the overall 
operation of the facility from which the discharge originates or have overall responsibility for 
environmental matters for the company, and the written authorization is submitted to the City.  

Best Management Practices or BMPs means schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, 
maintenance procedures, and other management practices to implement the prohibitions listed in 
Sections 42-416(a) and (b) [40 CFR 403.5(a)(1) and (b)]. BMPs include treatment requirements, 
operating procedures, and practices to control plant site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste 
disposal, or drainage from raw materials storage. 

Biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) means the quantity of oxygen utilized in the biochemical 
oxidation of organic matter under standard laboratory procedure, five days at 20 degrees centigrade 
expressed in terms of mass and concentration (milligrams per liter (mg/l)).  

Building sewer means the extension from the building drain to the public sewer or other place of 
disposal. 

Categorical pretreatment standard or categorical standard means any regulation containing pollutant 
discharge limits promulgated by the U.S. EPA in accordance with section 307(b) and (c) of the Act 
(33 USC 1317) which apply to a specific category of industrial Users and which appear in 40 CFR 
405—471.  

 Categorical Industrial User means an Industrial User subject to categorical Pretreament Standard or 
categorical Standard. 

City means the City of Moberly or the City council of Moberly.  

Color means the optical density at the visual wave length of maximum absorption, relative to distilled 
water. One hundred percent transmittance is equivalent to zero optical density.  

Combined sewer means a sewer receiving both surface runoff and sewage.  

Composite sample means the sample resulting from the combination of individual wastewater 
samples taken at selected intervals based on an increment of either flow or time.  

Control Authority The City    

Daily Maximum means the arithmetic average of all effluent samples for a pollutant collected during a 
calendar day.      

Daily Maximum Limit means the maximum allowable discharge limit to a pollutant during a calendar 
day. Where Daily Maximum Limits are expressed in units of mass, the daily discharge is the total 
mass discharged over the course of the day. Where Daily Maximum Limits are expressed in terms of 

349

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 4 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

concentration, the daily discharge is the arithmetic average measurement of the pollutant 
concentration derived from all measurements taken that day. 

Enforcement officer means the Public Utilities Director or such other persons as are designated to 
enforce this article. 

Environmental Protection Agency or EPA means the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency or, 
where appropriate, the term may also be used as a designation for the Regional Water Management 
Division Director or other duly authorized official of the agency.  

Existing source means any source of discharge, the construction or operation of which commenced 
prior to the publication of proposed categorical pretreatment standards which will be applicable to 
such source if the standard is thereafter promulgated in accordance with section 307 of the Act.  

Five-day biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) means the quantity of oxygen utilized in the 
biochemical oxidation of organic matter under standard laboratory procedure in five days at 20 
degrees centigrade expressed in milligrams per liter. 

Garbage means solid wastes from the domestic and commercial preparation, cooking and dispensing 
of food, and from the handling, storage and sale of produce. 

Grab sample means a sample which is taken from a waste stream on a one-time basis without regard 
to the flow in the waste stream and without consideration of time.  

Indirect discharge or discharge means the introduction of (nondomestic) pollutants into the POTW 
from any nondomestic source regulated under section 307(b), (c) or (d) of the Act.  

Industrial User or User means a source of indirect discharge.  

Industrial wastes means the liquid wastes from industrial manufacturing processes, trade, or business 
as distinct from sanitary sewage.  

Instantaneous maximum allowable discharge limit means the maximum concentration (or loading) of 
a pollutant allowed to be discharged at any time, determined from the analysis of any discrete or 
composited sample collected, independent of the industrial flow rate and the duration of the sampling 
event.  

Interference means a discharge which alone or in conjunction with a discharge or discharges from 
other sources:  

(1)  Inhibits or disrupts the POTW, its treatment processes or operations or its sludge processes, use 
or disposal; and  

(2)  Therefore is a cause of a violation of the City's NPDES permit or of the prevention of sewage 
sludge use or disposal in compliance with any of the following statutory/regulatory provisions 
or permits issued thereunder (or more stringent state or local regulations): section 405 of the 
Clean Water Act; the Solid Waste Disposal Act (SWDA), including Title II commonly referred 
to as the Resource Conversation and Recovery Act (RCRA); any State regulations contained in 
any State sludge management plan prepared pursuant to subtitle D of the SWDA; the Clean Air 
Act; the Toxic Substances Control Act; and the Marine Protection, Research and Sanctuaries 
Act.  

350

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 5 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

Medical waste means isolation wastes, infectious agents, human blood and blood byproducts, 
pathological wastes, sharps, body parts, fomites, etiologic agents, contaminated bedding, surgical 
wastes, potentially contaminated laboratory wastes and dialysis wastes.  

Monthly Average means the sum of all “daily discharges” measured during a calendar month divided 
by the number of “daily discharges” measured during the month. 

Monthly Average Limit means the highest allowable average of “daily discharges” measured during 
a calendar month, calculated as the sum of all “daily discharges” measured during a calendar month 
divided by the number of “daily discharges” measured during the month. 

Natural outlet means any outlet into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake or other body of surface water 
or groundwater.  

New source means:  

(1)  Any building, structure, facility or installation from which there is or may be a discharge of 
pollutants, the construction of which commenced after the publication of proposed pretreatment 
standards under section 307(c) of the Act which will be applicable to such source if such 
standards are thereafter promulgated in accordance with that section, provided that:  

a. The building, structure, facility or installation is constructed at a site at which no other 
source is located;  

b. The building, structure, facility or installation totally replaces the process or production 
equipment that causes the discharge of pollutants at an existing source; or  

c. The production or wastewater generating processes of the building, structure, facility or 
installation are substantially independent of an existing source at the same site. In 
determining whether these are substantially independent, factors such as the extent to which 
the new facility is integrated with the existing plant, and the extent to which the new 
facility is engaged in the same general type of activity as the existing source, should be 
considered.  

(2)  Construction on a site at which an existing source is located results in a modification rather 
than a new source if the construction does not create a new building, structure, facility or 
installation meeting the criteria of subsection (1)b or c of this definition but otherwise alters, 
replaces, or adds to existing process or production equipment.  

(3)  Construction of a new source as defined under this subsection has commenced if the owner or 
operator has:  

a. Begun, or caused to begin, as part of a continuous onsite construction program:  

1. Any payment, assembly, or installation of facilities or equipment; or  

2. Significant site preparation work, including clearing, excavation, or removal of existing 
buildings, structures, or facilities which is necessary for the placement, assembly, or 
installation of new source facilities or equipment; or  

b. Entered into a binding contractual obligation for the purchase of facilities or equipment 
which are intended to be used in its operation within a reasonable time. Options to purchase 
or contracts which can be terminated or modified without substantial loss, and contracts for 
feasibility, engineering, and design studies do not constitute a contractual obligation under 
this subsection.  

351

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 6 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

Noncontact cooling water means water used for cooling which does not come into direct contact with 
any raw material intermediate product, waste product, or finished product.  

Pass through means a discharge which exits the POTW into waters of the U.S. in quantities or 
concentrations which, alone or in conjunction with a discharge or discharges from other sources, is a 
cause of a violation of any requirement of the City's NPDES permit (including an increase in the 
magnitude or duration of a violation).  

Person means any individual, partnership, copartnership, firm, company, corporation, association, 
joint stock company, trust, estate, governmental entity or any other legal entity, or their legal 
representatives, agents or assigns. This definition includes all federal, state or local governmental 
entities.  

pH means a measure of the acidity or alkalinity of a substance, expressed in standard units.  

Pollutant means any dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, 
munitions, medical wastes, chemical wastes, industrial wastes, biological materials, radioactive 
materials, heat, wrecked or discharged equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt, agricultural and industrial 
wastes, and the characteristics of the wastewater (i.e., pH, temperature, TSS, turbidity, color, BOD, 
chemical oxygen demand (COD), toxicity, odor).  

Pretreatment means the reduction of the amount of pollutants, the elimination of pollutants, or the 
alteration of the nature of pollutant properties in wastewater prior to or in lieu of introducing such 
pollutants into the POTW. This reduction of alteration can be obtained by physical, chemical or 
biological processes, by process changes, or by other means, except by diluting the concentration of 
the pollutants unless allowed by an applicable pretreatment standard.  

Pretreatment Requirement means any substantive or procedural requirement related to pretreatment 
imposed on an industrial User, other than a pretreatment standard.  

Pretreatment Standards or Standards means prohibitive discharge standards, categorical pretreatment 
standards, and local limits.  

Prohibited Discharge Standards or prohibited discharges means absolute prohibitions against the 
discharge of certain substances; these prohibitions appear in section 42-417.  

Public sewer means a sewer in which all owners of abutting properties have equal rights, and is 
controlled by public authority.  

Public Utilities Director or Director means the person designated by the City to supervise the 
operation of the POTW and who is charged with certain duties and responsibilities by this ordinance. 
The term also means a Duly Authorized Representative of the Public Utilities Director.  

Publicly Owned Treatment Works or POTW means a treatment works as defined by section 212 of the 
Act (33 USC 1292), which is owned by the City. The term "POTW" includes any devices or systems 
used in the collection, storage, treatment, recycling and reclamation of sewage or industrial wastes 
and any conveyances which convey wastewater to a treatment plant. The term "POTW" also means 
the municipal entity having jurisdiction over the industrial Users and responsibility for the operation 
and maintenance of the treatment works.  

Sanitary sewer means a sewer which carries sewage and to which stormwaters, surface waters, and 
groundwaters are not intentionally admitted.  

Septic Tank Waste means any sewage from holding tanks such as vessels, chemical toilets, campers 
trailers, and septic tanks.  

352

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 7 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

Sewage means a combination of the water-carried wastes from residences, business buildings, 
institutions and industrial establishments, together with such groundwater, surface water and 
stormwater as may be present. 

Sewer means a pipe or conduit for carrying sewage.  

Sewerage system means all facilities for collecting, pumping, treating and disposing of sewage. 

Significant Industrial User (SIU) means:  

(1)    Industrial Users subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards; and  

(2)    Any other Industrial User that:  

a. Discharges an average of 25,000 gpd or more of process wastewater;  

b. Contributes a process wastestream which makes up five percent or more of the average 
dry weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the treatment plant; or  

c. Is designated as significant by the City on the basis that the industrial User has a 
reasonable potential for adversely affecting the POTW's operation or for violating any 
pretreatment standard or requirement.  

(3) The City may determine that an Industrial User subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards is 
a Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User rather than a Significant Industrial User on a 
finding that the Industrial User never discharges more than 100 gallons per day (gpd) of total 
categorical wastewater (excluding sanitary, non-contact cooling and boiler blowdown 
wastewater, unless specifically included in the Pretreatment Standard) and the following 
conditions are met: 

a. The Industrial User, prior to City’s finding, has consistently complied with all applicable 
categorical Pretreatment Standards and Requirements; 

b. The Industrial User annually submits the certification statement required in 42-553(b), 
together with any additional information necessary to support the certification statement; 
and 

c. The Industrial User never discharges any untreated concentrated wastewater. 

(4)  Upon a finding that a User meeting the criteria in Subsection (2) of this part has no reasonable 
potential for adversely affecting the POTW’s operation or for violating any Pretreatment 
Standard or Requirement, the City may at any time, on its own initiative or in response to a 
petition received from an Industrial User, and in accordance with procedures in 40 CFR 
403.8(f)(6), determine that such User should not be considered a Significant Industrial User. 

Slug load means any discharge at a flow rate or concentration which could cause a violation of the 
prohibited discharge standards in section 42-417 or any discharge of a nonroutine, episodic nature, 
including. but not limited to, an accidental spill or a noncustomary batch discharge.  

Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Code means a classification pursuant to the Standard 
Industrial Classification Manual issued by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget.  

Stormwater means any flow occurring during or following any form of natural precipitation, and 
resulting therefrom, including snowmelt.  

353

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 8 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

Total Suspended Solids or Suspended Solids means the total suspended matter than floats on the 
surface of, or is suspended in, water, wastewater, or other liquid, and which is removable by 
laboratory filtering.  

Toxic pollutant means one of 126 pollutants, or combination of those pollutants, listed as toxic in 
regulations promulgated by the EPA under the provision of section 307 of the Act (33 USC 1317).  

Treatment facility means any arrangement of biological organisms, devices and structures used for 
treating sewage. 

Treatment plant effluent means any discharge of pollutants from the POTW into waters of the state.  

Wastewater means liquid and water-carried industrial wastes, and sewage from residential dwellings, 
commercial buildings, industrial and manufacturing facilities, and institutions, whether treated or 
untreated, which are contributed to the POTW.  

Wastewater treatment plant or treatment plant means that portion of the POTW designed to provide 
treatment of sewage and industrial waste.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 1.4, 6-7-1993

(Code 1965, §§ 30-34.1, 30-94; Code 1987, § 28-91) 

DIVISION 2. – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Sec. 42-295. – Vandalism and damaging sewage works equipment.  

No person shall maliciously, willfully or negligently break, damage, destroy, uncover, deface, tamper 
with or prevent access to any structure, appurtenance or equipment, or other part of the POTW. Any 
person found in violation of this requirement shall be subject to the sanctions set out in subdivisions IX 
through XI of this division.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 3.6, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-296. - Abandonment of sewers.  

It is unlawful for any person to disconnect or abandon any connection to a sewer in the City without 
conforming to the following:  

(a)  The enforcement officer shall be notified in writing in advance that a sewer connection is to be 
abandoned.  

(b)  The sewer service shall be dug out at the joint of the pipe closest to the City lateral and a vitrified 
clay plug placed in the bell nearest to the lateral main. No opening to the sewer for abandoning a 
sewer connection shall be closed until the enforcement officer has an opportunity to inspect how the 
tap has been disconnected and plugged. If, in the opinion of the enforcement officer, the sewer tap or 
saddle connection is in poor condition, or if a violation of the City's plumbing code is revealed, the 

354

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 9 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

service tap shall be capped off in a manner satisfactory to the enforcement officer and in accordance 
with the plumbing code of the City.  

(Code 1965, § 30-54; Code 1987, § 28-95) 

Sec. 42-297. - Use of public sewers required.  

(a)  It is unlawful for any person to place, deposit or permit to be deposited in any unsanitary manner on 
public or private property within the City, or in any area under the jurisdiction of such City, any 
human or animal excrement, garbage or other objectionable waste.  

(b)  It is unlawful to discharge to any natural outlet within the City, or in any area under the jurisdiction 
of such City, any sewage or other polluted waters, except where suitable treatment has been provided 
in accordance with subsequent provisions of this article.  

(c)  Except as otherwise provided, it is unlawful to construct or maintain any privy, privy vault, septic 
tank, cesspool or other facility intended or used for the disposal of sewage.  

(d)  The owner of all houses, buildings, or properties used for human occupancy, employment, 
recreation or other purposes, situated within the City and abutting on any street, alley or right-of-way 
in which there is now located or may in the future be located a public sanitary sewer of the City, 
shall at such owner's expense install suitable toilet facilities therein, and connect such facilities 
directly with the proper public sewer in accordance with the provisions of this article, within 90 days 
after date of official notice to do so, provided that such public sewer is located within 500 feet of 
either: (i) the location of the sewer connection exit point, in the case of an existing structure; or (ii) 
the nearest exterior line of the structure, in the case of new or pending construction, of the principal 
building used or to be used for human occupancy, employment, or recreation situated or to be 
situated on the property, which distance shall be measured within the lot lines of the property along 
the shortest distance to the public sewer and along the abutting street, alley or right-of-way in which 
is located a public sanitary sewer. The 500 foot measurement shall not include or be taken along or 
across the property of another owner.  

(e)  Connection to public sewer requires connection to City water where available.  

(Code 1965, §§ 30-55—30-58; Code 1987, § 28-96; Ord. No. 9464 , § 1, 7-2-2018) 

Secs. 42-298—42-320. - Reserved. 

DIVISION 2. - PRIVATE SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEMS  

Sec. 42-321. - When permitted.  

Where a public sanitary sewer is not available, the building sewer shall be connected to a private 
sewage disposal system complying with the provisions of this division.  

(Code 1965, § 30-59; Code 1987, § 28-111) 

Sec. 42-322. - Additional requirements authorized.  

355

#12.

Kimberly A. Cole
Move to section immediately after “applicability” of model ordinance?



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 10 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

No statement contained in this division shall be construed to interfere with any additional 
requirements that may be imposed by the health officer.  

(Code 1965, § 30-65; Code 1987, § 28-112) 

Sec. 42-323. – Private Sewage Disposal System Permit.  

(a)  Before commencement of construction of a private sewage disposal system, the owner shall first 
obtain a written permit signed by the enforcement officer. The application for such permit shall be 
made on a form furnished by the City, which the applicant shall supplement by any plans, 
specifications and other information as are deemed necessary by the enforcement officer.  

(b)  A permit for a private sewage disposal system shall not become effective until the installation is 
completed to the satisfaction of the enforcement officer. He shall be allowed to inspect the work at 
any stage of construction and, in any event, the applicant for the permit shall notify the enforcement 
officer when the work is ready for final inspection, and before any underground portions are covered. 
The inspection shall be made within 24 hours of the receipt of notice by the enforcement officer.  

(Code 1965, §§ 30-60, 30-61; Code 1987, § 28-113) 

Sec. 42-324. - Construction standards.  

The type, capacities, location and layout of a private sewage disposal system shall comply with all 
recommendations of the department of public health of the state. No permit shall be issued for any private 
sewage disposal system employing soil absorption facilities where the area of the lot is less than three 
acres. No septic tank or cesspool shall be permitted to discharge to any natural outlet.  

(Code 1965, § 30-62; Code 1987, § 28-114) 

Sec. 42-325. - Abandonment when public sewer becomes available.  

At such time as a public sewer becomes available to a property served by a private sewage disposal 
system, a direct connection shall be made to the public sewer in compliance with this division, and any 
septic tanks, cesspools and similar private sewage disposal facilities shall be abandoned and filled with 
suitable material. When a public sewer becomes available, the building sewer shall be connected to such 
sewer within 90 days and the private sewage disposal system shall be cleaned of sludge and filled with 
clean bank-run gravel or dirt.  

(Code 1965, §§ 30-63, 30-66; Code 1987, § 28-115) 

Sec. 42-326. - Maintenance.  

The owner shall operate and maintain the private sewage disposal facilities in a sanitary manner at 
all times, at no expense to the City.  

(Code 1965, § 30-64; Code 1987, § 28-116) 

Secs. 42-327—42-347. - Reserved. 

356

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 11 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

DIVISION 3. - BUILDING SEWERS AND CONNECTIONS  

Sec. 42-348. - Connection permit.  

No unauthorized person shall uncover, make any connection with or opening into, use, alter or 
disturb any public sewer or appurtenance thereof without first obtaining a written permit from the 
enforcement officer.  

(Code 1965, § 30-67; Code 1987, § 28-131) 

Sec. 42-349. - Sewer taps on Reed Street sewer.  

No person shall tap onto or permit a tap to be made onto the Reed Street sewer located in Reed Street 
at any point between Johnson Street and Morley Street in the City. Any person desiring to connect with 
the Reed Street sewer shall do so by tapping onto the main laterals, which laterals empty into the Reed 
Street sewer.  

(Code 1965, § 30-45; Code 1987, § 28-132) 

Sec. 42-350. - Separate building sewers required.  

A separate and independent building sewer shall be provided for every building, except where one 
building stands at the rear of another on an interior lot and no private sewer is available or can be 
constructed to the rear building through an adjoining alley, court, yard or driveway, the building sewer 
from the front building may be extended to the rear building and the whole considered as one building 
sewer.  

(Code 1965, § 30-69; Code 1987, § 28-133) 

Sec. 42-351. - Use of old building sewers.  

Old building sewers may be used in connection with new buildings only when they are found, on 
examination and test by the enforcement officer, to meet all requirements of this division.  

(Code 1965, § 30-70; Code 1987, § 28-134) 

Sec. 42-352. - General design and excavation standards.  

The size, slope, alignment, materials of construction of a building sewer and the methods to be used 
in excavating, placing of the pipe, jointing, testing and backfilling the trench shall all conform to the 
requirements of the building code and plumbing code or other applicable rules and regulations of the City. 
In the absence of code provisions or in amplification thereof, the materials and procedures set forth in 
appropriate specifications of the rules of state department of natural resources, title 10, chapter 8, Design 
Guides, shall apply.  

(Code 1965, § 30-71; Code 1987, § 28-135) 

Sec. 42-353. - Elevation of connection with building drain.  

357

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 12 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

Whenever possible, the building sewer shall be brought to the building at an elevation below the 
basement floor. In all buildings in which any building drain is too low to permit gravity flow to the public 
sewer, sanitary sewage carried by such building drain shall be lifted by an approved means and 
discharged to the building sewer.  

(Code 1965, § 30-72; Code 1987, § 28-136) 

Sec. 42-354. - Building sewer connection with public sewer.  

(a)  The connection of the building sewer into the public sewer shall conform to the requirements of the 
building code and plumbing code or other applicable rules and regulations of the City or the 
procedures set forth in appropriate specifications of the rules of state department of natural resources, 
title 10, chapter 8, Design Guides. All such connections shall be made gastight and watertight. Any 
deviation from the prescribed procedures and materials must be approved by the enforcement officer 
before installation.  

(b)  The applicant for the building sewer permit shall notify the enforcement officer when the building 
sewer is ready for inspection and connection to the public sewer. The connection shall be made 
under the supervision of the enforcement officer or his representative.  

(Code 1965, §§ 30-74, 30-75; Code 1987, § 28-137) 

Sec. 42-355. - Connections of surface run-off or groundwater drains.  

No person shall make connection of roof downspouts, interior and exterior foundation drains, 
areaway drains, sump pumps or other sources of surface runoff or groundwater to a building sewer or 
building drain which in turn is connected directly or indirectly to a public sanitary sewer.  

(Code 1965, § 30-73; Code 1987, § 28-138) 

Sec. 42-356. - Excavations.  

All excavations for building sewer installation shall be adequately guarded with barricades to protect 
the public from hazard. Streets, sidewalks, parkways and other public property disturbed in the course of 
the work shall be restored in a manner satisfactory to the City.  

(Code 1965, § 30-76; Code 1987, § 28-139) 

Sec. 42-357. - Costs and indemnification of City.  

All costs and expense incident to the installation and connection of the building sewer shall be borne 
by the owner. The owner shall indemnify the City from any loss or damage that may directly or indirectly 
be occasioned by the installation of the building sewer. No claim shall be allowed to any person who is 
connected to any public sewer against the City by reason of the bursting or collapsing of any building 
sewer or building sewer connection or caused by the blockage of any building sewer or by reason of the 
flow of the building sewer backing up into the building sewer or structure which is connected to the 
public sewer.  

358

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 13 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(Code 1965, § 30-68; Code 1987, § 28-140) 

Secs. 42-358—42-382. - Reserved.  

Sec. 42-386. - Special agreements.  

No statement contained in this division shall be construed as preventing any special agreement or 
arrangement between the City and any industrial concern whereby an industrial waste of unusual strength 
or character may be accepted by the City for treatment, subject to payment therefor by the industrial 
concern.   

 

DIVISION 4. - DISCHARGE REGULATIONS  

 

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any stormwater, surface water, groundwater, 
roof run-off, subsurface drainage, uncontaminated cooling water or unpolluted industrial process waters 
to any sanitary sewer. Stormwater and all other unpolluted drainage shall be discharged to such sewers as 
are specifically designated as combined sewers or storm sewers or to a natural outlet approved by the 
enforcement officer. Industrial cooling water or unpolluted process waters may be discharged, on 
approval of the building inspector, to a storm sewer, combined sewer or natural outlet.  

(Code 1965, §§ 30-77, 30-78; Code 1987, § 28-156) 

Sec. 42-380. - Discharge of certain waters and wastes prohibited.  

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following described waters or wastes 
to any public sewers:  

(1)  Any gasoline, benzene, naphtha, fuel oil or other flammable or explosive liquid, solid or gas.  

(2)  Any waters or wastes containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids or gases in sufficient 
quantity, either singly or by interaction with other wastes, to injure or interfere with any sewage 
treatment process, constitute a hazard to humans or animals, create a public nuisance or create 
any hazard in the receiving waters of the sewage treatment plant, including, but not limited to, 
cyanides in excess of two milligrams per liter as CN in the wastes as discharged to the public 
sewer.  

(3)  Solid or viscous substances in quantities or of such size capable of causing obstruction to the 
flow in sewers or other interference with the proper operation of the sewage works, such as, but 
not limited to, ashes, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags, feathers, tar, 
plastics, wood, unground garbage, whole blood, paunch manure, hair and fleshings, entrails and 
paper dishes, cups, milk containers, etc., either whole or ground by garbage grinders.  

(Code 1965, § 30-79; Code 1987, § 28-157) 

Sec. 42-381. - Certain discharges subject to approval.  

359

#12.

Kim Cole
From original ordinance. Recommend deleting so that exceptions cannot be made.

Kim Cole
This section is covered below in 42-417.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 14 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged the following described substances, materials, 
waters or wastes if it appears likely, in the opinion of the enforcement officer, that such wastes can harm 
either the sewers, sewage treatment process or equipment, have an adverse effect on the receiving stream 
or can otherwise endanger life, limb, public property or constitute a nuisance. In forming his opinion as to 
the acceptability of these wastes, the enforcement officer will give consideration to such factors as the 
quantities of subject wastes in relation to flows and velocities in the sewers, materials of construction of 
the sewers, nature of the sewage treatment process, capacityCity of the sewage treatment plant, degree of 
treatability of wastes in the sewage treatment plant and other pertinent factors. The substances prohibited 
are:  

(1)  Any water or waste containing fats, wax, grease or oils, whether emulsified or not, in excess of 
100 milligrams per liter or containing substances which may solidify or become viscous at 
temperatures between 32 and 150 degrees Fahrenheit (0 to 65 degrees Centigrade).  

(2)  Any garbage that has not been properly shredded. The installation and operation of any 
garbage grinder equipped with a motor of three-fourths horsepower (0.76 horsepower metric) or 
greater, shall be subject to the review and approval of the enforcement officer.  

(3)  Any waters or wastes containing strong acid iron pickling wastes, or concentrated plating 
solutions whether neutralized or not.  

(4)  Any waters or wastes containing iron, chromium, copper, zinc, cadmium and similar 
objectionable or toxic substances; or wastes exerting an excessive chlorine requirement, to such 
degree that any such material received in the composite sewage at the sewage treatment works 
exceeds the limits established by the enforcement officer for such materials.  

(5)  Any radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life or concentration as may exceed limits 
established by the enforcement officer in compliance with applicable state or federal 
regulations.  

(6)  Materials which exert or cause:  

a.  Unusual concentrations of inert suspended solids, such as, but not limited to, Fullers' earth, 
lime slurries and lime residues, or of dissolved solids, such as, but not limited to, sodium 
chloride and sodium sulfate.  

b.  Excessive discoloration, such as, but not limited to, dye wastes and vegetable tanning 
solutions.  

c.  Usual B.O.D., chemical oxygen demand, or chlorine requirements in such quantities as to 
constitute a significant load on the sewage treatment works.  

(7)  Any water or wastes having:  

a.  A five-day biochemical oxygen demand greater than 300 parts per million by weight;  

b.  More than 350 parts per million by weight of suspended solids;  

c.  An average daily flow greater than two percent of the average sewage flow of the cityCity; 
or  

d.  A pH below 6.5 or greater than 9.0.  

(Code 1965, §§ 30-80, 30-95; Code 1987, § 28-158) 

360

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 15 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

Sec. 42-382. - Authority to require pretreatment.  

(a)  If any waters or wastes are discharged or are proposed to be discharged to the public sewers, which 
waters or wastes contain the substances or possess the characteristics enumerated in this division, 
and which in the judgment of the enforcement officer may have a deleterious effect upon the sewage 
works, processes, equipment or receiving waters or which otherwise create a hazard to life or 
constitute a public nuisance, the enforcement officer may take any or all following actions:  

(1)  Reject the wastes.  

(2)  Require pretreatment to an acceptable condition for discharge to the public sewers.  

(3)  Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge.  

(4)  Require payment to cover the added cost of handling and treating the wastes not covered by 
existing taxes or sewer charges under the provisions of this division.  

(b)  If the enforcement officer permits the pretreatment or equalization of waste flows, the design and 
installation of the plants and equipment shall be subject to the review and approval of the 
enforcement officer, and subject to the requirements of all applicable codes, ordinances and laws.  

(c)  If, in the opinion of the officers and employees of the cityCity, before wastes described in section 
42-381(7) are deposited in the cityCity sewer system, the owner of such water or wastes shall, at his 
own expense, provide such preliminary treatment of such waters and wastes necessary to accomplish 
the following before such waters or wastes are deposited in the cityCity sewer system:  

(1)  Reduce the biochemical oxygen demand to 300 parts per million by weight;  

(2)  Reduce the suspended solids to 350 parts per million by weight;  

(3)  Control the quantities and rates of discharge of such water or wastes; or  

(4)  Control the pH between 6.5 and 9.0.  

(Code 1965, §§ 30-81, 30-96; Code 1987, § 28-159) 

Sec. 42-383. - Pretreatment and flow-equalizing facilities.  

Where preliminary treatment or flow-equalizing facilities are provided for any waters or wastes, they 
shall be maintained continuously in satisfactory and effective operation by the owner at his expense. 
Plans, specifications and any other pertinent information relating to proposed preliminary treatment 
facilities shall be submitted for the approval of the cityCity, and no construction of such facilities shall be 
commenced until such approvals are obtained in writing.  

(Code 1965, § 30-83, 30-97; Code 1987, § 28-160) 

Sec. 42-384. - Control manholes.  

When required by the enforcement officer, the owner of any property serviced by a building sewer 
carrying industrial wastes shall install a suitable control manhole together with such necessary meters and 
other appurtenances in the building sewer to facilitate observation, sampling and measurement of the 
wastes. Such manhole, when required, shall be accessibly and safely located, and shall be constructed in 

361

#12.

Kimberly A. Cole
This is covered in 42-449 and 42-450.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 16 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

accordance with plans approved by the enforcement officer. The manhole shall be installed by the owner 
at his expense and shall be maintained by him to be safe and accessible at all times.  

Secs. 42-385 – 42-397. – Reserved. 

DIVISION 5. - PRETREATMENT OF CERTAIN WASTEWATER DISCHARGES 

Subdivision I. – In General  

Sec. 42-398. - Purpose and policy.  

(a)  This division sets forth uniform requirements for Users of the wastewater collection and publicly 
owned treatment works (POTW) for the City and enables the City to comply with all state and 
federal laws including the Clean Water Act (33 USC 1251 et seq.), and the General Pretreatment 
Regulations (40 CFR 403). The objectives of this division are:  

(1)  To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the POTW that will interfere with the operation 
of the POTW;  

(2)  To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the POTW which will pass through the POTW, 
inadequately treated, into receiving waters of otherwise be incompatible with the POTW;  

(3)  To ensure that the quality of the wastewater treatment plant sludge is maintained at a level 
which allows its use and disposal in compliance with applicable statutes and regulations;  

(4)  To protect POTW personnel who may be affected by wastewater and sludge in the course of 
their employment and to protect the general public;  

(5)  To improve the opportunity to recycle and reclaim wastewater and sludge from the POTW;  

(6)  To provide for fees for the equitable distribution of the cost of operation, maintenance and 
improvement of the POTW; and  

(7)  To enable the City to comply with its NPDES permit conditions, sludge use and disposal 
requirements and any other federal or state laws to which the POTW is subject.  

(b)   This division shall apply to all Users of the POTW. This division authorizes the issuance of 
wastewater discharge permits; authorizes monitoring, compliance and enforcement activities; 
establishes administrative review procedures; requires industrial User reporting; and provides for the 
setting of fees for the equitable distribution of costs resulting from the program established herein.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 1.1, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-399 – 42-415. – Reserved. 

Subdivision II. - General Sewer Use Requirements  

Sec. 42-416. - Prohibited discharge standards.  

(a) General Prohibitions. No User shall introduce or cause to be introduced into the POTW any pollutant 
or wastewater which causes pass through or interference. These general prohibitions apply to all 
industrial Users of the POTW whether or not they are subject to categorical pretreatment standards 
or any other national, state or local pretreatment standards or requirement.  

362

#12.

Kimberly A. Cole
Incorporate this with the other part of the code for grease and oil interceptors.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 17 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(b) Specific Prohibitions. Furthermore, no industrial User may introduce or cause to be introduced into 
the POTW the following pollutants, substances, or wastewater:  

(1)  Pollutants which create a fire or explosive hazard in the municipal wastewater collection and 
POTW, including, but not limited to, wastestreams with a closed-cup flashpoint of less than 140 
degrees Fahrenheit (60 degrees Celsius) using the test methods specified in 40 CFR 261.21.  

(2)  Any wastewater having a pH less than 6.0 or more than 11, or otherwise causing corrosive 
structural damage to the POTW or equipment, or endangering City personnel.  

(3) Solid or viscous substances in amounts which will cause obstruction of the flow in the POTW 
resulting in interference, but in no case solids greater than three (3) inches in any dimension.  

(4)  Any wastewater containing pollutants, including oxygen demanding pollutants (BOD, etc.), 
released in a discharge at a flow rate or pollutant concentration which, either singly or by 
interaction with other pollutants, will cause interference with either the POTW; or any 
wastewater treatment or sludge process, or which will constitute a hazard to humans or animals.  

(5)  Any wastewater having a temperature greater than 104 degrees Fahrenheit (40 degrees Celsius), 
or which will inhibit biological activity in the treatment plant resulting in interference.  

(6) Petroleum oil, nonbiodegradable cutting oil or products of mineral oil origin, in amounts that 
will cause interference or pass through.  

(7)  Any pollutants which result in the presence of toxic gases, vapors, or fumes within the POTW 
in a quantity that may cause acute worker health and safety problems.  

(8)  Any trucked or hauled pollutants, except at discharge points designated by the City in 
accordance with section 42-454.  

(9)  Any noxious or malodorous liquids, gases, solids, or other wastewater which, either singly or by 
interaction with other wastes, are sufficient to create a public nuisance, a hazard to life, or to 
prevent entry into the sewers for maintenance and repair.  

(10) Any wastewater which imparts color which cannot be removed by the treatment process, such 
as, but not limited to, dye wastes and vegetable tanning solutions, which consequently imparts 
color to the treatment plant's effluent thereby violating the City's NPDES permit. Color (in 
combination with turbidity) shall not cause the treatment plant effluent to reduce the depth of 
the compensation point for photosynthetic activity by more than ten percent from the 
seasonably established norm for aquatic life.  

(11) Any wastewater containing any radioactive wastes or isotopes except as specifically approved 
by the Director in compliance with applicable state or federal regulations.  

(12) Stormwater, surface water, groundwater, artesian well water, roof runoff, subsurface drainage, 
swimming pool drainage, condensate, deionized water, noncontact cooling water, and 
unpolluted industrial wastewater, unless specifically authorized by the Director.  

(13) Any sludges, screenings, or other residues from the pretreatment of industrial wastes.  

(14) Any medical wastes, except as specifically authorized by the Director in a wastewater discharge 
permit.  

(15) Any wastewater causing the treatment plant's effluent to fail a toxicity test.  

(16) Any wastes containing detergents, surface active agents, or other substances which may cause 
excessive foaming in the POTW.  

363

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 18 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(17) Any discharge of fats, oils, or greases of animal or vegetable origin is limited to 100 mg/l.  

(18)  At no time shall two readings on an explosion hazard meter at the point of discharge into the 
POTW, or at any point in the POTW, be more than five percent nor any single reading over ten 
percent of the lower explosive limit (LEL) of the meter. 

(b)  Wastes prohibited by this section shall not be processed or stored in such a manner that they could be 
discharged to the POTW. All floor drains located in process or materials storage areas must 
discharge to the industrial User's pretreatment facility before connecting with the POTW.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 2.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-417. -National categorical pretreatment standards.  

Users must comply with the categorical Pretreatment Standards found at 40 CFR Chapter I, 
Subchapter N, Parts 405–471.  

(a) Where a categorical Pretreatment Standard is expressed only in terms of either the mass or the 
concentration of a pollutant in wastewater, the Director may impose equivalent concentration or mass 
limits in accordance with Section 42-417(e) and 42-417(f).  

(b) When the limits in a categorical Pretreatment Standard are expressed only in terms of mass of 
pollutant per unit of production, the Director may convert the limits to equivalent limitations 
expressed either as mass of pollutant discharged per day or effluent concentration for purposes of 
calculating effluent limitations applicable to individual Industrial Users.  

(c) When wastewater subject to a categorical Pretreatment Standard is mixed with wastewater not 
regulated by the same Standard, the Director shall impose an alternate limit in accordance with 40 
CFR 403.6(e). 

(d) A CIU may obtain a net/gross adjustment to a categorical Pretreatment Standard in accordance with 
the following paragraphs of this Section.  

(1)     Categorical Pretreatment Standards may be adjusted to reflect the presence of pollutants in the 
Industrial User’s intake water in accordance with this Section. Any Industrial User wishing to 
obtain credit for intake pollutants must make application to the City. Upon request of the 
Industrial User, the applicable Standard will be calculated on a “net” basis (i.e., adjusted to 
reflect credit for pollutants in the intake water) if the requirements of paragraph (2) of this 
Section are met. 

(2)    Criteria. 

a. Either (i) The applicable categorical Pretreatment Standards contained in 40 CFR 
subchapter N specifically provide that they shall be applied on a net basis; or (ii) The 
Industrial User demonstrates that the control system it proposes or uses to meet applicable 
categorical Pretreatment Standards would, if properly installed and operated, meet the 
Standards in the absence of pollutants in the intake waters. 

b. Credit for generic pollutants such as biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), total suspended 
solids (TSS), and oil and grease should not be granted unless the Industrial User 
demonstrates that the constituents of the generic measure in the User’s effluent are 

364

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 19 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

substantially similar to the constituents of the generic measure in the intake water or unless 
appropriate additional limits are placed on process water pollutants either at the outfall or 
elsewhere. 

c. Credit shall be granted only to the extent necessary to meet the applicable categorical 
Pretreatment Standard(s), up to a maximum value equal to the influent value. Additional 
monitoring may be necessary to determine eligibility for credits and compliance with 
Standard(s) adjusted under this Section. 

d. Credit shall be granted only if the User demonstrates that the intake water is drawn from 
the same body of water as that into which the POTW discharges. The [City] may waive this 
requirement if it finds that no environmental degradation will result. 

(e) When a categorical Pretreatment Standard is expressed only in terms of pollutant concentrations, an 
Industrial User may request that the City convert the limits to equivalent mass limits. The 
determination to convert concentration limits to mass limits is within the discretion of the Director.  
The City may establish equivalent mass limits only if the Industrial User meets all the conditions set 
forth in Sections 42-417(e)(1)a through 42-417(e)(1)e below. 

(1)  To be eligible for equivalent mass limits, the Industrial User must: 

a. Employ, or demonstrate that it will employ, water conservation methods and technologies 
that substantially reduce water use during the term of its individual wastewater discharge 
permit; 

b. Currently use control and treatment technologies adequate to achieve compliance with the 
applicable categorical Pretreatment Standard, and not have used dilution as a substitute for 
treatment; 

c. Provide sufficient information to establish the facility’s actual average daily flow rate for 
all wastestreams, based on data from a continuous effluent flow monitoring device, as well 
as the facility’s long-term average production rate. Both the actual average daily flow rate 
and the long-term average production rate must be representative of current operating 
conditions; 

d. Not have daily flow rates, production levels, or pollutant levels that vary so significantly 
that equivalent mass limits are not appropriate to control the Discharge; and 

e. Have consistently complied with all applicable categorical Pretreatment Standards during 
the period prior to the Industrial User’s request for equivalent mass limits.  

(2)  An Industrial User subject to equivalent mass limits must: 

a. Maintain and effectively operate control and treatment technologies adequate to achieve 
compliance with the equivalent mass limits; 

b. Continue to record the facility’s flow rates through the use of a continuous effluent flow 
monitoring device; 

c. Continue to record the facility’s production rates and notify the Director whenever 
production rates are expected to vary by more than 20 percent from its baseline production 
rates determined in paragraph 42-417(f)(1)c of this Section.  Upon notification of a revised 

365

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 20 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

production rate, the Director will reassess the equivalent mass limit and revise the limit as 
necessary to reflect changed conditions at the facility; and 

d. Continue to employ the same or comparable water conservation methods and technologies 
as those implemented pursuant to paragraphs 42-417(e)(1)a of this Section so long as it 
discharges under an equivalent mass limit. 

(3)  When developing equivalent mass limits, the Director: 

a. Will calculate the equivalent mass limit by multiplying the actual average daily flow rate of 
the regulated process(es) of the Industrial User by the concentration-based Daily Maximum 
and Monthly Average Standard for the applicable categorical Pretreatment Standard and 
the appropriate unit conversion factor; 

b. Upon notification of a revised production rate, will reassess the equivalent mass limit and 
recalculate the limit as necessary to reflect changed conditions at the facility; and 

c. May retain the same equivalent mass limit in subsequent individual wastewater discharger 
permit terms if the Industrial User’s actual average daily flow rate was reduced solely as a 
result of the implementation of water conservation methods and technologies, and the 
actual average daily flow rates used in the original calculation of the equivalent mass limit 
were not based on the use of dilution as a substitute for treatment pursuant to Section 42-
421.  The Industrial User must also be in compliance with Section 42-756 regarding the 
prohibition of bypass. 

(f) The Director may convert the mass limits of the categorical Pretreatment Standards of 40 CFR Parts 
414, 419, and 455 to concentration limits for purposes of calculating limitations applicable to 
individual Industrial Users.  The conversion is at the discretion of the Director.   

(g) Once included in its permit, the Industrial User must comply with the equivalent limitations 
developed in this Section 42-417 in lieu of the promulgated categorical Standards from which the 
equivalent limitations were derived.   

(h) Many categorical Pretreatment Standards specify one limit for calculating maximum daily discharge 
limitations and a second limit for calculating maximum Monthly Average, or 4-day average, 
limitations. Where such Standards are being applied, the same production or flow figure shall be used 
in calculating both the average and the maximum equivalent limitation.  

(i) Any Industrial User operating under a permit incorporating equivalent mass or concentration limits 
calculated from a production-based Standard shall notify the Director within two (2) business days 
after the User has a reasonable basis to know that the production level will significantly change 
within the next calendar month. Any User not notifying the Director of such anticipated change will 
be required to meet the mass or concentration limits in its permit that were based on the original 
estimate of the long term average production rate.  

 

366

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 21 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 2.2, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-418. - State Pretreatment Standards 

Users must comply with Missouri Pretreatment Standards codified at 10 CSR 20-6.100.  

Sec. 42-419. – Local Limits.  

(a) The Director is authorized to establish Local Limits pursuant to 40 CFR 403.5(c). Refer to 42-
417(e) for established maximum allowable industrial loadings (reserved). 

(b) The Director may develop Best Management Practices (BMPs), by ordinance or in individual 
wastewater discharge permits to implement Local Limits and the requirements of Section 42-416. 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 2.3, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-420. - City's right of revision.  

The City reserves the right to establish, by ordinance or in wastewater discharge permits, more 
stringent standards or requirements on discharges to the POTW consistent with the purpose of this 
ordinance.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 2.4, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-421. - Special agreement.  

The cityCity reserves the right to enter into special agreements with industrial userUsers setting out 
special terms under which they may discharge to the POTW. In no case will a special agreement waive 
compliance with a pretreatment standard or requirement. However, the industrial userUser may request a 
net gross adjustment to a categorical standard in accordance with 40 CFR 403.15. They may also request 
a variance from the categorical pretreatment standard from EPA. Such a request will be approved only if 
the industrial userUser can prove that factors relating to its discharge are fundamentally different from the 
factors considered by EPA when establishing that pretreatment standard. An industrial userUser 
requesting a fundamentally different factor variance must comply with the procedural and substantive 
provisions in 40 CFR 403.13.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 2.5, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-421. - Dilution.  

No User shall ever increase the use of process water, or in any way attempt to dilute a discharge, as a 
partial or complete substitute for adequate treatment to achieve compliance with a discharge limitation 
unless expressly authorized by an applicable pretreatment standard or requirement. The Director may 
impose mass limitations on Users which are using dilution to meet applicable pretreatment standards or 
requirements, or in other cases when the imposition of mass limitations is appropriate.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 2.6, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-422—42-448. - Reserved. 

367

#12.

Kim Cole
Reference Missouri Pretreatment Standards instead of an individual categorical standard so that any standard is covered depending on current/future IUs in Moberly

Kim Cole
This section is not part of the EPA model language. I do not recommend “special” agreements beyond the variances allowed in 403.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 22 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

Subdivision III. - Pretreatment of Wastewater  

Sec. 42-449. - Pretreatment facilities.  

Users shall provide necessary wastewater treatment as required to comply with this subdivision and 
shall achieve compliance with all categorical pretreatment standards, local limits, and the prohibitions set 
out in section 42-416 within the time limitations specified by the EPA, the state, or the Director, 
whichever is more stringent. Any facilities required to pretreat wastewater to a level acceptable to the 
City shall be provided, operated, and maintained at the industrial User's expense. Detailed plans showing 
the pretreatment facilities and operating procedures shall be submitted to the Director  for review, and 
shall be acceptable to the Director  before construction of the facility. The review of such plans and 
operating procedures shall in no way relieve the User from the responsibility of modifying the facilities as 
necessary to produce an acceptable discharge to the City under the provisions of this ordinance.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 3.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-450. - Additional pretreatment measures.  

(a) Whenever deemed necessary, the Director or designee may require Users to restrict their discharge 
during peak flow periods, designate that certain wastewater be discharged only into specific sewers, 
relocate and/or consolidate points of discharge, separate sewage waste streams from industrial waste 
streams, and such other conditions as may be necessary to protect the POTW and determine the 
User’s compliance with the requirements of this ordinance. 

(b) The Director may require any person discharging into the POTW to install and maintain, on their 
property and at their expense, a suitable storage and flow-control facility to ensure equalization of 
flow.  An individual wastewater discharge permit may be issued solely for flow equalization. 

(c) Grease, oil, and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the Director or designee, 
they are necessary for the proper handling of wastewater containing  excessive amounts of grease 
and oil, or sand; except that such interceptors shall not be required for residential Users. All 
interception units shall be of a type and capacity approved by the Director or designee, Shall comply 
with the following City ordinance: Chapter 42; Division 4: Discharge Regulations; Section 42-385 
and shall be so located to be easily accessible for cleaning and inspection. Such interceptors shall be 
inspected, cleaned, and repaired by the User at their expense.  

(d) Industrial Users with the potential to discharge flammable substances may be required to install and 
maintain an approved combustible gas detection meter.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 3.2, 6-7-1993)  

Sec. 42-451. - Grease, oil and sand interceptors. (Relocated section) 

(a)  Grease, oil and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the enforcement officer, 
they are necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes containing grease in excessive amounts or 
any flammable wastes, sand or other harmful ingredients; except that such interceptors shall not be 
required for private living quarters or dwelling units. All interceptors shall be located as to be readily 
and easily accessible for cleaning and inspection.  

368

#12.



Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

Page 23 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(b) All grease traps shall be cleaned out and inspected annually with the inspection to be documented to
the Director on an approved form. The inspections may be completed by the company providing the
cleaning and removal of grease from the grease trap, or in the case of small, under-sink grease traps,
the owner or manager of the facility may provide the certification.

(c) Facilities required to have a grease trap shall maintain records of the cleaning and maintenance of all
grease traps. Such records shall be kept at the location of the facility required to have a grease trap
for a period of three years.

(d) Failure to provide certification of the maintenance requirements shall result in a $100.00 to
$1,000.00 fine.

(e) If a City sewer backs up due to grease in the main, the facilities connected to that portion of the
collection system shall be subject to inspection including a review of the cleaning records.

(f) Any facilities that have not cleaned the grease trap properly, or the grease trap is not working
properly, may be held liable for any damage caused by the sewer back up, even if the damage is to
another facility or property.

(g) Any existing facility that has an under-sink grease trap that has repeated problems with discharges of
grease into the City sewer main shall be required to install a larger grease trap. City inspectors shall
be allowed access to the grease trap for the purposes of inspection during normal business hours.

(h) Sizing and installation of grease traps shall meet the requirements of the City's current building and
construction codes.

(Code 1965, § 30-82; Code 1987, § 28-162; Ord. No. 7597, § 1, 6-16-2003)

Sec. 42-452. - Accidental discharge/slug control plans.  

 The Director shall evaluate whether each SIU needs an accidental discharge/slug discharge control 
plan or other action to control Slug Discharges. The Director may require any User to develop, submit for 
approval, and implement such a plan or take such other action that may be necessary to control Slug 
Discharges.  Alternatively, the Director may develop such a plan for any User.  An accidental 
discharge/slug discharge control plan shall address, at a minimum, the following:  

(a) Description of discharge practices, including nonroutine batch discharges.

(b) Description of stored chemicals.

(c) Procedures for immediately notifying the POTW of any accidental or slug discharge. Such
notification must also be given for any discharge which would violate any of the prohibited
discharges in section 42-416.

(d) Procedures to prevent adverse impact from any accidental or slug discharge. Such procedures include,
but are not limited to, inspection and maintenance of storage areas, handling and transfer of materials,
loading and unloading operations, control of plant site run-off, worker training, building of
containment structures or equipment, measures for containing toxic organic pollutants (including
solvents), or measures and equipment for emergency response.

(Ord. No. 6894, § 3.3, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-453. - Tenant responsibility. 

369

#12.

Kim Cole
Model language provides additional flexibility.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 24 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

Where an owner of property leases premises to any other person as a tenant, under any rental or lease 
agreement, if either the owner or the tenant is an industrial User, either or both may be held responsible 
for compliance with the provisions of this subdivision.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 3.4, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-454. - Hauled wastewater.  

(a)  Septic tank waste may be accepted into the POTW at a designated receiving structure within the 
treatment plant area, and at such times as are established by the Director, provided such wastes do 
not violate section 42-416 or any other requirements established or adopted by the City. The Director 
may require septic tank waste haulers to obtain individual wastewater discharge permits.  

(b)  The discharge of hauled industrial wastes as industrial septage requires prior approval and a 
wastewater discharge permit from the City. The Director shall have authority to prohibit the disposal 
of such wastes, if such disposal would interfere with the treatment plant operation. Waste haulers are 
subject to all other sections of this subdivision.  

(c)  Industrial waste haulers may discharge loads only at locations designated by the Director. No load 
may be discharged without prior consent. Samples may be collected of each hauled load to ensure 
compliance with applicable standards. The Director may require the industrial waste hauler to 
provide a waste analysis of any load prior to discharge.  

(d)  Industrial waste haulers must provide a waste-tracking form for every load. This form shall include, 
at a minimum, the name and address of the industrial waste hauler, permit number, truck 
identification, names and addresses of sources of waste, and volume and characteristics of waste. 
The form shall identify the type of industry, known or suspected waste constituents, and whether any 
wastes are RCRA hazardous wastes.  

(e)  Fees for dumping septage will be established as part of the industrial User fee system as authorized 
in section 42-4439.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 3.5, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-455—42-470. - Reserved.  

 

Subdivision IV. – Individual Wastewater Discharge Permits  

Sec. 42-471. - Wastewater analysis.  

When requested by the Public Utilities Director, all Users must submit information on the nature and 
characteristics of their wastewater by completing a wastewater survey prior to commencing their 
discharge within sixty (60) days of the request. The Director is authorized to prepare a form for this 
purpose and may periodically require industrial Users to update the survey. Failure to complete this 
survey shall be reasonable grounds for terminating service to the User and shall be considered a violation 
of this subdivision.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.1, 6-7-1993) 

370

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 25 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

Sec. 42-472. – Individual wastewater discharge permit requirement.  

(a)  It shall be unlawful for any Significant Industrial User to discharge wastewater in the City's POTW 
without first obtaining a wastewater discharge permit from the Director, except that a Significant 
Industrial User that has filed a timely application pursuant to Section 42-473 of this ordinance may 
continue to discharge for the time period specified therein  

(b)  The Director may require other industrial Users, including liquid waste haulers, to obtain 
wastewater discharge permits as necessary to carry out the purposes of this subdivision.  

(c)  Any violation of the terms and conditions of a wastewater discharge permit shall be deemed a 
violation of this subdivision and subjects the wastewater discharge permittee to the sanctions set out 
in subdivisions X through XII of this division. Obtaining a wastewater discharge permit does not 
relieve a permittee of its obligation to comply with all federal and state pretreatment standards or 
requirements or with any other requirements of federal, state and local law. 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.2, 6-7-1993)  

Sec. 42-473. – Individual wastewater discharge permitting: existing connections.  

Any User which discharges industrial waste into the POTW prior to the effective date of the 
ordinance from which this subdivision is derived and who wishes to continue such discharges in the 
future, shall, within 90 days after the date, apply to the City for an individual wastewater discharge permit 
in accordance with section 42-475, and shall not cause or allow discharges to the POTW to continue after 
180 days of the effective date of the ordinance from which this subdivision is derived except in 
accordance with a wastewater discharge permit issued by the Director.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.3, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-474. – Individual wastewater discharge permitting: new connections.  

Any User proposing to begin or recommence discharging industrial wastes into the POTW must 
obtain an individual wastewater discharge permit prior to the beginning or recommencing of such 
discharge. An application for this individual wastewater discharge permit, in accordance with 42-475 of 
this ordinance, must be filed at least 90 days prior to the date upon which any discharge will begin.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.4, 6-7-1993)

Sec. 42-475. - Wastewater discharge permit application contents.  

(a)  In order to be considered for a wastewater discharge permit, all industrial Users required to have an 
individual wastewater discharge permit must submit a permit application. The Director may require 
Users to submit all or some of the following information as part of the permit application:  

(1) Identifying Information. 

a. The name and address of the facility, including the name of the operator and owner.  

b. Contact information, description of activities, facilities, and plant production processes on 
the premises; 

371

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 26 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(2) Environmental Permits. A list of any environmental control permits held by or for the facility. 

(3) Description of Operations. 

a. A brief description of the nature, average rate of production (including each product 
produced by type, amount, processes, and rate of production), and standard industrial 
classifications of the operation(s) carried out by such User. This description should include 
a schematic process diagram, which indicates points of discharge to the POTW from the 
regulated processes.  

b. Types of wastes generated, and a list of all raw materials and chemicals used or stored at 
the facility which are, or could accidentally or intentionally be, discharged to the POTW; 

c. Number and type of employees, hours of operation, and proposed or actual hours of 
operation; 

d. Type and amount of raw materials processed (average and maximum per day); 

e. Site plans, floor plans, mechanical and plumbing plans, and details to show all sewers, floor 
drains, and appurtenances by size, location, and elevation, and all points of discharge; 

(4) Time and duration of discharges; 

(5) The location for monitoring all wastes covered by the permit; 

(6) Flow Measurement.  Information showing the measured average daily and maximum daily 
flow, in gallons per day, to the POTW from regulated process streams and other streams, as 
necessary, to allow use of the combined wastestream formula set out in 42-417(c) (40 CFR 
403.6(e)). 

(7) Measurement of Pollutants. 

a. The categorical Pretreatment Standards applicable to each regulated process and any new 
categorically regulated processes for Existing Sources. 

b. The results of sampling and analysis identifying the nature and concentration, and/or mass, 
where required by the Standard or by the Director, of regulated pollutants in the discharge 
from each regulated process. 

c. Instantaneous, daily Maximum, and long-term average concentrations, or mass, where 
required, shall be reported.   

d. The sample shall be representative of daily operations and shall be analyzed in accordance 
with procedures set out in section 42-548 of this ordinance.  Where the Standard requires 
compliance with a BMP or pollution prevention alternative, the User shall submit 
documentation as required by the Director or the applicable Standards to determine 
compliance with the Standard. 

e. Sampling must be performed in accordance with procedures set out in section 42-549 of 
this ordinance. 

(8)  Any requests for a monitoring waiver (or a renewal of an approved monitoring waiver) for a 
pollutant neither present nor expected to be present in the discharge based on section 42-542 
[40 CFR 403.12(e)(2)].   

372

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 27 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(9)  Any other information as may be deemed necessary by the Director to evaluate the permit 
application.  

(b) Incomplete or inaccurate applications will not be processed and will be returned to the User for 
revision. 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.6, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-476. - Application signatories and certification.  

(a)   All wastewater discharge permit applications, User reports and certification statements must be 
signed by an Authorized Representative of the User and contain the certification statement in 
section 42-553(a).  

(b) If the designation of an Authorized Representative is no longer accurate because a different 
individual or position has responsibility for the overall operation of the facility or overall 
responsibility for environmental matters for the company, a new written authorization satisfying the 
requirements of this section must be submitted to Director prior to or together with any reports to be 
signed by an Authorized Representative. 

(c) A facility determined to be a Non Significant Categorical Industrial User by the Director pursuant 
to 42-292 must annually submit the signed certification statement in 42-553(b). 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.7, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-477. - Wastewater discharge permit decisions.  

The Director will evaluate the date furnished by the industrial User and may require additional 
information. Within 60 days of receipt of a complete wastewater discharge permit application, the 
Director will determine whether or not to issue a wastewater discharge permit. If no determination is 
made within this time period, the application will be deemed denied. The Director may deny any 
application for a wastewater discharge permit.   

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.8, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-478—42-504. - Reserved. 

Subdivision V. – Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Issuance  

Sec. 42-505. - Wastewater discharge permit duration.  

Wastewater discharge permits shall be issued for a specified time period, not to exceed five (5) years 
from the effective date of the permit. A wastewater discharge permit may be issued for a period less than 
five years, at the discretion of the Director. Each wastewater discharge permit will include a specific date 
upon which it will expire.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 5.1, 6-7-1993) 

373

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 28 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

Sec. 42-506. - Wastewater discharge permit contents.  

An individual wastewater discharge permit shall include such conditions as are deemed reasonably 
necessary by the Director to prevent pass through or interference, protect the quality of the water body 
receiving the treatment plant's effluent, protect worker health and safety, facilitate sludge management 
and disposal, protect ambient air quality, and protect against damage to the POTW.  

(a)  An individual wastewater discharge permit must contain the following conditions:  

(1)    A statement that indicates wastewater discharge permit duration, which in no event shall exceed 
five years, issuance date, expiration date and effective date.  

(2)     A statement that the wastewater discharge permit is nontransferable without prior notification 
to and approval from the City in accordance with section 42-509, and provisions for furnishing 
the new owner or operator with a copy of the existing wastewater discharge permit.  

(3) Effluent limits, including Best Management Practices, applicable to the User based on 
applicable standards in federal, state, and local law.  

(4) Self-monitoring, sampling, reporting, notification, and record keeping requirements. These 
requirements shall include an identification of pollutants to be monitored, sampling location, 
sampling frequency, and sample type based on federal, state, and local law.  

(5) The process for seeking a waiver from monitoring for a pollutant neither present nor expected 
to be present in the Discharge in accordance with Section 42-542(b). 

(6) Statement of applicable civil, criminal, and administrative penalties for violation of 
pretreatment standards and requirements and any applicable compliance schedule. Such 
schedule may not extend the time for compliance beyond that required by applicable federal, 
state, or local law.  

(7) Requirements to control Slug Discharge, if determined by the Director to be necessary. 

(8) Any grant of the monitoring waiver by the Director (section 42-542 (b)) must be included as a 
condition in the User’s permit. 

(b) Wastewater discharge permits may contain, but need not be limited to, the following:  

(1)  Limits on the average or maximum rate of discharge, time of discharge, or requirements for 
flow regulation and equalization.  

(2) Limits on the instantaneous, daily and monthly average or maximum concentration, mass, or 
other measure of identified wastewater pollutants or properties.  

(3) Requirements for the installation of pretreatment technology, pollution control, or construction 
of appropriate containment devices, designed to reduce, eliminate, or prevent the introduction 
of pollutants into the treatment works.  

(4) Development and implementation of spill control plans or other special conditions including 
management practices necessary to adequately prevent accidental, unanticipated, or routine 
discharges.  

(5) Development and implementation of waste minimization plans to reduce the amount of 
pollutants discharged to the POTW.  

374

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 29 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(6) The unit charge or schedule of industrial User charges and fees for the management of the 
wastewater discharged to the POTW.  

(7) Requirements for installation and maintenance of inspection and sampling facilities and 
equipment.  

(8) A statement that compliance with the wastewater discharge permit does not relieve the 
permittee of responsibility for compliance with all applicable federal and state pretreatment 
standards, including those which become effective during the term of the wastewater discharge 
permit.  

(9) Other conditions as deemed appropriate by the Director to ensure compliance with this 
subdivision, and state and federal laws, rules, and regulations.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 5.2, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-507. - Wastewater discharge permit appeals.  

Any person, including the User, may petition the Director to reconsider the terms of a wastewater 
discharge permit within 30 days of its issuance.  

(a)  Failure to submit a timely petition for review shall be deemed to be a waiver of the administrative 
appeal.  

(b)  In its petition, the appealing party must indicate the wastewater discharge permit provisions objected 
to, the reasons for this objection, and the alternative condition, if any, it seeks to place in the 
wastewater discharge permit.  

(c)  The effectiveness of the wastewater discharge permit shall not be stayed pending the appeal.  

(d)  If the Director fails to act within 45 days, a request for reconsideration shall be deemed to be denied. 
Decisions not to reconsider a wastewater discharge permit, not to issue a wastewater discharge 
permit, or not to modify a wastewater discharge permit, shall be considered final administrative 
action for purposes of judicial review.  

(e)  Aggrieved parties seeking judicial review of the final administrative wastewater discharge permit 
decision must do so by filing a complaint with the 14th Judicial Circuit Court within the appropriate 
State Statute of Limitations.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 5.3, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-508. - Wastewater discharge permit modification.  

(a)  The Director may modify the wastewater discharge permit for good cause, including, but not 
limited to, the following:  

(1)  To incorporate any new or revised federal, state, or local pretreatment standards or 
requirements.  

(2)  To address significant alternations or additions to the industrial User's operation, processes, or 
wastewater volume or character since the time of wastewater discharge permit issuance.  

(3)  A change in the POTW that requires either a temporary or permanent reduction or elimination 
of the authorized discharge.  

375

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 30 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(4)  Information indicating that the permitted discharge poses a threat to the City's POTW, City 
personnel, or the receiving waters.  

(5)  Violation of any terms or conditions of the wastewater discharge permit.  

(6)  Misrepresentations or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater discharge 
permit application or in any required reporting.  

(7)  Revision of or a grant of variance from categorical pretreatment standards pursuant to 40 CFR 
403.13.  

(8)  To correct typographical or other errors in the wastewater discharge permit.  

(9)  To reflect a transfer of the facility ownership or operation to a new owner/operator where 
requested in accordance with section 42-509.  

(b)  The filing of a request by the permittee for a wastewater discharge permit modification does not 
stay any wastewater discharge permit condition.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 5.4, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-509. - Wastewater discharge permit transfer.  

(a)  Wastewater discharge permits may be reassigned or transferred to a new owner or operator only if 
the permittee gives at least 30 days advance notice to the Director and the Director approves the 
wastewater discharge permit transfer. The notice to the Director must include a written certification 
by the new owner or operator which:  

(1)  States that the new owner or operator has no immediate intent to change the facility's 
operations and processes.  

(2)  Identifies the specific date on which the transfer is to occur.  

(3)  Acknowledges full responsibility for complying with the existing wastewater discharge permit.  

(b)  Failure to provide advance notice of a transfer renders the wastewater discharge permit voidable on 
the date of facility transfer.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 5.5, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-510. - Wastewater discharge permit revocation.  

(a)  The Director may revoke an individual wastewater discharge permit for good cause, including but 
not limited to, the following reasons:  

(1)  Failure to notify the Director of significant changes to the wastewater prior to the changed 
discharge.  

(2)  Failure to provide prior notification to the City of changed condition pursuant to section 42-
543.  

(3)  Misrepresentation or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater discharge 
permit application.  

(4)  Falsifying self-monitoring reports and certification statements.  

376

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 31 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(5)  Tampering with monitoring equipment.  

(6)  Refusing to allow the Director timely access to the facility premises and records.  

(7)  Failure to meet effluent limitations.  

(8)  Failure to pay fines.  

(9)  Failure to pay sewer charges.  

(10)   Failure to meet compliance schedules.  

(11) Failure to complete a wastewater survey or the wastewater discharge permit application.  

(12)   Failure to provide advance notice of the transfer of a permitted facility.  

(13) Violation of any pretreatment standard or requirement, or any terms of the wastewater discharge 
permit or this subdivision.  

(b)  Wastewater discharge permits shall be voidable upon nonuse, cessation of operations, or transfer of 
business ownership. All wastewater discharge permits are void upon the issuance of a new 
wastewater discharge permit.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 5.6, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-511. - Wastewater discharge permit reissuance.  

A User shall apply for wastewater discharge permit reissuance by submitting a complete wastewater 
discharge permit application in accordance with section 42-475 a minimum of ninety (90) days prior to 
the expiration of the industrial User's existing wastewater discharge permit.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.4, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-512. – Regulation of Waste Received from Other Jurisdictions  

(a) If another municipality, or User located with another municipality, contributes all or a portion of its 
wastewater to the POTW, the POTW shall enter into an intermunicipal agreement with the 
contributing municipality. 

(b) Prior to entering into an agreement required by paragraph (a), above, the Director shall request the 
following information from the contributing municipality:  

(1)  A description of the quality and volume of the wastewater at the point where it enters the 
POTW.  

(2)  An inventory of all industrial Users discharging to the municipality.  

(3)  Such other information as may be required by the Director.  

(b)  An intermunicipal agreement, as required by paragraph (a), shall contain the following conditions:  

(1) A requirement for the contributing municipality to adopt a sewer use ordinance which is at 
least as stringent as this subdivision and local limits, including required Baseline Moinotiring 
Reports (BMRs) which are at least as stringent as those set out in section 42-420. The 
requirement shall specify that such ordinance and limits must be revised as necessary to reflect 
changes made to the City’s ordinance or Local Limits; 

377

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 32 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(2) A requirement for the contributing municipality to submit a revised industrial User inventory 
on at least an annual basis.  

(3)  A provision specifying which pretreatment implementation activities, including individual 
wastewater discharge permit issuance, inspection and sampling, and enforcement, will be 
conducted by the contributing municipality; which of these activities will be conducted by the 
Director; and which of these activities will be conducted jointly by the contributing 
municipality and the City 

(4)  A requirement for the contributing municipality to provide the City with access to all 
information that the municipal User obtains as part of its pretreatment activities.  

(5)  Limits on the nature, quality, and volume of the municipal User's wastewater at the point 
where it discharges to the POTW.  

(6) Requirements for monitoring the contributing municipality’s discharge.  

(7) A provision ensuring the Director access to the facilities of Users located within the 
contributing municipality’s jurisdictional boundaries for the purpose of inspection, sampling, 
and any other duties deemed necessary by the Director; and 

(8) A provision specifying remedies available for breach of the terms of the intermunicipal 
agreement. 

(c)  Violation of the terms and conditions of interjurisdictional agreement subjects the contributing 
municipality to the sanctions set out in subdivisions IX through XI of this division.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 5.8, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-513—42-538. - Reserved. 

Subdivision VI. - Reporting Requirements  

Sec. 42-539. - Baseline monitoring reports.  

(a)   Within either 180 days after the effective date of a categorical pretreatment standard, or the final 
administrative decision on a category determination under 40 CFR 403.6(a)(4), whichever is later, 
existing significant industrial Users subject to such categorical pretreatment standards, and currently 
discharging to or scheduled to discharge to the POTW, shall be required to submit to the Director a 
report which contains the information listed in subsection (b) of this section. At least ninety (90) 
days prior to commencement of their discharge, new sources, and sources that become industrial 
Users subsequent to the promulgation of an applicable categorical standard, shall be required to 
submit to the Director a report which contains the information listed in subsection (b) of this section. 
A new source shall also be required to report the method of pretreatment it intends to use to meet 
applicable pretreatment standards. A new source shall also give estimates of its anticipated flow and 
quantity of pollutants discharged.  

(b)   The User described above shall submit the information required by this section, including:  

(1)  All information required in sections 42-475(a)(1)a, 42-475(a)(2), 42-475(a)(3)a, and 42-
475(a)(6).  

(2)  Measurement of pollutants. 

378

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 33 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

b. The User shall provide the information required in section 42-475(a)(7) (a) through (d). 

c. The User shall take a minimum of one representative sample to compile that data necessary 
to comply with the requirements of this paragraph. 

d. Samples should be taken immediately downstream from pretreatment facilities if such exist 
or immediately downstream from the regulated process if no pretreatment exists. If other 
wastewaters are mixed with the regulated wastewater prior to pretreatment the User should 
measure the flows and concentrations necessary to allow use of the combined wastestream 
formula in 40 CFR 403.6(e) to evaluate compliance with the Pretreatment Standards. 
Where an alternate concentration or mass limit has been calculated in accordance with 40 
CFR 403.6(e) this adjusted limit along with supporting data shall be submitted to the 
Control Authority; 

e. Sampling and analysis shall be performed in accordance with section 42-549; 

f. The Public Utilities may allow the submission of a baseline report which utilizes only 
historical data so long as the data provides information sufficient to determine the need for 
industrial pretreatment measures; 

g. The baseline report shall indicate the time, date and place of sampling and methods of 
analysis, and shall certify that such sampling and analysis is representative of normal work 
cycles and expected pollutant Discharges to the POTW. 

(3)  Compliance Certification. A statement reviewed by the industrial User's Authorized 
Representative and certified by a qualified professional, indicating whether pretreatment 
standards are being met on a consistent basis, and, if not, whether additional operation and 
maintenance (O&M) or additional pretreatment is required to meet the pretreatment standards 
and requirements.  

(4)  Compliance schedule. If additional pretreatment or O&M will be required to meet the 
pretreatment standards; the shortest schedule by which the industrial User will provide such 
additional pretreatment or O&M. The completion date in this schedule shall not be later than 
the compliance date established for the applicable pretreatment standard. A compliance 
schedule pursuant to this section must meet the requirements set out in section 42-475.  

(5)  Certification of reports. All baseline monitoring reports must be signed and certified in 
accordance with section 42-476 of this ordinance and signed by an Authorized Representative 
as defined in section 42-292.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-540. - Compliance schedule progress report.  

The following conditions shall apply to the schedule required by section 42-539(d).  

(1) The schedule shall contain progress increments in the form of dates for the commencement and 
completion of major events leading to the construction and operation of additional pretreatment 
required for the User to meet the applicable pretreatment standards (such events include hiring an 
engineer, completing preliminary and final plans, executing contracts for major components, 
commencing and completing construction, beginning and conducting routine operation). 

(2) No increment referred to above shall exceed nine months. 

379

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 34 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(3) The industrial User shall submit a progress report to the Director no later than fourteen (14) days 
following each date in the schedule and the final date of compliance including, as a minimum, 
whether or not it complied with the increment of progress, the reason for any delay and, if 
appropriate, the steps being taken by the industrial User to return to the established schedule. 

(4) In no event shall more than nine months elapse between such progress reports to the Director.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.2, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-541. - Report on compliance with categorical pretreatment standard deadline.  

Within 90 days following the date for final compliance with applicable categorical pretreatment 
standards, or in the case of a new source following commencement of the introduction of wastewater into 
the POTW, any industrial User subject to such pretreatment standards and requirements shall submit to 
the Director a report containing the information described in section 42-475(a)(6), 42-475(a)(7) and 42-
539(b)(2). For industrial Users subject to equivalent mass or concentration limits established in 
accordance with the procedures in 40 CFR 403.6(c), this report shall contain a reasonable measure of the 
industrial User's long term production rate. For all other industrial Users subject to categorical 
pretreatment standards expressed in terms of allowable pollutant discharge per unit of production (or 
other measure of operation), this report shall include the industrial User's actual production during the 
appropriate sampling period. All compliance reports must be signed and certified in accordance with 
section 42-553. All sampling will be done in conformance with section 42-549. 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.3, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-542. - Periodic compliance reports.  

(a)  Any Significant Industrial User subject to a pretreatment standard shall, at a frequency determined 
by the Director but in no case less than twice per year (in June and December),or as otherwise 
required by the Director or his/her designee, submit a report indicating the nature and concentration 
of pollutants in the discharge which are limited by such pretreatment standards and the measured or 
estimated average and maximum daily flows for the reporting period. In cases where the 
pretreatment standard requires compliance with a Best Management Practice (BMP) or pollution 
prevention alternative, the User must submit documentation required by the Director or the 
pretreatment standard necessary to determine the compliance status of the User. 

(b)  The City may authorize an Industrial User subject to a categorical Pretreatment Standard to forego 
sampling of a pollutant regulated by a categorical Pretreatment Standard if the Industrial User has 
demonstrated through sampling and other technical factors that the pollutant is neither present nor 
expected to be present in the discharge, or is present only at background levels from intake water and 
without any increase in the pollutant due to activities of the Industrial User. [see 40 CFR 
403.12(e)(2)] This authorization is subject to the following conditions: 
 
(1) The waiver may be authorized where a pollutant is determined to be present solely due to 

sanitary wastewater discharged from the facility provided that the sanitary wastewater is not 
regulated by an applicable categorical Standard and otherwise includes no process wastewater. 

 
(2) The monitoring waiver is valid only for the duration of the effective period of the individual 

wastewater discharge permit, but in no case longer than 5 years.  The User must submit a new 

380

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 35 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

request for the waiver before the waiver can be granted for each subsequent individual 
wastewater discharge permit. See section 42-475(a)(8). 
 

(3) In making a demonstration that a pollutant is not present, the User must provide data from at 
least one sampling of the facility’s process wastewater prior to any treatment present at the 
facility that is representative of all wastewater from all processes.   
 

(4) The request for a monitoring waiver must be signed in accordance with section 42-292, and 
include the certification statement in 42-553(a) (40 CFR 403.6(a)(2)(ii)).   
 

(5) Non-detectable sample results may be used only as a demonstration that a pollutant is not 
present if the EPA approved method from 40 CFR Part 136 with the lowest minimum 
detection level for that pollutant was used in the analysis. 

(6) Any grant of the monitoring waiver by the Director must be included as a condition in the 
User’s permit. The reasons supporting the waiver and any information submitted by the User 
in its request for the waiver must be maintained by the Director for three (3) years after 
expiration of the waiver. 

(7) Upon approval of the monitoring waiver and revision of the User’s permit by the Director, the 
Industrial User must certify on each report with the statement in 42-553(b) below, that there 
has been no increase in the pollutant in its wastestream due to activities of the Industrial User. 

(8) In the event that a waived pollutant is found to be present or is expected to be present because 
of changes that occur in the User’s operations, the User must immediately: Comply with the 
monitoring requirements of section 42-542(a), or other more frequent monitoring requirements 
imposed by the Director, and notify the Director. 

(9) This provision does not supersede certification processes and requirements established in 
categorical pretreatment standards, except as otherwise specified in the categorical 
pretreatment standard. 

(c) The City may reduce the requirement for periodic compliance reports to a requirement to report no 
less frequently than once a year, unless required more frequently in the Pretreatment Standard or by 
the State, where the Industrial User’s total categorical wastewater flow does not exceed any of the 
following: 

(1)  350 gallons per day, as measured by a continuous effluent flow monitoring device unless the 
Industrial User discharges in batches 

(2) 0.85 lbs of BOD; and  

(3) 0.01 percent of the maximum allowable headworks loading for any pollutant regulated by the 
applicable categorical Pretreatment Standard for which approved Local Limits were 
developed.   

Reduced reporting is not available to Industrial Users that have in the last two (2) years been 
in Significant Noncompliance, as defined in Subdivision IX of this ordinance.  In addition, 
reduced reporting is not available to an Industrial User with daily flow rates, production 
levels, or pollutant levels that vary so significantly that, in the opinion of the 

381

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 36 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

[Superintendent], decreasing the reporting requirement for this Industrial User would result in 
data that are not representative of conditions occurring during the reporting period. 

(d) All periodic compliance reports must be signed and certified in accordance with section 42-553.  

(e)  All wastewater samples must be representative of the industrial User's discharge. Wastewater 
monitoring and flow measurement facilities shall be properly operated, kept clean, and maintained in 
good working order at all times. The failure of an industrial User to keep its monitoring facility in 
good working order shall not be grounds for the industrial User to claim that sample results are 
unrepresentative of its discharge.  

(f)  If an industrial User subject to the reporting requirement in and of this section monitors any 
pollutant more frequently than required by the POTW, using the procedures prescribed in section 42-
549 the results of this monitoring shall be included in the report.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.4, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-543. - Report of changed conditions.  

Each industrial User is required to notify the Director of any planned significant changes to the 
industrial User's operations or system which might alter the nature, quality or volume of its wastewater at 
least thirty (30) days before the change.  

(a)  The Director may require the industrial User to submit such information as may be deemed 
necessary to evaluate the changed condition, including the submission of a wastewater discharge 
permit application under section 42-475.  

(b)  The Director may issue a wastewater discharge permit under section 42-477 or modify an existing 
wastewater discharge permit under section 42-508.  

(c)  No industrial User shall implement the planned changed conditions until and unless the Director has 
responded to the industrial User's notice.  

(4)  For purposes of this requirement, flow increases of ten percent or greater, and the discharge of 
any previously unreported pollutants, shall be deemed significant.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.5, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-544. - Reports of potential problems.  

(a)  In the case of any discharge, including, but not limited to, accidental discharges, discharges of a 
non-routine, episodic nature, a non-customary batch discharge, or a slug load which may cause 
potential problems for the POTW (including a violation of the prohibited discharge standards in 
section 42-416), it is the responsibility of the industrial User to immediately telephone and notify the 
Director of the incident. This notification shall include the location of discharge, type of waste, 
concentration and volume, if known, and corrective actions taken by the industrial User.  

(b)  Within five days following such discharge, the industrial User shall, unless waived by the Director, 
submit a detailed written report describing the cause of the discharge and the measures to be taken by 
the industrial User to prevent similar future occurrences. Such notification shall not relieve the 
industrial User of any expense, loss, damage, or other liability which may be incurred as a result of 
damage to the POTW, natural resources, or any other damage to person or property; nor shall such 

382

#12.

Kimberly A. Cole
This part (and the one below) are not part of the “model” language. This could be difficult to enforce. 



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 37 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

notification relieve the industrial User of any fines, civil penalties, or other liability which may be 
imposed by this subdivision.  

(c)  A notice shall be permanently posted on the industrial User's bulletin board and other prominent 
place advising employees whom to call in the event of a discharge described in subsection (a) of this 
section. Employers shall ensure that all employees, who may cause or suffer such a discharge to 
occur, are advised of the emergency notification procedure.  

(d)   Significant Industrial Users are required to notify the Director immediately of any changes at its 
facility affecting the potential for a Slug Discharge.   

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.6, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-545. - Reports from nonsignificant industrial Users.  

All Users not subject to categorical pretreatment standards and not required to obtain a wastewater 
discharge permit shall provide appropriate reports to the Director of Public Utilities as the Director may 
require.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.7, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-546. - Notice of violation; repeat sampling and reporting.  

If sampling performed by an User indicates a violation, the industrial User must notify the Director 
within 24 hours of becoming aware of the violation. The User shall also repeat the sampling and analysis 
and submit the results of the repeat analysis to the Director within 30 days after becoming aware of the 
violation. The industrial User is not required to resample if the City performs monitoring at the industrial 
User's at least once a month, or if the City performs sampling between the industrial User's initial 
sampling and when the industrial User receives the results of this sampling, or if the City has performed 
the sampling and analysis in lieu of the Industrial User.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.8, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-547. - Notification of the discharge of hazardous waste.  

(a)  Any User who commences the discharge of hazardous waste shall notify the POTW, the EPA 
Regional Waste Management Division Director, and state hazardous waste authorities in writing of 
any discharge into the POTW of a substance which, if otherwise disposed of, would be a hazardous 
waste under 40 CFR 261. Such notification must include the name of the hazardous waste as set 
forth in 40 CFR 261, the EPA hazardous waste number, and the type of discharge (continuous, batch, 
or other). If the User discharges more than ten kilograms of such waste per calendar month to the 
POTW, the notification shall also contain the following information to the extent such information is 
known and readily available to the industrial User: an identification of the hazardous constituents 
contained in the wastes, an estimation of the mass and concentration of such constituents in the 
wastestream discharged during that calendar month, and an estimation of the mass of constituents in 
the wastestream expected to be discharged during the following 12 months. All notifications must 
take place no later than 180 days after the discharge commences. Any notification under this 
subsection need be submitted only once for each hazardous waste discharged. However, notifications 
of changed discharges must be submitted under section 42-543. The notification requirement in this 

383

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 38 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

section does not apply to pollutants already reported under the self-monitoring requirements of 
sections 42-539, 42-541, and 42-542.  

(b)  Dischargers are exempt from the requirements of subsection (a) of this section during a calendar 
month in which they discharge no more than 15 kilograms of hazardous wastes, unless the wastes are 
acute hazardous wastes are specified in 40 CFR 261.30(d) and 261.33(e). Discharge of more than 15 
kilograms of non-acute hazardous wastes in a calendar month, or of any quantity of acute hazardous 
wastes as specified in 40 CFR 261.30(d) and 261.33(e), requires a onetime notification. Subsequent 
months during which the industrial User discharges more than such quantities of any hazardous 
waste do not require additional notification.  

(c)  In the case of any new regulations under section 3001 of RCRA identifying additional 
characteristics of hazardous waste or listing any additional substance as a hazardous waste, the 
industrial User must notify the POTW, the EPA Regional Waste Management Waste Division 
Director, and state hazardous waste authorities of the discharge of such substance within 90 days of 
the effective date of such regulations.  

(d)  In the case of any notification made under this section, the industrial User shall certify that it has a 
program in place to reduce the volume and toxicity of hazardous wastes generated to the degree it 
has determined to be economically practical.  

(e)  This provision does not create a right to discharge any substance not otherwise permitted to be 
discharged by this subdivision, a permit issued thereunder, or any applicable federal and state law.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.9, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-548. - Analytical requirements.  

All pollutant analyses, including sampling techniques, to be submitted as part of a wastewater 
discharge permit application or report shall be performed in accordance with the techniques prescribed in 
40 CFR 136, unless otherwise specified in an applicable categorical pretreatment standard. If 40 CFR 136 
does not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the pollutant in question, or where the EPA 
determines that the Part 136 sampling and analytical techniques are inappropriate for the pollutant in 
question, sampling and analyses must be performed by using validated analytical methods or any other 
applicable sample and analytical procedures, including procedures suggested the Director or in 
accordance with procedures approved by the EPA.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.10, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-549. - Sample collection.  

Samples collected to satisfy reporting requirements must be based on data obtained through appropriate 
sampling and analysis performed during the period covered by the report, based on data that is 
representative of conditions occurring during the reporting period.  

(a)  Except as indicated in Section (b) and (c) below, the User must collect wastewater samples using 
24-hour flow-proportional composite sampling techniques, unless time-proportional composite 
sampling or grab sampling is authorized by the Director or designee.  Where time-proportional 
composite sampling or grab sampling is authorized by the City, the samples must be representative 
of the discharge. Using protocols (including appropriate preservation) specified in 40 CFR Part 136 
and appropriate EPA guidance, multiple grab samples collected during a 24-hour period may be 

384

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 39 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

composited prior to the analysis as follows: for cyanide, total phenols, and sulfides the samples may 
be composited in the laboratory or in the field; for volatile organics and oil and grease, the samples 
may be composited in the laboratory. Composite samples for other parameters unaffected by the 
compositing procedures as documented in approved EPA methodologies may be authorized by the 
City, as appropriate. In addition, grab samples may be required to show compliance with 
instantaneous limits.  

(b)  Samples for oil and grease, temperature, pH, cyanide, phenols, toxicity, sulfides, and volatile 
organic chemicals must be obtained using grab collection techniques.  

(c)  For sampling required in support of baseline monitoring and 90-day compliance  
reports required in sections 42-539 and 42-541[40 CFR 403.12(b) and (d)], a minimum of four (4) 
grab samples must be used for pH, cyanide, total phenols, oil and grease, sulfide and volatile organic 
compounds for facilities for which historical sampling data do not exist; for facilities for which 
historical sampling data are available, the Director or designee may authorize a lower minimum. For 
the reports required by paragraphs section 42-542 (40 CFR  403.12(e) and 403.12(h)), the Industrial 
User is required to collect the number of grab samples necessary to assess and assure compliance by 
with applicable pretreatment  standards and requirements 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.11, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-550. - Determination of noncompliance.  

The Director may use a grab sample to determine noncompliance with pretreatment standards.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.12, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-551. – Date of Receipt of Reports.  

Written reports will be deemed to have been submitted on the date postmarked. For reports, which 
are not mailed, postage prepaid, into a mail facility served by the U.S. Postal Service, the date of receipt 
of the report shall govern.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.13, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-552. - Record keeping.  

  Users subject to the reporting requirements of this ordinance shall retain, and make available for 
inspection and copying, all records of information obtained pursuant to any monitoring activities required 
by this ordinance, any additional records of information obtained pursuant to monitoring activities 
undertaken by the User independent of such requirements, and documentation associated with Best 
Management Practices established under section 42-419(b).  Records shall include the date, exact place, 
method, and time of sampling, and the name of the  person(s) taking the samples; the dates analyses were 
performed; who performed the analyses; the analytical techniques or methods used; and the results of 
such analyses.  These records shall remain available for a period of at least three (3) years.  This period 
shall be automatically extended for the duration of any litigation concerning the User or the City, or 
where the User has been specifically notified of a longer retention period by the Director.  

385

#12.

Kim Cole
This is not part of the typical language; however, I reviewed a memo from EPA regarding this topic and this ordinance statement is consistent with the memo. It also says that as with any limit violation, the discharge should be re-sampled (as a composite/consistent with the permit).



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 40 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.14, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-553 Certification Statements 

(a) Certification of Permit Applications, User Reports and Initial Monitoring Waiver—The following 
certification statement is required to be signed and submitted by Users submitting permit 
applications in accordance with Section 42-476; Users submitting baseline monitoring reports under 
section 42-539(b)(5); Users submitting reports on compliance with the categorical Pretreatment 
Standard deadlines under section 42-541; Users submitting periodic compliance reports required by 
section 42-542 a–d, and Users submitting an initial request to forego sampling of a pollutant on the 
basis of Section 42-542(b)(4). The following certification statement must be signed by an 
Authorized Representative as defined in section 42-292: 

 

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under 
my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified 
personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted.  Based on my inquiry of 
the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for 
gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and 
belief, true, accurate, and complete.  I am aware that there are significant penalties for 
submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for 
knowing violations. 

(b) Annual Certification for Non-Significant Categorical Industrial Users—A  facility determined to 
be a Non Significant Categorical Industrial User by the Director pursuant to 42-292  and 42-
476(c) must annually submit the following certification statement signed in accordance with the 
signatory requirements in 1.4 C.  This certification must accompany an alternative report required 
by the Director: 

(1) Based on my inquiry of the person or persons directly responsible for managing compliance 
with the categorical Pretreatment Standards under 40 CFR ____, I certify that, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief that during the period from __________, ________ to ________, ________ 
[months, days, year]:  

(a) The facility described as ____________________  [facility name] met the definition of a Non 
Significant Categorical Industrial User as described in 42-292; [Note: See 40 CFR 403.3(v)(2)]  

(2) The facility complied with all applicable Pretreatment Standards and requirements during this 
reporting period; and (c) the facility never discharged more than 100 gallons of total categorical 
wastewater on any given day during this reporting period. 

(3) This compliance certification is based on the following information. 

_________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________ 

386

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 41 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(c) Certification of Pollutants Not Present  

Users that have an approved monitoring waiver based on section 42-542(b) must certify on each 
report with the following statement that there has been no increase in the pollutant in its wastestream 
due to activities of the User.  
 

Based on my inquiry of the person or persons directly responsible for managing 
compliance with the Pretreatment Standard for 40 CFR _______ [specify applicable 
National Pretreatment Standard part(s)], I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and 
belief, there has been no increase in the level of ______ [list pollutant(s)] in the 
wastewaters due to the activities at the facility since filing of the last periodic report under 
section 42-542(a). 

Secs. 42-554—42-578. - Reserved. 

Subdivision VII. - Compliance Monitoring  

Sec. 42-579. - Inspection and sampling.  

The Director shall have the right to enter the facilities of any industrial User to ascertain whether the 
purpose of this subdivision, and any permit or order issued hereunder, is being met and whether the 
industrial User is complying with all requirements thereof. Industrial Users shall allow the Director or his 
representatives ready access to all parts of the premises for the purposes of inspection, sampling, records 
examination and copying, and the performance of any additional duties.  

(a)  Where an industrial User has security measures in force which require proper identification and 
clearance before entry into its premises, the industrial User shall make necessary arrangements with 
its security guards so that, upon presentation of suitable identification, the Public Utilities Director, 
state, and EPA will be permitted to enter without delay, for the purposes of performing their specific 
responsibilities.  

(b)  The Director shall have the right to set up on the industrial User's property, or require installation 
of, such devices as are necessary to conduct sampling or metering of the User's operations.  

(c)  The  Director may require the industrial User to install monitoring equipment as necessary. The 
facility's sampling and monitoring equipment shall be maintained at all times in a safe and proper 
operating condition by the industrial User at its own expense. All devices used to measure wastewater 
flow and quality shall be calibrated annually to ensure their accuracy.  

(d)  Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the industrial facility to be 
inspected or sampled shall be promptly removed by the industrial User at the written or verbal request 
of the Director and shall not be replaced. The costs of clearing such access shall be borne by the 
industrial User.  

(e)  Unreasonable delays in allowing Director  access to the industrial User's premises shall be violation 
of this subdivision.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 7.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-580. - Search warrants.  

387

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 42 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

If the Director has been refused access to a building, structure or property or any part thereof, and 
has demonstrated probable cause to believe that there may be a violation of this subdivision or that there 
is a need to inspect as part of a routine inspection program of the City designed to verify compliance with 
this subdivision or any permit or order issued hereunder, or to protect the overall public health, safety and 
welfare of the community, then upon application by the City attorney, the associate division court judge 
shall issue a search or seizure warrant describing therein the specific location subject to the warrant. The 
warrant shall specify what, if anything, may be searched or seized on the property described. Such 
warrant shall be served at reasonable hours by the Director in the company of a uniformed police officer 
of the City. In the event of an emergency affecting public health and safety, inspections shall be made 
without the issuance of a warrant.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 7.2, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-581—42-606. - Reserved. 

Subdivision VIII. - Confidential Information  

Sec. 42-607. - Information available to the public.  

Information and data on an industrial User obtained from reports, surveys, wastewater discharge 
permit applications, wastewater discharge permits, and monitoring programs, and from Director’s 
inspection and sampling activities, shall be available to the public without restriction, unless the industrial 
User specifically requests, and is able to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Director, that the release of 
such information would divulge information, processes or methods of production entitled to protection as 
trade secrets under applicable state law. When requested and demonstrated by the industrial User 
furnishing a report that such information should be held confidential, the portions of a report that might 
disclose trade secrets or secret processes shall not be made available for inspection by the public, but shall 
be made available immediately upon request to governmental agencies for uses related to the NPDES 
program or pretreatment program, and in enforcement proceedings involving the person furnishing the 
report. Wastewater constituents and characteristics and other effluent data as defined by 40 CFR 2.302 
will not be recognized as confidential information and will be available to the public without restriction.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 8, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-608—42-633. - Reserved. 

Subdivision IX. - Publication of Industrial Users in Significant Noncompliance  

Sec. 42-634. - List to be published annually.  

The Director shall publish annually, in a newspaper of general circulation that provides meaningful 
public notice within the jurisdictions served by the City, a list of the industrial Users which, during the 
previous 12 months, were in significant noncompliance with applicable pretreatment standards and 
requirements. The term Significant Noncompliance shall be applicable to all Significant Industrial Users 
(or any other Industrial User that violates paragraphs (c), (d), or (h) of this section and shall mean:  

(a)  Chronic violations of wastewater discharge limits, defined here as those in which 66 percent or 
more of all the wastewater measurements taken for the same pollutant parameter taken during a six-

388

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 43 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

month period exceeds (by any amount) a numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, including 
Instantaneous Limit, as defined in Division 5, Subdivision II;  

(b)  Technical review criteria (TRC) violations, defined here as those in which 33 percent or more of 
wastewater measurements taken for each pollutant parameter during a six-month period equals or 
exceeds the product of the numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement including Instantaneous 
Limits multiplied by the applicable criteria (1.4 for BOD, TSS, fats, oils, and grease, and 1.2 for all 
other pollutants except pH);  

(c)  Any other discharge violation of a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement as defined by Division 5, 
Subdivision II (Daily Maximum, long-term average, Instantaneous Limit, or narrative standard), that 
the Director believes has caused, alone or in combination with other discharges, Interference or Pass 
Through, including endangering the health of City personnel or the general public;  

(d)  Any discharge of pollutants that has caused imminent endangerment to the public or to the 
environment, or has resulted in the Director’s exercise of its emergency authority to halt or prevent 
such a discharge;  

(e)  Failure to meet, within ninety (90) days of the scheduled date, a compliance schedule milestone 
contained in a wastewater discharge permit or enforcement order for starting construction, completing 
construction, or attaining final compliance;  

(f)  Failure to provide, within forty-five (45) days after the due date, any required reports, including 
baseline monitoring reports, 90 day compliance reports, periodic self-monitoring reports, and reports 
on compliance with compliance schedules;  

(g)  Failure to accurately report noncompliance;  

(h)  Any other violation, which may include Best Management Practices, which the Director determines 
will adversely affect the operation of implementation of the local pretreatment program.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 9, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-635—42-660. - Reserved. 

Subdivision X. - Administrative Enforcement Remedies  

 

Sec. 42-661. - Notification of violation.  

Whenever the Director finds that any User has violated or is violating this subdivision, a wastewater 
discharge permit or order issued hereunder, or any other pretreatment requirement, the Director or his 
agent may serve upon the User a written notice of violation. Within 15 days of the receipt of this notice, 
an explanation of the violation and a plan for the satisfactory correction and prevention thereof, to include 
specific required actions, shall be submitted by the User to the Director. Submission of this plan in no 
way relieves the industrial User of liability for any violations occurring before or after receipt of the 
notice of violation. Nothing in this section shall limit the authority of the Director to take any action, 
including emergency actions or any other enforcement action, without first issuing a notice of violation.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.1, 6-7-1993) 

389

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 44 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

Sec. 42-662. - Consent orders.  

The Director is hereby empowered to enter into consent orders, assurances of voluntary compliance, 
or other similar documents establishing an agreement with any User responsible for noncompliance. Such 
orders will include specific action to be taken by the User to correct the noncompliance within a time 
period also specified by the order. Consent orders shall have the same force and effect as the 
administrative orders issued pursuant to sections 42-664 and 42-665 and shall be judicially enforceable.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.2, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-663. - Show cause hearing.  

The Director may order any User which causes or contributes to violations of this subdivision, 
wastewater discharge permits, or orders issued hereunder, or any other pretreatment standard or 
requirement, to appear before the Director and show cause why a proposed enforcement action should not 
be taken. Notice shall be served on the User specifying the time and place for the meeting, the proposed 
enforcement action, the reasons for such action, and a request that the User show cause why this proposed 
enforcement action should not be taken. The notice of the meeting shall be served personally or by 
registered or certified mail (return receipt requested) at least 14 days prior to the hearing. Such notice may 
be served on any authorized representative of the User. Whether or not the User appears as ordered, 
immediate enforcement action may be pursued following the hearing date. Such notice may be served on 
any Authorized Representative of the User as defined in section 42-292 and required by section 42-
475(a). A show cause hearing shall not be a prerequisite for taking any other action against the User.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.3, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-664. Compliance orders.  

When the Director finds that a User has violated or continues to violate the subdivision, wastewater 
discharge permits or orders issued hereunder, or any other pretreatment standard or requirement, he may 
issue an order to the User responsible for the discharge directing that the User come into compliance 
within five days. If the User does not come into compliance within 30 days, sewer service shall be 
discontinued unless adequate treatment facilities, devices, or other related appurtenances are installed and 
properly operated. Compliance orders may also contain other requirements to address the noncompliance, 
including additional self-monitoring, and management practices designed to minimize the amount of 
pollutants discharged to the sewer. A compliance order may not extend the deadline for compliance 
established for a federal pretreatment standard or requirement, nor does a compliance order release the 
User of liability for any violation, including any continuing violation. Issuance of a compliance order 
shall not be a prerequisite to taking any other action against the User.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.4, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-665. Cease and desist orders.  

When the Director finds that a User is violating this subdivision, the User's wastewater discharge 
permit, any order issued hereunder, or any other pretreatment standard or requirement, or that the User's 

390

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 45 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

past violations are likely to recur, the Director may issue an order to the User directing it to cease and 
desist all such violations and directing the User to:  

(1)  Immediately comply with all requirements.  

(2)  Take such appropriate remedial or preventive action as may be needed to properly address a 
continuing or threatened violation, including halting operations or terminating the discharge. 

Issuance of a cease and desist order shall not be a prerequisite to taking any other action against 
the User.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.5, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-666. - Administrative fines.  

(a)  Notwithstanding any other section of this subdivision, any User that is found to have violated any 
provision of this subdivision, its wastewater discharge permit, and orders issued hereunder, or any 
other pretreatment standard or requirement shall be fined in an amount not to exceed $1,000.00. 
Such fines shall be assessed on a per violation, per day basis. In the case of monthly or other long 
term average discharge limits, fines shall be assessed for each day during the period of violation.  

(b)  Assessments may be added to the User's next scheduled sewer service charge and the Director shall 
have such other collection remedies as may be available for other service charges and fees.  

(c)  Unpaid charges, fines, and penalties shall, after 30 calendar days, be assessed an additional penalty 
of percent five percent (5%) of the unpaid balance and interest shall accrue thereafter at a rate of one 
percent (1%) per month. A lien against the individual User's property will be sought for unpaid 
charges, fines, and penalties.  

(d)  Users desiring to dispute such fines must file a written request for the Director to reconsider for the 
fine along with full payment of the fine amount within 30 days of being notified of the fine. Where a 
request has merit, the Director shall convene a hearing on the matter within 20 days of receiving the 
request from the industrial User. In the event the User's appeal is successful, the payment together 
with an interest accruing thereto shall be returned to the industrial User. The Director may add the 
costs of preparing administrative enforcement actions such as notices and orders to the fine.  

(e)  Issuance of an administrative fine shall not be a prerequisite for taking any other action against the 
User.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.6, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-667. - Emergency suspensions.  

(a)  The Director may immediately suspend a User's discharge (after informal notice to the User) 
whenever such suspension is necessary in order to stop an actual or threatened discharge which 
reasonably appears to present or cause an imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or 
welfare of persons. The Director may also immediately suspend a User's discharge (after notice and 
opportunity to respond) that threatens to interfere with the operation of the POTW, or which presents 
or may present an endangerment to the environment.  

(1)  Any User notified of a suspension of its discharge shall immediately stop or eliminate its 
contribution In the event of a User's failure to immediately comply voluntarily with the 

391

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 46 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

suspension order, the Director shall take such steps as deemed necessary, including immediate 
severance of the sewer connection, to prevent or minimize damage to the POTW, its receiving 
stream, or endangerment to any individuals. The Director shall allow the User to recommence 
its discharge when the User has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the City that the period of 
endangerment has passed, unless the termination proceedings set forth in section 42-668 are 
initiated against the User.  

(2)  A User that is responsible, in whole or in part, for any discharge presenting imminent 
endangerment shall submit a detailed written statement describing the causes of the harmful 
contribution and the measures taken to prevent any future occurrence to the Director, prior to 
the date of any show cause or termination hearing under sections 42-663 and 42-667.  

(b)  Nothing in this section shall be interpreted as requiring a hearing prior to any emergency suspension 
under this section.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.7, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-668. - Termination of discharge.  

(a)  In addition to those provisions in section 42-510, any User that violates the following conditions of 
this subdivision, wastewater discharge permits, or orders issued hereunder, is subject to discharge 
termination:  

(1)  Violation of wastewater discharge permit conditions.  

(2)  Failure to accurately report the wastewater constituents and characteristics of its discharge.  

(3)  Failure to report significant changes in operations or wastewater volume, constituents and 
characteristics prior to discharge.  

(4)  Refusal of reasonable access to the User's premises for the purpose of inspection, monitoring 
or sampling.  

(5)  Violation of the pretreatment standards in section 42-416.  

(b)  Such User will be notified of the proposed termination of its discharge and be offered an 
opportunity to show cause under section 42-663 why the proposed action should not be taken.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.8, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-669—694. - Reserved. 

Subdivision XI. - Judicial Enforcement Remedies  

Sec. 42-695. - Injunctive relief.  

Whenever a User has violated a pretreatment standard or requirement or continues to violate the 
provisions of this subdivision, wastewater discharge permits or orders issued hereunder, or any other 
pretreatment requirement, the Director may petition the Randolph County Circuit Court through the City's 
attorney for the issuance of a temporary or permanent injunction, as appropriate, which restrains or 
compels the specific performance of the wastewater discharge permit, order, or other requirement 
imposed by this subdivision on activities of the industrial User. Such other action as appropriate for legal 

392

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 47 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

or equitable relief may also be sought by the Director. A petition for injunctive relief need not be filed as 
a prerequisite to taking any other action against a User.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 11.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-696. - Civil penalties.  

(a)  A User which has violated or continues to violate this subdivision, any order or wastewater 
discharge permit hereunder, or any other pretreatment standard or requirement, shall be liable to the 
City for a maximum civil penalty of (minimum $1,000.00) per violation per day. In the case of a 
monthly or other long-term average discharge limit, penalties shall accrue for each day during the 
period of the violation.  

(b)  The Director may recover reasonable attorney's fees, court costs, and other expenses associated 
with enforcement activities, including sampling and monitoring expenses, and the cost of any actual 
damages incurred by the City.  

(c)  In determining the amount of civil liability, the court shall take into account all relevant 
circumstances, including, but not limited to, the extent of harm caused by the violation, the 
magnitude and duration, any economic benefit gained through the User's violation, corrective actions 
by the User, the compliance history of the User, and any other factor as justice requires.  

(d)  Filing a suit for civil penalties shall not be a prerequisite for taking any other action against a User.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 11.2, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-697. - Criminal prosecution.  

(a)  Any User that willfully or negligently violates any provision of this subdivision, any orders or 
wastewater discharge permits issued hereunder, or any other pretreatment requirement, shall, upon 
conviction, be guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of not more than $1,000.00 per 
violation per day or imprisonment for not more than six months or both.  

(b)  Any User that willfully or negligently introduces any substance into the POTW which causes 
personal injury or property damage shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a misdemeanor and be 
subject to a penalty of at least $1,000.00 or be subject to imprisonment for six months. This penalty 
shall be in addition to any other cause of action for personal injury or property damage available 
under state law.  

(c)  Any User that knowingly makes any false statements, representations, or certifications in any 
application, record, report, plan or other documentation filed, or required to be maintained, pursuant 
to this subdivision, wastewater discharge permit or order, or who falsifies, tampers with or 
knowingly renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method required under this subdivision shall, 
upon conviction, be punished by a fine of not more than $1,000.00 per violation per day or 
imprisonment for not more than six months or both.  

(d)  In the event of a second conviction, a User shall be punished by a fine of not more than $1000.00 
per violation per day or imprisonment for not more than one year, or both.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 11.3, 6-7-1993) 

393

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 48 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

Sec. 42-698. - Remedies nonexclusive.  

The provisions in subdivisions IX through XII of this division are not exclusive remedies. The 
Director reserves the right to take any, all, or any combination of these actions against a noncompliant 
User. Enforcement of pretreatment violations will generally be in accordance with the City's enforcement 
response plan. However, the  Director reserves the right to take other action against any User when the 
circumstances warrant. Further, the Director is empowered to take more than one enforcement action 
against any noncompliant User. These actions may be taken concurrently.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 11.4, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-699—42-723. - Reserved. 

Subdivision XII. - Supplemental Enforcement Action  

Sec. 42-724. – Penalties for Late Reports 

A penalty of twenty-five dollars ($25) may be assessed to any User for each day that a report 
required by this ordinance, a permit or order issued hereunder is late, beginning five days after the date of 
the report is due. Actions taken by the Director to collect late reporting penalties shall not limit the 
Director’s authority to initiate other enforcement actions that may include penalties for late reporting 
violations. 

Sec. 42-725. - Performance bonds.  

The Director may decline to issue or reissue a wastewater discharge permit to any User which has 
failed to comply with the provisions of this subdivision, any orders, or a previous wastewater discharge 
permit issued hereunder, unless such User first files a satisfactory bond, payable to the City, in a sum not 
to exceed a value determined by the Director to be necessary to achieve consistent compliance.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 12.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-726. - Water supply severance.  

Whenever a User has violated or continues to violate the provisions of this subdivision, orders, or 
wastewater discharge permits issued hereunder, water service to the User may be severed. Service will 
only recommence, at the User's expense, after it has satisfactorily demonstrated its ability to comply.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 12.2, 6-7-1993)

 
Sec. 42-727. - Payment of Outstanding Fees and Penalties    

The Director or designee may decline to issue or reissue an individual wastewater discharge permit to any 
User who has failed to pay any outstanding fees, fines or penalties incurred as a result of any provision of 
this ordinance, a previous individual wastewater discharge permit or order issued hereunder. 

394

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 49 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

Secs. 42-728—42-753. - Reserved. 

Subdivision XIII. - Affirmative Defenses to Discharge Violations  

Sec. 42-754. - Upset.  

(a)  For the purposes of this section, the term "upset" means an exceptional incident in which there is 
unintentional and temporary noncompliance with categorical pretreatment standards because of 
factors beyond the reasonable control of the industrial User. An upset does not include 
noncompliance to the extent caused by operational error, improperly designed treatment facilities, 
inadequate treatment facilities, lack of preventive maintenance, or careless or improper operation.  

(b)  An upset shall constitute an affirmative defense to an action brought for noncompliance with 
categorical pretreatment standards if the requirements of subsection (c) of this section are met.  

(c)  An industrial User who wishes to establish the affirmative defense of upset shall demonstrate, 
through properly signed, contemporaneous operating logs, or other relevant evidence that:  

(1)  An upset occurred and the industrial User can identify the cause of the upset;  

(2)  The facility was at the time being operated in a prudent and workmanlike manner and in 
compliance with applicable operation and maintenance procedures;  

(3)  The industrial User has submitted the following information to the POTW and treatment plant 
operator within 24 hours of becoming aware of the upset (if this information is provided orally, 
a written submission must be provided within five days):  

a.  A description of the indirect discharge and cause of noncompliance;  

b.  The period on noncompliance, including exact dates and times or, if not corrected, the 
anticipated time the noncompliance is expected to continue;  

c.  Steps being taken or planned to reduce, eliminate and prevent recurrence of the non-
compliance.  

(d)  In any enforcement proceeding, the industrial User seeking to establish the occurrence of an upset 
shall have the burden of proof.  

(e)  Industrial Users will have the opportunity for a judicial determination on any claim of upset only in 
an enforcement action brought for noncompliance with categorical pretreatment standards.  

(f)  The industrial User shall control production of all discharges to the extent necessary to maintain 
compliance with categorical pretreatment standards upon reduction, loss, or failure of its treatment 
facility until the facility is restored or an alternative method of treatment is provided. This 
requirement applies in the situation where, among other things, the primary source of power of the 
treatment facility is reduced, lost or fails.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 13.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-755. – Prohibited Discharge Standards  

An industrial User shall have an affirmative defense to an enforcement action brought against it for 
noncompliance with the general prohibitions in section 42-416 if it can prove that it did not know or have 

395

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 50 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

reason to know that its discharge, along or in conjunction with discharges from other sources, would 
cause pass through or interference and that either:  

(a)  A local limit exists for each pollutant discharged and the industrial User was in compliance with 
each limit directly prior to, and during the pass through or interference; or  

(b)    No local limit exists, but the discharge did not change substantially in nature or constituents from the 
User's prior discharge when the City was regularly in compliance with its NPDES permit, and in the 
case of interference, was in compliance with applicable sludge use or disposal requirements.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 13.2, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-756. - Bypass.  

(a)  Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning:  

(1) Bypass means the intentional diversion of wastestreams from any portion of an industrial User's 
treatment facility.  

(2) Severe property damage means substantial physical damage to property, damage to the treatment 
facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or substantial and permanent loss of natural 
resources which can reasonably be expected to occur in the absence of a bypass. Severe 
property damage does not mean economic loss caused by delays in production.  

(b)  A User may allow any bypass to occur which does not cause pretreatment standards or requirements 
to be violated, but only if it also is for essential maintenance to ensure efficient operation. These 
bypasses are not subject to the provision of subsections (c) and (d) of this section.  

(c)  If an industrial User knows in advance of the need for a bypass, it shall submit prior notice to the 
POTW, at least ten (10) days before the date of the bypass, if possible. An industrial User shall 
submit oral notice of an unanticipated bypass that exceeds applicable pretreatment standards to the 
POTW within 24 hours from the time it becomes aware of the bypass. A written submission shall 
also be provided within five days of the time the industrial User becomes aware of the bypass. The 
written submission shall contain a description of the bypass and its cause; the duration of the bypass, 
including exact dates and times, and, if the bypass has not been corrected, the anticipated time it is 
expected to continue; and steps taken or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of 
the bypass. The POTW may waive the written report on a case-by-case basis if the oral report has 
been received within 24 hours.  

(d)  Bypass is prohibited, and the POTW may take enforcement action against an industrial User for a 
bypass, unless:  

(1)  Bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe property damage;  

(2)  There was no feasible alternative to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary treatment facilities, 
retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal periods of equipment downtime. 
This condition is not satisfied if adequate back-up equipment should have been installed in the 
exercise of reasonable engineering judgment to prevent a bypass which occurred during normal 
periods of equipment downtime or preventive maintenance; and  

(3)  The industrial User submitted notices as required under subsection (c) of this section.  

396

#12.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 51 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(e)  The Director may approve an anticipated bypass, after considering its adverse effects, if the 
Director determines that it will meet the three conditions listed in subsection (d) of this section.  

Subdivision XIV: Wastewater Treatment Rates [Reserved] 

 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 13.3, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-757—42-822. - Reserved. 

 

Secs. 42-823—42-837. - Reserved. 

DIVISION 6. - RATES, CHARGES AND COST RECOVERY  

Sec. 42-838. - Review of sewer rates; disposition of funds.  

(a)  The sewer rates will be reviewed every two years and revised as necessary to ensure that the system 
generates adequate revenues to pay the costs of operation and maintenance including replacement 
and that the system continues to provide for the proportional distribution of operation and 
maintenance including replacement costs among Users and User classes. A portion of the total sewer 
User charge shall be designated for operation and maintenance, including replacement purposes, and 
shall be deposited in a separate nonlapsing fund known as the operation, maintenance and 
replacement fund and will be kept in two primary accounts as follows:  

(1) An account designated for the specific purpose of defraying operation and maintenance costs of 
the treatment works (operation and maintenance account).  

(2)  An account designated for the specific purpose of ensuring replacement needs over the useful 
life of the treatment works (replacement account). Deposits in the replacement account shall be 
made annually from the operation, maintenance and replacement revenue in the amount of 
$8,575.00.  

(Code 1965, § 30-25.1; Code 1987, § 28-97)  

Sec. 42-839. - Pretreatment charges and fees.  

The City may adopt reasonable charges and fees for reimbursement of costs of setting up and 
operating the City's pretreatment program which may include:  

(a)  Fees for wastewater discharge permit applications, including the cost of processing such 
applications.  

(b)  Fees for monitoring, inspection, and surveillance procedures, including the cost of collection and 
analyzing an industrial User's discharge, and reviewing monitoring reports submitted by industrial 
Users.  

(c)  Fees for reviewing and responding to accidental discharge procedures and construction.  

397

#12.

Kim Cole
This is verbiage from the EPA Model Ordinance.



 Underlined text – EPA required language additions to ordinance 
 Blue font – Optional per model ordinance (existing code) 

Blue font underlined  – Optional and addition to ordinance 
Original code but not part of model 

 

Page 52 of 52 
Chapter 42 | DNR Review | October 6, 2021 

(d)  Fees for filing appeals.  

(e)  Fees to recover administrative and legal costs (not included in Section 42-439(b)) associated with 
enforcement activity taken by the Director to address IU noncompliance. 

(f)  Other fees as the City may deem necessary to carry out the requirements contained herein. These 
fees relate solely to the matters covered by this subdivision and are separate from all other fees, fines 
and penalties chargeable by the City.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 15.1, 6-7-1993) 

398

#12.



CITY OF MOBERLY 
Industrial Pretreatment Program
FALL 2021 City Council Handout

KIMHEC
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING Kim Cole, P.E.  |  314.276.9575  |  kim.cole@kimhec.com

+ Legal Authority

+ ERP

+ Local Limit Calculations

+ Procedures

+ Funding and Support

+ List of Significant Industrial 
Users

What is a Pretreatment 
Program? 
The General Pretreatment Standards 
were promulgated by EPA in 1983 
under the Clean Water Act. The City of 
Moberly Wastewater Treatment Plant 
(WWTP) is required to meet effluent 
limits for wastewater discharged into a 
tributary of Coon Creek. By having a 
Pretreatment Program, Moberly is able 
to regulate the industrial discharges 
into its system to protect its WWTP.

What is Being Updated?

LEGAL AUTHORITY

The City of Moberly is authorized in 
their WWTP permit from the state to 
implement a pretreatment program. 
The legal authority for the City of 
Moberly must be adopted as part of 
the city code. This gives the City the 
ability to permit the industries, inspect 
the industries, monitor the industries, 
and enforce the program requirements.

The city code was updated to adopt 
“Streamlining” regulations promulgated 
by EPA in 2005. These regulations are 
intended to provide the City and 
industries with more flexibility in 
implementation. Examples include 
authority to grant waivers for any 
categorical pollutant and the authority 
to require best management practices 

to meet local limits.

ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE PLAN

The City of Moberly must also provide  
a method of consistent and appropriate 
enforcement of the Pretreatment 
Program. DNR requires that an 
Enforcement Response Plan (ERP) be 
developed and implemented by the  

City to ensure that different types of 
violations are addressed. The ERP 
defines actions Moberly must take in 
response to violations. The objective  
of the ERP is to provide consistent 
enforcement for all types of violations. 
The ERP also defines the required 
responses of the industry for each 
type of violation. 

The city code is referenced throughout 
the ERP with specific consideration to 
the fine amounts and the personnel 
required to respond to the escalating 
enforcement actions. 

LOCAL LIMIT CALCULATIONS

Local Limits are also in the process of 
being updated. The code includes a 
“reserved” section which may be used 
depending on the results of the 
calculations which are currently being 
evaluated. The calculations include 
specific information from the 
wastewater plant such as the design 
capacity (hydraulic/flow, pollutants, 
etc.) and how pollutants are removed 
through the treatment plant. The 
calculations ensure permit limits, stream 
criteria, and biosolids are protected. 

PROCEDURES 

The City’s Pretreatment Program will 
use standard forms and templates to 
help facilitate the implementation of 
the program. Examples include permit 
applications, formats for notices of 
violations, reporting templates for 
industries, etc.

FUNDING AND SUPPORT

In order for the City of Moberly to 
implement their Pretreatment Program, 
they must have the continued support 
for the authority and the funding 

Continued

Pretreatment Program  
Components

+ Identifying and locating  
all IUs subject to the 
pretreatment program

+ Identifying the character 
and volume of pollutants 
contributed by such users

+ Notifying users of applicable 
pretreatment standards and 
requirements

+ Receiving and analyzing  
reports from IUs

+ Sampling and analyzing  
IU discharges

+ Evaluating the need for  
IU slug control plans

+ Investigating instances of 
noncompliance

+ Complying with public 
participation requirements

The City of Moberly’s 
Responsibilities 
Include:

399

#12.



necessary to implement the program. 
This includes monitoring (Moberly is 
required to “cross-check” the industries 
for the pollutants of concern and they 
must monitor the WWTP and biosolids), 
personnel for the day-to-day and 
escalated responsibilities of enforcement 
of the program (inspections, violations, 
legal action).

The City of Moberly will initially “endorse” 
the submittal of the program modifications 
to the State. Once approved by DNR they 
will be public noticed for 30 days if DNR 
determines that these edits are considered 
a substantial modification to the program. 
DNR will approve the changes once it 
comes off public notice in consideration of 
any comments. The City will then adopt 
the revised code.

LIST OF SIGNIFICANT  
INDUSTRIAL USERS

Publicly Owned Treatment Works 
(POTW) must identify and locate all  
Industrial Users (IUs) that might be 
subject to the pretreatment program. The 
POTW must also prepare and maintain a 
list of its Significant Industrial Users (SIUs).

What’s next?
+ After the revised code is adopted, 

Moberly will need to re-issue permits 
for the industries which incorporate  
the new legal authority.

+ Complete Local Limit calculations and 
submit to the State for approval and 
incorporate into the City code as 
relevant.

Take-Home Messages
+ The Pretreatment Program is required 

by the State and adequate resources 
must be provided to appropriately 
implement the program.

+ This program update incorporates 
required and optional changes but 
those optional provisions allow the  
City of Moberly more flexibility in the 
implementation of the program.

Allocation: The portion of allowable 
loading designated to an industry. 

BOD: Biological Oxygen Demand 
– measure of how much “food” is in 
the wastewater.

Categorical User: A type of 
Significant Industrial User (SIU) 
which is specifically regulated by 
EPA based on the type of 
manufacturing process. Examples 
include metal finishers and 
pharmaceutial manufacturers.

Conventional Pollutants: BOD, 
TKN, TSS

Domestic Wastewater: Wastewater 
from non-industrial sources such as 
houses, commercial buildings, 
apartments (residential).

Effluent: The wastewater that 
discharges from your WWTP. 
Treated wastewater.

ERP: Enforcement Response Plan 

Headworks: This is the front end  
of the WWTP. In the “headworks” 
building you typically have influent 
pumps, an influent screen, etc., 
where you monitor influent loading.

Influent: The wastewater that 
comes into the headworks/enters 
the WWTP. Untreated wastewater.

Loading: What you send to the 
WWTP; arrives at your 
“headworks”.

Local Limits: A “local limit” 
converts the MAIL into a uniform 
concentration. It limits the pollutant 
concentration to protect the POTW. 
Based on local conditions such as 
the State Operating Permit, water 
quality criteria, sludge disposal 
requirements.

MAHL: Maximum Allowable 
Headworks Loading – what comes 
into your plant. Includes domestic 
and industrial sources. The MAHL is 
defined in the City’s operating 
permit from the state.

MAIL: Maximum Allowable 
Industrial Loading – industrial load 
that comes into your plant. 
Excludes domestic. The MAIL is 
calculated after you subtract off 
allowances for residential/ 
domestic sources of wastewater 
units are pounds per day – takes 
into account the flow and 
concentration.

POCs: Pollutants of concern include 
arsenic, cadmium, chromium, 
copper, cyanide, lead, mercury, 
molybdenum, nickel, selenium, 
silver and zinc.

POTW: Publicly Owned Treatment 
Works – includes the wastewater 
treatment plant, collection system 
(pipes, force mains, lift stations, 
pumps, etc.).

Significant Industrial User (SIU):  
A non-domestic discharger which 
discharges more than 25,000 gpd  
of process wastewater or 
contributes more than 5% of the 
hydraulic or organic (BOD) 
capacity of the POTW. Also 
includes Categorical dischargers 
and dischargers which are 
otherwise determined to have the 
ability to impact the City’s POTW.

Slug Discharge: Any discharge  
of a nonroutine, episodic nature, 
including an accidental spill or a 
noncustomary batch discharge that 
has a reasonable potential to cause 
interference or pass through, or in 
any other way violate the POTW’s 
regulations, local limits, or permit 
conditions. In other words a 
chemical spill or other discharge 
that can kill the City’s bugs that 
treat the wastewater.

TSS: Total Suspended Solids

TKN: Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen – 
Nitrogen is in protein (blood), 
amino acids, air (78%). TKN is part 
of the nitrogen cycle.

WWTP: Wastewater Treatment Plant

Definitions

KIMHEC
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING Kim Cole, P.E.  |  314.276.9575  |  kim.cole@kimhec.com

Funding and Support Continued 

400

#12.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Administration 

Date: October 18, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Approving A Lease Agreement With Marine Toys For Tots 

Foundation For Property Located At 218 W Reed Street And Authorizing The 

City Manager To Execute The Lease. 

  

Summary: Toys for Tots has requested the use of 218 W. Reed for their 2021 collection, 

and distribution, campaign.  They have agreed to enter into a lease with the 

city beginning October 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021.  The lease 

agreement presented sets forth the rights and liabilities of the participating 

parties.  Toys for Tots is agreeable to paying $1 for each month the unit is 

rented.  

  

Recommended Action   Approve this resolution. 

  

Fund Name:  

  

Account Number:  

  

Available Budget $:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence     x   Proposed Resolution   
         Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

401

#13.



BILL NO.________________   RESOLUTION NO._____________ 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH MARINE TOYS FOR 

TOTS FOUNDATION FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 218 W REED STREET AND 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE LEASE. 

 

WHEREAS, Marine Toys for Tots Foundation is desirous of renting retail office space 

from the city at 218 W Reed Street for a charitable holiday fund raising venture; and 

WHEREAS, it is desirable to the city to have tenants using retail business space in the 

downtown Moberly and to assist charitable fundraising; and  

WHEREAS, the lease agreement attached hereto provides for a lease term beginning 

October 19, 2021 and ending December 31, 2021 and sets forth the rights and liabilities of the 

parties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the lease agreement with Marine Toys for Tots Foundation is 

hereby approved and the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the Agreement on behalf 

of the City of Moberly, Missouri. 

RESOLVED this 18th day of October, 2021, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

 

402

#13.



Page 1 of 6 
 

    
 

OFFICE LEASE 
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

218 WEST REED STREET 
 

  
 THIS LEASE is made this ___ day of ___________, 2021, between the City of Moberly, Missouri, 
(hereinafter “City”) a municipal corporation and Marine Toys for Tots Foundation (hereinafter “Lessee”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. City is a Third-Class statutory city duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the 
state of Missouri with the power to conduct municipal business pursuant to Missouri law 
and the Ordinances duly enacted by the Moberly City Council. 

B. City is the owner of various downtown retail buildings which are available to local 
businesses to rent. 

C. City leases office space in a building at 218 W Reed Street and desires to lease said space to 
Lessee. 

D. Lessee is desirous of operating a charitable holiday fundraising venture. 
 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
SECTION 1. RECITALS 
 
 The above stated Recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein and made a part of 
this Lease agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”). 
 
SECTION 2. PREMISES 
 
 City hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from City,  the office space located at 218 
W. Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270 (hereinafter the “Premises”).  Lessee accepts the Premises “As 
Is,” subject to all applicable municipal, state and federal laws, ordinances, regulations and policies 
governing and regulating the use of the Premises, and any covenants or restrictions of record.  Lessee 
acknowledges that City has made no representations or warranties as to the physical state of the 
Premises, or any suitability of the Premises. 
 
  
 
 2.1 Waiver.  Lessee hereby waives any claims for damages for any injury or inconvenience 
or interference with Lessee’s use and occupancy of the Premises, any loss of occupancy or quiet 
enjoyment of the Premises or any other loss occasioned by City’s exercise of its rights under this 
Agreement or by the City’s actions taken for management and protection of the City’s property 
resources and visitors. 
 
 2.2  Ownership of Premises.  This Agreement does not vest in Lessee any fee interest in the 
Premises.  Title to the Premises at all times is with and shall remain solely with City. 

403

#13.



Page 2 of 6 
 

 
SECTION 3. TERM 
 
 3.1 The term of the lease shall be from October 19, 2021 to December 31, 2021. 
 
 3.2 Renewal.  This lease shall not be automatically renewed. 
 
 3.3 Abandonment.  Lessee shall occupy the Premises during the entire Lease Term, as 
described herein.  If it fails to do so, Lessee may be determined as in default for abandoning the 
Premises. 
 
SECTION 4. RENTAL AMOUNT 
 
 4.1 Monthly.  Lessee shall pay One Dollar each month during the term of this lease.  
  
 
SECTION 5. LESSEE’S PERMITTED USE AND ACTIVITY 
 
 5.1 Use.  Lessee may utilize the Premises only for the purposes necessary to conduct its 
usual business operations.  Lessee intends to operate a charitable fundraising venture. 
 
 5.2 Access and Key.  Lessee shall be issued a key.  Lessee shall be charged $20 to replace a 
door key. 
 
 5.3 Alterations.  Lessee shall not make any alterations of any nature to the Premises without 
the written permission of the City.   
 
SECTION 6. CITY’S OBLIGATIONS 
    
 6.1 City Inspection.  City shall, at all reasonable times, have the full and unrestricted right to 
enter the Premises for the purpose of inspecting the leased area, for maintenance and to determine 
compliance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 
 6.2 Maintenance.  City agrees to maintain the leased Premises in the same condition as 
when leased, ordinary wear and tear excepted, during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 6.3 Trash Disposal.  Lessee shall be responsible for set up and payment of trash service. 
 
 6.4 Utilities.  Lessee shall be responsible for set up and payment of all utilities used at the 
premises including internet or phone service. 
 
SECTION 7. ASSIGNMENT 
 
 7.1 Lessee shall not assign, hypothecate, or in any manner transfer any interest in this 
Agreement to any person or entity directly or indirectly, by operation of law or otherwise, without first 
securing City’s express written approval of such transfer. 
 
SECTION 8. LIABILITY 

404

#13.



Page 3 of 6 
 

 
 8.1 To the extent governed by applicable state law, each party will be responsible for its 
own acts and results arising from those actions, and shall not be responsible for the acts of the other 
party and results arising from those actions. 
 
 8.2 Each party agrees, to the extent allowed by law, that it will assume all risk and liability to 
itself and its agents and employees for any cause of action resulting from any operations or conduct of 
its agents or employees under this Agreement. Each party’s liabilities shall be governed by applicable 
state law. 
 
 8.3 Lessee agrees to indemnify and hold the city harmless for any claim, causes of action, or 
judgement resulting from Lessee’s use of the property or injury or damage to any third party. 
 
SECTION 9. INSURANCE 
 
 9.1 Lessor.  Lessee agrees to maintain Commercial General Liability coverage for the 
structure in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 

 
9.2 Lessee.  Lessee shall be responsible for maintaining renter’s insurance or business 

interruption coverage, if desired. 
 
 9.3 Immunities.  The parties hereto understand and agree that City is relying on and does 
not waive or intend to waive by any provision of this Agreement, any monetary limitations or any other 
applicable sovereign, governmental, or official immunities and protections provided by the state of 
Missouri, from time to time as amended, or otherwise available to City, or its elected officials or 
employees. 
 
 
 
 
SECTION 10. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION 
 
 If the Premises or any portion thereof are damaged or destroyed at any time during the lease 
term, the City, as promptly as reasonably practicable and with all due diligence, shall repair or replace 
the damaged or destroyed Premises to the condition that existed prior to the damage or destruction 
and the Lessee’s rent obligation during that time shall be abated.  Or the City may terminate this 
Agreement without liability and the Lessee’s rental obligation shall terminate. 
 
SECTION 11. DEFAULTS 
 
 The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a material default 
and breach of this lease Agreement by Lessee: 
 

A. The failure by Lessee to make any payment of Rent; or any other payment required to be 
made by Lessee hereunder, as and when due, where such failure shall continue for a period 
of ten (10) calendar days after written notice from City to Lessee. 

B. The failure by Lessee to comply with Section 5.3 of this Agreement. 
C. An unapproved or unauthorized transfer of any interest acquired under this Agreement. 

405

#13.



Page 4 of 6 
 

D. The occurrence of any other event described as constituting an “Event of Default” 
elsewhere in this Agreement. 

E. The discovery by City that any material information provided by Lessee related to this 
Agreement is materially false. 

 
SECTION 12. REMEDIES 
 
 In the event of any material default or breach by Lessee, City may at any time thereafter, with or 
without notice or demand and without limiting City in the exercise of any right or remedy which City 
may have by reason of such default or breach, avail itself of the following remedies, which are 
cumulative and not exclusive: 
 

A. City may recover possession of the leased Premises by any lawful means available to it, 
including self-entry, in which case this lease Agreement shall terminate immediately and 
Lessee shall immediately remove all personal property from the Premises.  If, after thirty 
days’ notice in writing, Lessee shall fail to remove personal property City may remove such 
property to another location with Lessee assuming any risk of loss or damage to such 
property.   

 
SECTION 13. TERMINATION 
 
 This lease Agreement is terminable with or without cause by either party upon thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice setting forth a date of termination of the Agreement.  Upon notice of 
termination, Lessee shall be obligated to pay immediately any Rent , obligations or other fees due and 
owing to City.  By the date given for termination, Lessee shall vacate the Premises and immediately 
remove all personal property.   
 
 If Lessee fails to vacate the Premises or fails to remove all personal property from the Premises, 
City may enter and recover possession.  City may also, at its election, dispose of any remaining personal 
property and charge all costs associated with such disposal to Lessee.  City shall deem any personal 
property remaining on the Premises as having been abandoned by Lessee. 
 
SECTION 14. NOTICES 
 
 All notices, demands, requests or approvals to be given under this lease Agreement shall be 
given in writing and shall be by hand delivery, overnight mail service, registered or certified mail, or 
regular first-class mail.  All notices, demands, requests or approvals from Lessee to City shall be 
addressed to: 
  Brian Crane 
  City Manager 
  101 West Reed Street 
  Moberly, MO 65270 
   
 
 All notices, demands, requests or approvals from City to Lessee shall be addressed to: 
 
  
 

406

#13.



Page 5 of 6 
 

SECTION 15. MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY 
 
 City may only act through its City Council to approve this Agreement therefore execution of this 
Agreement is contingent upon approval by the Moberly City Council. 
 
SECTION 16. GOVERNING LAW 
 
 This lease Agreement has been made and shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Missouri.  Venue may be appropriate in the Randolph County Circuit Court. 
 
SECTION 17. EMPLOYMENT OF UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS PROHIBITED 
 
 Lessee agrees to comply with Missouri Revised Statute Section 285.530 in that Lessee shall not 
knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work 
within the State of Missouri. 
 
SECTION 18. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 
 
 City is subject to the Missouri Sunshine Law.  The Parties agree that this Agreement shall be 
interpreted in accordance with the provisions of the Missouri Sunshine Law. 
 
SECTION 19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the Parties relative to the lease.  All 
previous or contemporaneous contracts, representations, promises and conditions relating to the lease 
are superseded. 
 
SECTION 15. COUNTERPARTS 
 
 This lease Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which is an original, and 
all of which together constitute but one and the same document. 
 
SECTION 16. NO PROMISE OF FUNDING 
 
 Other than as specifically set forth herein, this Agreement is not an obligation or commitment of 
funds, nor a basis for transfer of funds. Each party shall bear its own costs in relation to this Agreement.  
Expenditures by each party will be subject to applicable budgetary processes and to availability of funds 
pursuant to applicable laws, regulations, and policies. The parties expressly acknowledge that this in no 
way implies that any appropriation, tender, or allocation of funds for such expenditures. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this lease Agreement on the date set forth 
above. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
 
 
___________________________      By: _______________________________ 
Randall D. Thompson     Brian Crane 

407

#13.



Page 6 of 6 
 

City Attorney      City Administrator 
 
ATTEST:        
 
 
___________________________   
City Clerk 
  
 
LESSEE 
 
___________________________ 
Marine Toys for Tots Foundation 

408

#13.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Comm. Dev. 

Date: October 18, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Authorizing Execution Of An Addendum To The Fuel Card 

Services Agreement Between Wex Bank And Sourcewell For The State Of 

Missouri. 

  

Summary: The City of Moberly has maintained our own fuel system at the Street 

Department location for many years now.  The current UST’s that we have are 

at the end of their life expectancy (25 years) and we have a very high-water 

table out there.  Below is a report I got from Tim Grimsley who oversees the 

fuel system, maintenance and insurance fund for the UST’s; 

 

I met with Jarod from mid-state petroleum about our UST’s and discussed 

installing an above ground tank system. Jarod and one of his engineers looked 

at what we had going on.  The structural life of a plastic underground tank is 

25-30 years, we are at the 25-year mark now, we have had numerous 

problems within the last year on these tanks and currently are in the process 

of getting a quote for the spill bucket repairs on both tanks as well as the 

overfill floats, these repairs are necessary to stay compliant with Missouri 

petroleum tank insurance fund and keep our liability insurance for these 

tanks.  As you know we have to do yearly testing on these tanks as well as all 

underground piping from tanks to dispensers.  I think the water entry problem 

we had last week on the unleaded tank has been repaired for now, but we 

haven’t refilled that tank as of yet, as I am watching the tank monitor to verify 

that were not getting any more water in it. I think this episode is just an 

indication of things to come with these tanks at their age. Jarod is putting 

together a quote for me for installing (2) new 2000-gallon AST’s with new 

dispensers at our current dispenser location under the awning east of the 

shop. An AST system does not require annual testing or liability insurance 

with MO PTIF. He is also giving me a quote on removing the UST’s.  There is 

a strict process we have to go through for closing UST’s. The main issue with 

our UST’s is that the water table at this location is so high that the tanks are 

constantly surrounded by water, even in the heat of summer which makes it 

difficult to keep water out of them. The older the tanks are the more difficult it 

is. We currently have a 2000-gallon unleaded UST and a 6000-gallon diesel 

UST and if we installed ASTs I see no reason to have that big of a diesel tank 

as we order fuel weekly, and MFA is just across the street. (2) 2000-gallon 

tanks should work just fine, and we can also still utilize our fuel master 

tracking system with the AST’s. As I stated earlier I still have some repairs 

that need to be made now to our tanks to stay in compliance with MO PTIF.  I 

will get this done but I think this is only the tip of the iceberg. 

 

After more discussion, we need to budget for the UST removals next year and 

while we are considering putting in the AST’s, but we would still have old 

underground piping to the dispensers, have to replace dispensers and I am not 

sure the cost for these and the liability of maintaining the fuel on-site anymore 

is enough benefit when each vehicle or employee that operates a vehicle could 

use the State of Missouri Fuel Card Program which cuts cost, has good 

security measures in place, allows us to track online spending and is no cost to 
409

#14.



participate.  As we go through repairs, replacement or removal of our fuel 

system, this would be good to have in place now to track outside fuel 

purchases and to start evaluating if we want to utilize this exclusively for our 

fleet fuel 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution. 

  

Fund Name:   

  

Account Number:   

  

Available Budget $:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
     Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence    x    Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 
410

#14.



BILL NO._________         RESOLUTION NO.________ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN ADDENDUM TO THE FUEL 

CARD SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN WEX BANK AND SOURCEWELL FOR 

THE STATE OF MISSOURI. 

 

WHEREAS, the State of Missouri has created a Fuel Card Program for competitive 

purchasing of fuel by public entities; and 

WHEREAS, the Fuel Card Program is administered through an agreement Wex Bank 

and Sourcewell, a copy of which is attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, city staff has reviewed the city’s current fuel purchasing program and 

believes purchasing fuel through the state’s cooperative venture is more economical; and 

WHEREAS, city staff recommends acceptance of the attached agreement and 

contracting for the service. 

THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council authorizes the use of the Missouri 

Fuel Card Program and directs the City Manager to execute the attached Addendum to the Fuel 

Card Services Agreement with Wex Bank and Soucewell on behalf of the city and to take such 

other and further steps to accomplish the purposes of this Resolution. 

RESOLVED this 18th day of October, 2021, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, City Clerk 

 

411

#14.



412

#14.



413

#14.



 

City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Clerk 

Date: October 18, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Appropriating Money Out Of The Treasury Of The City Of 

Moberly, Missouri. 

  

Summary: Appropriation Resolution. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Please approve this Resolution. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
  Memo   Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
      Correspondence    x   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation   Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation   Petition M  S  Brubaker     
  P/C Minutes   Contract M  S  Kimmons     
  Application   Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
  Citizen   Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
  Consultant Report   Other         Passed Failed 

 

414

#15.



415

#15.



416

#15.



417

#15.



418

#15.



419

#15.



420

#15.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:    

Department: City Manager 

Date: October 18, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: Department Head Monthly Reports 

  

Summary: Attached is Community Development Monthly Report/Public Works Monthly, 

Finance Department Monthly Report, Parks and Rec. Monthly Report, Police 

Department Monthly Report, Fire Department Monthly Report, Public Utility 

Monthly Report, Moberly Area Economic Development, Moberly Chamber of 

Commerce. 

  

These are for you to review on the activity that each Department has 

accomplished for the Month September. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Just for your review 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
  x  Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

421

#16.



 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT/PUBLIC WORKS 

MONTHLY REPORT 

September 2021 
A. PROJECTS  

 

Community Development 

 

Demolition Grant – Most of the lots from the first rounds have now been addressed by the contractor.  

They still have to make repairs to damaged sidewalks.  We have signed the contracts on the last 8 

properties from the final phase, the contractor has a waiting period for DNR approval.  These last few 

should go quickly. 

 

We have several other fire and dangerous structures that have accumulated while we were pushing 

through this grant program.  We will need to address them shortly after we close out the grant demos. 

 

Waste Management/Advanced Disposal – Based on the level of complaints, the cart deliveries and 

reliability of service seems to continually be improving.  There is still significant room for improvement.  

The bulk item pick up is still sketchy at best.  They are supposed to be picking up the one bulk item each 

week at the same time as trash service, and that’s not happening reliably.  They send another truck for 

larger items and unless people have called them in, they are missing many things.  We had talked about 

going to a system where people had to call in to schedule bulk item pick up, but we were not willing to 

change anything until they get their problems cleared up.   

 

On top of the regular routes, we continue to have complaints about the transfer station accessibility.  While 

the hours are better, they are bringing all their trash trucks there to dump and they bring their trash trucks 

in ahead of customers and they can’t dump while the trash trucks are in the bay, and then customers have 

to wait on them to clear materials and often change out trailer dumps.  We have had several people tell us 

of an hour plus wait times to dump and, in some cases, getting turned away after the waits as the trash 

trucks used all of the available capacity.  I have asked the facility manager in Macon to look into it and 

get me a response as to what can be done, however he is not over the transfer station, and the regional 

manager I was dealing with is no longer with the company.  I am trying to get a new regional contact. 

 

Fennel Marketing Study – McClure has been working with local and regional partners to help craft an 

actionable market strategy to revitalize the Fennel building project.  

 

The proposed use of the space is focused on incorporating family-friendly activities like pickleball, bocce, 

bags, etc. with potential for a small dog park within the footprint of the outdoor space on the north side of 

the property. It’s TBD whether the exterior activities will be operated by the City or the business inside 

the facility. 

 

For the interior business use, our primary idea is a craft distillery, winery, or microbrewery. The proposals 

strategy is to attract an existing business interested in establishing a satellite facility in Moberly. Another 

less costly option is the craft taproom approach featuring Missouri beers, wines and/or spirits. Light snacks 

would be offered by the business, but full food service would be delegated to a cycle calendar of food 

trucks and/or partnerships with other local restaurants.  

  

The current proposed layout of the building is the taproom space in the eastern most commercial bay with 

the brewery/distillery operation in the central commercial bay and an event space/rental room for the 

western most bay. The central bay would also be the access point to upper story rental units. 

 

Draft concept visuals should be made available by the end of the month.  
 422

#16.



Public Works  

Staffing – We have hired Skyler Frazer as a part-time airport attendant.  Skyler has some aircraft 

maintenance experience and works for Edge Aviation in Moberly when not working the part-time 

position with the City.  We are pleased to have someone with his experience and knowledge on with us. 

 

We have found a couple of people with relevant experience for our PIO position but can’t seem to make 

their work schedules or level of employment fit with our needs.  We have tried to flex and adjust, but at 

this point we are still looking for the right fit. 

 

Pavement maintenance – In following up with Capital paving, they are telling me it will be late October 

and possibly leak into early November.  While this is not ideal as temperature could start to dip down 

below where we would want them, the forecast isn’t looking too bad.  We have followed up with the 

Special Road District and they will be paving the Park Road extension between Hwy 24 & JJ through a 

co-op with them under our contract.  This road is in bad shape and most people incorrectly assume it is 

the City of Moberly’s. 

 

Following the overlay, we will have the application of reclamite to the new asphalt and the streets in town 

with 5-year-old asphalt.  For those that may not be that familiar with this product, it doesn’t add color or 

a wear surface, it adds the flexibility back to the oil/binders that get “cooked” out during initial heating 

and over time after application.  It can look a little messy on initial application due to the sand we put 

down as a friction enhancer, but it doesn’t stick to vehicles like oil would and we sweep up the loose sand 

a day or two after initial application. 

 

Equipment – Purple Wave Auction continue to produce good results for us on our resale of old 

equipment.  Our street sweeper just sold for $84,700, and our trade-in value that was offered was 

$52,000. A very rough 2008 F-250 regular cab w/129K from utilities just sold for $7,260 and a Hustler 

zero turn mower that had been cycled through the cemetery and street department brough $2,860.  Our 

John Deere rubber tire loader is on Purple Wave now, we had a trade-in offer of $72,000, and the bids 

are already up to $51K with 10 days to go.  They usually shoot up in the last two days, we are hoping it 

will bring $90K+ at auction. 

 

We have been approached by the Special Road District about purchasing our 2011 F-350 dually dump 

bed truck directly.  We can do that with other government entities, like we have done with the school in 

the past.  We are reviewing values at this time and will present it formally once we have some values 

and a recommendation. 

 

Airport  

 

Magic City Aviation/Graves Sanford – I have spent more hours than I can count in discussion with 

Mr. Sandford on the hangars.  We have had the same conversations many times.  He has finally decided 

to go with the termination agreement and turn the Hangars over to the City and we will make repairs and 

lease them back to him, first 60 months, the equity of the hangars would be compensation for this initial 

term.  Assuming council approves the agreement on the 18th, they would be in on the 19th to execute 

the agreement. 

 

Runway Construction - Runway is completed, lots of positive comments.  Ribbon cutting will be 

October 29th at 11:30. You will all get formal invitations.  Food and drinks will be provided for RSVP 

lunch.   

 

 
 

 

 423

#16.



Cemetery Department 

 

 

There were three (3) grave lots sold; six (6) graves opened; and five (5) monument permits sold 

during the month of September. 

 

 

B. Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission for the City of Moberly held a meeting on Monday, 

September 27, 2021. 

 

1. Notice of a Public Hearing for a re-zoning application submitted by Redhead Properties 

Family Trust for 317 Patton St. from R-1(Single Family Residential District) to R-3 

(Multi-family Dwelling District).  

2. Notice of Public Hearing for a site plan review submitted by Nate Kohl on behalf of 

Richard Stuck for a proposed storage units located at 106 Shepherd Brothers Blvd.  This 

location is currently zoned B-3 (General Commercial District). 

 
   

C. Code Enforcement 

 

Month of September: Rick 

 

 Completed 29 building inspections. 

 Working on accessory building for abatement. 

 Final inspection on Swift Foods facility. 

 5 permits for single family residence in September with 30 new S/F homes for the tear. 

 Drive wards for nuisance violations. 

 Continue to work on Demolition project. 

 Attended Plan Review and Planning & Zoning meetings as scheduled. 

 Remainder of month was issuing permits, answering phones, code violations, commercial 

occupancy permits and zoning matters. 
 

            Month of September: Karen 

 

 56 occupancy inspections and re-inspections. 

 68 trash cans tagged for being left on the curb  

 Respond to citizen complaints, returned phone calls. 

 Attended safety meetings as were scheduled, the health fair was Oct. 1st and we had 19 vendors 

and food and decorations, it was a great success this year with close to 100 attending. 

 Over all a very successful month was had. 
 

             Month of September: Aaron 
 

 Construction began on Hils Pharmacy and Wendy’s / Scooters near completion. 

 Monitoring the lack of diligent progress at the Moberly Inn. 

 Progress on the demolition lots has continued and the previously cleared lots are being filled and 

graded in preparation for final seed and straw. 

 Approximately 40 residential and 20 commercial inspections were executed. 

 Continue to issue permits, accept and review Planning and Zoning applications, inspect new 

construction and address complaints surrounding nuisance properties.  

 Attend Plan Review as scheduled. 424

#16.



 Several initial nuisance letters were sent and several reached compliances. 

 Historic preservation has been on the table with discussions with downtown businesses that are 

new to the district as well as some that are seeking signage in the district. 

      

City of Moberly - Street Department 

Sept-21 

MAINTENANCE FACILITY 

 Hours O/T Loads Tons Cost 

Compost Mixing 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Load Compost, Millings, & Mulch 10 0 30 0 $0.00  

Sand, Salt, & Geomelt Mixing 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Tub Grinder Operation 7 0 0 0 $0.00  

Winter Weather Equipment Preparations 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

ROADS & ALLEYWAYS 

 Hours O/T Loads Tons Cost 

Alleys, Grade & Rock 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Catch Basin Maintenance 40 0 4 0 $0.00  

Crack Sealing 144 0 231 0 $0.00  

Culvert Flushing 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Culvert Installation 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Curb  Repair 96 0 0 0 $0.00  

Ditch Maintenance 16 0 0 0 $0.00  

Ice & Snow Removal 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Milling 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Mowing, Right-Of-Ways 88 0 0 0 $0.00  

Rock Loaded/Hauled 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Street Repair & Maintenance 363 0 0 2 $0.00  

Street Sign Maintenance 12 0 0 0 $0.00  

Street Sweeper Operation 60 0 19 0 $0.00  

Street Sweepings Hauled To Disposal 16 0 0 0 $0.00  

Weedeating & Brush Removal, Alleys 78 0 24 0 $0.00  

Weedeating & Brush Removal, Streets 133 0 24 0 $0.00  

Weedkiller Application, Alleys 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Weedkiller Application, Streets 8 0 0 0 $0.00  

MISCELLANEOUS 

 Hours O/T Loads Tons Cost 

Inmate Labor 770 0 0 0 $0.00  

Mowing, City Lots 95 0 0 0 $0.00  
425

#16.



Outer Road Fill Dump Site Grading 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Sidewalk Maintenance 88 0 0 0 $0.00  

Trash Removal & Clean-Up, Downtown 16 0 71 0 $0.00  

Trash Removal & Clean-Up, All Wards 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

FACILITIES & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 

 Hours O/T Loads Tons Cost 

Airport Maintenance 50 0 0 0 $0.00  

Building Maintenance 14 0 0 0 $0.00  

Cemetery Maintenance 272 0 0 0 $0.00  

Grounds Maintenance 8 0 0 0 $0.00  

Landfill Maintenance 8 0 0 0 $0.00  

Maintenance Facility Maintenance 31 0 0 0 $0.00  

Wash Trucks & Equipment 6 0 0 0 $0.00  

MATERIALS PURCHASED 

 Loads Tons Cubic 

Yards 

Gallons Cost 

Asphalt 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Road Marking Paint, White 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Road Marking Paint, Yellow 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Salt 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Sand 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

MECHANIC WORK PERFORMED    

 Units Hours    

Routine Service  11 31    

Maintenance And Repair 27 69    

 

426

#16.



 

City of        
   

 

 

 

To:  Moberly City Council; Brian Crane, City Manager 
 
From:  Greg Hodge, Director of Finance 
 
Subject: Monthly Report – September 2021 
 
 

General Information 
 Sales revenues remained strong this month, and use tax revenues dropped off slightly. 
 Health claims were much closer to normal this month. 
 The auditors were on-site the week of September 27 to perform the majority of work on the 2020-2021 

financial audit. This audit is much more extensive because we had federal grant expenditures in excess of 
$750,000. They have to go through these records very meticulously which requires considerable time and 
effort. Of course, we will see a higher fee for this audit and next year’s due to the extra labor time. 

 Progress continued on the Caselle software. Matt and I met with the programmers twice during the month 
to review the database conversion, and they are making good progress. Matt and I have to provide some 
clarification and additional data for portions of it, but overall we are getting pretty close to having a usable 
framework in which to import the datafiles into. 
 

Sales Tax Revenues 
Charts for each sales and use tax fund are included for your review. Below are the comparisons of current YTD 
to prior YTD. 
 
General Fund  +4.12% Parks  +4.14% Capital Improvement  +4.14% 
 
Transportation  +4.14% Use Tax +0.02% Downtown CID  +57.76% 
  

Employee Health Insurance 
Health claims   $47,032.74    Pharmaceutical claims $21,367.65 

 
Health Insurance Contributions & Budget 

Health Trust 
Contribution This Month 

HSA Contributions 
This Month 

Total Contributions 
This Month 

Annual 
Budget 

Budget 
Remaining 

$112,106.06 $2,775.00 $114,881.10 $1,535,265.52 $1,201,594.34 
 

 

Health Trust Fund Cash Balance 
 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 

July $953,912.59 $959,446.10 $789,647.32 $600,499.65 $452,115.58 $350,783.18 $516,952.83 

August $950,828.33 $978,085.80 $800,479.76 $558,026.39 $289,833.52 $353,291.19 $476,840.46 

September $1,000,905.00 $974,427.10 $684,692.43 $519,407.60 $239,111.95 $358,230.40 $516,375.33 

October $1,008,278.61 $990,003.69 $665,224.98 $533,065.43 $161,101.66 $361,082.82  

November $1,000,000.00 $1,000,000.00 $689,931.75 $521,176.81 $161,006.25 $359,913.42  

December $1,002,488.15 $867,421.94 $524,297.94 $521,228.06 $244,153.89 $341,280.69  

January $997,205.10 $888,519.67 $590,612.39 $549,457.98 $309,105.79 $436,448.97  

February $1,001,764.14 $815,725.20 $712,106.49 $559,700.67 $297,198.27 $462,855.81  

March $980,176.79 $762,230.98 $587,567.48 $578,509.63 $273,648.37 $481,687.90  

April $968,681.17 $710,720.45 $640,541.51 $599,662.04 $278,933.28 $520,587.99  

May $1,000,000.00 $762,796.66 $608,960.67 $543,627.95 $309,247.58 $473,770.32  

June $1,000,000.00 $807,724.83 $569,163.71 $512,223.04 $360,812.59 $519,861.25  

 

427

#16.



 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

 

 

 

 

TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR 
 

and 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

of the 
 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Per RSMo 78.620 I have hereby filed an itemized statement 

of receipts and expenditures with the City Clerk for your review upon request. 

 

 

I submit herein a summary of the business transactions for the month of 

 

 September 2021 
 

 

 

____________________________________________________________ 

Gregory L. Hodge, City Treasurer 

 
 

 

 

 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

428

#16.



Fund # Fund Name

Beginning Cash 

Balance Revenues Transfers In Expenditures Transfers Out

Ending Cash 

Balance

100 General 998,049.24          803,932.64       -                   561,904.04       20,833.33         1,219,244.51      

102 Non-Resident Lodging Tax 171,184.48          10,297.11         -                   7,082.33           -                   174,399.26         

105 Payroll 463,528.53          25.91                -                   (75,755.91)       -                   539,310.35         

110 Solid Waste 691,738.81          92,596.95         -                   83,394.08         -                   700,941.68         

114 Heritage Hills Golf Course -                      -                   7,183.82           7,183.82           -                   -                     

115 Parks and Recreation (26,876.03)          33,221.58         82,869.59         111,206.64       -                   (21,991.50)         

116 Park Sales Tax 961,355.79          144,995.56       -                   -                   90,053.41         1,016,297.94      

120 Airport (113,001.05)        1,280,288.62    -                   1,462,161.92    -                   (294,874.35)       

125 Perpetual Care Cemetery Sales 7,694.23              3,021.00           -                   -                   -                   10,715.23           

126 Perpetual Care Cemetery Investment 504,067.63          26.48                -                   -                   -                   504,094.11         

135 ARPA Grant Fund 1,373,655.28       71.07                -                   -                   -                   1,373,726.35      

137 Use Tax Trust 248,848.65          12.88                -                   -                   -                   248,861.53         

140 Veterans Memorial Flag Project 43,814.90            152.27              -                   -                   -                   43,967.17           

300 Utilities Collection -                      494,392.26       -                   44,435.87         449,956.39       -                     

301 Utilities Operation and Maintenance (34,620.50)          -                   278,055.51       268,495.15       -                   (25,060.14)         

302 Utilities Replacement 669,788.58          -                   4,125.00           -                   -                   673,913.58         

303 Utilities Operating Reserve 1,351,679.93       104.60              38,122.83         9,419.46           -                   1,380,487.90      

306 Utilities Consumer Security 209,197.19          937.68              -                   -                   -                   210,134.87         

307 Sugar Creek Lake Fund 59,597.85            163.08              -                   -                   -                   59,760.93           

314 Route JJ Sewer Extension Fund (28,714.32)          -                   -                   28,126.25         -                   (56,840.57)         

350 EDA Grant Projects Fund (143,850.12)        -                   -                   9,020.00           -                   (152,870.12)       

377 2004B SRF Bonds Debt Service 1,136,790.81       58.82                43,179.84         38,195.69         -                   1,141,833.78      

378 2006A SRF Bonds Debt Service 1,660,605.70       85.93                36,014.90         27,572.66         -                   1,669,133.87      

379 2004C Bond Debt Service 108,539.60          5.62                  30,104.17         26,552.63         -                   112,096.76         

380 2008A Bonds Debt Service 65,375.97            3.38                  14,853.45         -                   -                   80,232.80           

381 ESP Projects Debt Service 60,945.30            3.15                  50,458.31         -                   -                   111,406.76         

1,017,859.66       -                   -                   -                   -                   1,017,859.66      

6,133,195.65       495,754.52       494,914.01       451,817.71       449,956.39       6,222,090.08      

City of Moberly Cash Balance Report -  September 2021

   Escrow

   Total CWWSS (funds 300-381 + escrow)

Page 1 of 2
429

#16.



Fund # Fund Name

Beginning Cash 

Balance Revenues Transfers In Expenditures Transfers Out

Ending Cash 

Balance

City of Moberly Cash Balance Report -  September 2021

304 Capital Improvement Trust 129,674.54          134,710.98       12,044.96         55,040.95         197,299.61         

400 911 Emergency Telephone 210,133.81          18,532.08         20,833.33         31,115.40         -                   218,383.82         

406 Inmate Security Fund 14,224.95            58.74                -                   -                   -                   14,283.69           

408 Police Forfeiture Fund 4,320.59              -                   -                   -                   -                   4,320.59             

600 Transportation Trust 1,812,099.75       134,854.81       -                   6,641.55           -                   1,940,313.01      

601 Street Improvement 434,755.05          33,469.13         -                   365,320.14       -                   102,904.04         

900 MODAG Grant/Loan 21,801.13            1.13                  -                   -                   -                   21,802.26           

901 Misc. Project Residuals 150,125.06          7.77                  -                   -                   -                   150,132.83         

903 Ameren MO Solar Rebates 362,670.00          -                   -                   -                   -                   362,670.00         

904 Hometown Strong Fund 290,000.00          -                   -                   -                   -                   290,000.00         

905 Retail Consulting Fund 11,631.52            0.60                  -                   -                   -                   11,632.12           

908 Railcar Preservation Fund 587.68                 0.03                  -                   -                   -                   587.71                

909 Lucille Manor CDBG Reimbursement 236,117.55          3,816.33           -                   -                   -                   239,933.88         

911 Downtown CID Sales Tax 64,706.73            7,567.97           -                   33.00                -                   72,241.70           

912 Downtown CID Property Tax 310,959.78          16.09                -                   339.00              1,733.84           308,903.03         

914 Downtown NID Cost of Issuance -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                     

915 Downtown NID Street Projects 137,005.59          -                   -                   -                   -                   137,005.59         

916 Downtown NID Sewer Projects 1,516,994.41       -                   -                   -                   -                   1,516,994.41      

918 Downtown NID Debt Service 88,100.96            4.56                  11,817.17         64,457.30         -                   35,465.39           

995 Health Trust 476,840.46          150,684.18       -                   111,149.31       -                   516,375.33         

995 Investments -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                     

476,840.46          150,684.18       -                   111,149.31       -                   516,375.33         

17,730,005.67     3,348,120.99    617,617.92       3,200,095.29    617,617.92       17,878,031.37    

(1,017,859.66)     -                   -                   -                   -                   (1,017,859.66)    

16,712,146.01    3,348,120.99   617,617.92      3,200,095.29   617,617.92      16,860,171.71        Net Cash per Bank Cash Report

Total Cash

  Less Escrow Accounts 

   Total Health Trust

Page 2 of 2
430

#16.



25.00%

% of % of

Fund # Fund Name Month Year to Date Total Budget Budget Month Year to Date Total Budget Budget

100 General 803,932.64 2,010,368.14 8,790,906.19 22.87% 622,869.61 1,944,280.11 8,790,906.19 22.12%

102 Non-Resident Lodging Tax 10,297.11 29,501.65 100,150.00 29.46% 7,082.33 14,164.66 100,000.00 14.16%

105 Payroll 25.91 93.31 0.00 0.00% -39,126.59 1,919.81 0.00 0.00%

110 Solid Waste 92,596.95 277,879.88 1,090,150.00 25.49% 83,281.29 259,562.79 1,072,330.00 24.21%

114 Heritage Hills Golf Course 7,183.82 14,287.77 206,134.01 6.93% 7,183.82 14,287.77 206,134.01 6.93%

115 Parks and Recreation 116,091.17 462,437.81 2,467,648.36 18.74% 116,091.17 462,437.81 2,467,648.36 18.74%

116 Park Sales Tax 144,995.56 393,705.44 1,415,500.00 27.81% 90,053.41 336,113.67 1,479,682.37 22.72%

120 Airport 1,280,288.62 2,934,140.56 3,276,669.15 89.55% 1,462,431.22 3,097,118.19 3,276,669.15 94.52%

125 Perpetual Care Cemetery Sales 3,021.00 9,629.00 20,000.00 48.15% 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00%

126 Perpetual Care Cemetery Investment 26.48 94.11 20,500.00 0.46% 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%

135 ARPA Grant Fund 71.07 1,373,726.35 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

140 Veterans Memorial Flag Project 152.27 158.13 3,050.00 5.18% 0.00 138.69 2,500.00 5.55%

300 Utilities Collection 494,392.26 1,696,878.50 6,727,154.82 25.22% 490,431.87 1,708,746.29 6,727,154.82 25.40%

301 Utilities Operation and Maintenance 278,055.51 831,858.26 4,429,570.44 18.78% 278,055.51 831,858.26 4,429,570.44 18.78%

302 Utilities Replacement 4,125.00 12,375.00 49,500.00 25.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

303 Utilities Operating Reserve 38,227.43 355,150.23 103,200.00 344.14% 9,419.46 28,258.38 359,774.82 7.85%

304 Capital Improvement Trust 134,710.98 361,629.59 1,302,000.00 27.77% 67,085.91 192,003.81 1,066,401.45 18.00%

307 Sugar Creek Lake Fund 163.08 376.03 2,050.00 18.34% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

314 Route JJ Sewer Extension Fund 0.00 0.00 1,582,723.00 0.00% 28,126.25 44,968.75 1,582,723.00 2.84%

350 EDA Grant Projects Fund 0.00 0.00 6,376,600.00 0.00% 9,020.00 79,619.53 6,376,600.00 1.25%

377 2004B SRF Bonds Debt Service 43,238.66 129,749.25 519,258.13 24.99% 38,195.69 114,587.07 472,143.75 24.27%

378 2006A SRF Bonds Debt Service 36,100.83 108,351.54 433,778.75 24.98% 27,572.66 92,412.57 394,162.50 23.45%

379 2004C Bond Debt Service 30,109.79 90,331.91 361,330.00 25.00% 26,552.63 79,657.89 329,500.00 24.18%

380 2008A Bonds Debt Service 14,856.83 44,574.49 178,291.45 25.00% 0.00 37,896.84 162,719.50 23.29%

381 ESP Projects Debt Service 50,461.46 151,385.52 605,599.74 25.00% 0.00 135,340.85 551,363.40 24.55%

400 911 Emergency Telephone 39,365.41 144,638.34 610,080.00 23.71% 33,115.25 113,901.01 797,121.03 14.29%

406 Inmate Security Fund 58.74 214.62 810.00 26.50% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

600 Transportation Trust 134,854.81 411,174.35 1,340,650.00 30.67% 6,641.55 150,160.04 849,675.00 17.67%

601 Street Improvement 33,469.13 100,324.74 415,500.00 24.15% 365,320.14 581,682.09 675,275.00 86.14%

City of Moberly Budget Comparison Report - September 2021

Percentage of Year Completed

Revenues Expenditures

Page 1 of 2
431

#16.



25.00%

% of % of

Fund # Fund Name Month Year to Date Total Budget Budget Month Year to Date Total Budget Budget

City of Moberly Budget Comparison Report - September 2021

Percentage of Year Completed

Revenues Expenditures

903 Ameren MO Solar Rebates 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

904 Hometown Strong Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

905 Retail Consulting Fund 0.60 2.16 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

908 Railcar Preservation Fund 0.03 0.11 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

909 Lucille Manor CDBG Reimbursement 3,816.33 9,553.57 23,075.00 41.40% 0.00 0.00 40,000.00 0.00%

911 Downtown CID Sales Tax 7,567.97 21,313.64 55,530.00 38.38% 33.00 640.50 51,800.00 1.24%

912 Downtown CID Property Tax 16.09 6,408.48 215,250.00 2.98% 2,072.84 41,655.27 214,810.00 19.39%

914 Downtown NID Cost of Issuance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

915 Downtown NID Street Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

916 Downtown NID Sewer Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

918 Downtown NID Debt Service 11,821.73 35,465.43 142,010.00 24.97% 64,457.30 64,457.30 128,914.60 50.00%

995 Health Trust 150,684.18 423,630.61 0.00 0.00% 111,149.31 427,116.53 0.00 0.00%

3,964,779.45 12,441,408.52 42,864,669.04 29.02% 3,907,115.63 10,854,986.48 42,626,079.39 25.47%TOTALS

Page 2 of 2
432

#16.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 9.73% $241,703 -5.45% -5.45% 7.97% $199,862 -17.31% -17.31% 9.09% $250,141 25.16% 25.16% 25.08% $247,325 -1.13% -1.13%

August 7.53% $187,109 21.72% 4.75% 8.43% $211,324 12.94% -4.11% 7.66% $210,787 -0.25% 12.10% 22.28% $219,697 4.23% 1.32%

September 9.89% $245,772 7.02% 5.57% 9.47% $237,294 -3.45% -3.87% 9.64% $265,191 11.76% 11.97% 28.36% $279,648 5.45% 2.83%

October 7.45% $185,111 -8.96% 2.06% 7.95% $199,259 7.64% -1.39% 8.03% $221,103 10.96% 11.73% 24.29% $239,568 8.35% 4.12%

November 6.53% $162,241 34.26% 6.10% 6.90% $172,873 6.55% -0.13% 6.63% $182,491 5.56% 10.69% 0.00% -100.00%

December 8.91% $221,406 -23.98% -0.88% 8.55% $214,218 -3.25% -0.68% 8.59% $236,514 10.41% 10.64% 0.00% -100.00%

January 8.35% $207,481 18.27% 1.47% 8.46% $212,117 2.23% -0.27% 7.68% $211,290 -0.39% 9.02% 0.00% -100.00%

February 8.58% $213,170 3.32% 1.70% 8.70% $217,948 2.24% 0.05% 7.90% $217,419 -0.24% 7.81% 0.00% -100.00%

March 8.15% $202,638 -2.26% 1.25% 8.29% $207,716 2.51% 0.32% 8.57% $235,865 13.55% 8.45% 0.00% -100.00%

April 8.46% $210,267 0.72% 1.20% 7.98% $200,097 -4.84% -0.20% 7.09% $195,208 -2.44% 7.40% 0.00% -100.00%

May 7.70% $191,296 13.53% 2.14% 7.73% $193,621 1.22% -0.08% 8.00% $220,208 13.73% 7.94% 0.00% -100.00%

June 8.73% $217,056 -4.78% 1.49% 9.57% $239,953 10.55% 0.85% 11.12% $305,934 27.50% 9.81% 0.00% -100.00%

Total 100.00% $2,485,248 100.00% $2,506,282 100.00% $2,752,151 100.00% $986,238

Prior year comparisonPrior year comparisonPrior year comparison Prior year comparison

City of Moberly

One Percent (1%) General Fund Sales Tax Analysis

2018 - 2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022

$
2

4
1

,7
0

3

$
1

8
7

,1
0

9 $
2

4
5

,7
7

2

$
1

5
9

,9
6

0

$
1

6
2

,2
4

1 $
2

2
1

,4
0

6

$
2

0
7

,4
8

1

$
2

1
3

,1
7

0

$
2

0
2

,6
3

8

$
2

1
0

,2
6

7

$
1

9
1

,2
9

6

$
2

1
7

,0
5

6

$
1

9
9

,8
6

2

$
2

1
1

,3
2

4

$
2

3
7

,2
9

4

$
1

9
9

,2
5

9

$
1

7
2

,8
7

3

$
2

1
4

,2
1

8

$
2

1
2

,1
1

7

$
2

1
7

,9
4

8

$
2

0
7

,7
1

6

$
2

0
0

,0
9

7

$
1

9
3

,6
2

1

$
2

3
9

,9
5

3

$
2

5
0

,1
4

1

$
2

1
0

,7
8

7

$
2

6
5

,1
9

1

$
2

2
1

,1
0

3

$
1

8
2

,4
9

1

$
2

3
6

,5
1

4

$
2

1
1

,2
9

0

$
2

1
7

,4
1

9

$
2

3
5

,8
6

5

$
1

9
5

,2
0

8

$
2

2
0

,2
0

8

$
3

0
5

,9
3

4

$
2

4
7

,3
2

5

$
2

1
9

,6
9

7 $
2

7
9

,6
4

8

$
2

3
9

,5
6

8

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

180,000

200,000

220,000

240,000

260,000

280,000

300,000

320,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a

rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2018 -
2019

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2021-
2022

433

#16.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 9.83% $116,214 -4.54% -4.54% 8.11% $96,995 -16.54% -16.54% 9.23% $121,689 25.46% 25.46% 25.19% $119,791 -1.56% -1.56%

August 7.51% $88,797 15.53% 3.22% 8.47% $101,403 14.20% -3.23% 7.73% $102,013 0.60% 12.75% 22.52% $107,096 4.98% 1.42%

September 9.91% $117,181 10.81% 5.86% 9.53% $113,985 -2.73% -3.04% 9.67% $127,495 11.85% 12.42% 28.33% $134,704 5.65% 2.96%

October 7.44% $88,033 -9.24% 2.21% 7.96% $95,207 8.15% -0.64% 7.99% $105,403 10.71% 12.02% 23.96% $113,921 8.08% 4.14%

November 6.45% $76,256 26.13% 5.34% 6.85% $81,925 7.43% 0.62% 6.61% $87,256 6.51% 11.10% 0.00% -100.00%

December 7.46% $88,175 -37.56% -4.70% 8.65% $103,534 17.42% 3.20% 8.70% $114,709 10.79% 11.05% 0.00% -100.00%

January 10.15% $120,083 46.93% 1.46% 8.53% $102,043 -15.02% 0.05% 7.66% $101,008 -1.01% 9.28% 0.00% -100.00%

February 8.49% $100,374 2.44% 1.58% 8.64% $103,390 3.00% 0.42% 7.87% $103,792 0.39% 8.13% 0.00% -100.00%

March 8.05% $95,191 -7.45% 0.53% 8.21% $98,246 3.21% 0.72% 8.44% $111,392 13.38% 8.70% 0.00% -100.00%

April 8.27% $97,855 5.53% 1.01% 7.83% $93,739 -4.21% 0.23% 6.90% $91,057 -2.86% 7.61% 0.00% -100.00%

May 7.57% $89,491 13.37% 1.93% 7.59% $90,851 1.52% 0.34% 8.21% $108,243 19.14% 8.58% 0.00% -100.00%

June 8.87% $104,956 -4.21% 1.35% 9.63% $115,289 9.85% 1.18% 11.00% $145,068 25.83% 10.24% 0.00% -100.00%

Total 100.00% $1,182,605 100.00% $1,196,607 100.00% $1,319,125 100.00% $475,513

Prior year comparisonPrior year comparisonPrior year comparisonPrior year comparison

City of Moberly

One-Half Percent (1/2%) Parks Fund Sales Tax Analysis

2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022

$
1

1
6

,2
1

4

$
8

8
,7

9
7 $

1
1

7
,1

8
1

$
8

8
,0

3
3

$
7

6
,2

5
6

$
8

8
,1

7
5

$
1

2
0

,0
8

3

$
1

0
0

,3
7

4

$
9

5
,1

9
1

$
9

7
,8

5
5

$
8

9
,4

9
1

$
1

0
4

,9
5

6

$
9

6
,9

9
5

$
1

0
1

,4
0

3

$
1

1
3

,9
8

5

$
9

5
,2

0
7

$
8

1
,9

2
5

$
1

0
3

,5
3

4

$
1

0
2

,0
4

3

$
1

0
3

,3
9

0

$
9

8
,2

4
6

$
9

3
,7

3
9

$
9

0
,8

5
1 $
1

1
5

,2
8

9

$
1

2
1

,6
8

9

$
1

0
2

,0
1

3

$
1

2
7

,4
9

5

$
1

0
5

,4
0

3

$
8

7
,2

5
6 $

1
1

4
,7

0
9

$
1

0
1

,0
0

8

$
1

0
3

,7
9

2

$
1

1
1

,3
9

2

$
9

1
,0

5
7

$
1

0
8

,2
4

3

$
1

4
5

,0
6

8

$
1

1
9

,7
9

1

$
1

0
7

,0
9

6 $
1

3
4

,7
0

4

$
1

1
3

,9
2

1

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

150,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a

rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2018-
2019

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2021-
2022

434

#16.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 9.83% $116,214 -4.54% -4.54% 8.11% $96,995 -16.54% -16.54% 9.23% $121,689 25.46% 25.46% 25.19% $119,791 -1.56% -1.56%

August 7.51% $88,797 15.53% 3.22% 8.47% $101,403 14.20% -3.23% 7.73% $102,013 0.60% 12.75% 22.52% $107,096 4.98% 1.42%

September 9.91% $117,181 10.81% 5.86% 9.53% $113,985 -2.73% -3.04% 9.67% $127,495 11.85% 12.42% 28.33% $134,704 5.65% 2.96%

October 7.44% $88,034 -9.24% 2.21% 7.96% $95,207 8.15% -0.64% 7.99% $105,403 10.71% 12.02% 23.96% $113,921 8.08% 4.14%

November 6.45% $76,256 26.13% 5.34% 6.85% $81,925 7.43% 0.62% 6.61% $87,256 6.51% 11.10% 0.00% -100.00%

December 9.16% $108,332 -23.29% -1.36% 8.65% $103,535 -4.43% -0.30% 8.70% $114,709 10.79% 11.05% 0.00% -100.00%

January 8.46% $100,082 22.45% 1.48% 8.53% $102,043 1.96% 0.03% 7.66% $101,008 -1.01% 9.28% 0.00% -100.00%

February 8.48% $100,336 2.40% 1.60% 8.64% $103,390 3.04% 0.41% 7.87% $103,792 0.39% 8.13% 0.00% -100.00%

March 8.05% $95,187 -7.45% 0.55% 8.21% $98,246 3.21% 0.71% 8.44% $111,392 13.38% 8.70% 0.00% -100.00%

April 8.27% $97,822 5.49% 1.01% 7.83% $93,739 -4.17% 0.23% 6.90% $91,057 -2.86% 7.61% 0.00% -100.00%

May 7.57% $89,491 13.37% 1.94% 7.59% $90,851 1.52% 0.33% 8.21% $108,243 19.14% 8.58% 0.00% -100.00%

June 8.87% $104,956 -4.21% 1.36% 9.63% $115,289 9.85% 1.18% 11.00% $145,068 25.83% 10.24% 0.00% -100.00%

Total 100.00% $1,182,688 100.00% $1,196,609 100.00% $1,319,126 100.00% $475,513

Prior year comparisonPrior year comparisonPrior year comparison Prior year comparison

City of Moberly

One-Half Percent (1/2%) Capital Improvement Fund Sales Tax Analysis

2018 - 2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022

$
1

1
6

,2
1

4

$
8

8
,7

9
7 $
1

1
7

,1
8

1

$
8

8
,0

3
4

$
7

6
,2

5
6 $

1
0

8
,3

3
2

$
1

0
0

,0
8

2

$
1

0
0

,3
3

6

$
9

5
,1

8
7

$
9

7
,8

2
2

$
8

9
,4

9
1

$
1

0
4

,9
5

6

$
9

6
,9

9
5

$
1

0
1

,4
0

3

$
1

1
3

,9
8

5

$
9

5
,2

0
7

$
8

1
,9

2
5

$
1

0
3

,5
3

5

$
1

0
2

,0
4

3

$
1

0
3

,3
9

0

$
9

8
,2

4
6

$
9

3
,7

3
9

$
9

0
,8

5
1

$
1

1
5

,2
8

9

$
1

2
1

,6
8

9

$
1

0
2

,0
1

3

$
1

2
7

,4
9

5

$
1

0
5

,4
0

3

$
8

7
,2

5
6 $
1

1
4

,7
0

9

$
1

0
1

,0
0

8

$
1

0
3

,7
9

2

$
1

1
1

,3
9

2

$
9

1
,0

5
7

$
1

0
8

,2
4

3 $
1

4
5

,0
6

8

$
1

1
9

,7
9

1

$
1

0
7

,0
9

6

$
1

3
4

,7
0

4

$
1

1
3

,9
2

1

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

150,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a
rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2018 -
2019

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

435

#16.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 9.83% $116,244 -4.52% -4.52% 8.10% $96,995 -16.56% -16.56% 9.22% $121,689 25.46% 25.46% 25.19% $119,797 -1.55% -1.55%

August 7.51% $88,797 15.53% 3.24% 8.48% $101,512 14.32% -3.19% 7.73% $102,013 0.49% 12.69% 22.52% $107,096 4.98% 1.43%

September 9.91% $117,272 10.87% 5.89% 9.52% $113,985 -2.80% -3.05% 9.66% $127,495 11.85% 12.39% 28.33% $134,741 5.68% 2.97%

October 7.44% $88,027 -9.27% 2.22% 7.95% $95,208 8.16% -0.64% 7.99% $105,470 10.78% 12.01% 23.96% $113,924 8.02% 4.14%

November 6.45% $76,256 26.13% 5.35% 6.84% $81,932 7.44% 0.62% 6.61% $87,256 6.50% 11.09% 0.00% -100.00%

December 9.16% $108,332 -23.29% -1.35% 8.65% $103,535 -4.43% -0.30% 8.70% $114,833 10.91% 11.06% 0.00% -100.00%

January 8.47% $100,216 22.56% 1.50% 8.52% $102,043 1.82% 0.01% 7.66% $101,008 -1.01% 9.29% 0.00% -100.00%

February 8.48% $100,336 2.40% 1.62% 8.64% $103,390 3.04% 0.39% 7.87% $103,792 0.39% 8.13% 0.00% -100.00%

March 8.06% $95,299 -7.36% 0.57% 8.23% $98,515 3.37% 0.71% 8.45% $111,437 13.12% 8.68% 0.00% -100.00%

April 8.27% $97,822 5.49% 1.04% 7.83% $93,736 -4.18% 0.23% 6.90% $91,057 -2.86% 7.59% 0.00% -100.00%

May 7.56% $89,491 13.37% 1.96% 7.59% $90,851 1.52% 0.33% 8.20% $108,243 19.14% 8.56% 0.00% -100.00%

June 8.87% $104,998 -4.17% 1.38% 9.64% $115,360 9.87% 1.18% 11.00% $145,123 25.80% 10.22% 0.00% -100.00%

Total 100.00% $1,183,089 100.00% $1,197,062 100.00% $1,319,415 100.00% $475,558

Prior year comparisonPrior year comparisonPrior year comparison Prior year comparison

City of Moberly

One-Half Percent (1/2%) Transportation Trust Fund Sales Tax Analysis

2018 - 2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022

$
1

1
6

,2
4

4

$
8

8
,7

9
7 $
1

1
7

,2
7

2

$
8

8
,0

2
7

$
7

6
,2

5
6 $

1
0

8
,3

3
2

$
1

0
0

,2
1

6

$
1

0
0

,3
3

6

$
9

5
,2

9
9

$
9

7
,8

2
2

$
8

9
,4

9
1

$
1

0
4

,9
9

8

$
9

6
,9

9
5

$
1

0
1

,5
1

2

$
1

1
3

,9
8

5

$
9

5
,2

0
8

$
8

1
,9

3
2

$
1

0
3

,5
3

5

$
1

0
2

,0
4

3

$
1

0
3

,3
9

0

$
9

8
,5

1
5

$
9

3
,7

3
6

$
9

0
,8

5
1

$
1

1
5

,3
6

0

$
1

2
1

,6
8

9

$
1

0
2

,0
1

3

$
1

2
7

,4
9

5

$
1

0
5

,4
7

0

$
8

7
,2

5
6 $
1

1
4

,8
3

3

$
1

0
1

,0
0

8

$
1

0
3

,7
9

2

$
1

1
1

,4
3

7

$
9

1
,0

5
7

$
1

0
8

,2
4

3 $
1

4
5

,1
2

3

$
1

1
9

,7
9

7

$
1

0
7

,0
9

6

$
1

3
4

,7
4

1

$
1

1
3

,9
2

4

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

150,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a
rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2018 -
2019

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

436

#16.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 8.87% $46,494 33.98% 33.98% 8.54% $50,367 8.33% 8.33% 7.04% $46,392 -7.89% -7.89% 18.06% $37,521 -19.12% -19.12%

August 9.91% $51,962 76.73% 53.59% 7.45% $43,915 -15.49% -4.24% 9.29% $61,192 39.34% 14.11% 34.16% $70,945 15.94% 0.82%

September 5.27% $27,621 -60.92% -6.46% 8.95% $52,752 90.99% 16.62% 7.23% $47,622 -9.73% 5.56% 24.65% $51,208 7.53% 2.88%

October 5.31% $27,818 99.55% 3.47% 4.02% $23,669 -14.91% 10.92% 7.96% $52,453 121.61% 21.65% 23.12% $48,029 -8.44% 0.02%

November 10.40% $54,492 99.30% 18.35% 6.93% $40,852 -25.03% 1.52% 8.86% $58,373 42.89% 25.75% 0.00% -100.00%

December 7.55% $39,562 -9.57% 12.80% 8.52% $50,213 26.92% 5.57% 7.26% $47,833 -4.74% 19.90% 0.00% -100.00%

January 8.79% $46,064 17.37% 13.49% 4.56% $26,900 -41.60% -1.82% 6.31% $41,573 54.55% 23.13% 0.00% -100.00%

February 10.18% $53,342 -37.08% 1.02% 8.59% $50,625 -5.09% -2.32% 12.03% $79,275 56.59% 28.12% 0.00% -100.00%

March 11.25% $58,982 0.52% 0.95% 8.04% $47,395 -19.65% -4.84% 9.99% $65,840 38.92% 29.45% 0.00% -100.00%

April 6.95% $36,407 6.51% 1.38% 9.09% $53,605 47.24% -0.55% 8.34% $54,952 2.51% 26.17% 0.00% -100.00%

May 6.07% $31,803 -17.39% -0.14% 12.93% $76,249 139.75% 8.85% 7.24% $47,731 -37.40% 16.78% 0.00% -100.00%

June 9.47% $49,646 4.21% 0.26% 12.37% $72,946 46.93% 12.46% 8.44% $55,587 -23.80% 11.76% 0.00% -100.00%

Total 100.00% $524,193 100.00% $589,488 100.00% $658,823 100.00% $207,702

Prior year comparison Prior year comparison Prior year comparison Prior year comparison

City of Moberly

Two & One-Half Percent (2-1/2%) Use Tax Analysis

2018 - 2019 2019 - 2020 2020-2021 2021-2022

$
4

6
,4

9
4

$
5

1
,9

6
2

$
2

7
,6

2
1

$
2

7
,8

1
8

$
5

4
,4

9
2

$
3

9
,5

6
2

$
4

6
,0

6
4

$
5

3
,3

4
2

$
5

8
,9

8
2

$
3

6
,4

0
7

$
3

1
,8

0
3 $

4
9

,6
4

6

$
5

0
,3

6
7

$
4

3
,9

1
5

$
5

2
,7

5
2

$
2

3
,6

6
9 $
4

0
,8

5
2

$
5

0
,2

1
3

$
2

6
,9

0
0

$
5

0
,6

2
5

$
4

7
,3

9
5

$
5

3
,6

0
5

$
7

6
,2

4
9

$
7

2
,9

4
6

$
4

6
,3

9
2 $
6

1
,1

9
2

$
4

7
,6

2
2

$
5

2
,4

5
3

$
5

8
,3

7
3

$
4

7
,8

3
3

$
4

1
,5

7
3

$
7

9
,2

7
5

$
6

5
,8

4
0

$
5

4
,9

5
2

$
4

7
,7

3
1

$
5

5
,5

8
7

$
3

7
,5

2
1

$
7

0
,9

4
5

$
5

1
,2

0
8

$
4

8
,0

2
9

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a
rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2018 -
2019

2019 -
2020

2020-
2021

2021-
2022

437

#16.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 10.68% $4,997 NA NA 7.16% $3,885 -22.25% -22.25% 5.96% $3,526 -9.24% -9.24% 22.94% $6,772 92.03% 92.03%

August 6.42% $3,005 NA NA 11.67% $6,335 110.82% 27.72% 9.16% $5,425 -14.37% -12.42% 23.61% $6,967 28.42% 53.48%

September 7.78% $3,640 NA NA 10.70% $5,807 59.53% 37.67% 10.13% $5,999 3.32% -6.72% 25.63% $7,565 26.09% 42.49%

October 7.79% $3,647 NA NA 6.39% $3,466 -4.97% 27.50% 6.35% $3,757 8.39% -4.03% 27.82% $8,211 118.56% 57.76%

November 6.96% $3,255 NA NA 5.75% $3,118 -4.21% 21.93% 5.38% $3,184 2.09% -3.19% 0.00% -100.00%

December 8.29% $3,879 20.72% 20.72% 11.83% $6,421 65.55% 29.48% 10.07% $5,963 -7.14% -4.06% 0.00% -100.00%

January 8.20% $3,838 18.14% 19.42% 7.10% $3,854 0.40% 25.23% 7.25% $4,292 11.36% -2.25% 0.00% -100.00%

February 12.79% $5,984 3.69% 12.00% 7.26% $3,938 -34.19% 14.20% 8.06% $4,771 21.14% 0.25% 0.00% -100.00%

March 8.64% $4,043 -8.74% 6.48% 9.75% $5,293 30.90% 16.06% 7.74% $4,583 -13.42% -1.47% 0.00% -100.00%

April 6.70% $3,136 19.03% 8.20% 6.98% $3,787 20.74% 16.44% 11.44% $6,772 78.83% 5.15% 0.00% -100.00%

May 6.85% $3,207 23.58% 10.02% 8.50% $4,615 43.88% 18.50% 6.51% $3,853 -16.50% 3.18% 0.00% -100.00%

June 8.91% $4,169 -22.83% 3.52% 6.93% $3,761 -9.77% 15.98% 11.95% $7,075 88.10% 9.06% 0.00% -100.00%

Total 100.00% $46,801 100.00% $54,280 100.00% $59,199 100.00% $29,514

Prior year comparison Prior year comparison Prior year comparison Prior year comparison

City of Moberly

One Percent (1%) Downtown Community Improvement District Sales & Use Tax Analysis

2018 - 2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022

$
4

,9
9

7
 

$
3

,0
0

5
 

$
3

,6
4

0
 

$
3

,6
4

7
 

$
3

,2
5

5
 

$
3

,8
7

9
 

$
3

,8
3

8
 

$
5

,9
8

4
 

$
4

,0
4

3
 

$
3

,1
3

6
 

$
3

,2
0

7
 

$
4

,1
6

9
 

$
3

,8
8

5

$
6

,3
3

5

$
5

,8
0

7

$
3

,4
6

6

$
3

,1
1

8

$
6

,4
2

1

$
3

,8
5

4

$
3

,9
3

8 $
5

,2
9

3

$
3

,7
8

7

$
4

,6
1

5

$
3

,7
6

1

$
3

,5
2

6
 

$
5

,4
2

5
 

$
5

,9
9

9
 

$
3

,7
5

7
 

$
3

,1
8

4
 

$
5

,9
6

3
 

$
4

,2
9

2
 

$
4

,7
7

1
 

$
4

,5
8

3
 

$
6

,7
7

2
 

$
3

,8
5

3
 

$
7

,0
7

5
 

$
6

,7
7

2
 

$
6

,9
6

7
 

$
7

,5
6

5
 

$
8

,2
1

1
 

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a
rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2018 -
2019

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2021-
2022

438

#16.



Income July-September 2021 July-September 2020 $ Change % Change

4900 Miscellaneous 0.00 3,060.00 (3,060.00) -100.00%

4901 Interest Income 23.54 94.07 (70.53) -74.98%

4950 Employer Contributions 333,671.18 343,555.55 (9,884.37) -2.88%

4951 Employee Contributions 74,551.62 42,318.50 32,233.12 76.17%

4952 Employee Cobra Payments 0.00 2,973.71 (2,973.71) -100.00%

4953 Reinsurance Refunds 13,509.27 9,448.28 4,060.99 42.98%

4954 Employee Buy-up Premiums 1,875.00 0.00 1,875.00 0.00%

423,630.61 401,450.11 22,180.50 5.53%

5406 Contracted Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00%

5806 Miscellaneous 126.00 0.00 126.00 100.00%

5817 Bank Fees 0.00 261.39 (261.39) -100.00%

5850 Health Claims Paid 225,269.26 190,807.47 34,461.79 18.06%

5851 Pharmaceuticals 61,827.71 93,967.14 (32,139.43) -34.20%

5852 Reinsurance Premiums 92,475.44 86,121.25 6,354.19 7.38%

5853 Life Insurance Premiums 5,940.93 6,237.91 (296.98) -4.76%

5854 Medical Claims Admin Fees 19,015.42 5,131.35 13,884.07 270.57%

5855 Dental Claims Admin Fees 1,319.50 1,313.00 6.50 0.50%

5856 Air Ambulance Memberships 6,300.00 0.00 6,300.00 100.00%

5857 Dental Claims Paid 14,629.77 20,192.79 (5,563.02) -27.55%

5858 HSA Account Fees 212.50 0.00 212.50 100.00%

427,116.53 404,032.30 23,084.23 5.71%

Net Income (Loss) (3,485.92) (2,582.19) (903.73) 35.00%

Total Expenditures

Total Income

City of Moberly Health Plan Trust

Comparative Profit & Loss Statement

September 2021

Expenditures

439

#16.



September 30, 2021 September 30, 2020 $ Change % Change

1000 Cash 516,375.33 358,230.40 158,144.93 44.15%

516,375.33 358,230.40 158,144.93 44.15%

1300 Investments 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00%

516,375.33 358,230.40 158,144.93 44.15%

3000 Unreserved Fund Balance 519,861.25 360,812.59 159,048.66 44.08%

(3,485.92) (2,582.19) (903.73) 35.00%

516,375.33 358,230.40 158,144.93 44.15%

516,375.33 358,230.40 158,144.93 44.15%

    Net Income (Loss)

  Equity

  Total Equity

  TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

City of Moberly Health Plan Trust

Comparative Balance Sheet

September 30, 2021

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

  Current Assets

  Total Current Assets

  Other Assets

  Total Other Assets

ASSETS

440

#16.



                     City of 
                                                

                                                                                                                               

                                   

 
Police Department                                                                                                300 N Clark Street                 

Troy Link                                                                                                                 Moberly, MO  65270 

Chief of Police                                                                                                         Phone:      660-263-0346 

264th  Session FBI Academy                                                                                   Fax:          660-263-8540 

 
 

 

Division of Criminal Investigation 

Monthly Report 

September 2021 

 

 

1.  Domestic Assault 3rd Degree:  Suspect: MT, B/M, 34 yoa; Victim: AM, W/F, 32 

yoa. Reports sent to RCPA. 

2. Domestic Assault 3rd Degree:  Suspect: BC, W/F, 29 yoa; Victim: MR, W/M, 34 

yoa.  Reports sent to RCPA. 

3. DWI: Suspect: KG, W/M, 62 yoa; Victim: State of Missouri.  Reports sent to 

RCPA. 

4. Domestic Assault 1st; Suspect: DB 41 yo B/F, Victim: PL 44 yo B/M Disposition: 

Reports sent to RCPA 

5. Child Molestation 1st; Suspect: DC 46 yo W/M, Victim: EV 17 yo W/F 

Disposition: Unfounded forwarded to Monroe County 

6. Arson; Suspect; HM 39 yo W/F, Victim: CR 40 yo W/F, Disposition: Unfounded. 

Fire Marshall unable to determine arson 

7. Taney County Warrant (Domestic Assault): Suspect; SW, W/M, 28 yoa, Victim: 

State of Missouri, Disposition: Reports sent to Taney County PA 

8. Randolph County Warrant (FTA-Drug Possession): Suspect; CJ, W/M, 32 yoa, 

Victim; State of Missouri, Disposition: Reports sent to  RCPA 

9. Randolph County Warrant (Drug Possession): Suspect; CJ, W/M, 32 yoa, Victim; 

State of Missouri, Disposition: Reports sent to  RCPA 

10. Resisting Arrest for a Felony: Suspect; CJ, W/M, 32 yoa, Victim; State of 

Missouri, Disposition: Reports sent to RCPA 

11. Delivery of a Controlled Substance Except 35 Grams or Less of Marijuana: 

Suspect; CJ, W/M, 32 yoa, Victim; State of Missouri, Disposition: Reports sent to  

RCPA 

12. Involuntary Manslaughter 1st : Suspect; DB, B/M, 38 yoa, Victim; LO, W/F, 47 

yoa, Disposition: Reports sent to RCPA. 

 

 

   

441

#16.



 

 

 

Cases Cleared………………………………………..12 

Interviews……………………………………….……104 

Interrogations………………………………………...3 

Reports Written………………………………………94 

 

 

Special Assignments 

 

Monthly Report 

Completed Paycom for detective unit. 

Approved numerous reports for Detective Unit. 

Tagged numerous body camera videos. 

Assisted with Pursuit Review Board. 

Assisted with Peace Disturbance call at Tannehill Park. 

Filled in as Watch Commander for night shift on 9/3/21. 

Assisted with Harassment call. 

Assisted with Domestic Abuse call.   

Assisted with DWI arrest. 

Conducted numerous building security checks. 

Assisted with K9 track due to domestic assault investigation. 

Assisted with warrant/ drugs arrest. 

Assisted with a Hotline Report in reference to a Child Molestation investigation. 

Spoke with Randolph Co Sheriff’s Office about a reported Rape. 

Spoke with North Village Staff and State investigator in reference to Rape investigation. 

Assisted US Marshals Service with serving a criminal complaint. 

Court in Huntsville. 

Assisted with Domestic Assault (Stabbing) investigation. 

Assisted with serving search warrant in reference to Domestic Assault investigation. 

Assisted Patrol Division with a medical assistance call. 

Attended Illicit Discharge training. 

Assisted the Randolph County Children’s Division with a check the well being. 

Death Investigation involving two deceased 

Responded to University Hospital to pick up a Sexual Assault Examination kit. 

Responded to Women and Children’s Hospital to pick up a Sexual Assault Examination 

kit. 

Assisted with returning property to owner. 

Attended a forensic interview in Columbia reference a Rape investigation. 

Attended two autopsies in Columbia reference to overdose Death Investigation. 

Interviewed witness in Murder investigation. 

Assisted Patrol Division with a warrant arrest. 

Court in Huntsville. 

Assisted with recovering stolen license plate. 

Assisted with Trespassing arrest. 

442

#16.



                     City of 
                                                

                                                                                                                               

                                   

 
Police Department                                                                                                300 N Clark Street                 

Troy Link                                                                                                                 Moberly, MO  65270 

Chief of Police                                                                                                         Phone:      660-263-0346 

264th  Session FBI Academy                                                                                   Fax:          660-263-8540 

 
 

 

Attended Supervisor’s Meeting. 

Assisted dispatch 9/3/21 

Assisted Patrol with a peace disturbance 

Attempted to locate escapee subject with warrants 

Assisted patrol with a subject with warrants who ran on foot  

Investigation of sexual assault 

Assisted US Marshalls  

Investigation of sexual assault involving two minors  

Investigation of child molestation  

Investigation of domestic assault 1st degree 

Investigation of endangering welfare of a child 

Assist dispatch 9/28/21 

Attended three forensic interviews  

Submitted two search warrants for child endangerment case  

Submitted one search warrant for domestic assault  

Typed Reports  

Assisted NOMO Drug Task Force with setting up surveillance camera  

Watched recorded interviews  

Conducted knock and talk and arrested subject on a warrant  

Investigated lead with NOMO in reference to escaped inmate from RCJC 

Attended info sharing brief at the Sherriff’s Office in reference to escaped inmate 

Conducted surveillance on residence with NOMO 

Assisted patrol/MSHP K9 Unit with attempting to locate a fleeing person  

Investigated statutory rape case  

Took initial for drug related child abuse investigation  

Conducted field contact with suspicious person  

Attended court 

Interviewed alleged rape victim at jail 

Assisted patrol with bomb threat at Moberly High School  

Called in for overdose death investigation  

Testified in court  

Attended the National Tactical Offices Association week long training conference  

443

#16.



Interviewed sources/family of overdose victims for information regarding the victim’s 

deaths.  

Coordinated with Calloway County PA to obtain DNA search warrant  

Assisted Patrol staff with calls for service due to manpower 

MPD SWAT meeting/gear out of new operator  

Interviewed subject in reference to OD death investigations 

OT detail for Gussmacker/Junk Junction  

Testified in court  

Assisted NOMO with Narcotics investigations/intelligence gathering 

Pulled trash for NOMO narcotics investigation  

Follow up interview with subject involved in overdose death investigation  

Attempted contact with person with warrants at residence, met with negative results  

Field contact with suspected drug activity at Fox Park  

Collected intelligence from residences known for drug activity 

Examined phones for multiple overdose death investigations  

Traffic stop on known subjects involved in distribution of drugs 

Recruitment of LETI Cadet 

 

  

 

 

 

Recovered Property 

 

- MO License Plate / 43K-0KD / $25.00 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Tracey Hayes 

Commander  

 

 

444

#16.



445

#16.



1 
 

 
Moberly Fire Department 

September Monthly Report  
2021 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

446

#16.



2 
 

 
City of Moberly Fire Department 

Emergency Dial 911         310 N. Clark 
Station #1  660-269-8705 EXT 2035       Moberly, MO 65270-1520 
Fax#          660-263-0596        Fire Chief 
E-mail     ryand@moberlyfd.com               Don Ryan 
Station #2  660-263-4121  
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Don Ryan, Fire Chief 
Date: September 2, 2021 
Re: August Monthly Council Report: 
 
 
 

• Last month the fire department responded to 116 incidents (28 different types) this included: 18 fire related calls, 
51 EMS Calls, 10 hazardous conditions, 28 service calls, 5 good intent calls, 4 false alarms & false calls, and 
17 fire inspections. 
 

• The Department’s three shifts combined training hours was 509.  The following topics were covered: Tower 
Operations; Fire Extinguisher Training for Personnel and Local Businesses; Recruit Training (consisting of Air 
Packs, Street Recognition, Driving Skills, and Hydrants); Ventilation; Storm Water; PPE; and Health and 
Wellness. 
 

• COVID cases continue to be of concern statewide.  The Chief participated in the COVID-19 weekly conference 
call (COAD). 
 

• Vehicle maintenance:  Engine 304 had to have the accelerator pedal and sensor replaced.  Engine 302 remains out 
for service (repairing head gaskets and related engine issues).  Engine 305 has incurred a similar fate as Engine 
302; the engine has a blown head gasket and at least one injector is bad.  This engine will be out of service until 
we can get Engine 302 back.  We are doing our best to keep enough engines in service.  We are re-experiencing 
water leakage around the pump packing seals and the cab hydraulic cylinders (to be able to raise the cab) need 
rebuilt on 304.  This will be addressed when 302 and 305 returns.     

 
• Equipment/station maintenance: The new door and other related renovation project at Station 2 had to be put on 

hold due to the other issues we have been dealing with regarding vehicles and other assignments that came up 
during the month. 
 

• The Department continues with the hydrant location mapping project in conjunction with the Water Department.  
This will bring the mapping of all hydrants up-to-date. 

  
• Hydrant testing for the year is on-going. 

 
• Building inspections (CFOs) and annual business inspections continue to be performed on a regular basis. 

 
• Annual hose testing has been completed for the year. 

 
• The Department held a new recruit entrance exam test on September 17th.  There were 5 participates who made it 

through the written, physical agility and oral interview process. We currently have no openings, and the testing 
was undertaken to provide a list for future hiring possibilities. 
 

447

#16.



3 
 

• Chief provided the interview for the City Manager’s spot on the radio on September 22nd. 
 

• Chief Ryan and Assistant City Clerk Woodin held the opening of the sealed bids for the new supervisor vehicle 
on Friday, September 24th. 
 

• The Fire Chief and A-Shift participated in the CFO inspection at the SWIFT Foods plant. 
 

• Chief Ryan and A-Shift attended the Annual Patriot’s Dinner on September 11th.  Moberly Fire Department 
(along with other First Responders from Randolph County) was awarded a resolution from Representative Ed 
Lewis recognizing their continuous efforts and work over the years.  

 
• Emergency Management/Fire Chief:  Submitted the final application for FY21 EMP Grant paperwork and 

forwarded it to the City Manager for final authorization. 
 

• Emergency Management/Fire Chief and A-Shift were part of an exercise via webinar with Homeland Security. 
 

Notice for October 2021 
 

• October is Fire Prevention Month; the Department will continue the tradition of presentations/drills at the local 
schools and other institutions. 
 

• In October, the Moberly Fire Department will have three personnel beginning their Hutchinson Community 
College Fire Academy commitment, starting of their on-line portion of the academy.   

 
• Hydrant testing and business inspections will continue to move forward. 

 
• Chief Ryan will be attending the Region B Homeland Security Oversight Committee Meeting on October 18th at 

the MACC Activity Center. 
 

• Chief Ryan will be attending the LEPC meeting on October 28th. 
 

• The Chief will be participating in the Randolph County Health Dept. COVID-19 conference calls, if held trughout 
the month. 

448

#16.



Incident Reports By Incident Type, Summary

Incident Type Total Incidents Percent

111 - Building fire 2 1.72%

113 - Cooking fire, confined to container 1 0.86%

142 - Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire 1 0.86%

151 - Outside rubbish, trash or waste fire 1 0.86%

1511 - Household Refuse Fire 1 0.86%

1512 - Building Materials/ Demo Mat. Fire 1 0.86%

1513 - Yard Waste/ Refuse Fire 6 5.17%

1514 - Recreational Fire 3 2.59%

1601 - Fence or other outside structure 1 0.86%

1605 - Power Pole 1 0.86%

3112 - Lift Assistance 15 12.93%

3113 - Standby, No care provided 2 1.72%

Page 1 of 3October 01, 2021 08:02

449

#16.



Incident Type Total Incidents Percent

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 30 25.86%

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 2 1.72%

324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 2 1.72%

412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 6 5.17%

424 - Carbon monoxide incident 1 0.86%

444 - Power line down 1 0.86%

445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 1 0.86%

463 - Vehicle accident, general cleanup 1 0.86%

5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection 13 11.21%

5005 - CFO Inspection 4 3.45%

522 - Water or steam leak 1 0.86%

5311 - Report of odor with nothing found 9 7.76%

551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 1 0.86%

611 - Dispatched & canceled en route 3 2.59%

622 - No incident found on arrival at dispatch address 1 0.86%

661 - EMS call, party transported by non-fire agency 1 0.86%

735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 3 2.59%

743 - Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional 1 0.86%

116Total Number of Incidents:

Total Number of Incident Types: 30

Page 2 of 3October 01, 2021 08:02

450

#16.



Incident Type Total Incidents Percent

Report Filter Settings

Report File Name:

Filter Name:

Filter Expression:

Incidents by Incident Type, Summary with Major Type Graph

Last Calendar Month

[AlarmDateTime] is between '9/1/2021 12:00:00 AM' and '9/30/2021 11:59:59 PM'

Page 3 of 3October 01, 2021 08:02

451

#16.



Incident Reports by Incident Type Series, Detailed

Page 1 of 8 October 01, 2021 08:07

452

#16.



Incident # Exp # Alarm Date/Time Address

Incident Type: 1 - Fire

2100740 0 9/1/2021 1:51:36
PM

496 WOODLAND AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2100746 0 9/2/2021 4:10:09
PM

200 BERTLEY, Moberly, MO 65270

2100759 0 9/7/2021 10:21:00
PM

714 Benson ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100762 0 9/8/2021 5:22:48
PM

492 WOODLAND, Moberly, MO 65270

2100765 0 9/9/2021 8:13:04
AM

837 COATES, Moberly, MO 65270

2100783 0 9/14/2021 8:15:00
PM

407 Bertley ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100785 0 9/15/2021 12:11:59
AM

400 US 24, Moberly, MO 65270

2100788 0 9/15/2021 5:21:00
PM

County Road 1218 RD, Moberly, MO 65270

2100798 0 9/18/2021 11:15:00
PM

215 Union AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2100800 0 9/19/2021 6:28:29
PM

21 WINDSOR, Moberly, MO 65270

2100807 0 9/20/2021 8:38:27
PM

512 N Ault, Moberly, MO 65270

2100812 0 9/21/2021 5:10:00
PM

212 Walnut ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100827 0 9/24/2021 6:12:00
PM

518 Johnson ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100830 0 9/25/2021 8:15:00
PM

510 Fulton AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2100845 0 9/28/2021 2:18:00
PM

503 S Fourth ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100849 0 9/29/2021 5:15:00
PM

421 Tara Park DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2100852 0 9/30/2021 6:31:30
AM

1045 West End ST W, Moberly, MO 65270

2100853 0 9/30/2021 6:50:00
PM

1043 West End PL W, Moberly, MO 65270

18Total Incidents:

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date/Time Address

Incident Type: 3 - Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident

Page 2 of 8 October 01, 2021 08:07

453

#16.



2100738 0 9/1/2021 3:53:01
AM

224 Hinton ST #7, Moberly, MO 65270

2100743 0 9/1/2021 5:27:37
PM

1000 WILLIAMS #211, Moberly, MO 65270

2100744 0 9/1/2021 7:55:29
PM

714 COATES, Moberly, MO 65270

2100745 0 9/2/2021 1:35:28
AM

800 SINNOCK #24, Moberly, MO 65270

2100750 0 9/3/2021 7:40:00
PM

1403 MORLEY, Moberly, MO 65270

2100751 0 9/4/2021 11:18:19
AM

1355 Lantern PT, Moberly, MO 65270

2100752 0 9/4/2021 12:32:59
PM

E Highway 24 & N Highway 63, Moberly, MO

2100753 0 9/4/2021 4:59:30
PM

E Highway 24 & W Outer RD, Moberly, MO

2100754 0 9/4/2021 9:53:01
PM

111 E Coates ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100755 0 9/4/2021 10:12:03
PM

422 TAYLOR, Moberly, MO 65270

2100756 0 9/5/2021 12:59:03
PM

302 COLLEGE, Moberly, MO 65270

2100757 0 9/6/2021 6:29:21
AM

709 ROLLINS, Moberly, MO 65270

2100758 0 9/6/2021 5:17:00
PM

423 5TH, Moberly, MO 65270

2100766 0 9/9/2021 3:16:09
PM

614 WILLIAMS, Moberly, MO 65270

2100767 0 9/9/2021 7:12:00
PM

1403 Henry ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100768 0 9/10/2021 5:47:00
AM

1028 Sinnock AVE #53, Moberly, MO 65270

2100771 0 9/10/2021 3:31:00
PM

920 Henry ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100775 0 9/11/2021 6:54:47
AM

1400 BLK HULEN, Moberly, MO 65270

2100776 0 9/12/2021 2:29:00
PM

15 MCCORMICK, Moberly, MO 65270

2100778 0 9/13/2021 3:11:03
PM

941 ROLLINS, Moberly, MO 65270

2100784 0 9/14/2021 11:18:00
PM

205 205 Farror, Moberly, MO 65270

2100789 0 9/15/2021 6:46:00
PM

800 Sinnock AVE #2, Moberly, MO 65270

2100790 0 9/15/2021 6:59:00
PM

812 Franklin ST, Moberly, MO 65270

Page 3 of 8 October 01, 2021 08:07

454

#16.



2100796 0 9/18/2021 3:31:25
AM

721 BENSON, Moberly, MO 65270

2100797 0 9/18/2021 3:40:00
PM

220 Taylor ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100799 0 9/19/2021 3:02:00
AM

601 McKinley AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2100801 0 9/20/2021 4:41:22
AM

1000 WILLIAMS #201, Moberly, MO 65270

2100802 0 9/20/2021 9:42:52
AM

913 BOND, Moberly, MO 65270

2100803 0 9/20/2021 3:04:04
PM

909 PORTER, Moberly, MO 65270

2100808 0 9/21/2021 8:55:00
AM

1000 S Williams ST S, Moberly, MO 65270

2100810 0 9/21/2021 10:34:00
AM

1801 W Outer RD W, Moberly, MO 65270

2100813 0 9/21/2021 5:38:00
PM

801 Monroe AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2100815 0 9/22/2021 9:31:42
PM

800 SINNOCK #22, Moberly, MO 65270

2100816 0 9/22/2021 11:20:02
PM

1216 SHEPHERDS, Moberly, MO 65270

2100818 0 9/23/2021 4:02:25
AM

1013 BURKHART, Moberly, MO 65270

2100819 0 9/23/2021 1:10:00
PM

200 Porter ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100820 0 9/23/2021 3:56:00
PM

717 Garfield AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2100822 0 9/23/2021 7:03:04
PM

845 HOMESTEAD, Moberly, MO 65270

2100824 0 9/24/2021 8:18:00
AM

S Williams ST S & W Lee ST W, Moberly, MO

2100828 0 9/25/2021 12:18:40
PM

805 Monroe, Moberly, MO 65270

2100831 0 9/26/2021 12:31:50
AM

1222 HURLEY, Moberly, MO 65270

2100832 0 9/26/2021 4:58:41
AM

1000 S WILLIAMS STS #403, Moberly, MO 65270

2100834 0 9/26/2021 1:20:23
PM

954 meadowbrook, moberly, MO 65270

2100835 0 9/27/2021 6:23:44
AM

1216 SHEPHERDS, Moberly, MO 65270

2100838 0 9/27/2021 3:21:09
PM

AULT, Moberly, MO 65270

2100839 0 9/27/2021 5:23:00
PM

1736 Eastbrook CIR, Moberly, MO 65270

Page 4 of 8 October 01, 2021 08:07

455

#16.



2100840 0 9/27/2021 5:38:00
PM

Hwy 63 RT & EE RT, Moberly, MO

2100841 0 9/27/2021 7:53:00
PM

1625 Gratz Brown ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100842 0 9/28/2021 2:05:44
AM

715 N MORLEY ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100844 0 9/28/2021 11:52:04
AM

456 Woodland AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2100851 0 9/30/2021 3:54:13
AM

1600 ROLLINS, Moberly, MO 65270

51Total Incidents:

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date/Time Address

Incident Type: 4 - Hazardous Condition (No Fire)

2100748 0 9/3/2021 12:13:00
PM

324 Taylor ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100760 0 9/7/2021 5:15:00
PM

500 S Williams ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100763 0 9/8/2021 7:03:55
PM

1000 Kwix, Moberly, MO 65270

2100764 0 9/9/2021 1:56:24
AM

1376 Lantern Pointe, Moberly, MO 65270

2100794 0 9/17/2021 1:30:00
PM

411 Union AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2100809 0 9/21/2021 9:20:00
AM

669 N Morlery ST N #B, Moberly, MO 65270

2100823 0 9/24/2021 12:07:27
AM

38 KENNEDY, Moberly, MO 65270

2100826 0 9/24/2021 3:52:00
PM

926 W Reed ST W, Moberly, MO 65270

2100836 0 9/27/2021 9:17:00
AM

709 W Rollins ST W, Moberly, MO 65270

2100850 0 9/29/2021 6:26:53
PM

1400 S Morley ST S, Moberly, MO 65270

10Total Incidents:

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date/Time Address

Incident Type: 5 - Service Call

2100739 0 9/1/2021 12:50:00
PM

705 W Coates ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100742 0 9/1/2021 4:30:00
PM

920 S Fourth ST, Moberly, MO 65270

Page 5 of 8 October 01, 2021 08:07

456

#16.



2100747 0 9/3/2021 10:00:00
AM

301 N Morley ST #B, Moberly, MO 65270

2100749 0 9/3/2021 3:00:00
PM

459 E Burkhart ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100761 0 9/8/2021 11:17:29
AM

1016 ROLLINS, Moberly, MO 65270

2100769 0 9/10/2021 3:00:00
PM

1316 Cedar Ridge DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2100770 0 9/10/2021 3:30:00
PM

1304 N Morley ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100772 0 9/10/2021 4:00:00
PM

402 S Ault ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100773 0 9/10/2021 4:30:00
PM

817 S Morley ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100774 0 9/10/2021 7:51:00
PM

1218 Fisk AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2100777 0 9/13/2021 11:38:00
AM

1316 Cedar Ridge DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2100779 0 9/13/2021 8:47:00
PM

220 Taylor ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100781 0 9/14/2021 1:45:00
PM

522 Burkholder ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100786 0 9/15/2021 8:15:00
AM

837 Tuley RD, Moberly, MO 65270

2100791 0 9/15/2021 8:20:00
PM

220 Taylor ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100793 0 9/16/2021 1:59:00
PM

22 Westwood PL, Moberly, MO 65270

2100795 0 9/17/2021 8:14:00
PM

220 Taylor ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100805 0 9/20/2021 4:00:00
PM

2002 Silva LN, Moberly, MO 65270

2100806 0 9/20/2021 5:00:00
PM

1847 Cedar Lake DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2100814 0 9/22/2021 1:45:00
PM

524 Wescott LN, Moberly, MO 65270

2100817 0 9/23/2021 12:48:44
AM

220 TAYLOR, Moberly, MO 65270

2100821 0 9/23/2021 7:05:41
PM

220 TAYLOR, Moberly, MO 65270

2100829 0 9/25/2021 6:00:00
PM

220 Taylor ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100837 0 9/27/2021 3:12:00
PM

416 E Logan ST E, Moberly, MO 65270

2100843 0 9/28/2021 8:00:00
AM

350 Oak TER, Moberly, MO 65270

Page 6 of 8 October 01, 2021 08:07

457

#16.



2100846 0 9/28/2021 8:57:54
PM

220 Taylor ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100847 0 9/28/2021 10:15:42
PM

407 BERTLEY, Moberly, MO 65270

2100848 0 9/29/2021 2:30:00
AM

220 Taylor ST, Moberly, MO 65270

28Total Incidents:

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date/Time Address

Incident Type: 6 - Good Intent Call

2100741 0 9/1/2021 4:32:07
PM

317 W. HINTON, Moberly, MO 65270

2100782 0 9/14/2021 3:27:39
PM

300 HIGHWAY 24, Moberly, MO 65270

2100787 0 9/15/2021 10:01:00
AM

205 Farror ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100804 0 9/20/2021 3:37:50
PM

1711 MORLEY, Moberly, MO 65270

2100811 0 9/21/2021 11:47:00
AM

100 McKeown DR, Moberly, MO 65270

5Total Incidents:

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date/Time Address

Incident Type: 7 - False Alarm & False Call

2100780 0 9/14/2021 8:25:00
AM

1021 N Morley ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2100792 0 9/15/2021 11:35:00
PM

901 Union AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2100825 0 9/24/2021 3:46:00
PM

903 W Reed ST W, Moberly, MO 65270

2100833 0 9/26/2021 8:14:54
AM

1332 HIGHWAY 24, Moberly, MO 65270

4Total Incidents:

Total Number of Distict Incidents: 116

Total Number of Distict Incident Types: 30

Page 7 of 8 October 01, 2021 08:07

458

#16.



Report Filter Settings

Report File Name:

Filter Expression:

Filter Name:

Incident Reports by Incident Major Type, Detailed

Last Month

[AlarmDateTime] is between '9/1/2021 12:00:00 AM' and '9/30/2021 11:59:59 PM'

Page 8 of 8 October 01, 2021 08:07

459

#16.



Incident Reports by Time of Day, Detailed

12:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100785 0 9/15/2021 1605 - Power Pole

2100817 0 9/23/2021 5311 - Report of odor with nothing found

2100823 0 9/24/2021 412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG)

2100831 0 9/26/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 4

1:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100745 0 9/2/2021 3112 - Lift Assistance

2100764 0 9/9/2021 424 - Carbon monoxide incident

Total Number of Incidents: 2

2:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

Page 1 of 9 October 01, 2021 08:04

460

#16.



2100842 0 9/28/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100848 0 9/29/2021 5311 - Report of odor with nothing found

Total Number of Incidents: 2

3:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100738 0 9/1/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100796 0 9/18/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100799 0 9/19/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100851 0 9/30/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 4

4:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100801 0 9/20/2021 3112 - Lift Assistance

2100818 0 9/23/2021 3112 - Lift Assistance

2100832 0 9/26/2021 3112 - Lift Assistance

Total Number of Incidents: 3

5:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100768 0 9/10/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 1

6:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100757 0 9/6/2021 3112 - Lift Assistance

2100775 0 9/11/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100835 0 9/27/2021 3112 - Lift Assistance

2100852 0 9/30/2021 111 - Building fire

Total Number of Incidents: 4

Page 2 of 9 October 01, 2021 08:04

461

#16.



8:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100765 0 9/9/2021 1513 - Yard Waste/ Refuse Fire

2100780 0 9/14/2021 735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction

2100786 0 9/15/2021 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2100808 0 9/21/2021 3112 - Lift Assistance

2100824 0 9/24/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100833 0 9/26/2021 735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction

2100843 0 9/28/2021 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

Total Number of Incidents: 7

9:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100802 0 9/20/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100809 0 9/21/2021 412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG)

2100836 0 9/27/2021 412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG)

Total Number of Incidents: 3

10:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100747 0 9/3/2021 5005 - CFO Inspection

2100787 0 9/15/2021 611 - Dispatched & canceled en route

2100810 0 9/21/2021 3112 - Lift Assistance

Total Number of Incidents: 3

11:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100751 0 9/4/2021 3112 - Lift Assistance

2100761 0 9/8/2021 551 - Assist police or other governmental agency

2100777 0 9/13/2021 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2100811 0 9/21/2021 611 - Dispatched & canceled en route

Page 3 of 9 October 01, 2021 08:04

462

#16.



2100844 0 9/28/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 5

12:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100739 0 9/1/2021 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2100748 0 9/3/2021 444 - Power line down

2100752 0 9/4/2021 324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries.

2100756 0 9/5/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100828 0 9/25/2021 3112 - Lift Assistance

Total Number of Incidents: 5

1:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100740 0 9/1/2021 111 - Building fire

2100781 0 9/14/2021 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2100793 0 9/16/2021 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2100794 0 9/17/2021 412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG)

2100814 0 9/22/2021 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2100819 0 9/23/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100834 0 9/26/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 7

2:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100776 0 9/12/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100845 0 9/28/2021 151 - Outside rubbish, trash or waste fire

Total Number of Incidents: 2

3:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

Page 4 of 9 October 01, 2021 08:04

463

#16.



2100749 0 9/3/2021 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2100766 0 9/9/2021 3112 - Lift Assistance

2100769 0 9/10/2021 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2100770 0 9/10/2021 5005 - CFO Inspection

2100771 0 9/10/2021 3112 - Lift Assistance

2100778 0 9/13/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100782 0 9/14/2021 611 - Dispatched & canceled en route

2100797 0 9/18/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100803 0 9/20/2021 3112 - Lift Assistance

2100804 0 9/20/2021 661 - EMS call, party transported by non-fire agency

2100820 0 9/23/2021 3113 - Standby, No care provided

2100825 0 9/24/2021 743 - Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional

2100826 0 9/24/2021 412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG)

2100837 0 9/27/2021 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2100838 0 9/27/2021 324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries.

Total Number of Incidents: 15

4:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100742 0 9/1/2021 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2100741 0 9/1/2021 622 - No incident found on arrival at dispatch address

2100746 0 9/2/2021 113 - Cooking fire, confined to container

2100753 0 9/4/2021 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries

2100772 0 9/10/2021 5005 - CFO Inspection

2100773 0 9/10/2021 5005 - CFO Inspection

2100805 0 9/20/2021 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

Total Number of Incidents: 7

5:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100743 0 9/1/2021 3112 - Lift Assistance

2100758 0 9/6/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Page 5 of 9 October 01, 2021 08:04

464

#16.



2100760 0 9/7/2021 463 - Vehicle accident, general cleanup

2100762 0 9/8/2021 1513 - Yard Waste/ Refuse Fire

2100788 0 9/15/2021 142 - Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire

2100806 0 9/20/2021 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2100812 0 9/21/2021 1511 - Household Refuse Fire

2100813 0 9/21/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100839 0 9/27/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100840 0 9/27/2021 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries

2100849 0 9/29/2021 1513 - Yard Waste/ Refuse Fire

Total Number of Incidents: 11

6:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100789 0 9/15/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100790 0 9/15/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100800 0 9/19/2021 1601 - Fence or other outside structure

2100827 0 9/24/2021 1513 - Yard Waste/ Refuse Fire

2100829 0 9/25/2021 5311 - Report of odor with nothing found

2100850 0 9/29/2021 445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment

2100853 0 9/30/2021 1512 - Building Materials/ Demo Mat. Fire

Total Number of Incidents: 7

7:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100744 0 9/1/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100750 0 9/3/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100763 0 9/8/2021 412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG)

2100767 0 9/9/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100774 0 9/10/2021 522 - Water or steam leak

2100822 0 9/23/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100821 0 9/23/2021 5311 - Report of odor with nothing found

2100841 0 9/27/2021 3113 - Standby, No care provided

Page 6 of 9 October 01, 2021 08:04

465

#16.



Total Number of Incidents: 8

8:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100779 0 9/13/2021 5311 - Report of odor with nothing found

2100783 0 9/14/2021 1514 - Recreational Fire

2100791 0 9/15/2021 5311 - Report of odor with nothing found

2100795 0 9/17/2021 5311 - Report of odor with nothing found

2100807 0 9/20/2021 1513 - Yard Waste/ Refuse Fire

2100830 0 9/25/2021 1514 - Recreational Fire

2100846 0 9/28/2021 5311 - Report of odor with nothing found

Total Number of Incidents: 7

9:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100754 0 9/4/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100815 0 9/22/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 2

10:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100755 0 9/4/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100759 0 9/7/2021 1513 - Yard Waste/ Refuse Fire

2100847 0 9/28/2021 5311 - Report of odor with nothing found

Total Number of Incidents: 3

11:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2100784 0 9/14/2021 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2100792 0 9/15/2021 735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction

2100798 0 9/18/2021 1514 - Recreational Fire

Page 7 of 9 October 01, 2021 08:04

466

#16.



2100816 0 9/22/2021 3112 - Lift Assistance

Total Number of Incidents: 4

Page 8 of 9 October 01, 2021 08:04

467

#16.



Filter Expression:

Filter Name:

Report Name:

[AlarmDateTime] is between '9/1/2021 12:00:00 AM' and '9/30/2021 11:59:59 PM'

last month

Incident Reports by Time of Day, Detailed

Report Filter Settings

Page 9 of 9 October 01, 2021 08:04

468

#16.



Incident Reports by Apparatus, Summary

Apparatus: Total Number of Incidents Responded to:

1

300 Pickup
2007 Chevy

63

301 13

303 6

304 Contender 35

305 Contender 21

306 Reg. Cab
P/U

3

310 P/U 5

POV 1

Total Number of Incidents: 116

Page 1 of 2 October 02, 2021 08:03

469

#16.



Filter Expression:

Filter Name:

Report Name:

[AlarmDateTime] is between '9/1/2021 12:00:00 AM' and '9/30/2021 11:59:59 PM'

Last Month

Incident Reports by Apparatus, Summary

Report Filter Settings

Page 2 of 2 October 02, 2021 08:03

470

#16.



Color:
Year:
Make:

630 55 531

Color:
Year:
Make:

1041 55 750

Color:

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose
09/01/2021 816 20 25

Hydrant Number:  1W426

Location: Ault Street N, Moberly, MO Red

09/01/2021 494 10 15

Hydrant Number:  1W424

Location: Moulton N., Moberly, MO Red
District: WARD ONE Township:
Next Test Date: 09/02/2021

Hydrant Flow Tests by Hydrant Number

Hydrant Number:  1W423

Location: Ault Street N, Moberly, MO Red
District: WARD ONE Township:
Next Test Date: 09/01/2022

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

471

#16.



Year:

Make:

630 55 531

Color:
Year:
Make:

418 55 375

Color:
Year:
Make:

418 55 375

Color:
Year:

09/01/2021 328 5 10

Hydrant Number:  1W428

Location: Ault Street N, Moberly, MO Red
District: WARD ONE Township:

District: WARD ONE Township:
Next Test Date: 09/14/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/01/2021 328 5 10

Hydrant Number:  1W427

Location: Ault Street N, Moberly, MO Red

09/01/2021 494 10 15

Hydrant Number:  1W426A

Location: Ault N., Moberly, MO Red
District: WARD ONE Township:
Next Test Date: 09/14/2021

District: WARD ONE Township:

Next Test Date: 09/14/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

472

#16.



Make:

430 45 375

Color:
Year:
Make:

2002 55 993

Color:
Year:
Make:

4109 55 1126

Color:
Year:
Make:

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/25/2020

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose
09/01/2021 3219 45 50

Hydrant Number:  2W459

Location: E Rollins ST & Lotter ST, Moberly, MO Orange

09/01/2021 1569 35 40

Hydrant Number:  2W457

Location: E Rollins ST & N Morley ST, Moberly, MO Green
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/25/2020

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/25/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/01/2021 313 5 10

Hydrant Number:  2W456

Location: E Rollins ST & S Ault ST, Moberly, MO Green

Next Test Date: 09/14/2021

473

#16.



1091 50 750

Color:

Year:
Make:

418 55 375

Color:
Year:
Make:

1231 50 750

Color:
Year:
Make:

Flow
at
 

Flow
at
 

Actual 
Residual

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static Pitot Calculated 

09/01/2021 934 20 30

Hydrant Number:  2w462

Location: S Morley ST & Woodland AVE, Moberly, MO Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 06/17/2017

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/25/2020

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

09/01/2021 328 5 10

Hydrant Number:  2w461

Location: S Morley ST & E Burkhart ST, Moberly, MO Green

09/01/2021 828 20 25

Hydrant Number:  2w460

Location: E Rollins ST, Moberly, MO Red

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/25/2019

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

474

#16.



599 50 531

Color:
Year:
Make:

643 50 531

Color:
Year:
Make:

0 50 0

Color:
Year:
Make:

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 06/17/2017

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose
09/01/2021 0 0 0

Hydrant Number:  2w465

Location: 498 Woodland AVE, Moberly, MO Red

09/01/2021 488 10 15

Hydrant Number:  2w464

Location: 418 Woodland AVE, Moberly, MO Red
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 06/17/2017

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 07/01/2017

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

0 PSI 20 PSI

 

PressurePressure Pressure
 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/01/2021 454 10 10

Hydrant Number:  2w463

Location: Woodland AVE & Virginia ST, Moberly, MO Orange

475

#16.



423 50 375

Color:

Year:
Make:

3442 50 993

Color:
Year:
Make:

2192 50 919

Color:
Year:
Make:

2192 50 919

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/01/2021 1663 30 40

09/01/2021 1663 30 40

Hydrant Number:  2w468

Location: Mid 500 E. Burkhart, Moberly, MO Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 06/17/2021

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 06/17/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

09/01/2021 2612 35 45

Hydrant Number:  2w467

Location: 531 E. Burkhart, Moberly, MO Orange

09/01/2021 321 5 10

Hydrant Number:  2w466

Location: 541 Woodland AVE, Moberly, MO Orange

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 06/17/2016

476

#16.



Color:
Year:
Make:

0 50 0

Color:
Year:
Make:

643 50 531

Color:
Year:
Make:

09/07/2021

Hydrant Number:  2w472

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 06/17/2017

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

09/07/2021 488 10 15

Hydrant Number:  2w471

Location: 209 S Ault ST, Moberly, MO Orange

09/01/2021 0 0 0

Hydrant Number:  2w470

Location: E Rollins ST, Moberly, MO Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 06/17/2021

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 06/17/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Hydrant Number:  2w469

Location: E Burkhart ST, Moberly, MO Red

477

#16.



Color:
Year:

Make:

1761 50 919

Color:
Year:
Make:

856 50 650

Color:
Year:
Make:

643 50 531

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/07/2021 488 10 15

Hydrant Number:  2w475

09/07/2021 650 15 20

Hydrant Number:  2w474

Location: E Logan ST & Virginia ST, Moberly, MO Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 06/17/2021

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 06/17/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose
09/07/2021 1336 30 35

Hydrant Number:  2w473

Location: S Morley ST & E Logan ST, Moberly, MO Orange

Location: S Ault ST & E Logan ST, Moberly, MO Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:

Next Test Date: 06/17/2021

478

#16.



Color:
Year:
Make:

856 50 650

Color:
Year:
Make:

643 50 531

Color:
Year:
Make:

660 45 531
1376 50 839

09/07/2021 481 10 15
09/07/2021 1044 25 30

Hydrant Number:  2w480

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 10/20/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

09/07/2021 488 10 15

Hydrant Number:  2w478

Location: E Carpenter ST & Promenade ST, Moberly, MO Orange

09/07/2021 650 15 20

Hydrant Number:  2w476

Location: E Lee ST & Olive ST, Moberly, MO Red
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 06/17/2021

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 06/17/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

Location: S. Morely St. & E Lee ST Orange

479

#16.



Color:

Year:
Make:

423 50 375

Color:
Year:
Make:

643 50 531

Color:
Year:
Make:

893 45 650

Color:

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/07/2021 650 15 20

Hydrant Number:  2W485

Location: 515 Garfield AVE, Moberly, MO Orange

09/07/2021 488 10 15

Hydrant Number:  2W484

Location: E Carpenter ST & Garfield AVE, Moberly, MO Red
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 07/01/2021

Hydrant Number:  2W481

Location: E Logan ST & Monroe AVE, Moberly, MO Red
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 07/01/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

Next Test Date: 07/01/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

09/07/2021 321 5 10

Location: E. Carpent St. & Monroe AVE Red

District: WARD TWO Township:

480

#16.



Year:
Make:

1507 50 919

Color:
Year:
Make:

1507 50 919

Color:
Year:
Make:

1902 50 993

Color:
Year:

09/13/2021 1443 35 35

Hydrant Number:  2W488A

Location: Red
District: WARD 2 Township:

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 08/01/2017

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

09/07/2021 1144 30 30

Hydrant Number:  2W487

Location: 414 Harrison, Moberly, MO Red

09/07/2021 1144 30 30

Hydrant Number:  2W486

Location: E Logan ST & Garfield AVE, Moberly, MO Red
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 08/01/2021

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 07/01/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

481

#16.



Make:

599 50 531

Color:
Year:
Make:

2307 55 919

Color:
Year:
Make:

3187 50 919

Color:
Year:
Make:

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/30/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/13/2021 2418 30 45

Hydrant Number:  2W491A

Location: Gratz Brown 415, Moberly, MO Green

09/13/2021 1808 30 45

Hydrant Number:  2W491

Location: Logan Street E, Moberly, MO Red
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/30/2021

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/30/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose
09/13/2021 454 10 10

Hydrant Number:  2W489

Location: Carpenter & Gratzbrown, Moberly, MO Orange

Next Test Date: 08/01/2017

482

#16.



2192 50 919

Color:
Year:
Make:

2531 50 1061

Color:
Year:
Make:

599 50 531

Color:
Year:

Make:

Flow
at
 

Flow
at
 

Actual 
Residual

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static Calculated Pitot

09/15/2021 454 10 10

Hydrant Number:  2W495

Location: Morley Street S, Moberly, MO Red
District: WARD TWO Township:

Next Test Date: 09/15/2022

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/15/2022

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

09/13/2021 1921 40 40

Hydrant Number:  2W494

Location: Halleck, Moberly, MO Red

09/13/2021 1663 30 40

Hydrant Number:  2W492

Location: 415 BETTY, Moberly, MO Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/30/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

483

#16.



599 50 531

Color:
Year:
Make:

989 50 750

Color:
Year:
Make:

989 50 750

Color:
Year:
Make:

District: 2 Township: MOBERLY
Next Test Date: 09/15/2022

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/15/2021 750 20 20

Hydrant Number:  2W496A

Location: 1201 Russhaven DR, Moberly, MO 65270

09/15/2021 750 20 20

Hydrant Number:  2W496

Location: Mckinsey Street E, Moberly, MO Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/15/2022

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/15/2022

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

0 PSI 20 PSI

 

PressurePressure
 

FlowPressureTest Date Test Purpose
09/15/2021 454 10 10

Hydrant Number:  2w495A

Location: 1000 Blk Cecile, Moberly, MO Orange

484

#16.



2192 50 919

Color:
Year:
Make:

788 50 650

Color:
Year:
Make:

3903 50 1126

Color:
Year:
Make:

599 50 531

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose
09/15/2021 454 10 10

09/15/2021 2962 45 45

Hydrant Number:  2w498

Location: Halleck, Moberly, MO Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/15/2022

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/15/2022

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

09/15/2021 598 15 15

Hydrant Number:  2w497

Location: Mckinsey Street E, Moberly, MO Orange

09/15/2021 1663 30 40

Hydrant Number:  2W496B

Location: 1035 Russhaven DR, Moberly, MO 65270
District: 2 Township: MOBERLY
Next Test Date: 09/15/2022

485

#16.



Color:

Year:
Make:

1308 50 993

Color:
Year:
Make:

599 50 531

Color:
Year:
Make:

1507 50 91909/15/2021 1144 30 30

Hydrant Number:  2w501

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/15/2022

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/15/2021 454 10 10

Hydrant Number:  2w500

Location: Mckinsey Street E, Moberly, MO Orange

09/15/2021 993 35 20

Hydrant Number:  2W499A

Location: Halleck ST, Moberly, MO 65270
District: 2 Township: MOBERLY
Next Test Date: 09/15/2022

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/15/2022

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Hydrant Number:  2w499

Location: Mckinsey Street E, Moberly, MO Orange

486

#16.



Color:
Year:
Make:

599 50 531

Color:
Year:
Make:

2664 55 1061

Color:
Year:
Make:

2367 50 993

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose
09/16/2021 1797 35 40

Hydrant Number:  2w504

09/16/2021 2087 40 45

Hydrant Number:  2w503

Location: Halleck, Moberly, MO Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 10/14/2021

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 10/01/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

09/15/2021 454 10 10

Hydrant Number:  2w502

Location: Mckinsey Street E, Moberly, MO Orange

Location: Halleck, Moberly, MO Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/15/2022

487

#16.



Color:

Year:
Make:

2192 50 919

Color:
Year:
Make:

3624 55 993

Color:
Year:
Make:

1761 50 919

Color:

09/16/2021 1336 30 35

Hydrant Number:  2w507

Location: Mckinsey Street E, Moberly, MO Green

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 10/14/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/16/2021 2839 35 50

Hydrant Number:  2w506

Location: 700 Blk. Harrison, Moberly, MO Red

09/16/2021 1663 30 40

Hydrant Number:  2w505

Location: Halleck, Moberly, MO Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 10/14/2021

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 10/14/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Location: Mckinsey Street E, Moberly, MO Orange

488

#16.



Year:
Make:

3442 50 993

Color:
Year:
Make:

2367 50 993

Color:
Year:
Make:

3680 50 1061

Color:
Year:District: WARD TWO Township:

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose
09/16/2021 2793 40 45

Hydrant Number:  2w510

Location: Hulen St. & Willman St., Moberly, MO Orange

09/16/2021 1797 35 40

Hydrant Number:  2w509

Location: Hulen DR, Moberly, MO Green
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 10/14/2021

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 10/14/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

09/16/2021 2612 35 45

Hydrant Number:  2w508

Location: Halleck, Moberly, MO Green

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 10/14/2021

489

#16.



Make:

3680 50 1061

Color:
Year:
Make:

3442 50 993

Color:
Year:
Make:

989 50 750

Color:
Year:
Make:

09/27/2021 Annual Flow Test 750 20 20

Hydrant Number:  2w512a

Location: Wescott  (South End) & Hulen DR Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/16/2017

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/16/2017

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/16/2021 2612 35 45

Hydrant Number:  2w512

Location: Hulen & Wescott, Moberly, MO Orange

09/16/2021 2793 40 45

Hydrant Number:  2w511

Location: Weintz & Hulen Dr, Moberly, MO Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 10/14/2021

Next Test Date: 10/14/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

490

#16.



1091 50 750

Color:
Year:
Make:

1004 60 750

Color:
Year:
Make:

1475 60 919

Color:
Year:

Make:

District: WARD TWO Township:

Next Test Date: 07/06/2017

Flow
at
 

Flow
at
 

Actual 
Residual

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static Calculated Pitot

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose
09/27/2021 1185 30 35

Hydrant Number:  2w515

Location: E of Cat E Rollins ST, Moberly, MO Orange

09/27/2021 807 20 25

Hydrant Number:  2w514

Location: W of Cat E Rollins ST, Moberly, MO Green
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 10/18/2014

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 09/16/2014

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/27/2021 828 20 25

Hydrant Number:  2w513

Location: 1218 E Logan ST, Moberly, MO Green

491

#16.



591 55 531

Color:
Year:
Make:

1004 60 750

Color:
Year:
Make:

856 50 650

Color:
Year:
Make:

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/27/2021 650 15 20

Hydrant Number:  2w518

Location: 1637 Eastbrook CIR, Moberly, MO Red
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 07/06/2017

District: WARD THREE Township:
Next Test Date: 07/06/2017

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/27/2021 807 20 25

Hydrant Number:  2w517

Location: 1613 Eastbrook CIR, Moberly, MO Orange

09/27/2021 463 10 10

Hydrant Number:  2w516

Location: 535 Meadowbrook DR, Moberly, MO Green
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 07/06/2017

0 PSI 20 PSI

 

PressurePressure
 

FlowPressureTest Date Test Purpose

492

#16.



599 50 531

Color:
Year:
Make:

677 55 531

Color:
Year:
Make:

902 55 650

Color:
Year:
Make:

1091 50 75009/27/2021 828 20 25

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 08/26/2017

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose
09/27/2021 706 15 25

Hydrant Number:  2w521

Location: 1626 Prarie Ln., Moberly, MO Orange

09/27/2021 531 10 20

Hydrant Number:  2W520

Location: 1818 Eastbrook CIR, Moberly, MO Orange
District: Township:
Next Test Date: 08/26/2017

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 07/06/2017

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

09/27/2021 454 10 10

Hydrant Number:  2w519

Location: 1712 Eastbrook CIR, Moberly, MO Red

493

#16.



Color:

Year:
Make:

1761 50 919

Color:
Year:
Make:

630 55 531

Color:
Year:
Make:

1376 50 839

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/27/2021 1044 25 30

Hydrant Number:  2w525

09/27/2021 494 10 15

Hydrant Number:  2w524

Location: 631 Meadowbrook CIR, Moberly, MO Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 11/03/2021

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 11/03/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

09/27/2021 1336 30 35

Hydrant Number:  2w523

Location: 527 Meadowbrook CIR, Moberly, MO Orange

Hydrant Number:  2w522

Location: 1930 Eastbrook CIR, Moberly, MO Orange

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 08/26/2017

494

#16.



Color:
Year:
Make:

945 50 650

Color:
Year:
Make:

945 50 650

Color:
Year:
Make:

1149 55 75009/28/2021 900 20 30

Hydrant Number:  2w527

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 11/03/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose
09/28/2021 717 15 25

Hydrant Number:  2w526

Location: 639 Meadowbrook DR, Moberly, MO Orange

09/28/2021 717 15 25

Hydrant Number:  2w525a

Location: 763 Meadowbrook CIR, Moberly, MO Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 11/03/2021

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 11/03/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Location: 715 Meadowbrook CIR, Moberly, MO Orange

495

#16.



Color:

Year:
Make:

1231 50 750

Color:
Year:
Make:

2192 50 919

Color:
Year:
Make:

2962 60 1126

Color:

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/28/2021 2380 45 50

Hydrant Number:  2w530

Location: 1400blk Mckinsey Street E, Moberly, MO Green

09/28/2021 1663 30 40

Hydrant Number:  2w529

Location: 1300 blk Mckinsey Street E, Moberly, MO Green
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 07/14/2017

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 11/03/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

09/28/2021 934 20 30

Hydrant Number:  2W528

Location: Amanda DR, Moberly, MO Orange

Location: 725 Weintz ST, Moberly, MO Orange

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 11/03/2021

496

#16.



Year:
Make:

1231 50 750

Color:
Year:
Make:

1231 50 750

Color:
Year:
Make:

1663 60 919

Color:
Year:

09/28/2021 1336 30 40

Hydrant Number:  2w533

Location: Hwy. 63 S. of Mckinsey ---N. s, Moberly, MO Green
District: WARD TWO Township:

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 11/03/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

09/28/2021 934 20 30

Hydrant Number:  2w532

Location: 802 McKinsey Place, Moberly, MO Orange

09/28/2021 934 20 30

Hydrant Number:  2w531

Location: 600 McKinsey Place, Moberly, MO Orange
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 11/03/2021

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 11/03/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose

497

#16.



Make:

1943 60 919

Color:
Year:
Make:

1854 55 919

Color:
Year:
Make:

1663 60 919

Color:
Year:
Make:

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 11/04/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

09/28/2021 1336 30 40

Hydrant Number:  2w536

Location: Hwy 63 at Old Steak Resturant, Moberly, MO Green

09/28/2021 1452 30 40

Hydrant Number:  2w535

Location: Rollins Street E, Moberly, MO Green
District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 11/04/2021

District: WARD TWO Township:
Next Test Date: 11/04/2021

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Calculated 

Flow
Pitot

PressureTest Date Test Purpose
09/28/2021 1561 30 45

Hydrant Number:  2w534

Location: Rollins Street E, Moberly, MO Orange

Next Test Date: 11/03/2021

498

#16.



1663 60 91909/28/2021 1336 30 40

Report Filter Settings

Report Name: Hydrant Flow Tests by Test Date
Filter Name: Last Month
Filter Expression: [TestDate] is between '9/1/2021 12:00:00 AM' and '9/30/2021 11:59:59 PM'

 October 01, 2021 07:00 Page 1 of 1

Flow
at

0 PSI

Flow
at

20 PSI

Actual 
Residual
Pressure

FLOW TEST SUMMARY
Static

Pressure
Pitot

Pressure
Calculated 

FlowTest Date Test Purpose

499

#16.



2021 2020
Thompson Campground 259 Daily(180) Monthly(13) Tent(66) 219

Misc Thompson Campground $0 $180

Miscellaneous Park Fees $660.00
Complex Lights($20) Dump 

Station(2) Memorial Trees(2)
$115.80

Overnight Fishing Passes 0 2

Paddleboat Rental 22 0

Canoe Storage $50.00 Boat Storage(2) $25.00

Archery Range - -

Overlook & Plaza - -

Midway - -

Agricultural Barns - -

Equestrian Area/

Rodeo Ground
1

4-H Equestrian rental(1)
0

James Youth Center 5

Baby Shower(1) 4-H Meeting(1) 

Fair Board Meeting(1) Private 

Gatherings(2)

11

Lodge 5

Wedding(2, 1 for 2 days) Family 

Reunion(1) RCDD Picnic(1)Bridal 

Shower(1 res. 2 days) 

5

Lion's Beuth Park - -

Fox Park (entire) - -

Tannehill Park 0 1

Depot Park 1
Internal: Hold for Homecoming 

Weekend Activities(1 res. 2 days)
-

Rothwell Park 5K / Complex 5K 1 MHS Cross Country Invitational(1) 0

2021 2020
HHAC Entire Complex 1 MHS Cross Country Invitational(1) 0

Red 1 1
Internal: Internal: Block for MHS 

Cross Country Invitational(1)
0

Red 2 1
Internal: Internal: Block for MHS 

Cross Country Invitational(1)
0

Blue 1 9

Little Spartan Football Practices(7 

days of Practices) Drone Qualifying 

Race(1) Internal: Block for MHS 

Cross Country Invitational(1)

13

Blue 2 2

Drone Qualifying Race(1) Internal: 

Block for MHS Cross Country 

Invitational(1)

1

Blue 3 9

Little Spartan Football Practices(7 

days of practices) Drone Qualifying 

Race(1) Internal: Block for MHS 

Cross Country Invitational(1)

11

Green 1 1
Internal: Block for MHS Cross 

Country Invitational(1)
0

Green 2 1
Internal: Block for MHS Cross 

Country Invitational(1)
0

Green 3 2

Internal: Hold for field work(1) 

Block for MHS Cross Country 

Invitational(1)

12

Green 4 1
Internal: Block for MHS Cross 

Country Invitational(1)
0

Monthly Report

September 2021

Fi
e

ld
s/

C
o

u
rt

s 
(P

le
as

e 
n

o
te

 G
am

e
s/

Sc
h

e
d

u
le

s 
ar

e 
fl

u
e

n
t 

d
u

e 
to

 w
ea

th
e

r)
P

ar
ks

500

#16.



Green 5 17

Fall Coed Slow-Pitch Softball(16 

games) Internal: Block for MHS 

Cross Country Invitational(1)

8

Green 6 1
Internal: Block for MHS Cross 

Country Invitational(1)
0

Groeber 2 Softball Practice(2) 5

Meinert 5 Adult Softball Practice(5) 1

Patrick 0 1

Fox Field 0 1

Fox Park Pickleball/ Tennis Courts 2 Private Pickleball court rentals(2) 5

Batting Cages 1
Internal: Block for MHS Cross 

Country Invitational(1)
0

Shelter 1 Tennis Courts - -

Wilhite Tennis Courts - -

2021 2020

Shelter 1 5

Family Reunion(1) Private 

Gathering(2) Church Service(1) 

Church Picnic(1)

3

Shelter 3 1 Baby Shower(1) 3

Shelter 5 5
Birthday Party(3) Company 

Lunch(1) Private Gathering(1)
1

Fox Park Shelter 2 Birthday Party(2) 3

Klein Shelter 4
Family Reunion(1) Birthday 

Party(2) Baby Shower(1)
1

Lake Pavilion 7

Private Gatherings(4) Family 

Reunion(1) Church Service(1) Baby 

Shower(1)

5

Riley Pavilion 1 RCDD Picnic(1) 2

Meditation Garden and Legacy 

Overlook
- -

Depot Park Shelter 1 Class Reunion(1) 0

2021 2020

A
u

d
it

o
ri

u
m

Entire Facility 5

Patriot Day Commemoration(1) 

Wedding(1 res. 2 days) Internal: 

Tuck Pointing(1 res. 8 days) Junk 

Junktion Parking(1 res. 3 days) City 

Health Fair Setup(1)

2

2021 2020

Entire Facility - -

2021 2020

Homecoming Weekend Festival

Estimated 

attendance 

is 6,000

Junk Junktion, Gus Macker, 

Bicenntenial Train Robbery 

Reenactment, Depot Park 

Activities(bounce houses, face 

painter, caricature drawings, 

Trolley

No Activities 

Scheduled for 

September 

2020

R
e

cr
e

at
io

n
A

q
u

at
ic

 C
e

n
te

r

Party Area --

Sh
e

lt
e

rs
Fi

e
ld

s/
C

o
u

rt
s 

(P
le

as
e 

n
o

te
 G

am
e

s/
Sc

h
e

d
u

le
s 

ar
e 

fl
u

e
n

t 
d

u
e 

to
 w

ea
th

e
r)

501

#16.



Director – Troy Bock 

 Water’s Edge finished the design and bid documents and has sent the splash pad out for 

bids. They used generic descriptions on features to allow some flexibility for contractors 

and their subcontractors and we can adjust final feature appearances in the end. There are 

limited options available to capture the train theme with a little variety, so we largely had 

to go with what was available. 

 The 3D tour was completed at the miniature railroad and launched. 

 OnMedia finished their second video shoot and are working on the update to the 

Rothwell Park web video. Aside from updates and additions on our offerings, they will be 

paring the video down from the old 10-minute video to a 2–3-minute video highlighting 

are most important amenities. 

 We are continuing discussions with ESP regarding the solar pavilion. We hope to receive 

a proposal soon to get it moving forward. 

 Dirk and I met with Tony Harlan on lighting options at Candy Cane City. Dirk will 

continue those discussions and see what we can work out. Utilities, landscape, the trail, 

and the size of the playground are limiting factors, but we will find a solution in 

coordination with Harlan. 

 Attended a few sessions virtually at the annual NRPA conference.  

 Met Ameren at the Auditorium to discuss the regulator in the alley which was faulty, 

causing issues with our boiler in the past. It has now been replaced so hopefully we will 

not have boiler issues this winter. 

 Discussed with Smith H/C adding heat packs to the downstairs A/C units to provide us 

backup heat for the basement. They will send a proposal soon. 

 We were disappointed with our previous fire extinguisher company both in terms of cost 

and performance. Greg rebid for the City as a whole and a local company owned by Jerry 

Swartz was far more affordable than our previous vendor and has a good track record so 

they will handle this going forward.  

 

Administration – Leslie Keeney  

 Processed bills and timesheets for the department. 

 Set-Up trip with ICAN clients, going to the Runge Nature Center in Jefferson City in 

October. 

 Attended various sessions online at the National Recreation and Park Association 

conference. 

 Continued working to rectify elevator issues with Todd. 

 Set-up annual inspection of department backflows. 

 Oversaw day to day operations of Parks and Recreation Office. 

 
Dirk Miller – Park Superintendent 

 Painted Dugouts at Patrick and Meinert ball fields; applied Penofin to “new” up rights at 

Lodge, Shelters 1 & 3, and to carved bear at mini railroad. 

 Removed fountain in Rothwell Lake as it had the wires cut. 

 Received Memorial Benches for Don Orscheln, Louie & Edna Calderello, which will go 

to Heritage Hills Golf Course, where we recently poured two new pads. Tamara 

Shepherd bench is done and will need to be installed. 

 Installed “new” temporary Disc Golf signage on six holes in time for Disc Golf 

tournament.  

 Met with contractor for new solar building. 

502

#16.



 Had contractors water blasting and painting on Pool which is now finished. Removed all 

umbrellas and stored chairs, etc. for winter. Removed plantings from area in front of 

Guard House and replaced with concrete. Relocated plants and mulch. 

 Sprayed for weeds in Park, and Lilly Pads/Algae on both Rothwell and Works Lakes. 

Water tests also performed. 

 Cut down large dead Oak tree at south entrance to Meditation Garden. Trimmed tree with 

dead branches at Rothwell Boat Ramp. 

 Fixed Dog Park light by gates. Cleaned up after vandals Labor Day weekend and the 

weekend after. Started on new Christmas displays we received from the prison for 

Altrusa. 

 Hired Pete Agree and Tony Harlan to dig up and fix a broken wire at the Complex. Tony 

is to work on light pole at Meinert for additional outlets for Altrusa displays. Will meet 

with Deb Derbovan of Ameren to discuss power at Tannehill.  

 Meeting with potential contractors for painting Pool slide. 

 

Jacob Bunten – Athletic Complex Supervisor/Sports Manager  

Athletic Complex:  

 Continued holding Little Spartans football practice on Tuesday and Thursday nights from 

6 pm to 8 pm on Blue 1 and Blue 3 football fields.  

 Hosted the Moberly Cross Country Invitational on September 30th. Over 400 runners 

participated.  

 Field amendments were completed on Green fields 3 and 4.  

Sports: 

 Competitive Adult Softball league is held on Tuesday nights on Green field 5.  

 

Amanda White/Jenna Kitchen – Recreation  

Concessions: 

 Pepsi came out and winterized equipment. Staff deep cleaned guard room/concessions 

area. 

 Had high school cross country meet and Lewis & Clark Softball Tournament. Will be 

getting Pepsi out to winterize concessions. Had staff deep clean concessions area. Will 

send back whatever leftover product we can and then use items for Trick-or-Treat Trail 

and look into selling to surrounding schools. 

Events 

 Moberly’s Homecoming Festival went great!! The trolley shuttled approx. 200 people 

just on Saturday between downtown and Rothwell Park. The mini train had approx. 550 

riders. Our face painter and caricaturist had good a turn out. We are excited for next year 

to make it even better!  

 Updates/Edits to the 2022 Activity Guide are being made. Will be getting the 1st draft 

sent to Art Department shortly.  

Aquatics: 

 Closed for the season.  

503

#16.



Director of Utilities Monthly Report 
September 2021 (Presented at the October Meeting) 

 

Director’s Summary 

During September multiple meetings, discussions, a radio interview, familiarizations with Moberly Policies & Procedures 

took up a good chunk of the Director’s time.  Department staff as well as other city staff have been amazingly helpful in 

learning all of these and the City of Moberly.  Visited with multiple consultants and contractors to immerse myself with 

current projects and projects on the planning board to follow the current projects.  Worked with staff to make routine 

tasks routine, and to identify opportunities for efficiency and to formalize policies and procedures within the Utilities 

Department. 

Route JJ Sewer Extension:  Siting for the pump stations and routing for the individual force mains is complete.  Survey 

work is underway; more than 18,000 linear feet of survey needs to be done. The critical remaining task is the completion 

of easements from over 40 property owners affected by the project. Once easements have been obtained then the 

construction portion can be bid and construction scheduled. 

EDA Infrastructure Grant:  Project update meetings are now held bi-weekly with Jacobs Engineering to track progress 

and make sure items are addressed timely.  The stormwater project for the Industrial Park is not a Jacobs project.  The 

five (5) projects include and the status of each is: 

 Morley St. Pump Station Retrofit – Survey complete; design underway.  

 North Morley Water Main Loop – Survey complete, Jacobs had concern that surveyors picked up all utilities 

within the congested right-of-way on Highway 24.  Close to having 100% documents finished. 

 Sturgeon and Rollins Water Main Replacement – Survey work is complete, design underway.  Close to having 

50% plans finished. 

 Downtown Sewer Rehab – Working on RFQ for CCTV work and preparing maps of area to be CCTV’d. 

 Downtown CSO Storage Facility – Survey is complete.  Geotech work is complete.  Design nearing completion. 

Sugar Creek Lake Dam Grout Project:  The Lake is declining due to lack of rainfall.  Water level has dropped sufficiently 

to resume final grouting. Jacobs Engineering is in the process of drafting a change order to complete work once levels 

drop to an acceptable level.  

Utility Dept. Staffing:  The Department is not fully staffed at this time.   

Matt Everts, Water plant Chief Operator, received the 2021 Robert S Miller Award from the Missouri Water and 

Wastewater Conference.  

  “For Outstanding Devotion, Dedication, Loyalty, Leadership and Exceptional Service…” 

 

504

#16.



Dept. Summary: 

Drinking water produced:               32.730 MG (1.091 MG/Day) 

Wastewater Treated:                29.390 MG (0.980 MG/Day) 

Wastewater from Combined Sewer Overflows:              0.00 MG 

Total precipitation for September                     1.44 inches 

 

Wastewater Treatment Facility 

 Treated 29.390 MGM an average of 0.980 MGD. 

 Transferred 1,999,525 gallons of sludge from the SBRs to the digesters. 

 Land applied 552,398 gallons of biosolids on the land application field at WWTP. 

 1.44 inches of rain fell over a 3-day period 

 No discharge from Taylor CSO (outfall 002). 

 No discharge from Rollins CSO (outfall 003). 

 No discharge from Seven Bridges CSO (outfall 004). 

 No discharge from Holman Rd CSO (outfall 005).  

 Oros Environmental completed the Taylor CSO biosolids removal project. 

 Willis Bros. cleaned out the sludge from SHB#2 at WWTP and replaced 340 diffuser valves, the project order was 10 

valves short, the vendor has been contacted to complete the order and will complete installation upon valve 

delivery. 

 Vandevanter Engineering installed a new SCADA system at WWTP. 

 Brush hogging was done on biosolids fields to prepare for land improvements. 

 KimHEC has been working on the final drafts of the Pretreatment Ordinances and Enforcement Response Plan (ERP) 

for MoDNR review.  

 Held project kick-off meeting with Jacob’s Engineering for Digester #1 rehab project.  

 September 23, 2021 grease was discovered at Rollins Pumpstation. After investigation, it was coming from grease 

build-up at Morley Pump Station. This station collects wastewater from Swift Prepared Foods.  

 Barr Engineering was contracted to perform a Local Limits review required by DNR for the pretreatment program. 

Water Plant 

 9-4 Leak on the 300 block of Reed was reported to Matt by the City Manager.  

 9-5 Ran plant through the night due to loss of water. 

 Matt attended a MWWC annual business meeting via zoom. He was awarded the 2021 Robert S Miller award during 
the meeting. 

 
  Water Quality Coordinator   

Hazardous Waste 

 Accepted 2084.4 lbs hazardous waste into the Household Hazardous Waste Facility 

 Stabilized and disposed of 670.4 lbs non-reusable materials 

 Distributed 1077.65 lbs of recycled material to Moberly residents for reuse 

 Managed Open Household Hazardous Waste Day on September 11th 

 Cleaned and organized Household Hazardous Waste Facility 

 Organized delivery of HHW return 

 
505

#16.



 

Public Education and Involvement    

 Made appointments with Moberly residents at Household Hazardous Waste Facility 

 Met with Moberly High School Adventure Club to clean up trash and evaluate stream health 

 Created anti-grease handout for food truck events 

 Wrote brief introduction to rain gardens for social media 

 

Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination 

 Performed water quality monitoring of Rothwell Lake and Waterworks Lake 

 Responded to an illicit discharge report 

 Investigated potential SSO 

 

Construction Stormwater Runoff Control 

 Performed 22 regular construction inspections 

 Performed Land Disturbance Inspections for all Land Disturbance sites 

 Performed post-construction inspection for LVS at Cobblestone Creek 

 Met with Edgar Luna from ES&S at airport 

 

Post-Construction Stormwater Controls 

 Cleaned weeds and trash out of city hall rain gardens 

 Met with Moberly residents about post-construction runoff issues 

 Responded to complaint forms about stormwater issues 

 Contacted Crockett Engineering about future development at high school 

 

Municipal Good Housekeeping 

 Provided stormwater training to Police Department 

 Performed annual Stormwater inspection of Police Department 

 Met with representative from MEC to survey city sites for SOPs 

 

Education and Certifications 

 Registered for BMP Webinar 

 Worked with Master Gardeners to learn about native plants 

506

#16.



MAEDC Economic Development Report 

September 19, 2021 – October 16, 2021 

 

Goals from Last Month 

• (Complete) Assist with planning and attend the September 23 Leadership NE 

Workshop Conference. 

• (Complete) Attend the Veterans Business Project presentation on September 

17. 

• (Complete) Attend the PGAV Planning session in Fayette on September 20. 

• (Complete) Participate in the NEMO Manufacturer’s Infinity Robotics Zoom 

call. 

• (Complete) Finalize draft of Project Medical development agreement 

• (Complete) Host Downtown Moberly Hotel site visit 

• (Complete) Meet with Alpha Media regarding their web marketing product 

Business Growth 

• Connected Anastasia Tiedemann, SBDC counselor, with a potential Moberly 

entrepreneur. 

• Checked in with Jason Monnig, Monnig Industries. Provided him information 

regarding the FEMA/SEMA disaster declaration process. 

• Spoke with Luke Dieterle, Mid-MO Regional Planning Commission regarding 

an update of their conversations with a Fayette entrepreneur seeking to use 

their revolving loan fund. 

• Met with a Mid-Missouri based organization considering expanding a 

manufacturing operation to Moberly. Project has a facility under contract and 

is in the due diligence period. 

• Conducted the downtown hotel site visit which allowed for 3 local banks to 

meet with the prospect. Received positive feedback from the banks about 

their potential interest in the project. Traded several revisions to the 

development agreement back and forth with the developer. 

• Toured a large downtown redevelopment project with a local developer. 

Developer had interest in moving forward and began work on a 

comprehensive development agreement. Met with the developer and the City 

to work out questions. 

• Met with a prospective local entrepreneur about opening a downtown retail 

business. Prospect has secured real estate and began remodeling with plans 

to open in 2022. 

• Completed draft of development agreement on Project Medical and shared 

with the prospect. 

• Received project information from Moberly Natural Crush. Facility is 

progressing and targeting an operational start of December 2021. 

507

#16.



Business & Community Partnership 

• Conference call with Austin Consulting regarding planning for the last 

transference of Chapter 100 bond paperwork. Plan to be complete by 

November 2021. 

• Met with Bartlett and West, and City of Moberly regarding rail capabilities at 

MAIP. Engineers assessed the rail assets and gave advice on how best to 

utilize rail moving forward. 

• Assisted with publication of invitation to bid for Tannehill Apartments on 

social media. 

• Sent out courtesy email reminders and certified letters to multiple Moberly 

CID PPI grant recipients reminding them of contract requirements. 

• Provided CID Board a memorandum outlining three new PPI applications. 

• Provided Tom Sanders, City of Moberly, a list of investments made in various 

Downtown Depot District properties. 

• Worked with Tom Sanders, City of Moberly, to develop a new window 

program scoring rubrics. 

• Worked with several PPI grant recipients to answer questions or process 

reimbursement requests. 

• Met with the Howard County Commission to discuss a potential easement at 

the Howard County Industrial Park. 

• Attended the PGAV City of Fayette Revitalization Plan briefing to Fayette 

community leaders.  

• Attended Veterans Business Project presentation at CMU in Fayette. Followed 

up with presenter Lynn Lowder regarding their veteran onboarding process. 

• Assisted Higbee City Clerk Shelly Stewart-Luth to identify a potential city 

grant writer. 

• Michael and Randy met with Doug Burnett, Monroe County IDA, to discuss 

their future engagement with MAEDC. 

• Joined City of Moberly leadership, and Russ Freed, Orscheln Property 

Management, for introductions and discussions with Mark Miles, the new 

Orschlen Executive VP. 

Regional Engagement 

• Met with Lauren Mann, field representative for Congresswoman Vicky 

Hartzler. 

• Randy participated as a speaker on the Leadership NE Missouri Workforce 

Session panel. 

• Participated on two NE Regional Manufacturing Roundtable Zoom calls. 

• Conference call with Justin Erickson of Community Venture Network 

Internal Development and Marketing 

• Met with Les Tuttle of Alpha Media to discuss web marketing solutions they 

provide. Scheduled follow up conversation. 

508

#16.



• Touched base with multiple large Moberly employers to obtain their current 

employee head count. 

• Provided a brief update and extended discussion invitations to numerous 

MAEDC Industrial Club members. 

• Interviewed by Notionfront for latest videos 

Goals for Next Month 

• Complete fall BRE visits and conversations 

• Officially roll out the Moberly CID window program 

• Finalize development agreement on Project Medical 

• Finalize development agreement with downtown redevelopment project 

• Host follow up meeting with Mid-Missouri prospect that is in due diligence 

phase of facility they have purchased 

• Receive feedback on feasibility study for Project North 

• Host conference call with hotel feasibility study consultant to update pro 

forma with latest numbers 

• Finalize 2022 Industrial Club mailing literature 

509

#16.



Social Media stats

October Report
2021

Likes/Follows

Blue is Facebook
Gold is instagram
grey is twitter

Rothwell Park Landscapes

58 likes

Top Posts for October

J
a
n

Fe
b

M
a
r
c
h

A
p
r
il

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
l
y

A
u
g

S
e
p
t

O
c
t

7,500 

5,000 

2,500 

0 

Gus Macker photos

10,131

510

#16.



Facebook/Instagram

Medium Date Ad Ran Reach

August 4 - Sept 3

Impressions Likes Comments Shares

93,722 210,094 87 4 0 $364.99

Amount Spent

Facebook/Instagram

Medium Date Ad Ran Reach

Aug 17-Sept 3

Impressions Likes Comments Shares

88,809 136,756 22 0 4 $300

Amount Spent

paid Media stats/
Missouri Division of Tourism Ads

2

511

#16.



Facebook/Instagram

Medium Date Ad Ran Reach

Sept 3 - Sept 30

Impressions Likes Comments Shares

67,474 155,032 213 17 93 $794.09

Amount Spent

Missouri Life Magazine

Medium Issue Subscribers

September 29,699 $1,686.00

Amount Spent

paid Media stats/
Missouri Division of Tourism Ads

Show Me Missouri Fall Issue 24,000 $1,225.00

3
512

#16.



paid Media stats/
Missouri Division of Tourism Ads

KTVO - Kirksville

Medium Date Ad Ran Ad Spots

40

Reach

Hulu Sept 18-Sept 25

Sept 18-Sept 25

Amount Spent

$2,000.00

$2,000.00

24,662

Digital

print

Total:

SEM

Media

Radio

2019 2020

$10,644.12 $8,530.54

$800.00 $1,200.00

$4,998.00

Billboard $2,000.000

$1,332.93 $3,465.62

$12,777.05 $23,184.15

Show me strong digital $2,989.99

0

0

2021

$5,808.00

$15,341.01

$1,422.01

$4,111.00

2021 Ad Spend

Commercials $4,000.00

4

513

#16.



Owned communication assets

Updated tourism website to reflect updates/changes

Continued adding 2021 & started asking partners for 2022

events

Created graphics, videos and all other social media posts

Campground stays

5

Report is one month behind due to
ongoing rentals for the current month.

Total:

March AprilJan

22

Feb

Monthly Rentals

Daily Rentals

11 11

37

33 48

11

72

83

8

120

128

May

10

111

121

Tent Stays 16

June

8

190

223

23

July

11

150

182

21

March AprilJan

1,724

Feb

Website Views 1,240 3,462 5,529

May

4,041

June

4,920

July

3,011

August

2,574

August

79

12

7

98

Sept.

3,690

Sept

180

13

66

193

514

#16.



AprilItem # Description

102.000.521:
 Advertising

Total:

102.000.540:
Contract Labor

102.000.541:
Administrative Fees

Jan

102.000.550:
Consultant Contract

$1,500

$5,000

$583

$417

$7,083

Feb

$1,500

$5,000

$583

$417

$7,083

$1,500

$5,000

$583

$417

$7,083

March

$1,500

$5,000

$583

$417

$7,083

$1,500

$5,000

$583

$417

$7,083

May June

$1,500

$5,000

$583

$417

$7,083 $7,083

$417

$583

$5,000

$1,500

July

Executed Gus Macker and Junk Junktion, held a recap meeting with

partners and we have started on ideas/improvements for 2022

Attended Mark Twain Regional Council of Governments Annual

Meeting

Passed out materials at Northeast Commissioner Meeting held in

Moberly

Moberly was the host site for a disc golf tournament over the first

weekend in October

Additional items

planned activites

Began working on Moberly's Christmas

Festival soliciting vendors, marketing the

parade and online fundraiser for Christmas

decorations

 monthly billing

6

$7,083

$417

$583

$5,000

$1,500

August Sept

$7,083

$417

$583

$5,000

$1,500

Oct

$7,083

$417

$583

$5,000

$1,500

515

#16.


	Top
	#1.	Approval Of Minutes.
	2021-09-15 Council Retreat -DRAFT
	2021-09-20 Special Council Meeting with Enterprise Fleet Management 5pm -DRAFT
	2021-09-20 Council Meeting 6pm - DRAFT
	2021-10-04 Council Meeting - DRAFT
	2021-10-07 Special Joint Council Meeting with Moberly Area EDC -DRAFT

	#2.	Request From The YMCA To Hold The 2021 Turkey Trot 5K November 25, 2021.
	Turkey Trot 2021
	Turkey Trot

	#3.	Receipt Of Bids For Demolition Of Accessory Building.
	Accessory Bldg Demo Summary Sheet
	Advertisement of Bids Acc Structures
	Bid Opening
	Bid Tab

	#4.	Receipt Of Bids For Lease-Purchase Financing For New 2022 Rosenbauer Pumper And Used 2006 Sutphen Aerial (Ladder) Fire Trucks.
	Agenda item form - fire truck lease-purchase bids
	Bid Tabulation - Fire Trucks - Council

	#5.	An Ordinance Adopting The Recommendation Of The Planning And Zoning Commission To Approve The Re-Zoning Application Of Redhead Properties Family Trust For Property Located At 317 Patton Street.
	Re-zoning 317 Patton St Ord Summary Sheet
	Re-zoning 317 Patton Ordinance
	Application 317 Patton
	Map 317 Patton
	Staff Report-317 Patton

	#6.	A Resolution Accepting The Bid And Authorizing Contracting With Wiedeman Dozing, LLC For Demolition Of Four Accessory Structures.
	Acc Bldg Demo Res Summary Sheet
	Acc Demo Resolution
	Bid Opening
	Bid Tab

	#7.	A Resolution Authorizing A Lease Termination Agreement And Two Hangar Leases With Graves And Zandra Sandford And Nancy Rivera.
	Graves Sandford Lease Summary Sheet
	Sandford Lease Resolution
	Lease Termination Agreement Revised
	Sandford Lease Agreement new
	Sandford Lease Agreement #2

	#8.	A Resolution Accepting The Proposal Of Rosenbauer South Dakota, LLC For Rental Of A Fire Pumper Truck And Ratifying The Execution Of A Lease Agreement.
	Lease of Fire Truck Summary Sheet
	Rosenbauer Resolution #2
	Heiman Fire and Rosenbauer Signed Lease Agreement (10-8-21)
	Lease Truck Pic 2
	Lease Truck Pic 1

	#9.	A Resolution Accepting The Bid Of Moberly Motors For A Fire Command Supervisor Vehicle In The Total Amount Of $38,655.00.
	City of Moberly City Council Agenda Summary - New Supervisor Vehicle - FY22
	City of Moberrly City Council - Fire Command Supervisor Vehicle Resolution
	Resolution Paperwork for Command Vehicle Consideration (9-28-21)

	#10.	A Resolution Authorizing The Purchase Of A New Engine Pumper For The Moberly Fire Department
	New Engine Purchase Summary Sheet for Resolution
	Engine Pumper Resolution
	Heiman Fire - Moberly, MO Sourcewell Proposal
	Heiman Fire - Fire Truck Financing Proposal - Moberly-092921
	Heiman Fire - Bid Book Warranty Pages - Moberly, MO
	Heiman Fire - Bid Book Apparatus Specs - Moberly, MO
	Heiman Fire - Bid Book Chassis Specs - Moberly MO

	#11.	A Resolution Authorizing The Purchase Of A 2006 Sutphen Aerial Truck For The Moberly Fire Department.
	Used Aerial Truck Purchase Summary Sheet for Resolution
	Council Summary Sheet - Used Aerial Summary Memo
	Used Aerial Truck Resolution - October 18, 2021 Council Meeting
	2006 Sutphen 100 ft. Tower

	#12.	A Resolution Authorizing The Submission Of A Proposed Ordinance For Pretreatment Modifications To The Missouri Department Of Natural Resources
	IPP Draft Code Summary for Review
	Pretreatment Submission Resolution
	2021-10.05 MoberlyERPDNRSubmittal
	2021-10.05Moberly_Chapter_42_Article_4-DNRSubmittal
	2021-10.08 CityCouncilHandoutR1

	#13.	A Resolution Approving A Lease Agreement With Marine Toys For Tots Foundation For Property Located At 218 W Reed Street And Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Lease
	Toysfor Tots
	Toys for Tots Resolution 2021
	Toys for Tots lease 2021

	#14.	A Resolution Authorizing Execution Of An Addendum To The Fuel Card Services Agreement Between Wex Bank And Sourcewell For The State Of Missouri.
	Fuel Card Program
	Fuel Card Resolution
	fuel card

	#15.	A Resolution Appropriating Money Out Of The Treasury Of The City Of Moberly, Missouri.
	Appropriation Resolution, 10-18-2021 Agenda Summary
	10-18-2021 Appropriation Resolution

	#16.	Department Head Monthly Reports.
	department head reports
	Comm. Dev.-P. W. Monthly Report-Sept
	Finance Dept September report
	Police Dept September 2021
	Police Dept Sept 2021
	September 2021 - Monthly Fire Report to City Council (Final)
	Parks and Rec September Monthly Report 2021
	Parks and Rec September Staff Report 2021
	Director of Utilities September Monthly Report
	MAEDC October Reports
	Chamber of Commerce October Report - 2021

	#17.	Consideration Of A Motion To Adjourn To A Work Session Followed By A Closed Session To Discuss The Status Of Pending Negotiated Contracts. (Closed Statute 610.021) (12)
	Bottom

